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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X1 Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of tle Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the fiscal year ended January 30, 2010
Commission file number 1-32349

SIGNET JEWELERS LIMITED

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chagt)

Bermuda Not Applicable
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda
(441) 296 5872
(Address and telephone number including area codd principal executive offices)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on which Registere

Common Shares of $0.18 eac The New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbdturities Act.  YedX] No
O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)%f the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the registrans wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. Ye&] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant hsnéited electronically and posted on its corpovegd site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation Seuring the preceding 12 months (or for such srgrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). Yes O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it contained herein, and will not be
contained to the best of Registrant’s knowledgeeifinitive proxy or information statements incoratad by reference in Part 11l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kx]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantlésge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company.

Large accelerated filefx] Accelerated filer™ Non-accelerated filef Smaller reporting company]
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢gs [ No

The aggregate market value of voting Common Shaekkby non-affiliates of the Registrant (basedruthe closing sales price quoted
on the New York Stock Exchange) as of July 31, 2089 $1,884,972,890.

Number of Common Shares outstanding on March 210285,511,574
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The Registrant will incorporate by reference infation required in response to Part lll, Items 10it4ts definitive proxy statement for
its annual meeting of shareholders, to be filedhhie Securities and Exchange Commission withind®@& of January 30, 2010.
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CHANGE OF REPORTING STATUS

Effective January 31, 2010, Signet ceased to loeedgin private issuer and became a foreign isaugest to the rules and regulations undet
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchangé€’Papplicable to domestic US issuers. Signet iadilthis Annual Report on Form 10-K,
whereas previously it filed on Form 20-F.

REFERENCES

Unless the context otherwise requires, referercéSignet,” refer to Signet Jewelers Limited (arefdse September 11, 2008, to Signet Group
plc) and its consolidated subsidiaries. Referetzdise “Company” are to Signet Jewelers LimitedfedRences to “Predecessor Compaayg tc
Signet Group plc prior to the reorganization thasweffected on September 11, 2008, and financthb#irer results and statistics for fiscal 2
and prior periods relate to Signet prior to suairganization.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

All references to “dollars,” “US dollars,” “$,” “a&s” and “c” are to the lawful currency of the WrdtStates of America. Signet prepares its
financial statements in US dollars. All referente8pounds,” “pounds sterling,” “sterling,” “£,
the United Kingdom.

gnce,” and “p” are to the lawful currency of

Percentages in tables have been rounded and anglyrdiay not add up to 100%. Certain financial daty have been rounded. As a result of
such rounding, the totals of data presented indb&@iment may vary slightly from the actual arithiced totals of such data.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, finahadata has been prepared in accordance with atingurinciples generally accepted in
the United States (“GAAP”). However Signet givestaim additional non-GAAP measures in order to ptevuncreased insight into the
underlying or relative performance of the businéssexplanation of each non-GAAP measure used edodnd in Item 6.

Fiscal Year

Signet’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday neame¥nuary 31. As used herein, “fiscal 2012,” “fis#@l11,” “fiscal 2010,” “fiscal 2009” and
“fiscal 2008” refer to the 52 week periods endiaguary 28, 2012, January 29, 2011, January 30, Zdbdiary 31, 2009 and February 2, 2008
respectively. As used herein, “fiscal 2007” refershe 53 week period ending February 3, 2007¢&li2006” and “fiscal 2005” refer to the 52
week periods ended January 28, 2006 and JanuaBp@8,respectively.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statemueittich are forward-looking statements within theamieg of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statementsdobupon management’s beliefs and expectationghssvon assumptions made by and
information currently available to management, udel statements regarding, among other thingsethéts of operation, financial condition,
liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and ttaustry in which Signet operates. The use of thedwexpects,” “i anticipates,”

intends,
“estimates,” “predicts,” “believes,” “should,” “pential,” “may,” “forecast,” “objective,” “plan” oftarget,” and other similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statementse$a forward-looking statements are not guarantelesuwe performance and are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, including butlimited to general economic conditions, the maratising, pricing and inventory policies
followed by Signet, the reputation of Signet, teedl of competition in the jewelry sector, the prand availability of diamonds, gold and other
precious metals, seasonality of the business aaddial market risk.

Important factors which may cause actual resultdiffer materially from those expressed in any fard/looking statement include, but are not
limited to, those described in Item 1A and elsewherthis Form 10-K. Except as required by appliedéw, rules or regulations, Signet
undertakes no obligation to update publicly anyvimd-looking statements in this Annual Report omir@0-K that may occur due to any
change in management’s expectations or to reflgaté events or circumstances.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Signet is the world’s largest specialty retail jéavdoy sales, with stores in the US, UK, Repubfitreland and Channel Islands. Signet is
incorporated in Bermuda and its address and tetephamber are shown on the cover of this docunftsrtorporate website is
www.signetjewelers.com, from where documents that@ompany is obliged to file or furnish with th& Gecurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) may be viewed or downloaded fséeharge.

Signet’s US division operated 1,361 stores in &@estat January 30, 2010. Its stores trade naltjonahalls and off-mall locations as Kay
Jewelers (“Kay”), and regionally under a numbewefl-established mall-based brands. Destinatioresipres trade nationwide as Jared The
Galleria Of Jewelry (“Jared”). The US market acdasuor about 40% of worldwide diamond sales (soud&X Online). Based on publicly
available data, management believes Signet’s USidivwas the largest specialty jeweler in the b8adlendar 2009 with sales approximately
1.8 times those of the next biggest such retélee page 8 for a description of Signet’s US divisio

The UK division’s stores trade as “H.Samuel,” “Eshéones,” and “Leslie Davis,” and are situatedrime ‘High Street’ locations (main
shopping thoroughfares with high pedestrian trafficmajor shopping malls. The UK market accountddss than 2% of worldwide diamond
sales (source: IDEX Online/Office for National $ttics). The UK division operated 552 stores auday 30, 2010, including 14 stores in the
Republic of Ireland and three in the Channel Istaf&hased on publicly filed accounts, managemer¢wes Signet's UK division was the
largest specialty retailer of fine jewelry in th& With sales in calendar 2008 approximately 1.7esnthose of the next biggest such retailer.
page 22 for a description of Signet's UK division.

Competition and sector consolidation

In the US, for calendar 2009 Signet had an appratém.4% share of the $58.8 billion total jewelrgrket (source: U.S. Bureau of Economic
Analysis (“BEA™). The specialty retail jewelry miaat was provisionally estimated to be $27.2 billjsaurce: US Census Bureau). During
calendar 2008 and calendar 2009, the US specaitgljy sector underwent an accelerated rate ofatiolasion, as weak competitors exited the
market. Three of the top ten middle market brandsdbes at January 1, 2008 liquidated, and a fdwathbeen in Chapter 11 for over a year.
Management estimates that the number of US speg@alelry outlets has declined by between 10% &% $ince January 1, 2008, and
believes that financial and liquidity issues amugng the ability of many other specialty jewelersompete effectively.

As a result of management’s strategy to focus draecing its competitive strengths, the US divisias able to take advantage of these trends
and increased its market share by 40 basis pans 9.0% of the US specialty jewelry sector in ndler 2008 to 9.4% in calendar 2009
(source: US Census Bureau). These sector trendstcipated to continue in calendar 2010 and pi®Wurther opportunity for the US divisi

to gain profitable market share. In addition, mamagnt believes the US division will be better pregahan many in its sector to take
advantage of an upturn in consumer expenditurenese it occurs, due to its focus on customer ndesdeperating philosophy of continuous
improvement and its strong balance sheet.

In the UK, for calendar 2008, the most recent yeawhich data is available, Signet had an appraxa11% share of the £4.9 billion total
jewelry market (source: Office for National Stdtis). Data for 2009 is due for publication on MaBfh 2010. While similar specialty ret.
jewelry data is not available for the UK markefasthe US market, management believes that the@ni@ environment has also resultec
an acceleration of the rate at which other jewstoyes are leaving the market and a weakening ofyreampetitors.
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Operating principles

Management aims to build long term value by foogigin the customer and providing a superior mercisargktlection in high quality real
estate locations. Effective advertising draws comexs into our stores, where the objective is tvigleoutstanding service. The operating
principles that help management achieve these aims

» excellence in executiol

» test before investing

e continuous improvement; at
» disciplined investmen

Operational execution

Management recognizes that while the level of edjare on jewelry is discretionary and consumery tnade down in a more challenging
economic environment, the expression of romanceappdeciation, for example through bridal jewelng ayift giving, remain very important
human needs, as is self reward. Therefore, helpisgtisfy those needs is central to driving salssa result, the training of staff to better
understand the shopper’s requirements, commurticatealue of the merchandise selected and ‘classdle,’ remains a high priority.
Management also aims to increase the attracti@igofet’s store brands to consumers through theldiéferentiated merchandise (see page
15), while also offering a compelling value proginsi in more basic ranges, including increasedaisgalue items” (see page 16), by utilizing
its supply chain and merchandising expertise, smadebalance sheet strength. In addition, manageimends to leverage national television
advertising and customer relationship marketingctvit believes are the most effective and costiefiit forms of marketing available, to at
least maintain its leading share of relevant mamgathessages (“share of voice”).

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES
In the more buoyant economic conditions experierdeen fiscal 2002 and mid fiscal 2009, managémstrategy had been to:
* maintain a strong balance she
» continue the achievement of sector leading perfamaatandards on both sides of the Atlar
* maximize store productivity in the US and the UKd.
e grow new store space in the L

Fiscal 2010 strategy

Reflecting the dramatic change in economic andhfired market conditions in the second half of fl2@09, same store sales declined by
14.9% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 and uhdeg operating margin was materially reduced.@d®sult management reviewed and
amended Signet’s strategy to:

* enhance Sign’s position as the strongest middle market spediatgil jeweler;
» focus on profit and cash flow maximization to mainta strong balance sheet; ¢
» reduce business ris

In the changed economic environment, managemegeflthat it was preferable, and a much lower riskeqgy, to aim to maximize sales by
gaining profitable market share in existing stdrggocusing on enhancing competitive strengthserathan opening additional locations.
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Fiscal 2010 financial objectives

For fiscal 2010, this strategy resulted in thedaiihg financial objectives being set:
*  $100 million US cost saving progral
» significantly reduce working capite
» lower capital expenditure by about 50%, to appratety $55 million; anc
e achieve a positive free cash flow of between $1#bom and $225 million.

The US division slightly exceeded the cost saviagget of $100 million (excluding inflation, netddebt and volume related costs on sales
above plan). Signet achieved a $221.5 million réidndn working capital primarily through reduciimyventory by $226.5 million. Capital

expenditure was $43.6 million, $11 million belovettarget level. The positive free cash flow; nonABPAmeasure, see Item 6, in fiscal 2010
was $471.9 million, more than twice the objectreflecting the reduction in working capital andettbr than expected trading performance.

Fiscal 2011 strategy

While the results for fiscal 2010 exceeded therfaial objectives for that year, and the US and WEm®mies showed some initial signs of
stabilization in late fiscal 2010, activity remaimslow former levels and the outlook continueséaihcertain, particularly in the UK. The
strategy in fiscal 2011 is therefore broadly simitathat of fiscal 2010. However, it is not anpiated that a further realignment of costs and
working capital will be implemented given the stabbles performance in fiscal 2010.

Consistent with Signet’s strategy, management nesrfaicused on improving store productivity, prirhakly gaining profitable market share.
Both the US and UK divisions entered the downtwwimaustry leaders and continue to endeavor t@beteet customer requirements by
further enhancing their competitive advantages.

This is expected to increase the performance gapelea Signet and others in the sector in the bratid disciplines of store operations, supply
chain management and merchandising, marketing aalityjof real estate. Over the last decade, theliySion’s share of the US specialty
jewelry market has increased from 5.2% to 9.4%aiheis to achieve a further profitable increas20d0. Significant store capacity exited

US specialty jewelry marketplace in calendar 2009 management believes that many of the remairiints fare less able to compete due to
financial pressures.

As always, profit and cash flow maximization remaipriority. Therefore management will continukéep a tight control of gross
merchandise margin, costs and inventory.

The strategy also encompasses maintaining a straagce sheet and financial flexibility. These significant advantages within the specialty
jewelry sector when negotiating with landlords angpliers. The business is able to invest in newchandise ranges to drive sales an
information technology to improve productivity. &ddition, a strong balance sheet enables the USativto provide credit to customers that
meet consistent authorization standards at a timenvwether sources of consumer finance are comrpatid many specialty jewelry
competitors are finding third party provision oédit to be increasingly expensive.
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Fiscal 2011 financial objectives
In fiscal 2011, management’s financial objectivaisthe business are the following:

« Controllable costs to be little changed from fis2@l0 at constant exchange rates, that is costgdimg net bad debt charge,
expenses that vary with sales, the US vacatiotlemint policy change (see page 66) and the infpatt the amendments to the
Truth in Lending Act (see page 2

» Capital expenditure of about $80 milli
» Positive free cash flow of between $150 million &200 million

MEDIUM TERM OUTLOOK

Management believes that Signet’s two operatingsidins have the opportunity to take advantage &if #nhanced competitive positions to
gain profitable market share and, as any improvésnerthe economy take place, grow sales and iserst@re productivity. In addition, as the
economy stabilizes there is the potential for tterof the net bad debt charge on customer relokigdo sales within the US division to return
to nearer historic, lower levels. The increasingsmidation of the jewelry supply chain may alldve tbusiness to strengthen relationships with
suppliers, facilitating the possibility of develapidifferentiated merchandise, and potentially iovong the efficiency of its supply chain.
Management also believe that Sigsedtrong balance sheet and superior operatingoaetnould allow its operating divisions to take atage

of investment opportunities that meet managemeatign criteria, particularly space growth in th8,Unore quickly than competitors.
Furthermore, Signet is in a position to take adagatof strategic opportunities that meet manageémdamanding investment returns, should
they arise.

BACKGROUND
Business segment

Signet’s results derive from one business segméme +etailing of jewelry, watches and associatagtises. The business is managed as two
geographical operating divisions: the US divisiapgroximately 78% of sales) and the UK divisionpf@ximately 22% of sales). Both
divisions are managed by executive committees, vigport through divisional Chief Executives tor&ts Chief Executive to the Board of
Directors of Signet (the “Board”). Each divisioredecutive committee is responsible for operatingjsiens within parameters established by
the Board.

Detailed financial information about both divisiossound in Note 2 of Item 8.

History and development

Signet Group plc was incorporated in England ande¥/an January 27, 1950 under the name Ratnergl{@esy Limited. The name of the
company was changed on December 10, 1981 to Rdtleargllers) Public Limited Company, on Februarg®87 to Ratners Group plc, and
September 10, 1993 to Signet Group plc. On Septetrihe?008, Signet Group plc became a wholly-owsdasidiary of Signet Jewelers
Limited, a new company incorporated in Bermuda unlde Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, following teenpletion of a scheme of
arrangement approved by the High Court of Justidenigland and Wales under the UK Companies Act 2886reholders of Signet Group plc
became shareholders of Signet Jewelers Limitedjrm00% of that company. Signet Jewelers Limitedaverned by the laws of Bermuda.

Signet expanded rapidly by acquisition during thaqu 1984 to 1990. It first entered the US maikelt987 by acquiring Sterling Inc., a
company based in Akron, Ohio. Kay Jewelers, Inc aequired in 1990. Since 1990 the only corporetgiigition made by Signet was that of
Marks & Morgan Jewelers Inc. in 2000.
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Signet listed on the London Stock Exchange (“LSE”)968. In 1988, American Depositary Shares (“AD)$$ Signet began trading on
NASDAQ and in November 2004 the listing for the AdD8as moved to the New York Stock Exchar“NYSE”). On September 11, 2008, as
part of the scheme of arrangement discussed abaeh, Signet Group plc share was consolidated efoa20 basis, and each ADS on a 1-for-
2 basis. On the same date Signet Jewelers Limigt@dires were listed on the NYSE and a secondainglizas obtained on the Official List of
the United Kingdom Listing Authority (from April 2, following implementation of the FSA’s reviewthie UK listing regime, all secondary
listings, including the Company'’s, will be relabetles standard listings).

Trademarks and trade names

Signet is not dependent on any material pateniisanrses in either the US or the UK. However, itslbave several wedistablished trademal
and trade names which are significant in maintgiiig reputation and competitive position in thegéry retailing industry. These registered
trademarks and trade names include the followingigmet's US operations: Kay Jewelers; Jared THee@aOf Jewelry; JB Robinson
Jewelers; Marks & Morgan Jewelers; Belden JeweWieisfield Jewelers; Osterman Jewelers; Shaw's ldegieRogers Jewelers; LeRoy’s
Jewelers; Goodman Jewelers; Friedlander’'s Jewdt®esy kiss begins with Kay; Peerless Diamond; keBesire; Perfect Partner; Open
Hearts by Jane Seymour; and Love’s Embrace. Tradenaad trade names include the following in SigneK operations: H.Samuel; Ernest
Jones; Leslie Davis; Forever Diamond; and Perfadnier.

The value of Signet’s trademarks and trade namematerial but are not reflected on its balancetsHéeir value is maintained and increased
by Signet's expenditure on staff training, markgtamd store investment.

Seasonality

Signet’s sales are seasonal, with the first andreequarters each normally accounting for slightlyre than 20% of annual sales, the third
guarter a little under 20% and the fourth quarterabbout 40% of sales, with December being byHamhost important month of the year. Due
to sales leverage, Signet's operating income ig evere seasonal, with nearly all of the UK divisgrand a little over 50% of the US
division’s operating income normally occurring iretfourth quarter. Selling, general and administeatosts occur broadly evenly during the
year, while net financing expenses are usuallydrigithe second half of the year reflecting thenmed peak in working capital requiremeil
just ahead of the key holiday trading peri

Employees

In fiscal 2010 the average number of full-time eqlént persons employed was 16,320 (US: 12,596;3JKR4). Signet usually employs a
limited number of temporary employees during itgrfb quarter. None of Signet's employees in theadid less than 1% of Signgemployee
in the US are covered by collective bargaining egrents. Signet considers its relationship witkeitgployees to be excellent.

Further information on Signet’s employees can hmfbelsewhere in this Report.

Year ended
Fiscal 201( Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200¢
Average number of employe
us 12,59¢ 13,21¢ 13,39¢
UK 3,72¢ 3,691 3,841
Total 16,32( 16,91¢ 17,24
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US DIVISION
US market

Total US jewelry sales, including watches and fasljéwelry, are provisionally estimated by the Bi&/have been $58.8 billion in calendar
2009. The BEA figures are subject to frequent amdetimes large revisions. During July 2009, the BRade significant downward revisions
to its sales database back to 1993.

The US jewelry market has grown at a compound drgroavth rate of 4.5% over the last 25 years. WBiignet's major competitors are other
specialty jewelers, Signet also faces competititomfother retailers that sell jewelry including dement stores, discount stores, apparel ol
and internet retailers. Management believes tteajetwelry category competes with other sectordh siscelectronics, clothing and furniture, as
well as travel and restaurants for consumers’ digmmary spending, particularly with regard to gjiiting but less so with regard to bridal
(engagement, wedding and anniversary) jewelry.

In calendar 2009, the US jewelry market contratted provisional estimated 1.9% (source: BEA),aelihg the continuing challenging
economic environment. Based on provisional estimdte specialty jewelry sector fell by 3.9% to $2Gillion in calendar 2009 (source: US
Census Bureau). As with the BEA figures, during2@0wnward revisions were made to the US CensusaBuiigures for the preceding four
years. The specialty sector saw a provisional dedii market share to 46.2% in calendar 2009 fr@r% in calendar 200:

The US division’s share of the specialty jewelryrked increased to 9.4% in calendar 2009 from 9.0%ealendar 2008, based on initial
estimates by the US Census Bureau. In fiscal 200S division’s same store sales fell by 3.5%hanfirst three quarters, but increased by
7.4% in the fourth quarter. Spending by higher meaconsumers was weak in the first three quattertshegan to recover in the fourth quarter
and this was reflected in the performance of Jared.

US Competitive Strengths
Store operations and human resources
The ability of the sales associate to explain tleeamandise and its value is essential to most jgwairchases

» Centrally prepared training schedules and mateaigsised by all stores and help ensure a conttjskégh level of custome
service

» All store managers are required to be trained digologists, so as to provide expert knowledge stamers

» The US division employs over 5,000 qualified diatobogists, about 17% of all those awarded thisifjoation by the Diamont
Council of America since 19¢

» Measurable daily store standards provide staff slitlar performance targe
» Each store receives a monthly customer experieamatrhelping to identify opportunities to impromestomer servic

Merchandising
Offering the consumer greater value and selection
» Leading supply chain capability among middle madgcialty jewelers provides better value to thet@mer
» Each store is merchandised on an individual bas@&sgo provide appropriate select
» Highly responsive dema-driven merchandise systems enable swifter respongganges in customer behav

8
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e 24 hour r-supply capability means items wanted by customersrere likely to be in stoc
» Infiscal 2010, about 20% of merchandise saleswatteal for by differentiated ranges (see page

Marketing
Leading brands in middle market sector

» Largest marketing budget in specialty jewelry sediased on publicly available data, allowing madeertising impressions thi
competitors

» Kay and Jared are able to achieve leverage throatjbnal television advertisir
* A proprietary marketing database of 26 million narpeovides significant opportunities for customaationship marketin

Real estate
Well designed stores in primary locations with higgibility and traffic flows
»  Strict real estate criteria consistently appliedravme has resulted in a h-quality store bas
*  Well tested formats and locations reduce the riskv@esting in new store
» The divisior's high store productivity and financial strengthken&ignet an attractive tenant for landlo

Customer finance
Ability to facilitate customer transactions
» About 53% of sales utilize financing provided by$t

» Dedicated, proprietary credit underwriting standambre accurately reflect Sig’s customer than those used by a typical t
party scorecar

* Manage the provision of customer finance in thetextrof the US business rather than by a thirdy’'s priorities

9
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US Brand Reviews
Location of Kay, Jared and Regional stores by stateiary 30, 2010

Fiscal 201:
Planned

Total opened during the ye 8
Kay 6
Jared 2
Regional brand —
Total closed during the ye (50
Kay (14
Jared —
Regional brand (36)
Total open at the end of the ye¢ 1,31¢
Kay 91t
Jared 18C
Regional brand 224
Average sales per store in thousa®
Kay
Jared
Regional brand
(Decrease)/increase in net new store s (2)%

Percentage increase/(decrease) in same store

(1) Includes two regional stores rebranded as Kaystafi2010, and 14 in fiscal 20(
(2) Based only upon stores operated for the full fiyealr.

10

Fiscal
2010

16
8m
7
1

(56)
12)

(45 ®
1,361
922
17¢
26C
$1,81¢
$1,58:
$4,04¢
$1,16:

(L)%

0.2%

Fiscal
2009

77
570
17

3

(79
(29)

(50 @
1,401
92€
171
304
$1,78¢
$1,53¢
$4,49!
$1,16(

4%

9.9%

Fiscal
2008

10¢
68
19
21

17
(6)

(11
1,39¢
894
154
351
$1,99¢
$1,71(
$5,34:
$1,34¢

10%

(1.9%
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Sales data by brand

Change on previous yea

Average Same
unit store
selling
Fiscal 201( Sales price Sales sales
Kay $1,508.2n $ 307 4.8% 4.4%
Jared $ 7225n $ 71w (0.5% (6.0%
Regional brand $ 326.80 $ 32¢ (11.9% (4.0%
usS $2,557.5n $ 324 0.8% 0.2%

(1) Excludes the charm bracelet category, see pac

Average

unit
selling
price
(7.9%
(7.9%
(4.9%
(16.6%

Kay Jewelers

Kay operated 923 stores in 50 states at Januarg03®@, (January 31, 2009: 926 stores). Since f&2@5, Kay has been the largest specialty
retail jewelry brand in the US, based on sales,tesisubsequently increased its leadership posKiay targets households with an income of
between $35,000 and $100,000. Such households mdowibetween 45% and 50% of US jewelry expenditiretails of Kay's performance
over the last five years are given below:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007(1) 2006
Sales (million) $1,508.: $1,439.; $1,489.¢ $1,486." $1,290.:
Stores at year er 92: 92€ 894 832 781

(1) 53 week year

Kay sales were $1,508.2 million during fiscal 2@fiScal 2009: $1,439.1 million). The increase itesavas due to a 14% rise in the number of
transactions partly offset by a decrease in theageeretail price of merchandise sold to $307 @i®009: $331), primarily reflecting change
merchandise mix. Same store sales increased by dudittg the year, with the fourth quarter up 7. Daring fiscal 2010, the number of Kay
stores fell by three to 923. The Kay website, wway.kom, was enhanced further and e-commerce salesased significantly, but remain
small in the context of the brand.

Kay stores typically occupy about 1,500 square deetthave around 1,250 square feet of selling sdmsy have historically been located in
enclosed regional malls. Since 2002, new formate ih@en developed for locations outside of trad#ionalls, because management believes
these alternative locations present an opportiaitgach new customers who are aware of the brahlddve no convenient access to a stor
for customers who prefer not to shop in an enclesall. Such stores further leverage the strong i@ayd, marketing support and the central
overhead. In addition, nearly all current retaihsmuction projects undertaken in recent yearsdwebbpers are in formats other than enclosed

regional malls.

Recent net openings, current composition and puepenings in fiscal 2011 are shown below:

Expected Stores at Net openings

net change¢ January 30, Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

fiscal 2011 2010 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Enclosed mal (6) 794 Q1w 6@ 17 26 25
Off-mall (4) 111 2 18 40 21 14
Outlet 2 18 — 8 5 4 —
Total (8) 927 ) 32 62 51 39

(1) Includes two regional stores rebranded as Kaysitafi2010, and 14 in fiscal 20(
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Jared The Galleria Of Jewelry

Jared is the leading off-mall destination specigdtyil jewelry chain in its sector of the markmtsed on sales, with 178 stores in 35 states as &
January 30, 2010 (January 31, 2009: 171). TheJastd store was opened in 1993, and, since itsubbegan in 1998, it has grown to becc

the fourth largest US specialty retail jewelry hidry sales. Each Jared is equivalent in size tatdoar of the division’s mall stores and its
average retail price of diamond merchandise selthare than double that of a Kay store. In spatedelared is equivalent to over 700 US
division mall stores. Its main competitors are jmeledent operators. The next two largest such clggmdicantly reduced their store numbers
during fiscal 2010 from 23 to 20 and 20 to 10 staespectively. Jared targets households with @anie of between $50,000 and $150,000.
Management believe that such households accouabfuut 45% of US jewelry expenditure. Managemetfiébes this to be an under-served
sector. An important distinction of a destinatidars is that the potential customer visits theestoith a greater intention of making a jewelry
purchase, whereas in a mall there is a possibliay the potential shopper is undecided about tbdyzt category in which they will ultimately
make a purchase.

Details of Jared’s performance over the last figarg are given below:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007() 2006
Sales (million) $722.8  $726.. $756.« $664.. $534.C
Stores at year er 17¢& 171 154 13E 11C

(1) 53 week year

Jared sales were $722.5 million during fiscal 2@Egal 2009: $726.2 million). Same store salesel@®ed by 6.0% during the year, but
increased by 9.1% in the fourth quarter. The deeréa same store sales was due to a fall in thebauof transactions excluding the charm
bracelet category and, primarily reflecting chanigethe merchandise mix, a decrease in the aveetgi price of merchandise sold to $713
(fiscal 2009: $769), excluding the impact of a chdracelet range rolled out during fiscal 2010 (s&ge 14). The portfolio of stores increased
by seven to 178. The Jared website, www.jared.eaas,enhanced having become transactional duriogl f809. Ecommerce sales increas
significantly but are only a small proportion ofesa

A key point of differentiation, compared to a tyalicnall store, is Jared’s higher quality of custoservice. As a result of its larger size, more
specialist staff are available and additional ipttieselling methodologies may be used, such aswtite glove’ presentation of timepieces.

Every Jared store has an on-site design and repakshop where most repairs are completed withi loour. The center also mounts loose
diamonds in settings and provides a custom desigrice when required. Each store also has at teestliamond viewing room, a children’s
play area and complimentary refreshments.

The typical Jared store continues to have abo@4sguare feet of selling space and around 6,008redeet of total space. Jared locations are
normally free-standing sites in shopping developimerith high visibility and traffic flow, and posined close to major roads. Jared stores
operate in retail centers that normally contaiorgirretail co-tenants, including other categoriekitlestination stores such as Barnes & Noble,
Best Buy, Home Depot and Bed, Bath & Beyond, a$ assome smaller specialty units.

Recent net openings, current composition and pthopenings in fiscal 2011 are shown below:

Expected Stores at Net openings
net opening: January 30 Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
fiscal 2011 2010 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Total 2 17€ 7 17 19 25 17
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US Regional Brands

Signet also operates mall stores under a varieggtaiblished regional trading names. At Januar@00, 260 regional brand stores operate
36 states (January 31, 2009: 304 stores in 37s3tdtbe leading brands include JB Robinson Jewdléasks & Morgan Jewelers and Belden
Jewelers. Nearly all of these stores are locatedalls where there is also a Kay store and targahdar customer. As the average sales per
store is less than that of the Kay chain, and thepot have the leverage of national TV advertisiegional brand stores are more likely to be
closed than Kay stores. Details of regional brapasformance over the last five years are givenwel

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Sales (million) $326.¢€ $370.¢ $459.7 $501.C $484.F
Stores at year er 26C 304 351 341 33C

(1) 53 week year

Regional brand sales for fiscal 2010 were $32618ami(fiscal 2009: $370.8 million). The decreasesales was due to store closures, a fall in
the number of transactions, and a decrease invérage retail price of merchandise sold to $32&i 2009: $346), primarily reflecting
changes in merchandise mix. Same store sales dedrbg 4.0% during the year, but increased indahetli quarter by 2.8%.

The location and size of regional brand storesiwighmall is similar to that of a Kay store, andhsidleration is given to changing a regional
brand store to Kay where the overall return ontehpimployed, including any resulting impact onesthtores operated by the US division, 1
be increased. In fiscal 2010, two regionally brahg®res were converted to the Kay format (fis€€I® 14). New regional chain stores are
opened only if real estate satisfying the US don& investment criteria becomes available in thespective trading areas.

Recent net closures and openings, current compositid planned closures in fiscal 2011 are showswbe

Net (closures) / opening

Expected Stores at

net change¢ January 30, Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
fiscal 2011 2010 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Total (36) 26C (44) 47 @ 10 11 9

(1) Includes two regional stores rebranded as Kaysicafi2010 and 14 in fiscal 20(

US Functional Review
Operating structure

While the US division operates under 12 differeatniols, many functions are integrated to gain ecée®of scale. For example, store
operations have a separate dedicated field managédezen for the mall brands, Jared and thstare repair function, while there is a combi
diamond sourcing function.

US Customer Service and Human Resources

In specialty jewelry retailing, the level and qtylbf customer service is a key competitive fagt®mearly every in-store transaction involves
the sales associate taking a piece of jewelrywatah out of a display case and presenting it égoibitential customer. Therefore the ability to
recruit, train and retain suitably qualified sadaff is important in determining sales, profitétibnd the rate of net store space growth.
Consequently the US division has in place comprsgirerrecruitment, training and incentive programd ases employee attitude and custc
satisfaction surveys. A continual priority of th&Wivision is to improve the quality of
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customer experiences in its existing stores, whiteviding sufficient staff that are well traineddawith suitable experience to run any new
stores being opened.

During fiscal 2010, focus was on increasing theifhcy of in-store execution and aligning storfdours to sales volume, subject to
minimum staffing levels. In addition, at the staffiscal 2010 a further reduction in staffing lévat the divisional head office was
implemented. Staff training, which centered on picicknowledge and selling skills, remained a ptyoiin a difficult year, employees remair
motivated, focused on maintaining excellence ircaken, and were well, and appropriately, incetd.

US Merchandising and Purchasing

Management believes that merchandise selectioflabiliy, and value for money are critical factdossuccess for a specialty retail jeweler. In
the US business, the range of merchandise offerédte high level of inventory availability are gapted centrally by extensive and
continuous research and testing. Besdting products are identified and replenisheddiggghrough analysis of sales by stock keepingd.urhis
approach enables the US division to deliver a fedwsssortment of merchandise to maximize salegnaedtory turn, and minimize the need
for discounting. Management believes that the UW&idin is better able than its competitors to offezater value and consistency of
merchandise, due to its supply chain advantagesisied below. In addition, in recent years managéhees developed and continues to
execute a strategy to increase the proportionftdréntiated merchandise sold in response to coasdiemand.

In the second half of fiscal 2009, a charm bracelegie was tested in a limited number of Jareestdrhe test was successful and the range
was rolled out to nearly all Jared stores in Oat@®99. The typical customer for this range wathanJared demographic, but had not
previously shopped at a Jared store. The typicalame selling price of an item from the range wasificantly below the average for Jared,
the purchase frequency was greater. As a resalinttoduction of the charm bracelet range matgriatreased traffic and transaction volume
for Jared, but greatly lowered the average sepince. Therefore items from this range have beatueed from the calculation of the average
selling price for Jared. Management believes thiatgrovides a better indication of the trend ilyihg patterns of the core Jared customer.

Average merchandise unit selling price ($), exalgdiepairs, warranty and other miscellaneous sales

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Kay 307 331 327 317 30%
Jared® 71z 76S 747  T71¢ 697
Regional brand 32¢ 34€ 34: 33z 324

(1) Excluding the charm bracelet categc

The average unit selling price fell in fiscal 20ddmpared to fiscal 2009. During the first nine ni@nof fiscal 2010, the decrease was 13%
(mall brands down by 7% and Jared, excluding cHaamelets was down by 9%). This reflected mix clesngffset by a small benefit from
price increases implemented in the first quartdisafal 2009. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 201 average unit selling price decreased by
20% (mall brands down by 7% and Jared, excludiregratbracelets, down by 3%).

Merchandise mix

About 76% of the jewelry and watch sales of thedilsion contain one or more diamonds. Other sigaift merchandise categories are gold
and silver jewelry (including charms) without amgngstone; other jewelry which mostly contains gemss$o such as sapphires, rubies, eme
and peatrls; and watches. In fiscal 2010, saleg8wafrgewelry and charms increased markedly.
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Sales of jewelry can also be divided by purposgun€hase, with bridal, which includes engagemeptjding and anniversary purchases,
accounting for 45% to 50% of the US division’s sal®ther reasons for buying jewelry and watchelidecgift giving, which is important at
Christmas, Valentine’s Day and Mother’s Day, anflavard. The bridal category is believed by maragnt to be more stable than the other
two major reasons for buying jewelry, but it idistependent on the economic environment as custouoan trade down to lower price points.

A further categorization of merchandise is gendsianded and differentiated. Generic merchandisétams and styles available from a wide
range of jewelry retailers, such as solitaire ringd diamond stud earrings. It also includes stste$ as diamond fashion bracelets, ‘circle’
items and concepts promoted by De Beers such am@y diamond jewelry and ‘right hand’ rings. Wittthe generic category, the US
division has exclusive designs of particular styad also has ‘value items’, see page 16. Brandedhandise is mostly watches, but also
includes ranges such as the Pandbra charm bradstst was rolled out to most Jared stores for Gimas 2009. Differentiated merchandise,
are items that are branded and exclusive to thdiSion in its marketplace or where it is not wiglavailable in other specialty jewelry
retailers. The US division’s sales of differentthteerchandise increased significantly in fiscal@Cee below.

In addition to selling jewelry and watches, the didsion also makes other related sales such agrdaad repair services, and warranties. See
page 18.

US division merchandise mix, excluding repairs,naaty and other miscellaneous sales

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008

% % %
Diamonds and diamond jewel 76 75 75
Gold & silver jewelry, including charmr 8 7 7
Other jewelry 9 11 11
Watches 7 7 7

10C 10C 10C

Differentiated ranges
Differentiated merchandise includes:

» the Leo Diamon@® range, which is sold exclusivelySignet in the US and the UK, was the first diamtnte independently and
individually certified to be visibly brighte

» the Peerless Diamor®, an Ideal Cut diamond with a superior, measuredmeitilight, available only in Jared stori

» exclusive ranges of jewelry by Le Vi&n , a prestigi fashion jewelry brand with a 500 year histémyaddition, the US division’s
mall brand stores are the only specialty retailglewto offer Le Viar® merchandise in covered regional ma

* Open Hearts by Jane Seyme, a range of jewelry designed by the actress anst ddine Seymour, which was successfully te
and launched in fiscal 2009; a

* Love's Embrace™, a new collection, which was tested and rolleddartng fiscal 2010

Management believes that the US division’s scatd| trained sales staff, ability to advertise otiorzal television, strong balance sheet and
record of success, make it the preferred retathearfor jewelry manufacturers wishing to develagtidctive new jewelry merchandise. As a
result, management also believes that it is offsteth merchandise before other US retailers amnéligpositioned to negotiate restricted
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distribution agreements with such manufacturerffeBintiated ranges raise the profile of the USsitim’s store brands, help to drive sales,
have a gross merchandise margin rate a little atfev& S division as a whole and improve inventomynt Differentiated merchandise
performed very well and increased as a share e§salabout 20% in fiscal 2010 (fiscal 2009: 10%%86). The US division further developed
the Open Hearts by Jane Seym®ur selection andsafatlg launched the Love’s Embra@érange. There was continued success with the
Diamond® and merchandise from Le Vian . Thereforge flanned to develop additional differentiatedgas and to further expand those
already launched.

Value items

By planning ahead and using its expertise in thedo polished diamond market and the jewelery namurfing sector, the US division
engineered value items that appealed to the matecomscious consumer. These items utilize Sigadiigy to identify anomalies in the

supply chain, together with its scale and balatessstrength, to purchase merchandise on advanisigerms. The savings achieved, together
with a lower gross merchandise margin, result chstalue items offering great value to the consumbese items are prominently displayed

in printed marketing materials. In fiscal 2010, dogarts of the supply chain being under finangralssure, there were more anomalies in
pricing than normal. Management took advantagéisfto offer a greater range of value items in@heistmas 2009 catalog, so as to cater"
anticipated increase in the proportion of consurtteswould be value-conscious. In fiscal 2010 ¢higsms performed well and helped drive
achieved gross merchandise margin dollars, butalidribute to a lower gross merchandise marginiratiee fourth quarter.

Direct sourcing of polished diamonds

Management believes that the US division has a etithye cost and quality advantage because abddt@igcal 2009: 43%) of diamond
merchandise sold is sourced through contract matwifag. This involves Signet purchasing loose giwid diamonds on the world markets
outsourcing the casting, assembly and finishingatpens to third parties. By using this approable, ¢ost of merchandise is reduced, enabling
the US division to provide better value to the eomer, which helps to increase market share aneeeliigher gross merchandise margins.
Contract manufacturing is generally utilized onib@&ms with proven, non-volatile, historical ssfeatterns that represent a lower risk of over
or under purchasing the quantity required.

The contract manufacturing strategy also allows&g buyers to gain a detailed understanding @htlanufacturing cost structure and
improves the prospects of negotiating better prioethe supply of finished products.

The proportion of diamonds sourced loose decremsistal 2010 due to the growth of differentiatediges, where merchandise is more likely
to be bought complete.

Rough diamond initiative

In fiscal 2006, Signet commenced a multi-year frnablving the purchase and contract cutting anispimg of rough diamonds to supply the
US division. In the third quarter of fiscal 200%ven the prevailing economic environment, the atitie was discontinued. The remaining
associated inventory was disposed of during fi264l.

Sourcing of finished merchandise

Merchandise is purchased as a finished productenier complexity of the item is great, the mercligads considered likely to have a less
predictable sales pattern or where cost can becegldun addition, a significant proportion of diéatiated merchandise is purchased in this
way. This method of buying inventory provides thportunity to reserve inventory held by vendors tnthake returns or exchanges with the
supplier, thereby reducing the risk of over or urplerchasing. Management believes that the divisisnale and strong balance sheet enat
to purchase merchandise at a lower price, and tterlierms, than most of its competitors.
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Merchandise held on consignment

Merchandise held on consignment is used to enhanockict selection and test new designs. This mizésiexposure to changes in fashion
trends and obsolescence, and provides the flexilidireturn non-performing merchandise. At Janigfry2010, the US division held $135
million (January 31, 2009: $202 million) of mercllise on consignment (see Note 11, Item 8).

Suppliers

In fiscal 2010, the five largest suppliers colleety accounted for approximately 25% (fiscal 20R8%) of the US division’s total purchases,
with the largest supplier accounting for approxieta% (fiscal 2009: 8%). The US division’s supphain is integrated on a worldwide basis,
with diamond cutting and jewelry manufacturing liepredominantly carried out in Asia.

The division benefits from close commercial relasibips with a number of suppliers and damage timssrof, any of these relationships could
have a detrimental effect on results. Although nganaent believes that alternative sources of sug@available, the abrupt loss or disruption
of any significant supplier during the three mopériod (August to October) leading up to the Chrsd season could result in a material
adverse effect on performance. Therefore a regligdogue is maintained with suppliers, particulanthe present economic climate.

The luxury and prestige watch manufacturers aniiilsligors normally grant agencies to sell theirgason a store by store basis. Signet sells
its luxury watch brands primarily through Jared ammhagement believes that the watch brands hefratustomers to Jared and build sale
all categories.

Raw materials and the supply chain

The jewelry industry generally is affected by fluations in the price and supply of diamonds, gold, &0 a much lesser extent, other precious
and semi-precious metals and stones.

The ability of Signet to increase retail pricegafiect higher commodity costs varies, and an llitsid increase retail prices could result in
lower profitability. Historically, jewelry retailarhave, over time, been able to increase pricesflect changes in commodity costs. However,
particularly sharp increases and volatility in coattity costs usually result in a time lag before@ased commodity costs are fully reflected in
retail prices due to the slow inventory turn, hedgactivities and the use of average cost accagiimithe calculation of costs of goods sold by
some retailers. Diamonds account for about 55%@1US division’s cost of goods sold, and in fis2@10, the cost of diamonds in the qualities
and sizes required, declined. While diamond priceseased somewhat towards the end of the yearrémeained below the level paid in fiscal
2009. The cost of gold, which accounts for abot 29 the US division’s cost of goods sold, agaicréased in fiscal 2010. Overall,
commodity cost movements in fiscal 2010 had a échitet impact on the cost of goods sold.

In early fiscal 2011, the US division implementedestive price increases for merchandise that @omeasignificant proportion of gold to
reflect higher commodity costs. These ranges addoutess than 30% of the US division’s sales.

Signet undertakes some hedging of its requirentgrgdld through the use of options, forward consand commodity purchasing. It does not
hedge against fluctuations in the cost of diamofitie. cost of raw materials is only part of the sasvolved in determining the retail selling
price of jewelry, with labor costs also being andfigant factor. Management continues to seek waygduce the cost of goods sold by
improving the efficiency of its supply chain.

The largest product category sold by Signet is diaais and diamond jewelry. The supply and priceiahdnds in the principal world markets
are significantly influenced by a single entity, Beers, through its subsidiary, the
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Diamond Trading Company, although its market shasebeen decreasing. Significant changes in tmeatid supply chain in recent years
have also resulted from changes in governmentyaii@a number of African diamond producing courdrig addition, the sharp downturn in
worldwide demand for diamonds, reflecting the advadiing economic environment, may result in fursignificant changes in the supply chi

Inventory management

Sophisticated inventory management systems formaentise testing, assortment planning, allocati@hraplenishment are in place, thereby
reducing inventory risk by enabling managemendentify and respond quickly to changes in consuhfengng patterns. The majority of
merchandise is common to all US division mall stpreith the remainder allocated to reflect demamiashdlividual stores. Management believes
that the merchandising and inventory managemenesys as well as improvements in the productivitthe centralized distribution center,
have allowed the US division to achieve inventamns at least comparable to those of competiteex ¢hough it has a significantly less
mature store base and undertakes more direct sgus€merchandise. The vast majority of inventaryéld at stores rather than in the central
distribution facility.

In fiscal 2010, management reduced inventory lebglabout $225 million, primarily reflecting thewer level of sales experienced in fiscal
2009. This was achieved by tight control of pur@sasather than discounting, as the US divisionceedures are designed to minimize
clearance merchandise. A further inventory realignnis not planned in fiscal 2011. As a resultigfesior systems and a very experienced
inventory management team, together with Signgtrong balance sheet and liquidity, the US divisivas able to quickly respond to better 1
expected demand in the fourth quarter.

Other sales

While design and repair services represent less 1886 of sales, they account for approximately 3%ansactions and have been identified
by management as an important opportunity to ladldsumers’ trust, particularly in the Jared divisidll Jared stores have a highly visible
jewelry workshop, which is open the same hourdiastore. The workshops meet the repair requireswadrihe store in which they are loca
and also carry out work for the US division’s maihnd stores. As a result, nearly all customerirepae carried out by the US division’s own
staff, unlike most other chain jewelers which dis through sub-contractors. The design and repaictfon has its own field management and
training structure.

For about 15 years, the US division has sold &riife repair warranty for jewelry. The warranty coveervices such as ring sizing, refinishing
and polishing, rhodium plating white gold, earriegair, chain soldering and the resetting of diadsceind gemstones that arise due to the
normal usage of the merchandise. This work is edrout in-house.

US Marketing and Advertising

Management believes customers’ confidence in ttzélee, store brand name recognition and advegisindifferentiated ranges, are important
factors in determining buying decisions in the salgcjewelry sector because the majority of meralise is unbranded. Therefore, the US
division continues to strengthen and promote ipgit@ion by aiming to deliver superior customewrger and build brand name recognition. In
fiscal 2010, there was increased focus on includiffgrentiated merchandise in national televisiaivertising. The marketing channels used
include television, radio, print, catalog, directiimtelephone marketing, point of sale signagestore displays and electronic methods.
Marketing activities are carefully tested and tisiccess monitored by methods such as market cbsaad sales productivity.

While marketing activities are undertaken througttbe year, the level of activity is concentratégeriods when customers are expected to be
most receptive to marketing messages, which isreeéaristmas Day,
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Valentine’s Day and Mother’s Day. A significant rogfy of the marketing expenditure is on natiordévision advertising which provides an
opportunity to leverage its cost over time if thamber of stores or sales increases.

Statistical and technology-based systems are eragltiyysupport a customer marketing program that aggoprietary database of 26 million
names to strengthen the relationship with custotteogigh mail, telephone and email communicatidim@ program targets current customers
with special savings and merchandise offers dukangtrading periods. In addition, invitations tesfal in-store promotional events are
extended throughout the year.

Historically, generic marketing activity undertakdeyn De Beers in the US to promote diamonds and aif@hjewelry designs was important in
influencing the size of the total jewelry marketiahe popularity of particular styles of jewelryittWthe significant reduction by De Beers o
promotional expenditure on diamonds and diamonefigiwmanagement believes that marketing carrigdpspecialty jewelry retailers has
become more important. Given the size of the mar§gdiudgets for Kay and Jared, management beliig$ias increased the US division’s
competitive marketing advantage, in particulardbdity to advertise differentiated merchandisenational television is of growing
importance. The US division’s five year record adgs advertising spend is given below:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007(1) 2006
Gross advertising spend (millio $153.C $188.« $204.C $184.F $152.¢
Percent to sales (9 6.C 7.4 7.5 7.0 6.€

(1) 53 week year

In fiscal 2010, to reflect lower anticipated sdkgels, marketing expenditure was further concéatran the most productive channels and
brands, and was planned to be in line with the aibieg to sales ratio typical before fiscal 2008¢e ratio of gross advertising spend to sales
during fiscal 2010 was 6.0% (fiscal 2009: 7.4%)jchhwas below the planned level due to the beltan Eexpected sales growth achieved ir
fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. Dollar gross markgtexpenditure was reduced by 18.8% to $153.0anilffiscal 2009: $188.4 million).
Marketing efforts were focused on national telensadvertising for Kay and Jared, and the US divisiontinued to have the leading ‘share of
voice’ within the US jewelry sector. Television adtising impressions in the fourth quarter of fls2@10 for Kay were down mid single digits
and for Jared increased marginally.

Websites

The Kay and Jared websites are among the mostdisitthe specialty jewelry sector and primarilgyide potential customers with a sourc
information about the merchandise available. Ai§icgnt majority of customers who buy after visgithe websites, do so in store where they
can physically examine the product. Sales madettlirefom the websites rose significantly in fis€il10 but remain small in the context of the
US division.

US Real Estate

Given the challenging environment, and managemstri investment criteria, action was taken irlyefiscal 2009 to sharply slow the rate of
store space growth and the level of store refurbesfts. This was achieved by reducing the numbstasés opened and increasing store
closures as leases expired. Net store space al 180 decreased by 1% (fiscal 2009: increase 4é)table on page 82 for details. Capital
expenditure in new and existing stores was $18lomifiscal 2009: $56.3 million). Working capitalvestment, that is inventory and
receivables, associated with new stores was $2Bidmffiscal 2009: $66.5 million). In fiscal 201 %tore capital expenditure is planned to
amount to about $5 million on new space and ab8&trillion on existing stores, with about $11 naitliof working capital investment
associated with new store openings.
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Recent and planned investment in the store pastfslset out below:

Fiscal

2011 Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

planned 2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million $million

New store fixed capital investme 5 10.1 39.C 60.1
Other store fixed capital investme 35 8.1 17.5 28.C
Total store fixed capital investme 40 18.2 56.8 88.1
Working capital investment in new stol 11 28.2 66.5 118.¢

As a result of the growth of Jared and the develprof Kay outside of its enclosed mall base, tisedivision is increasingly competing with
independent specialty jewelry retailers that ale &badjust their competitive stance, for exampigricing, to local market conditions. This
can put individual stores at a competitive disadxge as the US division has a national pricingetya

US Customer Finance
In the US jewelry market, management believesithgiecessary for specialty retailers to offexdit facilities to the consumer. In fiscal 2010,
53.5% (fiscal 2009: 53.2%) of the US division'sesalvere made using one of its in-house customandi® programs.

Management regards the provision of an in-houstomes finance program, rather than one provided third party, as a competitive
advantage for a number of reasons:

» credit policies are decided by taking into accahetoverall impact on the business rather than thyrd party whose priorities me
conflict with those of the divisior

» authorization and collection models are based erb#havior of the divisiC s consumers

« it allows management to establish and implementboosr service standards appropriate for the busj

» it provides a database of regular customers anidgpending pattern:

* investment in systems and management of creditinffe appropriate for the business can be fa@litabnc
* it maximizes cost effectiveness by utilizini-house capability

Furthermore the various customer finance prograeis to establish long term relationships with costos and complement the marketing
strategy by enabling a greater number of purch&sgiser units per transaction and greater valuessal

In addition to interest-bearing accounts, a sigaifit proportion of credit sales are made usingéstdree financing for one year or less, sub
to certain conditions. In most US states, custoragffered optional third party credit insurance.

The customer financing operation is fully integchteto the management of the US division and isense¢parate operating division nor does it
report separate results. All assets and liabilit#sting to customer financing are shown on tHariize sheet and there are no associated off-
balance sheet arrangements. Signet's current Eakireet and access to liquidity do not constrarit8 divisions ability to grant credit, whic
is a further competitive advantage in the curr@enemic environment.

Allowances for uncollectible amounts are recorded aharge to cost of goods sold in the incomemsiant. The allowance is calculated usil
model that analyzes factors such as delinqueneg ra¢covery rates and other portfolio data. A 1@0i#gwance is made for any amount that is
90 days past due on a recency basis. The calaulati@viewed by management to assess whetherd baseconomic events, additional
analyses are required to appropriately estimasesherent in Signet’s portfolio.
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Credit authorization and collection systems werdredized in 1994 and the overall credit offer tstomers has been little changed during the
last 15 years although the detailed terms have tleanged, for example due to amendments to thd Tmltending Act.

Each individual application for credit is evaluasgghinst set criteria. The risks associated wighgitanting of credit to particular groups of
customers with similar characteristics are balaragainst the gross merchandise margin earned hyrtip@sed sales to those customers.
During fiscal 2010, an increase in credit acceptanates followed the introduction of revised authetion criteria for some credit applicants
based on the historic performance of parts of teditportfolio. This did not reflect a change fretrisk profile by which the credit operation
was managed and was part of the normal reviewdf stiteria. Management believes that a primaryedrof the level of uncollectible
receivables is the rate of change in the levelngioployment. Cash flows associated with the grgrdfrcredit to customers of the individual
store are included in the projections used whersidening store investment proposals.

As at January 30, 2010, the gross US receivabdes it $921.5 million (January 31, 2009: $886.1iam) and there was a bad debt allowance
of $72.2 million (January 31, 2009: $69.5 milliofihe average level of gross receivables durin@fi2610 was $845.1 million (fiscal 2009:
$840.5 million).

Customer financing statistics

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 __ 2008
Opening receivables (millior $ 886.1 $ 900.¢ $ 828.¢
Credit sales (million $1,368.: $1,349.: $1,422.
Closing receivables (millior $ 921.t $ 886.1 $ 900.¢
Credit sales as % of total sa 53.5% 53.2% 52.€%
Number of active credit accounts at year 936,28t 893,74( 940,06
Average outstanding account balal $ 1,01¢ $ 1,02¢ $ 997
Average monthly collection ra 12.5% 13.1% 13.%%
Net bad debt to total sal 5.6% 4.%% 3.4%
Net bad debt to credit sal 10.4% 9.2% 6.5%
Period end bad debt allowance to period end rebkdis 7.8% 7.8% 6.7%

In fiscal 2010, the net bad debt charge at 5.6%taf US sales (fiscal 2009: 4.9%) was 0.7% highan in fiscal 2009 and was again well
above the tight range of 2.8% to 3.4% experienndte ten years prior to fiscal 2009. However taggrmance in the fourth quarter showed
some initial signs of stabilizing. Credit particijpan was little changed at 53.5% (fiscal 2009: 88)2and in the fourth quarter it was 20 basis
points lower than in the comparable quarter inafi009.

Customer financing administration

Authorizations and collections are performed célytet the US head office, rather than in eachvittlial store. The majority of credit
applications are processed and approved automgptafer being initiated via in-store terminalstdbgh a toll-free phone number or on-line
through the US division’s websites. The remainipgl&ations are reviewed by credit authorizatioeratg. All applications are evaluated by
scoring credit and using data obtained througtd tharty credit bureaus. Collection procedures iskelrased calling and first call resolution
strategies. In fiscal 2010, information technologystems support and collection strategies wereemaate effective and additional investment
is planned in fiscal 2011.

Truth in Lending Act

In fiscal 2011, the US division will have to compljth certain new provisions of the Truth in LengliAct, that became effective on February
22,2010 and others of which will come into forngAiugust 2010. Where possible,
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actions have been taken to reduce the impact séthew provisions. Management expects that thege@ravisions will directly and adversely
impact operating income by a net $15 million to $2illion in fiscal 2011, primarily because they Wiinit the timing and actions that the US
division can take when a customer fails to makagmeed repayment. There may be a further indinegact on sales arising from these
amendments as a result of changes in consumeribehavaddition, systems, procedures and credihsehave been amended to comply with
changes in legislation.

Third party credit sales

In addition to in-house credit sales, the US staz®pt major credit cards. Third party creditsales treated as cash sales and accounted for
approximately 39% (fiscal 2009: 38%) of total USesaduring fiscal 2010.

US Management Tools and Communications

The US divisions integrated and comprehensive information sysfgmade detailed, timely information to monitor aedaluate many aspe«
of the business. They are designed to supportdiahreporting and management control functiondhsagmerchandise testing, loss prevention
and inventory control, as well as reduce the tialesstaff spend on administrative tasks and iseréiene spent on sales activities.

All stores are supported by the internally devetbféore Information System, which includes eledtrgoint of sale (“EPOS”) processing, in-
house credit authorization and support, a distniahager information system and constant broadbamdectivity for all retail locations for de
communications including e-mail. The EPOS systenhatgs sales, in-house credit and perpetual invenépienishment systems throughout
the day for each store.

US Regulation

The US division is required to comply with numeraiS federal and state laws and regulations covexiags such as consumer protection,
consumer privacy, consumer credit (including thetfiin Lending Act, see above), consumer creditriasce, truth in advertising and
employment legislation. Management monitors chamgésese laws to ensure that its practices comjitly applicable requirements.

UK DIVISION

Movements in the US dollar to pound sterling exgfearate have an impact on the results of SigngteablK division is managed in pounds
sterling as sales and costs are both incurredainctirrency, and its results are then translatedUrs dollars for external reporting purposes.
The following information for the UK division isgen in pounds sterling. Management believes thatitesentation assists in the
understanding of the performance of the UK divisibhe impact on reported US dollar figures of moeeis in pound sterling to the US dollar
exchange rate is particularly marked in periodexahange rate volatility. See Item 6 for analy$isegults at constant exchange rates; non-
GAAP measures.

UK market

The UK jewelry market grew at a compound rate @#8per annum from 1997 to 2008 and grew by 2.62018, the last full year for which
data is available (source: Office of National S$t#E). Office of National Statistics figures atdbgect to frequent and sometimes large revis
During 2009 revised figures were released thateedthe previous three year’s data by an avera8.df6. In addition, management believes
that Office of National Statistics data is of ligtdtvalue in evaluating the market in which the Utgilon competes, due to the importance of
the high end international jewelry retail businesthin the UK marketplace. Data for calendar 2098ue to be published on March 30, 2010.
Per capita spend on jewelry in the UK remains at@amately half of the level of the US.
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The performance of the UK jewelry market can alequaged from the volume of jewelry items contagngold hallmarked by Assay Offices
the UK. Hallmarking volumes grew at a compound tdt2.2% from 1997 to 2008. The volume decline@®8 by 34.2% and in 2009 by
32.6% (source: Assay Offices of Great Britain).

Market structure

The UK market includes specialty retail jewelerd general retailers who sell jewelry, such as ogtahowrooms, department stores,
supermarkets, mail order catalogs and internetcbadailers. The retail jewelry market is very fregnted and competitive, with a substantial
number of independent specialty jewelry retailerem business directories, management believes tirerapproximately 7,300 specialty re
jewelry stores in the UK, a decrease of about IDthe previous yea

In the middle market, H.Samuel competes with adangmber of independent jewelers, only one of whiaé more than 100 stores. Some
competition, at the lower end of the H.Samuel pobdange, also comes from a catalog showroom oprediscount jewelry retailers and
supermarkets, many of whom have more stores th&arhuel.

In the upper middle market, Ernest Jones compeitbsindependent specialty retailers and a limitachber of other upper middle market
chains, the largest three of which had 143, 663hstores respectively at January 30, 2010.

UK Competitive Strengths
Store operations and human resources
The ability of the sales associate to explain tleeamandise and its value is essential to most jgwmirchases
» Industny-leading training, granted third party accreditatibelps staff provide good customer sen

*  93% of store management have passed the JewelieigaEon and Training Course 1 accredited by thiéioNal Association o
Goldsmiths, demonstrating professionalism of stllfie UK division employs 32% of the total numbeipebple that have passed
this qualification

* Management trained to support sales associateafgaeht programs and build general management
« Commission based compensation program developiedoimve recruitment and retention of high qualitgfs

Merchandising
Consumer offered greater value and selection
» Leading supply chain capability in the UK jewelgcsor, which provides better value to the custo
» Responsive dema-driven merchandise systems enable swifter respdosgsmnges in customer behav
» Scale to offer exclusive products which improvdedéntiation from competitor
* 24 hour r-supply capability means items wanted by customexsrere likely to be in stoc

Marketing
Leading brands in middle market sector
» Ability to leverage brand perception through sa#lenarketing spen
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» Leading integrated-commerce and retail store service within the spitygiewelry sectol
* Marketing database of over 14 million names enatésnsive customer relationship market
» H.Samuel is the only specialty jeweler using natldriV advertising

Real estate

Well designed stores in primary locations with higgibility and traffic flows
»  Strict real estate criteria consistently appliedraime has resulted in a h-quality store bas
» Revised store format, more suited to selling diadsofine jewelry and watche
» Signe’s high store productivity and financial strengthkené an attractive tenant to landlor

UK Brand Reviews
Sales data by brand

Change on previous yea

Average Sales at Same Average
Reported constant

unit exchangt store

selling selling
Fiscal 201( Sales price sales rates sales price
H.Samue £2478n £ 52 (10.0% 10% ([1.7% 7.8%
Ernest Jone £209.8n £ 2280 (8.5)% 0.7% (3.29% 12.5% ()
Other £ 3.6 n/s n/e n/e n/s n/s
UK £461.2r £ 78 (9.3)% 0.1)% (2.49% 5.5%

(1) Excludes the charm bracelet categ

H.Samuel

H.Samuel accounted for 12% of Signet's sales tafi2010 (fiscal 2009: 13%), and is the largestisty retail jewelry chain in the UK with
an approximate 6% share of the total jewelry maNéth nearly 150 years of jewelry heritage, itv&es the core middle market and its
customers typically have an annual household incoietween £15,000 and £40,000. It sells a braade of gold and silver jewelry, an
increasing proportion of diamond merchandise anitie selection of watches, including Accurist, Z&th, DKNY, Guess, Rotary, Sekonda
Seksy. It also sells an increasingly focused rafggfts and collectables such as Nao and Swarovski

H.Samuel had 347 stores at January 30, 2010 (JaBaR009: 352) and is represented in nearlyaadld and most medium sized shopping
centers, with an increasing focus on larger cenf&irge September 2005, it has had an e-commepeditiy, www.hsamuel.co.uk, which is
the most visited UK specialty jewelry website (smirHitwise).

In fiscal 2010, H.Samuel sales were £247.8 mil(fistal 2009: £250.3 million). E-commerce salesigstrongly but remain small in the
context of the division. The average retail pri€en@rchandise sold in H.Samuel was £52 (fiscal 28@8), and sales per store decreased to
£712,000 (fiscal 2009: £718,000). The typical ssmhing space continues to be 1,100 square feet.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Sales (million) £247.¢ £250.3 £256.7 £260.¢ £256.2
Stores at year er 347 352 35¢ 37t 38¢

(1) 53 week year
24



Table of Contents

H.Samuel store data

Fiscal
Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
Number of stores
Opened during the ye — 5 1
Closed during the yei 5) (12 17)
Open at year en 347 352 35¢
Percentage (decrease)/increase in same store (1.79% (2.€)% 1.3%
Average sales per store in thousa® £71z £71¢€ £722

() Including only stores operated for the full fisgahr.

Customer service is an increasingly key point &edentiation for H.Samuel and therefore staffrimag remains a priority. Historically the
brand’s customers self selected merchandise framaw displays and primarily required a ‘cash andpvservice. Over the last nine years a
more open store design was implemented and at 3aB0a2010, 253 stores accounting for 80% of stueded in this format. This is reflected
in an increase over time in diamond jewelry andciatales in the merchandise mix, and a rise imtleeage selling price.

Merchandising initiatives to increase further tliféedentiation of H.Samuel stores and to reinfotfoe brand perception as a specialty jeweler
continue.

H.Samuel merchandise mix (excluding repairs, wasramd other miscellaneous sales)

Fiscal Fiscal
Fiscal

2009 2008

2010 (&) )

% % %
Diamonds and diamond jewel 22 22 22
Gold and silver jewelry, including charr 28 27 28
Other jewelry 13 13 12
Watches 25 26 25
Gifts and othe 12 12 13
10C 10C 10C

(1) The fiscal 2008 and 2009 figures have been restatedo a reallocation by the UK division of cemtaierchandise between categor

In fiscal 2010, H.Samuel used national televisidueatising supplemented by advertising in natiorelspapers, catalog distributions and
customer relationship marketing during the Chrigtre@ason. For the remainder of the year, a sdrteemed catalogs displayed in stores,
mailed directly to targeted customers and distaduh newspapers, together with customer relatipnsiarketing were the primary forms of
marketing.

In fiscal 2010, two refits or resites were compdefiscal 2009: 15) and 42 stores were redecordierhl 2009: 27). Five refits or resites anc
store redecorations are planned in fiscal 2011.cHs¢ of store refurbishment has decreased signiflig as the structural cost of removing
window-based displays, to create the more operomestoriented store design, is not being repe#teaiddition, the period of time between
store refits is longer for the customer oriententesformat.

H.Samuel has increasingly focused on bigger siarEsger shopping destinations, where it is bedtde to offer more specialist customer
service and a wider range of jewelry, and bensditnfthe more open format. This reflects changingpping patterns of customers. The nun

of H.Samuel stores in smaller markets has therefedtined as leases expire or suitable real estateactions became available. Over the last
five years there has been a reduction of 51 stmrdsabout ten are planned to close in fiscal 2011.
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Ernest Jones

Ernest Jones accounted for 10% of Signet’s salfisdal 2010 (fiscal 2009: 11%), and is the seclangest specialty retail jewelry brand in the
UK with an approximate 5% share of the total jeywefarket. It serves the upper middle market andustomers typically have an annual
household income of between £30,000 and £50,00@&sEdones sells a broad range of diamond andeyekdry as well as prestige watches
such as Baume & Mercier, Breitling, Cartier, Haonilf Longines, Omega, Rado, Raymond Weil, RolexTaglHeuer. It also sells
contemporary fashion watches such as Burberry, DKBWporio Armani, Gucci, Hugo Boss, and a rangeafitional watches including
Rotary, Seiko and Tissot.

Ernest Jones had 205 stores at January 30, 20105231, 2009: 206) and is represented in nedlrlgrge shopping centers. The typical store
selling space continues to be 900 square feeteSSeptember 2006, Ernest Jones has had an e-coencagability, www.ernestjones.co.uk,
which is the second most visited UK specialty jewelebsite (source: Hitwise).

Where local market size and merchandise considesatillow, a two-site strategy is followed using tleslie Davis trading name. While
having a similar customer profile to Ernest Joheslie Davis is differentiated where possible lsygtoduct offer. There were 15 Leslie Davis
stores at January 30, 2010 (January 31, 2009: 15).

In fiscal 2010, Ernest Jones sales were £209.8omiffiscal 2009: £208.3 million). E-commerce i®gling good growth although it accounted
for only a small proportion of sales. Sales peresteere £1,027,000 (fiscal 2009: £1,047,000) aedatrerage selling price was £228 (fiscal
2009: £203) excluding the charm bracelet cateduaywas significantly expanded in the second Hdfisoal 2010 and has a much lower
average selling price and higher purchase frequdraryis typical in Ernest Jones.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008 20071 2006
Sales (million) £209.6  £208.: £219.¢ £217.€ £208.
Stores at year er 20t 20¢€ 204 20¢€ 207
(1) 53 week year
Ernest Jones store dat&
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
Number of stores
Opened during the ye 1 5 —
Closed during the yei 2 3 2
Open at year en 20E 20€ 204
Percentage (decrease)/increase in same store (3.2% (4.00% 2.9%
Average sales per store in thousa® £1,027 £1,047 £1,10¢

(1) Including Leslie Davis store
(2) Including only stores operated for the full fisgahbr.

During fiscal 2010, a further 17 stores (includorme new store) were converted to an enhanced dgsign. Increased emphasis was again
placed on customer relationship marketing. Theityuaf staff training was further improved, with @v46% of Ernest Jones staff having ga

an externally recognized jewelry industry qualifioa.

Watch participation in the merchandise mix was 38% Ernest Jones continues to develop its reldtipasvith leading watch distributors.

Diamond jewelry sales were 39% (fiscal 2009: 40%).
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Ernest Jones merchandise mix (excluding repairsramly and other miscellaneous sales)

Fiscal Fiscal
Fiscal

2009 2008

2010 () )

% % %
Diamonds and diamond jewel 39 40 41
Gold and silver jewelry, including charr 14 13 14
Other jewelry 10 10 9
Watches 35 35 33
Gifts and othe 2 2 3
10C 10C 10C

(1) The fiscal 2008 and 2009 figures have been restatedo a reallocation of certain merchandise betwsategories

During fiscal 2010, 16 refits and resites were clatgal (fiscal 2009: 31 refits and resites were deteg, including two Leslie Davis stores).
January 30, 2010, 99 stores (January 31, 2009a82punting for 63% of sales, traded in the morndprmat, including 58 in the enhanced
design (January 31, 2009: 41), which had been safidfy tested in fiscal 2008. This design increabe differentiation of the Ernest Jones
stores from other specialty jewelers. 18 refits eggites are planned for fiscal 2011. In additithredecorations are planned (fiscal 2010: fi

The number of Ernest Jones stores has been brstatille over the last five years and is expectetktdine by about five in fiscal 2011. While
locations would be considered for new stores, tildaepend on the availability of both suitablesiand prestige watch agencies and none are
planned in fiscal 2011.

UK Functional Review
Operating Structure
Signet’s UK division operates as two brands wisirgle support structure and distribution center.

UK Customer Service and Human Resources

Management regards customer service as an essgatiant in the success of its business, and th&ati’s scale enables it to invest in
industry-leading training. The Signet Jewellery Aemy, a multi-year program and framework for tnagnand developing standards of
capability, is operated for all store staff. Itlizes a training system developed by the divisialted the “Amazing Customer

Experience” (“ACE”"). An ACE Index customer feedbagtkvey gives a reflection of customers’ experisreed forms part of the monthly
performance statistics that are monitored on adigrstore basis. In fiscal 2010, the UK divisiomplemented an improved staff coaching
methodology.

The UK divisional head office staff numbers werdueed in early fiscal 2010 as part of a cost readngirogram. Store staff hours continuec
be flexed, where possible, to reflect sales volumes

UK Merchandising and Purchasing

Management believes that the UK division’s leadiogition in the UK jewelry sector is an advantagew sourcing merchandise, enabling
delivery of better value to the customer. An exaagflthis is its capacity to contract with jewemnanufacturers to assemble products, utilizing
directly sourced gold and diamonds. In additioe, tiK division has the scale to utilize sophistidateerchandising systems to test, track,
forecast and respond to consumer preferences. dstengjority of inventory is held at stores rattem in the central distribution facility.

The UK division sells an extensive range of mercigmincluding gold and silver jewelry, watchesgrdond and gemstone set jewelry and
gifts. As with other UK specialty retail jewelerapst jewelry sold is 9 carat gold.
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Average merchandise unit selling price (£)

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
H. Samue 52 48 44 42 38
Ernest Jone® 22¢ 20 18C 165  14¢

(1) Excluding the charm bracelet categ:

Merchandise Mix

The average unit selling price increased by 6%sicaf 2010, reflecting price increases implemeitedng fiscal 2010 and merchandise mix
changes. Value items and the charm bracelet catggoformed well.

UK division merchandise mix (excluding repairs, vaaty and other miscellaneous sales)

Fiscal Fiscal
Fiscal

2009 2008

2010 () )

% % %
Diamonds and diamond jewel 30 30 31
Gold and silver jewelry, including charr 22 21 21
Other jewelry 11 11 11
Watches 30 30 29
Gifts and othe 7 8 8
10C 10C 10C

(1) The fiscal 2008 and 2009 figures have been resthtedo a reallocation by the UK division of cemtaierchandise between categor

Direct sourcing

The UK division employs contract manufacturersgpproximately 23% (fiscal 2009: 26%) of the diamanerchandise sold, thereby achiey
cost savings. The decline in contract manufacturifigcted the strategy to grow value items, whigre directly sourced from manufacturers.
Approximately 20% of the UK business’s gold jewabymanufactured on a contract basis through anlgugffice in Vicenza, Italy.

Suppliers

Merchandise is purchased from a range of suppdiedsmanufacturers and economies of scale and bpypwegr continued to be achieved by
combining the purchases of H.Samuel and ErnessJdméiscal 2010, the five largest of these sugglithree watch and two jewelry) together
accounted for approximately 30% of total UK divisipurchases (fiscal 2009: approximately 30%), whithlargest accounting for around 6%.

Foreign exchange

Fine gold and loose diamonds account for about 208610% respectively of the merchandise cost oflgsold. The prices of these are
determined by international markets and the potewdirsg to US dollar exchange rate. The other me@iegory of goods purchased are wat
and the pound sterling to Swiss franc has an inpoibfluence on their cost. In total, between 20%925% of cost of goods purchased are r
in US dollars. The pound sterling to US dollar exqafpe rate also has a significant indirect impadhenUK division’s cost of goods sold for
other purchases. The price of fine gold in pourneding increased substantially during fiscal 2@L@ to substantial increases in the dollar
price and weakness of the pound sterling agaiest/th dollar. The weakness in the pound sterling ativersely impacted the cost of diamc
and many other merchandise items. To largely nigigldese higher costs, the UK division increasézkepr
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UK Marketing and Advertising

The UK division has strong, well-established braadd leverages them with advertising (televisiomtmnd online), catalogs and the
development of customer relationship marketing negires. Few of its competitors have sufficient sdalutilize all these marketing methods
successfully. Marketing campaigns are designeditdarce and develop further the distinct brandtiies. The campaigns for both brands
to expand the overall customer base and improvieeies loyalty. The UK divisiors five year record of gross advertising spendvsigbelow

Fiscal
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2007 Fiscal
2010 2009 2008 @) 2006
Gross advertising spend (millio £10.z £12.€ £14.€¢ £14.€¢ £15.1
Percent to sales (9 2.2 2.8 3.1 3.1 3.2

(1) 53 week year

Gross marketing spend was reduced by 19% to £1llidamqfiscal 2009: £12.6 million), the ratio takes being 2.2% (fiscal 2009: 2.8%).
While this may have had an adverse impact on tles sé H.Samuel, management believes that thereavpasitive impact on profitability.
H.Samuel continued to use television advertisinthéfourth quarter and expanded customer reldtipmaarketing. For Ernest Jones,
expenditure was focused on customer relationshifk@tiag. Catalogs remain an important marketingd tooboth H.Samuel and Ernest Jones.
The e-commerce capabilities of both H.Samuel amet&irJones were enhanced during the year andatbbgites are the two most visited
specialty jewelry websites in the UK (source: Hiej.

UK Real Estate

In fiscal 2010, total store capital expenditure &&s7 million (fiscal 2009: £18.4 million), as astdt of a lower level of store refurbishment
reflecting the uncertainty of investment proposadkieving the required return for authorizatiorthia current economic environment. At
January 30, 2010, 64% of the UK division’s stordmpary 31, 2009: 60% of stores) were tradingémojben consumer oriented format, and
there were 347 H.Samuel stores (January 31, 2@2:&hd 205 Ernest Jones stores (January 31, 2063: In fiscal 2011, store fixed capital
investment is planned to be about £9 million.

Recent and planned investment in the store paotfslset out below:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2011 Fiscal
planned 2010 2009 2008
Major store refurbishments and relocatir 23 18 46 27
New H.Samuel store — — 4 1
New Ernest Jones stor — 1 5 —
Store fixed capital investme ~£9m £7m £18m £9m

UK Insurance Loss Replacement Business

While substantially all the UK division’s sales anade directly to the consumer, management belidased on its knowledge of the industry,
that Signet is the leading UK jewelry retailer firetinsurance loss replacement business. This iagdhe settlement of insurance claims by
product replacement through jewelry stores rathan by cash settlements from the insurance comp@atower gross margin is earned on
these transactions than on sales to individuaboosts. However, the UK division benefits from tkeulting higher level of sales, greater
customer traffic in the stores and the opportuttdtgreate and build relationships with new cust@m@iven its nationwide store portfolio,
breadth of product range and ability to investyistams to support the business, the UK divisionlteeefited from insurance companies
settling claims in this manner. In fiscal 2010, flreportion of sales value generated from the gusce loss replacement business increased, bt
remains small in the context of the division.
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UK Customer Finance

Following a successful test in early fiscal 200 UK division rolled out an enhanced third pantynelabel customer finance program. The
program continued to grow in fiscal 2009 and fi@10. The card is administered and funded by defiault risk resides with, a third party.
The UK division pays a fee for this facility basem a percentage of the transaction value, whiclesalepending on which credit option is
taken by the customer. In fiscal 2010, approxinya®b (fiscal 2009: 4%) of the division’s sales valuas made through the customer finance
program. Signet does not provide this servicefisgthe demand for customer finance is of insigfficscale. Bank credit card sales, which are
treated as cash transactions, accounted for appatedy 35% of sales (fiscal 2009: 31%).

UK Management Tools and Communications

EPOS equipment, retail management systems, purchhdsemanagement systems and merchandise plapringsses are in place to support
financial management, inventory planning and canparchasing, merchandising, replenishment anulibligion and can usually ensure
replacement within 48 hours of any merchandise.sold

A perpetual inventory process allows store manaigecseck inventory by product category. Theseesystare designed to assist in the control
of shrinkage, fraud prevention, financial analysisetail operations, merchandising and inventamgtool.

UK Regulation

Various laws and regulations affect Signet's UKmpiens. These cover areas such as consumer pootecbnsumer credit, data protection,
health and safety, waste disposal, employmentl&igia and planning and development standards. lytmant monitors changes in these |
with a view to ensuring that Signet’s practices pgnwith legal requirements.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Since February 1, 2010, Signet files annual regmrtsorm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, entreports on Form 8-K, proxy
statements and other information with the SEC.rRddanuary 31, 2010, Signet filed annual repomt§orm 20-F and other reports on Form 6-
K. Such information, and amendments to reportsiptesly filed or furnished, is available free of cha from our corporate website,
www.signetjewelers.com, as soon as reasonablyipadtt after such materials are filed with or fgtréd to the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Spending on goods that are, or are perceived tdlbruries”, such as jewelry, is discretionary and iaffected by general economic
conditions. Therefore adverse changes in the ecogamay unfavorably impact Signet’s sales and earrsng

Jewelry purchases are discretionary and are dependegeneral economic conditions, particularlyeagelry is often perceived to be a luxury
purchase. Adverse changes in the economy and gesiben discretionary spending by consumers mayhbderypressure, such as those
currently being experienced, may unfavorably imzates and earnings.

The success of Signet's operations depends tandisant extent upon a number of factors relatiogliscretionary consumer spending. These
include economic conditions, and perceptions ohaenditions by consumers, consumer confidence|@ment, the rate of change in
employment, the level of consumers’ disposablernme@and income available for discretionary expemdjtthe savings ratio, business
conditions, interest rates, consumer debt and aagets, availability of credit and levels of taratfor the economy as a whole and in regional
and local markets where it operates.

About half of US sales are made utilizing creditquided by Signet. Therefore any deterioration iretbonsumersfinancial position coulc
adversely impact sales and earnings

Any significant deterioration in general economimditions or increase in consumer debt levels mhipit consumers’ use of credit and
decrease the consumers’ ability to satisfy Signetgiirement to authorize credit and could in tuame an adverse effect on the US division’s
sales. Furthermore, any downturn in general o lecanomic conditions, in particular an increasernemployment, in the markets in which
the US division operates may adversely affectatkection of outstanding credit accounts receivalitenet bad debt charge and hence earr

Changes to the regulatory requirements regardinggtgranting of credit to customers could adversetypiact sales and operating income

About half of US sales utilize in-house customaaficing programs and about a further 39 per ceptiafhases are made using third party
credit cards. The ability to extend credit to cuséos and the terms on which it is achieved dependsany factors, including compliance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulatiamg of which may change from time to time, and elngnge in regulations, or the application
of regulations, relating to the provision of crealitd associated services could adversely affees sald income. In the US, certain new
provisions of the Truth in Lending Act became effez on February 22, 2010 with further provisiorpected to be introduced in August 20
which limit the US division’s ability to charge feand interest in relation to the provision of ous¢r financing. Management estimates that
this will have an adverse impact on operating ineahbetween $15 million and $20 million in fis@9111 and by $20 million and $25 million
in a full year. In addition, other restrictions amgjulations arising from applicable law could @lisiitations in credit terms currently offered
or a reduction in the level of credit granted bg WS division, or by third parties and this cout¥@rsely impact sales, income or cash flow, as
could any reduction in the level of credit granbgdthe US division, or by third parties, as a restithe restrictions placed on fees and interest
charged.

Signet’s share price may be volatile

Signet’s share price may fluctuate substantiallg assult of variations in the actual or anticipifi@ancial results and financing conditions of
Signet and of other companies in the retail ingudir addition, the stock market has experiencéckepand volume fluctuations that have
affected the market price of many retail and o8feres in a manner unrelated, or disproportiomatihé operating performance of these
companies.
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Restrictions on the Signet’s ability to make diftutions to shareholders may adversely impact tharghprice

In light of the adverse impact of the economic dtwwm on Signet’s financial performance, and thdomkt in the medium term, in January
2009, the Board decided that it was inappropriateméke any form of distribution to shareholdersadidition, the amended revolving credit
facility agreement and amended note purchase agrgesntered into on March 13, 2009 contain terrasghohibit the Company from making
distributions to shareholders (see page 77) uetirlrary 2011. Thereafter, until the private placenmotes have been repaid there are
restrictions on the Company’s ability to make shatéer distributions. As such, the Company can giw@ssurances that any form of
distribution will be made to shareholders in thedioe term.

The concentration of a significant proportion of $&s and an even larger share of profits in the fdrquarter means results are
dependent on the performance during that period

Signet’s business is highly seasonal, with a sicguitt proportion of its sales and operating progiherated during its fourth quarter, which
includes the Christmas season. Management exmectsitinue to experience a seasonal fluctuatiatsisales and earnings. Therefore there is
limited ability to compensate for shortfalls in fttu quarter sales or earnings by changes in itsatipas and strategies in other quarters, or to
recover from any extensive disruption, for exantae to sudden adverse changes in consumer condideictement weather conditions hav
an impact on a significant number of stores inléisé few days immediately before Christmas Dayisruption to warehousing and store
replenishment systems. A significant shortfallésults for the fourth quarter of any fiscal yeaudatherefore be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the annual results of operatidissuption at lesser peaks in sales at Valentibalg and Mother’'s Day would impact the
results to a lesser extent.

Signet is dependent upon the availability of equétizd debt financing to fund its operations

While Signet has a strong balance sheet with saarif cash balances and available lines of criédstdependent upon, to some extent, the
availability of equity and debt financing to helmfl its operations and growth. If Signet's accessapital were to become significantly
constrained, its financing costs would likely irese, its financial condition would be harmed andriresults of operations could be adver
affected. The changes in general credit marketitiond also affect Signet’s ability to arrange, dhd cost of arranging, credit facilities.

Management prepares annual budgets, medium tems pted headroom models which help to identify there capital requirements, so that
appropriate facilities can be put in place on atinbasis. If these models are inaccurate, adedaeitégies may not be available.

Signet’s borrowing agreements include various fai@ncovenants and operating restrictions. A matakéterioration in its financial
performance could result in a covenant being bredch Signet were to breach a financial covenawboiuld have to renegotiate its terms with
current lenders or find alternative sources ofrt&if current lenders required early repayment.

In addition, Signes reputation in the financial markets and its caap@governance practices can influence the avkijabf capital, the cost (
capital and its share price.

As Signet has material cash balances, it is exposedounter party risks

At January 30, 2010, Signet had cash and cashaquotg of $316.2 million (January 31, 2009: $96iBion). These balances are
predominantly held in ‘AAA’ rated liquidity fundsna also with various banks.

If a liquidity fund were to default or one of thariks were to become bankrupt, Signet may be utabéxover these amounts or obtain access
to them in a timely manner.
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Movements in the pound sterling to US dollar excltgmrates impact the results and balance sheet ghst

Signet publishes its consolidated annual finarstiements in US dollars. It held approximately 8¥%ts total assets in US dollars at
January 30, 2010 and generated approximately 78% séles and 85% of its operating income in Uadofor the fiscal year then ended. 1
remainder of Signet's assets, sales and operataugyie are in the UK. Therefore its results andrizadasheet are subject to fluctuations in the
exchange rate between the pound sterling and thedl&. Accordingly, any decrease in the weighdagdrage value of the pound sterling
against the US dollar would decrease reported saleé®perating income.

The average exchange rate is used to preparedbméstatement and is calculated from the weeldyame exchange rates weighted by sales
of the UK Division. As a result, Signsttesults are particularly impacted by movementbhénfourth quarter of its fiscal year, with theckang
rate in the first three weeks of December havimgléingest impact on the average exchange rate Asadvement in the year to date exchange
rate from that in the prior quarter in a particdflacal year will result in that quartertesults being impacted by adjustments to sal@ésasts ir
prior quarters to reflect the changed year to datdhange rate. This can have a particularly ndtiesianpact on results for the third quarter. In
addition, as the UK division’s selling, general auministrative expenses are spread more evenlyekatquarters than its sales, these
expenses can be particularly impacted in the fogutrter.

Where pounds sterling are held or used to funa#isd flow requirements of the business, any deerieathe weighted average value of the
pound sterling against the US dollar would redingeamount of consolidated cash and cash equivadedtincrease the amount of consolidi
borrowings.

In addition, the prices of materials and certaiodoicts bought on the international markets by tKedivision are denominated in US dollars,
and therefore the division has an exposure to eghaate fluctuations on the cost of goods sold.

Fluctuations in the availability and pricing of pashed diamonds and gold, which account for the mifp of Signet's merchandise costs,
could adversely impact its earnings

The jewelry industry generally is affected by fluations in the price and supply of diamonds, gold, 40 a lesser extent, other precious and
semi-precious metals and stones.

An inability to increase retail prices to refledglher commodity costs would result in lower prdfitéy. Historically jewelry retailers have be
able, over time, to increase prices to reflect gearin commodity costs. However, particularly shiagpeases and volatility in commodity cc
usually result in a time lag before increased coulityaosts are fully reflected in retail prices.€Fa is no certainty that such price increases
will be sustainable, so downward pressure on gremghandise margins (see page 57 for definitiod)earnings may occur.

Diamonds are the largest product category soldityes. The supply and price of diamonds in the gipal world markets are significantly
influenced by a single entity—the Diamond Tradingngpany (“DTC"), a subsidiary of De Beers Consol@biMines Limited. The DTC’s
share of the diamond supply chain has decreasedesent years and this may result in more votgtiti rough diamond prices.

The availability of diamonds is to some extent defent on the political situation in diamond prodhgccountries. Until alternative sources can
be developed, any sustained interruption in thelsupf diamonds from the significant producing cties could adversely affect Signet and
the retail jewelry industry as a whole.

Due to the sharp decline in demand for diamondkersecond half of fiscal 2009 and in the firstrsianths of fiscal 2010, particularly in the
US which accounts for about 40% of worldwide demahe supply chain was overstocked with polishesimtinds. Combined with the redur
levels of credit availability, the over supply of
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diamonds resulted in decreases in the price oklpatished diamonds of all sizes and qualitiess TWas particularly marked in diamonds
larger, and of better quality, than the type thigh&t typically purchases. In the fourth quartefieal 2010, the price of polished diamonds
purchased by Signet increased but remained belewette| of fiscal 2009. The cost of diamonds mayéase further during fiscal 2011.

As a result of the overstocked position many mepagh diamond producers very significantly redutesisupply of rough diamonds,
particularly in the first half of fiscal 2010. THieture level of supply of rough diamonds and thended for polished diamonds is unknown, and
this could result in volatility in the cost of diamds to Signet.

It is forecast that over the medium and longer tehm demand for diamonds will probably increasgefathan the growth in supply; therefore
the cost of diamonds is anticipated to rise ovaetialthough short term fluctuations in price maguw.

While jewelry manufacture is the major final demdiodgold, the cost of gold is currently driven ioyestment transactions which have
resulted in a significant increase in its cost.rEfiere Signet’s cost of merchandise and potentitdlgarnings may be adversely impacted by
investment market considerations.

The failure to satisfy the accounting requiremerftsr ‘hedge accounting’, or default or bankruptcy &f counter party to a hedging
contract, could adversely impact results

Signet hedges some of its purchases of gold anddl& requirements of its UK division. The failui@satisfy the requirements of the
appropriate accounting requirements, or defauftaokruptcy of a counterparty to a contract, contitéase the volatility of results and may
impact the timing of recognition of gains and Isssethe income statement.

The inability of Signet to obtain merchandise thatistomers wish to purchase, particularly ahead afd during, the fourth quarter,
would adversely impact sales

The abrupt loss or disruption of any significanpglier during the three month period (August todbetr) leading up to the fourth quarter
would result in a material adverse effect on Signatisiness. The sharp downturn in world diamonessahe increased level of bankruptcies
among jewelry retailers and the considerable waddwightening in credit availability has increagkd probability that a supplier may cease
trading.

Also, if management misjudges expected customerddpor fails to identify such changes and its suppain does not respond in a timely
manner, it could adversely impact Signet’s redmjtsausing either a shortage of merchandise ocamaulation of excess inventory.

Signet benefits from close commercial relationshifih a number of suppliers. Damage to, or los&n¥; of these relationships could have a
detrimental effect on results. Management holdslexgeviews with major suppliers. Signet’s mogingficant supplier accounts for 5% of
merchandise.

The luxury and prestige watch manufacturers anilsigors normally grant agencies to sell theirgesion a store by store basis, and most of

the leading brands have been steadily reducinguh@er of agencies over recent years. The wataetdbrsold by Ernest Jones, and to a lesser
extent Jared, help attract customers and build $alall categories. Therefore an inability to d@ftar retain watch agencies for a location could
harm the performance of that particular storehindase of Ernest Jones, the inability to gaintamidil prestige watch agencies is an important
factor in, and does reduce the likelihood of, opgniew stores, which could adversely impact salea/).
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An inability to recruit, train and retain suitablygualified staff could adversely impact sales andmags

In specialty jewelry retailing, the level and qtyalbf customer service is a key competitive faet®mearly every in-store transaction involves
the sales associate taking a piece of jewelrywatah out of a display case and presenting iteégpibitential customer. Therefore an inability to
recruit, train and retain suitably qualified sadsff could adversely impact sales and earnings.

Loss of confidence by consumers in Signet’s brarehmes, poor execution of marketing programs and redd marketing expenditure
could have a detrimental impact on sales

Primary factors in determining customer buying diecis in the jewelry sector include customer caariick in the retailer together with the le
and quality of customer service. The ability tdeliéntiate Signes stores from competitors by its branding, marlgtind advertising prograr
is an important factor in attracting consumershéfse programs are poorly executed or the levelipport for them is reduced, it could harm
ability of Signet to attract customers.

The DTC promotes diamonds and diamond jewelry énU. The level of support provided by the DTC #rasuccess of the promotions
influence the size of the total jewelry markethe US. As the DTC’s market share has significargtjuced, it is changing its approach from
generic marketing support of diamonds to one miwrgety associated with its own efforts to develdgrand such as the “Forevermark” and
“Everlon.” The impact of the loss of generic mamkgtsupport is currently unknown and could unfatbyampact the overall market for
diamonds and diamond jewelry and adversely impalessand earnings.

The retail jewelry industry is highly fragmented drcompetitive. Aggressive discounting or “going aftbusiness sales” by competitors
may adversely impact Signet’s performance in thegherm

The retail jewelry industry is competitive. If Sig's competitive position deteriorates, operatieguits or financial condition could be
adversely affected.

Aggressive discounting by competitors, particuldhgse facing financial pressures or holding ‘gading of business sales’, may adversely
impact Signet’s performance in the short term. Thizarticularly the case for easily comparableggeof jewelry, of similar quality, sold
through stores that are situated near to thoseSigaet operates. Management believes that a fuatheve normal reduction in the number of
US specialty jewelry stores is likely in fiscal 20and that further restructuring within the sect@y occur which could result in aggressive
discounting of competitors’ merchandise. In patacuSignet’s largest specialty jewelry competitothe US, Zale Corporation, reported in its
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 111@@hat “Based on our cash flow projections fortmainder of calendar 2010, we may
not have sufficient liquidity to meet our operatimgeds.” The impact of all the foregoing on the petitive environment in which Signet
operates is uncertain.

As a result of the growth of Jared and the devekaprof Kay outside of its enclosed mall base, tledivision is increasingly competing with
independent specialty jewelry retailers that ale &badjust their competitive stance, for exampigricing, to local market conditions. This
can put individual stores at a competitive disadege as the US division has a national pricingetra

Price increases may have an adverse impact on Sigrerformance

If significant price increases are implemented itlyez division across a wide range of merchandisgjmpact on earnings will depend on,
among other factors, the pricing by competitorsiofilar products and the response by the consumrsigher prices. Such price increases may
result in lower achieved gross merchandise margilais and adversely impact earnings.

While Signet’s major competitors are other spegigtvelers, Signet also faces competition from oteéailers including department stores,
discount stores, apparel outlets and internetleesathat sell jewelry. In addition,
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other retail categories, for example electronics, ether forms of expenditure, such as travel, atsopete for consumers’ discretionary
expenditure. This is particularly so during the iStmas gift giving season. Therefore the pricesofglry relative to other products influences
the proportion of consumers’ expenditure that snsn jewelry. If the relative price of jewelrycieases, Signet's sales may decline.

Long term changes in consumer attitudes to jewetnuld be unfavorable and harm jewelry sales

Consumer attitudes to diamonds, gold and otheligusgnetals and gemstones also influence the @ignet’s sales. Attitudes could be
affected by a variety of issues including concererdghe source of raw materials; the impact of mgreand refining of minerals on the
environment, the local community and the politis@bility of the producing country; labor condit®im the supply chain; and the availability
and consumer attitudes to substitute products asaubic zirconia, moissanite and of laboratorate® diamonds. A negative change in
consumer attitudes to jewelry could adversely imgates.

The inability to rent stores that satisfy managentsroperational and financial criteria could harmades, as could changes in locations
where customers shop

Signet’s results are dependent on a number offactdating to its stores. These include the aldity of desirable property, the demographic
characteristics of the area around the store, ¢ésgd and maintenance of the stores, the avatlabiliattractive locations within the shopping
center that also meet the operational and finawcitdria of management, the terms of leases aneliationship with major landlords. The US
division leases 16% of its store locations from &infProperty Group and 13% from General Growth Manant. In fiscal 2010, Simon
Property Group made an offer to acquire Genera@Brdlanagement Inc. Signet has no other relatignefith any lessor relating to 10% or
more of its store locations. If Signet is unablednt stores that satisfy its operational and famrcriteria, or if there is a disruption in its
relationship with its major landlords, sales coddadversely affected.

Given the length of property leases that Signegrsrinto, it is dependent upon the continued pojtulaf particular retail locations. As the US
division continues to test and develop new typestafe locations there can be no certainty asdip fuccess.

The UK division has a more diverse range of stocations than in the US, including some exposusantaller retail centers which do not
justify the investment required to refurbish thie $0 the current store format. Consequently thedilksion is gradually closing stores in st
locations as leases expire or satisfactory progeatysactions can be executed; however the abidlisecure such property transactions is not
certain. As the UK division is already represeritedearly all major retail centers, a small anrdedrease in store space is expected in the
medium term which will adversely impact sales gtowt

The rate of new store development is dependentram#er of factors including obtaining suitablel estate, the capital resources of Signet,
the availability of appropriate staff and managetaard the level of the financial return on investinequired by management.

Signet’s success is dependent on the strength dfecveness of its relationships with its variogtakeholders whose behavior may be
affected by its management of social, ethical amyieonmental risks

Social, ethical and environmental matters influeBmmet’s reputation, demand for merchandise byggorers, the ability to recruit staff,
relations with suppliers and standing in the finahmarkets. Signet’s success is dependent ontteegih and effectiveness of its relationships
with its various stakeholders: customers, sharedis|cemployees and suppliers. In recent yearseistddler expectations have increased and
Signet’s success and reputation will depend oalitkty to meet these higher expectations.
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Inadequacies in and disruption to internal contrond systems could result in lower sales and in@e@ costs or adversely impact the
reporting and control procedures

Signet is dependent on the suitability, reliabifityd durability of its systems and proceduresuigiclg its accounting, information technology,
data protection, warehousing and distribution systdf support ceased for a critical externallysign software package, several of which are
used in the UK division, management would havertplement an alternative software package or bagiparting the software internally.
Disruption to parts of the business could resulbwer sales and increased costs.

In fiscal 2011, the UK division is changing its esttal information technology services provider.sTtduld give rise to system disruption.

In fiscal 2012, management plans to relocate varfanctions, such as external financial reportmgigeting, management accounting and
treasury functions from London, England to Akromi® This could result in a high level of stafftiewver in those functions and disruption to
systems which could adversely impact the contrdl@tounting functions of Signet.

An adverse decision in legal proceedings could red@arnings

In March 2008, private plaintiffs filed a classiactlawsuit for an unspecified amount against 8tgrlewelers Inc. (“Sterling”), a subsidiary of
Signet, in U.S. District Court for the Southern tiict of New York federal court. In September 20608 US Equal Opportunities Commission
filed a lawsuit against Sterling in U.S. Districo@t for the Western District of New York. Sterlidgnies the allegations from both parties and
intends to defend them vigorously. If, howeveisitinsuccessful in either defense, Sterling coelddgjuired to pay substantial damages.

Failure to comply with labor regulations could harrthe business

Failure by Signet to comply with labor regulatiamuld result in fines and legal actions. In additithe ability to recruit and retain staff could
be harmed.

Failure to comply with changes in law and regulatis could adversely affect the business

Signet’s policies and procedures are designedrgpbowith all applicable laws and regulations. Chiag legal and regulatory requirements
(particularly in the US) have increased the comipfeof the regulatory environment in which the mess operates and the cost of compliance.
Failure to comply with the various regulations nmagult in damage to Signet’s reputation, civil @nichinal liability, fines and penalties, and
further increase the cost of regulatory compliance.

Any difficulty integrating an acquisition or a busiess combination may result in expected returns anbter projected benefits from such
an exercise not being realized

While management does not currently contemplateagquisition or business combination, Signet mahéfuture make acquisitions or be
involved in a business combination. Any difficuityintegrating an acquisition or a business comimnamay result in expected returns and
other projected benefits from such an exerciséaitg realized. A significant transaction couldoatiésrupt the operation of its current
activities. Signet’s borrowing agreements placest@ints on its ability to make an acquisition oteg into a business combination.

Changes in assumptions used in calculating pensassets and liabilities may impact Signet'’s resudtsd balance sheet

In the UK, Signet operates a defined benefit pensaheme (the “Group Scheme”), which ceased totaukm employees in 2004. The
valuation of the Group Scheme’s assets and ligslpartly depends on assumptions
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based on the financial markets as well as longeuity staff retention rates. This valuation is paitrly sensitive to material changes in the
value of equity investments held by the Group Saheshanges in the UK AA rated corporate bond yieltligh are used in the measuremet
the liabilities, changes in market expectationddog term price inflation and new evidence on ectgd longevity rates. Funding requirements
and the income statement items relating to thisedddGroup Scheme are also influenced by thesergacto

Under the UK Pensions Act 2004, the Pensions Regutas powers to vary and impose funding arrangésrtbat could be more onerous than
may be agreed with or proposed to the trusteeaddiition, the provisions of the Pensions Act 20@4/ mestrict Signet’s freedom to undertake
certain re-organization steps or to effect retunmgapital or unusual dividends without the prigreement of the Group Scheme trustees, in
consultation with the Pensions Regulator. A negativange in the assumptions used to calculatedtlie vf pension assets and liabilities may
adversely impact Signet'’s results and balance sheet

Loss of one or more key executive officers or enygles could adversely impact performance, as cohéddppointment of an
inappropriate successor or SUCCessors

Signet’s future success will depend substantigbigruthe ability of senior management and otherddaployees to implement the business
strategy. While Signet has entered into employreentracts with such key personnel, the retentiotheif services cannot be guaranteed and
the loss of such services, or the inability toaaitrand retain talented personnel, could have anmabtdverse effect on Signet's ability to
conduct its business. The Chief Executive has amcexi his intention to stand down on January 29128ad the Group Finance Director has
announced that he plans to retire at the conclusfiohe Company’s Annual General Meeting to be heldune 2010.

The appointment of an appropriate successor tereiththese positions could be challenging givagn&i's leadership position within the
jewelry sector. Any outside appointment may notehtne same level of experience in the jewelry seaddhe retiring executives. Howev
internal appointments may have considerably lepemance in managing a public company than an eateppointment. In addition, there
could be short term disruption during the transifp@riod between senior executives and further geemant changes may occur as a result of
an appointment.

Investors may face difficulties in enforcing procéimgs against Signet Jewelers Limited as it is doiteid in Bermuda

It is doubtful whether courts in Bermuda would eoéojudgments obtained by investors in other juctsmhs, including the US and the UK,
against the Company or its directors or officerdarthe securities laws of those jurisdictionsmegain actions in Bermuda against the
Company or its directors or officers under the sigies laws of other jurisdictions.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Signet attributes great importance to the locatiod appearance of its stores. Accordingly, in I8ignet's US and UK operations, investment
decisions on selecting sites and refurbishing stare made centrally, and strict real estate arestment criteria are applied.

US property

Substantially all of Signet’s US stores are leasedddition to a minimum annual rental, the majoof mall stores are also liable to pay
turnover related rent based on sales above a gzkbiise level. In fiscal 2010, most
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of the division’s mall stores only made base repgaiments. Under the terms of a typical leaseUtBddusiness is required to conform and
maintain its usage to agreed standards, includiegtimg required advertising expenditure as a péagenof sales, and is responsible for its
proportionate share of expenses associated witlmmomarea maintenance, utilities and taxes of thé frtae initial term of a mall store lease
generally ten years. Towards the end of a leasepagenent evaluates whether to renew a lease a@hthee$tore, using the same operational
and investment criteria as for a new store. Wheaeagement is uncertain whether the location wiktmeanagement’s required return on
investment, but the store is profitable, the leasag be renewed for one to three years during wiiiicl the store’s performance is further
evaluated. There are typically about 200 such bralhd stores at any one time. Jared stores areaflgropened on 20 year leases with options
to extend the lease, and rents are not turnovatek| A refurbishment of a Jared store is normallgertaken every ten years. At January 30,
2010 the average unexpired lease term of US lgarsemises was six years and about half of leasesenaxd expiring within five years. The
cost of refitting a store is similar to the cosfittfng out a new store which is typically betwe®330,000 and $390,000 for a mall location and
between $850,000 and $1,250,000 for a Jared siofiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010, the level of nearstopenings was substantially below that
in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008. Marmaget expects that store openings in fiscal 2011fiandl 2012 will also be less than in fiscal
2006, fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008. In fiscal 20th@, level of major store refurbishment was beloat thf recent years with 16 mall locations
being completed (fiscal 2009: 38). It is anticighteat refurbishment activity will increase in #8011 to 52, including 22 Jared locations.
investment will be financed by cash flow from ogerg activities.

The US division leases 16% of its store locatiansif Simon Property Group and 13% from General Ghdé&nagement, Inc. In fiscal 2010,
Simon Property Group made an offer to acquire Gari@rowth Management Inc. The division has no otb&tionship with any lessor relati
to 10% or more of its store locations.

During the past five fiscal years, the US busirgsserally has been successful in renewing its $¢aiges as they expire and has not
experienced difficulty in securing suitable locagdor its stores. No store lease is individuallptemial to Signet's US operations.

A 340,000 square foot head office and distribufewility is leased in Akron, Ohio. On February B0Z a new 25 year lease was entered into
for this facility. On January 1, 2007 a 25 yeaskwas entered into for an 86,000 square footeoffiglding next door to the head office. Space
surplus to Signet's requirements in this buildiagurrently sublet or is available to be sublefl%000 square foot repair center was opened
during fiscal 2006 and is owned by a subsidiar@ighet. There are no plans for any major capitpeexliture related to the head office and
distribution facilities.

UK property

At January 30, 2010, Signet's UK division tradeahfrseven freehold premises, five premises wheréetiee had a remaining term in excess of
25 years and 542 other leasehold premises. Theialivg stores are generally leased under full repaaimdjinsuring leases (equivalent to tri

net leases in the US). Wherever possible Sigratastening the length of new leases that it eniteos or including break clauses in order to
improve the flexibility of its lease commitmentst 2anuary 30, 2010, the average unexpired leasedEUK premises with lease terms of less
than 25 years was seven years, and a majorityaeétehad either break clauses or terms expirigniitve years. Rents are usually subject to
upward review every five years if market conditi@aswarrant. An increasing proportion of rents dlave an element related to the sales of a
store, subject to a minimum annual value. For tetdiassigned leases and sublet premises see3fage

At the end of the lease period, subject to ceftaiited exceptions, UK leaseholders generally hsteg¢utory rights to enter into a new lease of
the premises on negotiated terms. As current leaqase, Signet believes that it will be able toew leases, if desired, for present store
locations or to obtain leases in equivalent or imwpd locations in the same general area. Signatdtasxperienced difficulty in securing lea
for suitable locations for its UK stores. No sttgase is individually material to Signet’s UK optioas.
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A typical H.Samuel store historically has had aonagfurbishment every seven years and an ErnessJtore every ten years. Once an
H.Samuel store has been converted to the curremetpthe cost and frequency of subsequent majorliishments is less, but much less cc
store redecorations are now required, typicallyngfige years. At January 30, 2010, 73% of H.Sanstieles and 48% of Ernest Jones stores
traded in the converted format. It is anticipatealt toy the end of fiscal 2014 nearly all the UKretowill trade in the converted format. The
investment will be financed by cash from operatiwgvities. The cost of refitting to the customeedly open format is betweer2®0,000 an
£300,000 for H. Samuel and Ernest Jones. The €asthsequently refitting an H.Samuel store is apipnately half as much and there is also
expected to be a reduction in the cost of subseqgeéts for Ernest Jones.

Signet owns a 255,000 square foot warehouse atrébditon center in Birmingham, where certain of tiK division’s central administration
functions are based, as well as e-commerce fulitimThe remaining activities are situated in £286,square foot office in Borehamwood,
Hertfordshire which is held on a 15 year leaseredtéto in 2005. There are no plans for any meggital expenditure related to offices or the
distribution center in the UK.

Certain central functions are located in a 7,20fasg foot office in central London, on a ten yeaske which was entered into in 2005.

Distribution capacity

The capacity of the US distribution center waséaseed in fiscal 2009 and it is anticipated thatethvéll be sufficient capacity to support
medium term sales growth. The UK distribution ceihi&s sufficient capacity for the anticipated feteequirements of the business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
See discussion of legal proceedings in Note 21eofi 8.

ITEM 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market information

Prior to September 11, 2008, the ordinary shar&gfet Group plc (the “Predecessor Company”) wex@ed on the London Stock Exchange
and American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) represerititose shares were quoted on the NYSE. Each Ap@gented ten ordinary shares.
Prior to November 16, 2004, the ADSs were tradetlASDAQ (symbol: SIGY). Prior to October 18, 200 tratio of ordinary shares per
ADS had been 30:1.

On September 11, 2008 with the approval of the Kighrt of Justice in England and Wales, a schenarahgement (the “Scheme”) was
effected. Under the terms of the Scheme, a newpgholding company, Signet Jewelers Limited, waaldisthed. Common Shares in the new
company, which has its primary listing on the NYSre distributed to the shareholders of the Prestar Company in proportion to their
original holding (subject to fractional entittemghfollowing a 1-for-20 reverse share split (shasasolidation). Holders of ADSs received one
new Common Share for every two ADSs held.

Historic share prices have been adjusted for tieatswnoted above.

The following table sets forth the high and lowrghprice on each stock exchange for the periodsatet.

New York London
Stock Exchange Stock Exchange
Price per share Price per share
High Low High Low
$ £
Fiscal 2008
First quarte 28.1¢ 20.2( 14.2¢ 10.0¢
Second quarte 30.4( 17.7(C 15.5(C 8.8t
Third quartel 25.5¢ 10.1¢ 13.3¢ 6.0¢
Fourth quarte 12.6¢ 7.04 7.9% 4.7¢
Full year 30.4( 7.04 15.5( 4.7¢
Fiscal 2010
First quarte! 16.5( 6.0€ 11.1(C 4.1z
Second quarte 22.2¢ 16.01 13.52 10.3¢
Third quartel 28.5¢ 20.3¢ 17.2¢ 11.9¢
Fourth quarte 28.9i 23.72 17.6¢ 14.3¢
Full year 28.9i 6.0¢€ 17.6¢ 4.1z

Number of holders

As of March 21, 2010 there were 13,652 shareholdierscord. However when including shareholders itivdd equity in broker accounts uni
street names, nominee accounts or employee sherkegse plans, management estimates the sharebalskeiat approximately 29,000.

Dividend policy

In fiscal 2009, total equity dividends of $123.8lmn were paid. Historic dividend per share amaumive been restated to reflect the 1-for-20
reverse stock split that took place on Septembg2@a8. In July 2008, a dividend of $1.2634 pershweas paid and in November 2008, an
interim dividend of $0.192 per share was paid.

Signet did not pay any dividends in fiscal 2010, isdt expected to do so in fiscal 2011. The fe8tms contained in its borrowing agreements
to making shareholder distributions are discussdteim 7.

41



Table of Contents

Performance graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be filed with the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into anufe filing under the Securities Act of 1933 oci@d#ies Exchange Act of 1934, each as
amended, except to the extent that Signet spdbjfinaorporates it by reference into such filing.

Historical share price performance should not tiedeipon as an indication of future share pricégrenance.

The following graph compares the cumulative tottiim to holders of Signet’s Common Shares agé#tiestumulative total return of the
Russell 1000 Index and Dow Jones General Retdildex for the five year period ended January 30020 he comparison of the cumulative
total returns for each investment assumes that $&30invested in Signet's Common Shares and thecéige indices on February 1, 2005
through January 30, 2010 including reinvestmerarof dividends, and is adjusted to reflect the 12fdishare consolidation and the scheme of
arrangement discussed above.
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The following graph compares the cumulative totéim to holders of Signet's Common Shares ag#iestumulative total return of the FTSE
All Share Index and the FTSE General RetailersxXrfdethe five year period ended January 30, 20h@ comparison of the cumulative total
returns for each investment assumes that £100mwasted in Signet’'s Common Shares and the respdatiNces for the period February 1,
2005 through January 30, 2010 including reinvestroéany dividends, and is adjusted to reflectXHer-20 share consolidation and the
scheme of arrangement discussed above.
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Exchange controls

The Company is classified by the Bermuda MonetarthArity as a non-resident of Bermuda for excharagerol purposes. The transfer of
Common Shares between persons regarded as residsigtie Bermuda for exchange control purposes reagffiected without specific consent
under the Exchange Control Act of 1972 and reguitetithereunder and the issue of Common Shareggorgeregarded as resident outside
Bermuda for exchange control purposes may be efagithout specific consent under the Exchange 1©bAct of 1972 and regulations
thereunder. Issues and transfers of Common Sharelving any person regarded as resident in Bernfimdexchange control purposes may
require specific prior approval under the Excha@getrol Act of 1972.

The owners of Common Shares who are ordinarilydeggioutside Bermuda are not subject to any résin& on their rights to hold or vote

their shares. Because the Company has been desigasat non-resident for Bermuda exchange conirpbges, there are no restrictions on its
ability to transfer funds in and out of Bermudampay dividends to US residents who are holdesarhmon Shares, other than in respect of
local Bermuda currency.

Taxation

The following are brief and general summaries efttmited Kingdom and United States taxation treato& holding and disposing of
Common Shares. The summaries are based on eXstngncluding statutes, regulations, administratiulings and court decisions, and what
is understood to be current HM Revenue and Cus{tiftdRC”) and Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) prizgt, all as in effect on the date of
this document. Future legislative, judicial or adisirative changes or interpretations could altenodify statements and conclusions set forth
below, and these changes or interpretations calletooactive and could affect the tax consequeoftkelding and disposing of Common
Shares. The summaries do not consider the conseegiefnholding and disposing of Common Shares utaddaws of countries other than the
UK, the US (or any US laws other than those peirigito income tax) and Bermuda, nor do the sumreariasider any alternative minimum
tax, state or local consequences of holding anabdiag of Common Shares.

The summaries provide general guidance to per&sidant, ordinarily resident and domiciled for paxposes in the UK who hold Common
Shares as an investment, and to US holders (azeddbielow) who hold Common Shares as capital aésilsn the meaning of section 1221
of the US Internal Revenue Code), and not to amgdns who are taxable in the UK on a remittancésb@swho are subject to special tax ru
such as banks, financial institutions, broker-dealpersons subject to mark-to-market treatmentrédent individuals who hold their
Common Shares under a personal equity plan, peteahbold their Common Shares as a position ingfea straddle, conversion transaction,
constructive sale or other integrated investmefthdlders whose “functional currency” is not the diflar, persons who received their
Common Shares by exercising employee share oppicotherwise as compensation, persons who haveraddgheir Common Shares by
virtue of any office or employment, S corporati@mother pass-through entities (or investors irfarations or other pass-through entities),
mutual funds, insurance companies, exempt orgaoimtUS holders subject to the alternative minintar) certain expatriates or former long
term residents of the US, and US holders that tyrec by attribution hold 10% or more of the vajipower of the Company’s shares.

The summaries are not intended to provide speaifiGce and no action should be taken or omittdakbttaken in reliance upon it. If you are in
any doubt about your taxation position, or if yoa ardinarily resident or domiciled outside the tddiKingdom or resident or otherwise
subject to taxation in a jurisdiction outside theitdd Kingdom or the United States, you should atinsour own professional advisers
immediately.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. The dirsdtitend to conduct the Company’s affairs such tased on current law and practice of
the relevant tax authorities, the Company will betome resident for tax purposes in any otheitoeyri This guidance is written on the basis
that the Company does not become resident in itotgrother than Bermuda.
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UK Taxation
Chargeable gains

A disposal of Common Shares by a shareholder whesigdent or ordinarily resident in the UK may, degding on individual circumstances
(including the availability of exemptions or allolla losses), give rise to a liability to (or aroabble loss for the purposes of) UK taxation of
chargeable gains.

Any chargeable gain or allowable loss on a disposttie Common Shares should be calculated takitogaccount the allowable cost to the
holder of acquiring his Common Shares. In the cdg®rporate shareholders, to this should be addkdn calculating a chargeable gain but
not an allowable loss, indexation allowance onali@vable cost. (Indexation allowance is not audégor non-corporate shareholders).

Individuals who hold their Common Shares withiniragividual savings account (“ISA”) and are entitked SA-related tax reliefs in respect of
the same, will generally not be subject to UK taabf chargeable gains in respect of any gairirayien a disposal of Common Shares.

Taxation of dividends on Common Shares
Under current UK law and practice, UK withholdiraxtis not imposed on dividends.

Subiject to anti-avoidance rules and the satisfaadfacertain conditions, UK resident shareholdeh are within the charge to UK corporation
tax will in general not be subject to corporatiar bn dividends paid by the Company on the Comniares.

A UK resident individual shareholder who is liabbeUK income tax at no more than the basic ratéhelliable to income tax on dividends
paid by the Company on the Common Shares at thdedigt ordinary rate (10% in tax year 2009/10). A téikident individual shareholder w

is liable to UK income tax at the higher rate v subject to income tax on the dividend incomta@dividend upper rate (32.5% in 2009/10).
A new rate of income tax (the “additional rate”Jlvipply to individuals with taxable income oversf1,000 with effect from April 6, 2010. A
UK resident individual shareholder subject to tbdidonal rate will be liable to income tax on thdividend income at a new higher rate of
42.5% of the gross dividend to the extent thagttuss dividend when treated as the top slice ofttaeeholder’s income falls above the
£150,000 threshold.

UK resident individuals in receipt of dividendsiinche Company, if they own less than a 10% shadéhgpin the Company, will be entitled to
a nonpayable dividend tax credit (currently at the raité/9th of the cash dividend paid (or 10% of thgr@gate of the net dividend and relz
tax credit)). Assuming that there is no withholdiag imposed on the dividend (as to which see ¢laian on Bermuda taxation below), the
individual is treated as receiving for UK tax pusps gross income equal to the cash dividend ptutathcredit. The tax credit is set against the
individual's tax liability on that gross income. &lesult is that a UK resident individual sharekolgho is liable to UK income tax at no more
than the basic rate will have no further UK incotaeto pay on a Company dividend. A UK residenfuitthal shareholder who is liable to L
income tax at the higher rate will have further Wikome tax to pay of 22.5% of the dividend plusrilated tax credit (or 25% of the cash
dividend, assuming that there is no withholdingitaposed on that dividend). From April 6, 2010, i késident individual subject to income
tax at the additional rate will have further UK @moe tax to pay of 32.5% of the dividend plus thediedit (or 361 6% of the cash dividend,
assuming that there is no withholding tax imposedhat dividend), to the extent that the grossddind falls above the threshold for the new
50% rate of income tax.

Individual shareholders who hold their Common Shamean ISA and are entitled to ISA-related takefslin respect of the same will not be
taxed on the dividends from those Common Shareareutot entitled to recover from HMRC the tax dred such dividends.
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Stamp duty/stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”")

In practice, stamp duty should generally not nedgit paid on an instrument transferring Common &hado SDRT will generally be payable
in respect of any agreement to transfer CommoneShar Depositary Interests. The statements impniagraph summarize the current position
on stamp duty and SDRT and are intended as a dengéda only. They assume that the Company willbt®tJK managed and controlled and
that the Common Shares will not be registeredriggéster kept in the UK by or on behalf of the UKie Company has confirmed that it does
not intend to keep such a register in the UK.

US Taxation

As used in this discussion, the term “US holderamsea beneficial owner of Common Shares who itJ®federal income tax purposes: (i) an
individual US citizen or resident; (ii) a corporati or entity treated as a corporation, createatganized in or under the laws of the United
States; (iii) an estate the income of which is sabjo US federal income taxation regardless afatgce; or (iv) a trust if either: (a) a court
within the US is able to exercise primary supeorisbver the administration of such trust and onmore US persons have the authority to
control all substantial decisions of such trust{lrthe trust has a valid election in effect tateated as a US resident for US federal incom
purposes.

If a partnership (or other entity classified asaatpership for US federal tax income purposes)©i@ddmmon Shares, the US federal income tax
treatment of a partner will generally depend uganstatus of the partner and the activities ofpdmenership. Partnerships, and partners in
partnerships, holding Common Shares are encoutagezhsult their tax advisers.

*kkkk

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: TO EBURE COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
CIRCULAR 230, HOLDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: (AMMNY DISCUSSION OF FEDERAL TAX ISSUES CONTAINED OR
REFERRED TO IN THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT INTENDED TO BESED, AND CANNOT BE USED, BY HOLDERS FOR THE
PURPOSES OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSEDN THEM UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE; (B) SUCH
DISCUSSION IS WRITTEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROMGON OR MARKETING OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS
ADDRESSED HEREIN; AND (C) HOLDERS SHOULD SEEK ADVEEBASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM
AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISER.

*kkkk

Dividends and other distributions upon Common Séare

Distributions made with respect to Common Shardisgenerally be includable in the income of a U3deo as ordinary dividend income, to
the extent paid out of current or accumulated egsand profits of the Company as determined inr@eance with US federal income tax
principles. The amount of such dividends will geligrbe treated partly as US-source and parthoesign-source dividend income in
proportion to the earnings from which they are éer®d paid for as long as 50% or more of the camisashares are directly or indirectly
owned by US persons. Dividend income received fileenCompany will not be eligible for the “dividendsceived deduction” generally
allowed to US corporations under the US Code. Stibgeapplicable limitations, including a requiremhéhat the Common Shares be listed for
trading on the NYSE, the NASDAQ Stock Market, ootrer qualifying US exchange, dividends with respecCommon Shares so listed that
are paid to non-corporate US holders in taxablesybeginning before January 1, 2011 will generadiytaxable at a maximum tax rate of 15%.
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Sale or exchange of Common Shares

Gain or loss realised by a US holder on the sakxohange of Common Shares generally will be stbgedS federal income tax as capital
gain or loss in an amount equal to the differerst@vben the US holder’s tax basis in the Commonedhand the amount realized on the
disposition. Such gain or loss will be long ternpital gain or loss if the US holder held the ComnS#rares for more than one year. Gain or
loss, if any, will generally be US source for fgmeitax credit purposes. The deductibility of cdditases is subject to limitations.

Information reporting and backup withholding

Payments of dividends on, and proceeds from acsather disposition of, Common Shares, may, uederin circumstances, be subject to
information reporting and backup withholding atgerof 28% of the cash payable to the holder, srttes holder provides proof of an
applicable exemption or furnishes its taxpayer fifieation number, and otherwise complies withagplicable requirements of the backup
withholding rules. Any amounts withheld from payrteto a US holder under the backup withholdingsaee not additional tax and should be
allowed as a refund or credit against the US hiddegs federal income tax liability, provided thejtéred information is timely furnished to the
IRS.

Passive foreign investment company status

A non-US corporation will be classified as a pasdreign investment company (a “PFIC”) for anyabbe year if at least 75% of its gross
income consists of passive income (such as divislénterest, rents, royalties or gains on the digjom of certain minority interests), or at le
50% of the average value of its assets consisiss#ts that produce, or are held for the produdiippassive income. For the purposes of these
rules, a non US corporation is considered to holtiraceive directly the assets and income of angratorporation of whose shares it owns at
least 25% by value. Consequently, the Companyssdiaation under the PFIC rules will depend priityaupon the composition of Signet's
assets and income.

If the Company is characterized as a PFIC, US hsldeuld suffer adverse tax consequences, and disdkincome tax consequences
different from those described above may apply s€l@mnsequences may include having gains realizdidecdisposition of Common Shares
treated as ordinary income rather than capital gathbeing subject to punitive interest chargesestain distributions and on the proceeds of
the sale or other disposition of Common Shares.Admpany believes that it is not a PFIC and thailitnot be a PFIC for the foreseeable
future. However, since the tests for PFIC statymedd upon facts not entirely within a company’stoginsuch as the amounts and types of its
income and values of its assets, no assuranceecarobided that the Company will not become a PEIS holders should consult their own
tax advisers regarding the potential applicatiothefPFIC rules to the Common Shares.

Bermuda Taxation

At the present time, there is no Bermuda incomgrofits tax, withholding tax, capital gains taxpdal transfer tax, estate duty or inheritance
tax payable by the Company or by its shareholdersspect of its Common Shares. The Company hasnelot an assurance from the Minister
of Finance of Bermuda under the Exempted Undertgkirax Protection Act 1966 that, in the event #rat legislation is enacted in Bermuda
imposing any tax computed on profits or incomeg@nputed on any capital asset, gain or appreciati@ny tax in the nature of estate duty or
inheritance tax, such tax shall not, until March 2816, be applicable to it or to any of its opierat or to its shares, debentures or other
obligations except insofar as such tax appliestsgns ordinarily resident in Bermuda or is pay&lyl& in respect of real property owned or
leased by it in Bermuda.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The financial data included below for fiscal 20fif¢al 2009 and fiscal 2008 have been derived filoenaudited consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8. The financial dataliese periods should be read in conjunction thighfinancial statements, including the
notes thereto, and Item 7. The financial data ihetlibelow for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 have tagmived from the previously published
consolidated audited financial statements not iedlin this document.

The financial statements of Signet for fiscal 20&;al 2007 and fiscal 2006 were prepared in ataoce with International Financial
Reporting Standards, which differ in certain respéom US GAAP. Any figures used for these yeargehbeen converted to US GAAP in this
Form 10-K.

Historic per share data have been adjusted toaeg@unt of the 1-foR0 reverse share split (share consolidation) ualert as part of the mo
of the primary listing of the shares of the pamrmpany to the NYSE, effective September 11, 2008.
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Income Statement:

Sales

Cost of sale:

Gross margit

Selling, general and administrative expe

Impairment of goodwil

Relisting cost:

Other operating income, n

Operating income/(loss), n

Interest incomt

Interest expens

Income/(loss) before income tax

Income taxe:

Net income/(loss

Earnings/(loss) per share: ba
dilut

Dividends per shar

Balance sheet

Working capital

Total asset

Cash and cash equivalel

Loans and overdraf

Long term deb

Total shareholde’ equity

Common shares in issue (millio

Cash flow:

Net cash provided by operating activit
Net cash flows used in investing activit
Net debi®

Ratios:

Effective tax rate

Gearing®

ROCE®

Fixed charge cove®

(1) Based on audited IFRS, converted to US GA

(2) 53 week year

(3) Net debt, gearing, ROCE and fixed charge covenar-GAAP measures, see bela

Fiscal
2010
$million

3,290’
(2,213.9
1,076.¢
(916.5)

115.
275.¢

0.8
(34.)
241.¢
(77.9)
164.1

$  1.9:
$  1.91

Fiscal
2010
$million

1,814.f
2,924.:
316.

(44.7)

(280.0)
1,797.¢
85.F

515.¢
(43.5)
(7.9

32.1%
0.4%

11.4%
2.Cx

Fisca
2009
$million

3,344.

(2,264.7)
1,080..

(969.7)

(516.9)

(10.5)
119.2

(297.9)
3.6

(32.9)
(326.5)
(67.2)
(393.7)
$ (4.69
$ (4.69)
$  1.4f

Fisca
2009
$million

1,675.¢
2,953.¢
96.¢

(187.5)

(380.0)
1,609.
85.:

164.4
(113.9)
(470.7)

(20.6%)
29.2%
9.6%
1.9x

Fiscal Fiscal
20081 2007 M)
“$million “$million
3,665.! 3,559.:
(2,414.9 (2,266.9)
1,250." 1,292.¢
(1,000.9 (979.6)
108.¢ 91.t
358.7 404.¢
6.3 16.7
(28.) (34.9)
336.2 387.:
(116.9 (134.9)
219 252.7
$ 2.5¢ $ 292
$ 25t $ 2.8¢
$ 1.4t $ 1.4:c
Fiscal Fiscal
2008(1) 2007 M)
“$million “$million
1,776.: 1,723t
3,599./ 3,508.:
41.7 152.%
(36.9) (5.5
(380.0 (380.0
2,321.: 2,227.¢
85.: 85.7
140.¢ 199.:
(139.9 (123.¢)
(374.¢) (233.2)
34.€% 34.€%
21.2% 13.%
17.2% 22.2%
2.4x 2.€x

Fiscal
2006 (1)
$million

3,154
(1,990.)
1,164.(
(876.9)

83.
370.F
4.3
(20.5)
354.:
(116.9)
238

$ 274
$  2.74
$ 1.1¢

Fiscal
2006 (1)
$million

1,211.¢
2,863
92.¢

(267.9)
2,062.¢
86.¢

200.7
(123.7)
(174.5)

32.€%

11.5%

22.%
2.6X
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Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Store data:
Store numbers (at end of peric
us 1,361 1,401 1,39¢ 1,30¢ 1,221
UK 552 55¢ 563 581 59:
Percentage (decrease)/increase in same store
0.2% (9.7% (1.77% 6.2% 7.1%
UK (2.9% (3.9% 2.C% 1.2% (8.2%
Signet (0.9% (8.2% (0.7% 4.8% 2.4%
Number of employees (fi-time equivalents 16,32( 16,91¢ 17,24: 16,83¢ 15,652

GAAP AND NON-GAAP MEASURES

The discussion and analysis of Signet’s resultspefations, financial condition and liquidity coimed in this Report are based upon the
consolidated financial statements of Signet whiehpaepared in accordance with US GAAP and shoelteld in conjunction with Signet’s
financial statements and the related notes inclinié@m 8. A number of noGAAP measures are used by management to analyzeamale
the performance of the business, and the requisetbdures for these non-GAAP measures are givlEewbén particular, the terms
“underlying” and “underlying at constant exchangtes” are used in a number of places. “Underlyisgised to indicate where adjustments
significant, unusual and non-recurring items hagerbmade and “underlying at constant exchange’riatdisates where the underlying items
have been further adjusted to eliminate the imphetkchange rate movements on translation of patering amounts to US dollars.

Management does not, nor does it suggest investiangld, consider such non-GAAP measures in isaldtimm, or in substitute for, financial
information prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Exchange translation impact

Movements in the US dollar to pound sterling exg®arate have an impact on the results. The UK idivis managed in pounds sterling as
sales and costs are incurred in that currencytarésults are then translated into US dollarekternal reporting purposes. Management
believes it is inappropriate to hedge this exposgrthe UK division’s sales and costs are bothriecuin pounds sterling, and therefore
believes it assists in understanding the performafiSignet and its UK division if constant currgrigures are given. This is particularly so in
periods when exchange rates are volatile.

The constant currency amounts are calculated bgn&ating the prior year figures using the curgerar’'s exchange rate.

1. Underlying operating income, underlying incomelfss) before income tax, underlying net income, urdlying earnings per share and
underlying operating margin percentage

In fiscal 2009, the following non-recurring coster& included in operating income: $516.9 millionifapairment of goodwill; and $10.5
million of relisting costs in respect of the moweprimary listing to the NYSE. In fiscal 2010, tbi& division benefited by $13.4 million due to
a change in its vacation entitlement policy. Tresdfit will not recur in subsequent fiscal yearandgement considers it useful to exclude
these significant, unusual and non-recurring itéorsnalyze and explain changes and trends in Ségaed its divisions’ results. These
underlying amounts are also shown excluding thearhpf movements in the pound sterling to US dabahange rate.
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(a) Fiscal 2010 reconciliation to underlying resuit

Sales by origin and destinatic
us
UK

Operating income
us

UK

Unallocatec

Income before income taxe
Net income

Basic earnings per shal
Diluted earnings per shat

(b) Fiscal 2009 reconciliation to underlying resgltand constant exchange rates

Sales by origin and destinatic

UK

Operating (loss)/incom
us

UK

Unallocatec

(Loss)/income before income tax
Net (loss)/incom

Basic (loss)/earnings per sha
Diluted (loss)/earnings per sha

Fiscal
2009

reported
$million

2,536..
808.2

3,344.:

(236.9)
(37.4)
(23.5)

(297.9)

(326.5)

(393.7)

$ (4.62)
$ (4.62)

50

Impact of
change in
vacation
Fiscal entitlement
2010
reported olic
$million $million
2,557.! —
733.2 —
3,290.° —
235.¢ (13.4)
56.t —
16.5) —
275.¢ (13.9
241.¢ (13.9
164.1 (8.9
$ 1.9: $ (0.09
$ 191 $ (0.09
Fiscal 200¢
Impact of underlying Impact of
goodwill exchange
impairment (non- rate
and relisting GAAP) movemen
$million $million $million
— 2,536.: —
— 808.. (73.9
— 3,344.; (73.9)
408.( 171.€ —
108.¢ 71 (6.5)
10.E (13.0 1.2
527.4 230.1 (5.9
527. 200.¢ (5.6)
527.4 133.7 (3.9
$ 61¢ $ 157 $ (0.09)
$ 61¢ $ 157 $ (0.0%

Fiscal 201(
underlying

(non-
GAAP)
$million

2,557t
733.2

3,290.°

222.
56.

(16.5)
262.2
228.
155.¢

$ 1.8¢
$ 1.82

Fiscal 200!
underlying
at constani

exchange
rates
(non-

GAAP)

$million

2,536.:
734.%

3,270.¢

171.¢
65.C
(119
224.¢
195.2
129.¢

$ 152
$ 1.5Z
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(c) Fiscal 2010 percentage change in underlying uéis and at constant exchange rates

Sales by origin and destinatic
us
UK

Operating income/(loss
us

UK

Unallocatec

Income/(loss)before income taxi
Net income/(loss

Basic earnings/(loss) per sha
Diluted earnings/(loss) per sha

Fiscal 200¢

(d) Fiscal 2009 percentage change in underlying uéis and at constant exchange rates

Sales by origin and destinatic

UK

Operating (loss)/incom
us

UK

Unallocatec

(Loss)/income before income tax
Net (loss)//incom:e

Basic (loss)/earnings per sha
Diluted (loss)/earnings per sha

Fiscal 201(
underlying underlying
Fiscal 201( Fiscal 200¢ at constant change at
Underlying constant
underlying underlying exchange exchange
Fiscal Fiscal Change change rates rates (non-
2010 2009 as (non- (non- (non- (non-
reported reported reported GAAP) GAAP) GAAP) GAAP) GAAP)
$million $million % $million $million % $million %
2,557.t 2,536.: 0.8 2,557.t 2,536.. 0.8 2,536.: 0.8
733.c 808.: (9.9 733.c 808.: (9.3 734.: (0.1)
3,290.7  3,344. (1.6  3,290. 3,344. (1.6)  3,270.c 0.€
235.¢ (236.9) n/e 222.¢ 171.€ 29.€ 171.€ 29.€
56.5 (37.9) n/e 56.5 71.5 (21.0) 65.C (13.2)
(16.5) (23.5) niz (16.5) (13.0) (26.9) (11.6) (39.6)
275.¢ (297.9) n/e 262.4 230.1 14.C 224.¢ 16.7
241.¢ (326.5 n/e 228.4 200.¢ 13.7 195.7 16.€
164.1 (393.9) n/e 155.¢ 133.% 16.5 129.¢ 19.¢
$ 192 $ (4.6 ne $ 182 $ 1.57 16.€ $ 1.5z 20.2
$ 191 $ (4.62 ne $ 182 $ 157 156 §$ 157 19.7
Fiscal 200¢
Fiscal 200¢ underlying
Fiscal at constani change at
2009 constant
Impact of underlying Impact of exchange exchange
Fiscal Fiscal Change goodwill exchange rates rates
2009 2008 as impairment (non- rate (non- (non-
reported reported reported and relisting GAAP) movemen GAAP) GAAP)
$million $million % $million $million $million $million %
2,536.0  2,705. (6.9 — 2,536 — 2,705." (6.9
808.: 959.¢ (15.€) = 808.: (119.9 839.7 (3.9
3,344.0  3,665. (8.9) — 3,344 (119.9  3,545. (5.7)
(236.2) 265.% n/e 408.( 171.€ — 265.% (35.9)
(37.9) 109.¢ nle 108.¢ 715 (13.7) 95.€ (25.2)
(23.5) (15.€) 48.7 10.E (13.0) 2.C (13.6) (5.6)
(297.9) 358.7 n/e 527. 230.1 (11.7) 347.( (33.7)
(326.5) 336.: nle 527. 200.¢ (12.2) 324.( (38.0)
(393.%) 219.¢ nle 527. 133.7 (7.9 211.¢ (36.9)
$ (462 $ 2.5¢ ne $ 61¢ $ 157 $ (0.09 $ 2.4¢ (36.9)
$ (462 $ 25¢ ne $ 64¢ $ 157 $ (0.09 $ 2.4¢ (36.2)
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(e) Fourth quarter fiscal 2010 percentage changetnderlying results and at constant exchange rates

The underlying results are reported results adjufstean unfavourable $1.6 million movement in therth quarter vacation entitlement acct
in fiscal 2010 and $408.0 million and $108.9 mitlimmpairment of goodwill for the US and UK divis®nespectively during fiscal 2009.

13 weeks 13 weeks
ended ended
January 31 January 30

13 weeks 13 weeks 2009 2010
ended ended underlying underlying
13 weeks 13 weeks January 30, January 31, change change
ended ended Underlying at constant at constant
January 30 January 31 2010 2009 exchange exchange
Change underlying underlying change rates rates
2010 2009 as (non- (non- (non- (non- (non-
reported reported reported GAAP) GAAP) GAAP) GAAP) GAAP)
$million $million % $million $million % $million %
Sales by origin and destinatic
usS 920.¢ 862.1 6.8 920.¢ 862.1 6.8 862.1 6.8
UK 282.¢ 261.t 8.1 282.¢ 261.5 8.1 287.% (1.6)
1,203.¢ 1,123.¢ 7.1 1,203.¢ 1,123.¢ 7.1 1,149.. 4.7
Operating income/(loss
us 124.2 (327.)) n/e 125.¢ 80.¢€ 55t 80.¢ b5t
UK 60. (39.9) nle 60.4 69.€ (13.2) 63.2 (4.7
Unallocatec 4.7 (0.7) n/e (4.7 (0. n/e (1.2 n/e
179.¢ (366.5) n/g 181.F 150.4 20.7 143.1] 26.¢
Income/(loss before taxi 172.¢ (373.6) n/e 174.( 143.3 21.4 135.¢ 28.%
Net income/(loss 117.2 (424.0) n/g 118.2 95.8 24.C 90.1 31.2
Basic Earnings/(loss) per sh: $ 13i $ (4.9) ne $ 1.3¢ $ 112 23.2 $ 1.0¢ 30.2
Diluted Earnings/(loss) pershe $ 1.3¢ $ (4.9) nfe $ 1.37 $ 112 22.% $ 1.0¢ 29.2

2. Cost of sales, gross margin and selling, genestd administrative expenses at constant exchangates
Management considers it useful to exclude the impkexchange rate movements to analyze and expkainges and trends in Signet's costs.

Fiscal 2010
Fiscal 2009 change
Impact of at constant at constant
Fiscal Fiscal Change exchange exchange exchange
2010 2009 as rate rates rates
reported reported reported movemen (non-GAAP) (non-GAAP)
$million $million % $million $million %
Cost of sale: (2,213.9  (2,264.) (2.2) 48.2 (2,215.9 (0.2)
Gross margit 1,076.¢ 1,080.: 0.3 (25.5) 1,054.¢ 2.1
Selling, general and administrative exper (916.5 (969.2 (5.9 20.t (948.7%) (3.9
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3. Net debt

Net debt is the total of loans, overdrafts and ltergh debt less cash and cash equivalents, aregfuihin providing a measure of the to
indebtedness of the business.

January 30, January 31 February 2,

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Long-term debi (280.0 (380.0) (380.0
Loans and overdraf (44.)) (187.5 (36.9)
(324.)) (567.5 (416.9)
Cash and cash equivalel 316.2 96.¢ 419
Net debt (7.9 (470.%) (374.6

4. Net debt to shareholders equity excluding goodW{“Gearing”)

Gearing is the ratio of net debt to shareholdetstg@xcluding goodwill, and is a useful measurednderstanding the financial leverage of the
business on a consistent basis.

5. Return on capital employed excluding goodwill (ROCE")

ROCE is calculated by dividing the annual operatimgpme by the average monthly capital employedugbieg goodwill for that year,
expressed as a percentage. Capital employed irschttier intangible assets, property, plant andpggent, other non-current receivables,
inventories, trade and other receivables; leseteam other payables, deferred income and retirebesefit obligations. This is a key
performance indicator used by management for asgethe effective operation of the business arabissidered a useful disclosure for
investors as it provides a measure of the returSignet’s and the divisions’ operating assets asHistorically been used for some
performance awards.

6. Fixed charge cover; net debt to earnings befoliaterest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; andiet tangible asset value

These non-GAAP measures are calculated exactlydardance with Signet’s debt covenants as defineldd original and amended material
Note Purchase and Facility Agreements. They arerteg to the Note Holders and the lending banksresadi to be met in order to maint
these funding facilities. The reporting of theseasges provides an investor with an understandii®igmet’s ability to meet these conditions,
which are described in Item 7.

7. Net income adjusted for non-cash items

Net income adjusted for n-cash items shows the amount of net cash flow géeeifrom Signet’s operating activities before demin
operating assets and liabilities. It is a usefubsuge to summarize the cash generated from aesivigiported in the income statement.
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Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million

Net income/(loss 164.1 (393.9) 219.¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to daslis provided by operations:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipm 101.C 108.1 109.Z
Amortization of other intangible asst 7.9 6.4 4.7

Impairment of goodwil — 516.¢ —
Pensior (5.9 0.2 (2.0
Shar-based compensation expense/(inco 5.6 0.7 (3.9
Deferred taxatiol 15.5 24.7 6.S

Facility amendment fees included in net incc 4.3 — —
Other no-cash movement 0.8 (2.8 (3.0
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant andipment — (0.7) 1.4

Net income adjusted for n-cash item: 293.¢ 259.¢ 333.¢

8. Free cash flow

Free cash flow is a non-GAAP measure defined as¢heash provided by operating activities lesscash flows used in investing activities.
Management considers that this is helpful in undeding how the business is generating cash frempérating and investing activities that
can be used to meet the financing needs of thebssi Free cash flow does not represent the residsia flow available for discretionary

expenditure.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million

Net cash provided by operating activit 515.¢ 164.4 140.¢
Net cash flows used in investing activit (43.5) (113.9) (139.9)
Free cash flov 471.¢ 51.1 14
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statemueittich are forward-looking statements within theamiag of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statementgdtbupon management’s beliefs and expectationglhssvon assumptions made by and
information currently available to management, ude statements regarding, among other thingsgethéts of operation, financial condition,
liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and thdustry in which Signet operates. The use of thada&dexpects,” “intends,” “anticipates,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “believes,” “should,” “pential,” “may,” “forecast,” “objective,” “plan” oftarget,” and other similar expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statementse$a forward-looking statements are not guaranteeswe performance and are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, including butlimited to general economic conditions, the maratising, pricing and inventory policies
followed by Signet, the reputation of Signet, teedl of competition in the jewelry sector, the prand availability of diamonds, gold and other
precious metals, seasonality of the business aathdial market risk.

Important factors which may cause actual resultiiffer materially from those expressed in any farddooking statements include, but are
limited to, those described in Item 1A and elsewherthis Form 10-K. Except as required by appliedaw, rules or regulations, Signet
undertakes no obligation to update publicly anyvnd-looking statements in this Annual Report omfr@0-K that may occur due to any
change in management’s expectations or to refleéaté events or circumstances.

GAAP AND NON-GAAP MEASURES

The following discussion and analysis of the resaftoperations, financial condition and liquidigybased upon the consolidated financial
statements of Signet which are prepared in accesdatith US GAAP. The following information shoulé bead in conjunction with Signet’s
financial statements and the related notes inclinié&m 8. A number of noGAAP measures are used by management to analyzeamale
the performance of the business, and the requisstbdures for these measures are given in Item 6.

The Company’s management does not, nor does iestgg/estors should, consider such non-GAAP measduarisolation from, or in
substitute for, financial information prepared stardance with GAAP.

Exchange translation impact

The average exchange rate is used to preparedbméstatement and is calculated from the weeldyame exchange rates weighted by sales
of the UK division. This means that results ardipatarly impacted by movements in the fourth qeadf its fiscal year, with the exchange r

in the first three weeks of December having thgdat effect on the average exchange rate used.v&ment in the year to date exchange rate
from that in the prior quarter in a particular isgear, will result in that quarter’s results lipimpacted by adjustments to sales and costs in
prior quarters to reflect the changed year to dathange rate. This can have a particularly ndtiecianpact on Signet'’s results for the third
quarter as the results for the third quarter aveecto break-even. In addition, as the UK divissasglling, administrative and general expenses
are spread more evenly between quarters thanlés, shese expenses can be particularly impactdeeifourth quarter. In fiscal 2011, it is
anticipated a one cent movement in the pound stetti US dollar exchange rate would impact incoefeie income tax by approximately
$0.3 million.
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OVERVIEW
The key drivers of operating profitability are:
» sales performanc
e achieved gross merchandising mar
* level of expense:
* balance between the change in same store salesbsdfrom new store space; ¢

* movements in the US dollar to pound sterling exglearate, as about 22% of Si¢’s sales and about 15% of operating incc
including unallocated costs, are generated in tkeabid Signet reports its results in US doll:

These are discussed more fully below.

Sales
Sales performance in both the US and UK divisierdriven by the change in same store sales andlmatiin from changes in net store space.

Same store sales are a function of the numberitf sold and the average selling price of thosésufihe average selling price can alter due to
changes in the buying patterns of consumers otapéce changes. For example, historically Signetistomers had been purchasing larger,
higher quality diamonds, which had lifted the ageraelling price. However, in the second half s¢dil 2009 and in fiscal 2010, the
challenging economic environment resulted in thpéciyd consumer buying items with a lower averadkngeprice. In early fiscal 2009, a new
pricing architecture was implemented which resuited higher average selling price in both the W8 EK divisions to reflect the increase in
the cost of merchandise, primarily due to the higlost of gold. Further price increases were imgleted by the UK division in fiscal 2010.
Such price increases usually result in an inigaluction in the number of units sold followed byeaovery in volumes, but not to the prior
level, all other factors being constant.

A new store typically has sales of about 60% tliat five year old store, and will only contributedales for part of the fiscal year in which it is
opened. Store openings are usually planned to aedbe third quarter and store closures in JanuAttlyen investing in new space,
management has stringent operating and finandterier. Due to the very challenging economic envinent, US net space decreased by 1% in
fiscal 2010 and a broadly similar decline is apéted in fiscal 2011. This is in contrast to netcgpgrowth in the US of 4% in fiscal 2009, 10%
in fiscal 2008 and 11% in fiscal 2007. The majodfythe historic space growth reflected expansiothe Jared format. In the UK, there was a
decline in space of 1% in fiscal 2010, a 1% incedadiscal 2009 and a 4% decline in fiscal 200@ically there is a small decline in UK

space as the H.Samuel chain withdraws from smsilted retail markets, and there are very limited space opportunities for either H.Sarr

or Ernest Jones to offset these closures. A 2%raer! space is planned by the UK division in fisz@11.

Net change in store space

Us Uk Signe
Planned fiscal 201 2% 2)% 2%
Fiscal 201( ()% ()% ()%
Fiscal 200¢ 4% 1% 3%
Fiscal 200¢ 10% D% 7%

In fiscal 2010, total sales fell to $3,290.7 mifliffiscal 2009: $3,344.3 million), down by 1.6% ameported basis and up by 0.6% at constant
exchange rates; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6. Stmeesales decreased by
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0.4% and net change in store space contributed toG8dles. See page 62 for further analysis. Iddhgh quarter total sales increased to
$1,203.6 million (fiscal 2009: $1,123.6 million)p bby 7.1% on a reported basis and by 4.7% at consiehange rates; non-GAAP measure,
see Item 6. Same store sales increased by 5.2%eamthange in store space had an adverse impaci%f

Cost of sales

Cost of sales, which is used to arrive at grosfitptakes into account all costs incurred in theghase, processing and distribution of the
merchandise, all costs directly incurred in therapen and support of the retail outlets as wellhesnet provision for uncollectible receivables.
The classification of distribution and selling cosgaries from retailer to retailer and few retalbave in-house customer finance programs.
Therefore Signet’s gross profit percentage maybeatirectly comparable to other retailers.

Gross merchandise margin

The gross merchandise margin is the difference dmtvthe selling price achieved and the cost of hagrdise sold expressed as a percenta
the sales price. In retail jewelry, the gross manctise margin percentage is above the averagpdaoiadty retailers, reflecting the slow
inventory turn. Gross merchandise margin dollathésdifference expressed in monetary terms. Tdretin gross merchandise margin depe

on Signet’s pricing policy, movements in the cdsg@ods sold, changes in sales mix and the direstt@f providing services such as repairs. In
early fiscal 2009, management increased pricestin the US and the UK. Further price increases wepdemented in the UK in fiscal 2010.

In general, the gross merchandise margin of galeliy is above that of diamond jewelry, whilst tlohtwatches and gift products is normally
below that of diamond jewelry. Within the diamomgvelry category, the gross merchandise margin yaepending on the proportion of the
merchandise cost accounted for by the value oflidn@onds; the greater the proportion, the lowergttoss merchandise margin. In addition,
the gross merchandise margin of a Jared storglslglbelow the mall brands, although at matutitg store contribution percentage of a Jared
site is similar to that of a mall store. The grossrchandise margin of differentiated merchandisesiglly a little above average for that
product category, while that of a value item igtielbelow average. A change in merchandise mikthwerefore have an impact on the US and
UK division’s gross merchandise margin and a changkee proportion of sales from Jared will haveimpact on the gross merchandise
margin of both the US division and Signet as a whbl the US division, until fiscal 2008, the gréwmaf Jared, the increase in sales of higher
value diamonds (both of which had been helpingricedsame store sales growth), and higher commaditys meant that the US gross
merchandise margin showed a small decline in mestsy Since fiscal 2009, the gross merchandiseimbhag increased as these trends
reversed.

Commodity costs

Important factors that impact gross merchandisegmaare the cost of polished diamonds and goldhénUS, about 55% of the cost of
merchandise sold is accounted for by polished dimte@nd about 20% is accounted for by gold. Ir.tke diamonds and gold account for
about 10% and 20% respectively of the cost of mardise sold, and watches for about 38%. The potanting to US dollar exchange rate
has a material impact as a significant proportibthe merchandise sold in the UK is purchased inddifars. Signet uses gold and currency
hedges to reduce its exposure to market volatiithe cost of gold and the pound sterling to dadtechange rate, but does not do so for
polished diamonds. For gold, the hedging periatbisnally a maximum of one year. For currencies htbéging period can extend to 24
months, although the majority of hedge contractsneirmally be for a maximum of 18 months.

The price of diamonds varies depending on the&, simt, color and clarity. The price of diamondsha size and quality typically purchased by
Signet showed little variation over the fiscal 26007, 2008 and 2009. Due to the sharp decliderimand for diamonds in the second half of
fiscal 2009, particularly in the US which
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accounts for about 40% of worldwide diamond dem@odrce: IDEX Online (“IDEX")), the supply chain t&me overstocked with diamonds.
Combined with the reduced levels of credit avalighithe oversupply of diamonds resulted in a falthe price of loose polished diamonds of
all sizes and qualities for most of fiscal 2010eTBEX Global Diamond Price Index is an independsntrce that tracks diamond prices in the
IDEX inventory database. While IDEX tracks pricevaments in its database they are not representatiak transactions in polished
diamonds and do not necessarily reflect prices pgiflignet. IDEX reports show that the price ofnd@eds over three carats, which is larger
than Signet usually purchases, are more volatéa fbr sizes and qualities that are typically usesherchandise sold by Signet. In the final
quarter of fiscal 2010, polished diamond priceseased a little, but remained below fiscal 200@levDemand for diamonds is primarily
driven by the manufacture and sale of diamond jewneatd their future price is uncertain.

The cost of gold has steadily increased durindabethree fiscal years, primarily reflecting inesed investment demand rather than changes i
the usage for jewelry manufacture. During fiscal @Qthe cost of gold increased from an averag®d48$er troy ounce in February 2009 to
$1,118 per troy ounce in January 2010. Since ti¢ of fiscal 2011 the cost of gold has been vi@abut has averaged above the $1,100 level.
The future price of gold is uncertain.

Signet uses an average cost inventory methodolodyteerefore the impact of movements in the cosliahonds and gold on gross
merchandise margin is smoothed. In addition, agligwnventory turns slowly, the impact takes sdine to be fully reflected in the gross
merchandise margin. As inventory turn is fastethimfourth quarter than in the other three quartdranges in the cost of merchandise are
quickly reflected in the gross merchandise margithat quarter. Furthermore the hedging activitésilt in movements in the purchase cost of
merchandise taking sometime before being refleictélde gross merchandise margin.

Operating income margin

To maintain the operating income margin, Signetisge achieve same store sales growth sufficieotfset any adverse movement in gross
merchandise margin, any increase in operating ¢mstliding the net bad debt charge) and the impaahy immature selling space. Same
store sales growth above the level required teebtfse factors outlined above, allows the busiteschieve leverage of its fixed cost base and
improve operating income margin. Slower sales gnawta sales decline would normally result in aucdi operating income margin. In
exceptional cases, such as through the US divisiomst saving measures implemented in fiscal 28#idascribed below, Signet may be able
to reduce costs enough to increase operating makdiay factor in driving operating income marginthe level of average sales per store,
higher productivity allowing leverage of expensesuirred in performing store and central functioftserefore a slower rate of net new space
growth is beneficial to operating income margin ketdin acceleration in growth is adverse.

The impact on operating income of a sharp, unexpkicicrease or decrease in same store sales parfoens marked. This is particularly so
when it occurs in the fourth quarter. However,ithpact on operating income of short term salesavaes (either adverse or favorable) is less
in the US division than the UK, as certain variad@enses such as sales-related rent and staffitives account for a higher proportion of
costs in the US division than in the UK division.the medium term, there is more opportunity tastdgosts to the changed sales level, but the
time taken to do so varies depending on the typosf. An example of where it can take a numbenafiths to adjust costs is expenditure on
national network television advertising in the Where Signet makes most of its commitments forytrer ahead during its second quarter.
even more difficult to reduce base lease costlsdrshort or medium term, as leases in US mallsyaieally for ten years, Jared sites for 20
years and in the UK for five plus yea

The operating margin may also be impacted by sigamt, unusual and non-recurring items. For exapipléiscal 2010, the vacation
entitlement policy in the US division was changsek page 66 for details. This resulted in thergglijeneral and administrative costs being
reduced while operating income increased by $13llibm this benefit will not be repeated in subseqt years. In fiscal 2009, there was a
provision for goodwill
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impairment of $516.9 million, see page 70, andstiglg costs of $10.5 million related to the moveSanet’s primary listing to the NYSE from
the LSE, see page 71.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Sales 3,290.7 3,344.; 3,665.:
Cost of sale (2,213.H (2,264.)) (2,414.9
Gross margit 1,076.¢ 1,080.: 1,250.°
Selling, general and administrative exper (916.5) (969.2)  (1,000.9

Impairment of goodwil — (516.9 —

Relisting costt — (10.5) —
Other operating income, n 115. 119.2 108.¢
Operating income/(loss), n 275.¢ (297.9) 358.1
Net financing cost (34.0) (29.2) (22.5)
Income/(loss) before income tax 241.¢ (326.5) 336.2
Income taxe: (77.7) (67.2) (116.9
Net income/(loss 164.1 (393.9) 219.¢

The following tables set forth for the periods watied, the underlying selling, general and adnretiste expenses adjusted for the change i

vacation entitlement policy and underlying opemfincome adjusted for the change in US vacatioitlemtent policy, goodwill impairment
and relisting costs:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Selling, general and administrative exper (916.5) (969.9) (2,000.9)
Add impact of change in US vacation entitlemeniqgyc (13.9 — —
Underlying selling, general and administrative exqe=®) (929.9) (969.2) (1,000.9
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Operating income/(los: 275.¢ (297.9) 358.1
Add impairment of goodwil — 516.¢ —
Add relisting cost: — 10.t —
Less impact of change in US vacation entitlemetityc (13.9 — —
Underlying operating incom(® 262.4 230.1 358.i

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
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The following table sets forth for the periods tatied, the percentage of net sales representegrtayrcitems included in the statements of

consolidated income:

Sales

Cost of sale:

Gross margit

Selling, general and administrati
Impairment of goodwil

Relisting cost:

Other operating income, n
Operating income/(loss), n

Net financing cost
Income/(loss) before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income/(loss

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
% % %
100.C 100.C 100.C
(67.%) (67.7) (65.9)
32.7 32.5 34.1
(7.6  (29.0 (27.9
— (15.5) —
— (0.3 —
3.5 3.6 3.C
8.4 (8.9 9.6
(1.1) (0.9) (0.6)
7.3 (9.9) 9.2
(2.3 (2.0 (3.2)
50  (11.§) 6.C

The following tables set forth for the periods tatied, the percentage of net sales representdwlmnterlying selling, general and
administrative expenses adjusted for the changisivacation entitlement policy and underlying ofieacaincome adjusted for the change in

US vacation entitlement policy, goodwill impairmentd relisting costs:

Selling, general and administrati
Add impact of change in US vacation entitlemeniqyc

Underlying selling, general and administrative exqe=®

Operating income/(los:

Add impairment of goodwil

Add relisting cost:

Less impact of change in US vacation entitlemetityc

Underlying operating incom®
(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
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Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
% % %
(27.  (29.0 (27.9
(0.4) — —
(28.2)  (29.00 (27.9)
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
% % %
8.4 (8.9 9.8
— 15.t —
— 0.3 —
(0.4) — —
8.C 6.9 9.8
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The following table sets forth for fiscal 2010 distal 2009 certain items included in the statenuéronsolidated income at constant exchs
rates. Information for fiscal 2008 at constant exaje rates is not provided as this is the firsetihat Signet has provided this additional
disclosure.

Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 201(
at constan change at
constant
Impact of exchange exchange
Fiscal Fiscal Change exchange rates rates
2010 2009 as rate (non- (non-
reported reported reported movemen GAAP) GAAP)
$million $million % $million $million %
Sales 3,290." 3,344.: (1.6) (73.9 3,270.¢ 0.€
Cost of sale: (2,213.9 (2,264.) (2.2 48.4 (2,215.9 0.7
Gross margir 1,076.¢ 1,080. (0.9 (25.5) 1,054.¢ 2.1
Sales, general & administrative co (916.5 (969.2 (5.4) 20.5 (948.7) (3.9
Goodwill impairment — (516.9 n/e (20.5) (527.9 n/e
Relisting cost: — (10.5) n/e — (10.5) n/e
Other operating income, n 115. 119.2 (3.2 (0.9 118.¢ (2.9)
Operating income/(los: 275.¢ (297.9 n/e (15.9) (313.9) n/e

In the following analysis of results, while the oak performance is discussed, the focus of thernentary is on the US and UK divisions
individually, as this reflects the way that Sigigetnanaged. The analysis of the UK division is base constant exchange rates as the
division’s performance is managed in pounds stgrdis sales and costs are both incurred in thagmmeyr

Divisional operating income before the impact @& thange in US vacation entitlement policy, gooliwipairment and relisting costs is given
in the following table:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Operating income/(loss), n
us 235.¢ (236.9 265.2
UK 56.5 (37.9 109.:
Unallocatec (16.9 (23.5) (15.9)
Consolidated tote 275.¢ (297.9) 358.i
Impact of change in US vacation policy in fiscallRQgoodwill impairmen
and relisting costs in fiscal 20t
us 13.4 (408.0 —
UK — (108.9 —
Unallocated (relisting cost: — (10.5) —
Consolidated tote 13.4 (527.9) —
Underlying operating incom(®
222.¢ 171.€ 265.2
UK 56.5 71.t 109.:
Unallocatec (16.9 (3.0 (15.9)
Consolidated tote 262.¢ 230.1 358.7

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
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COMPARISON OF FISCAL 2010 TO FISCAL 2009
Summary of fiscal 2010
e Same store sales: down by 0.
» Total sales: down by 1.6% to $3,290.7 mill
» Operating margin: increased to 8.
- Underlying operating margin 8.0%: up 110 basis {&®
» Operating income: up to $275.8 milli
- Underlying operating income: up by 14.0% to $26ailion @
* Netincome before income taxes: up to $241.8 nmil
- Underlying net income before income taxes: up by %3to $228.4 millior®
» Diluted earnings per share: up to $1
- Underlying diluted earnings per share: up 15.9%1@21

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item

Sales

Same store sales fell 0.4% in fiscal 2010. Totlssevere down by 1.6% to $3,290.7 million (fisc@D2: $3,344.3 million), reflecting an
increase of 0.6% at constant exchange rates; nohFGAeasure, see Item 6. The breakdown of the palésrmance was as follows:

Change in sales

us UK Signet

% % %
Same store sal¢ 0.2 (2.4) (0.4
Change in net new store sp: 0.6 2.3 1.C
Change at constant exchange ri .8 (0.2 0.6
Exchange translatio® — (9.9 (2.2
Total sales growth as reportec 0.8 (9.9 (1.6)
Sales, million $2,557.! $733.2 $3,290.°
% of total 77.1% 22.5% 100.(%

(1) The average pound sterling to US dollar exchantgefoa the period wag1/$1.59 (fiscal 200¢£1/$1.75).
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US sales

The sales performance in fiscal 2010 was primanilyenced by the challenging economic conditiorith\wame store sales up 0.2% and total
sales up by 0.8% to $2,557.5 million (fiscal 20$9;536.1 million). Trading in fiscal 2010 startedich stronger than the end of the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009, with the Valentine’s Dayipd achieving a small increase in same store sates balance of the first quarter, and the
second quarter saw same store sales down betweand®. Spending by higher income consumers waigylarly weak in the first half,
and this was reflected in the performance of Jarbd.rate of decrease in same store sales slowtbé third quarter to 2.4% as a result of a
marked slowing in the rate of sales decline expesgd in Jared. The mall brands maintained broadlyles same store sales in the first three
quarters. Same store sales in the fourth quartee@sed by 7.4%. In fiscal 2010, the contributimm® net changes in store space was 0.6%,
much less than in recent years. Sales performanéarimat is given in the table below.

Change Same Change
in average
in store store
Fiscal Fiscal selling
2010 2009 Change space sales price
$million $million % % % %
Kay 1,508..  1,439. 4.8 (0.4) 4.4 (7.4)
Regional brand 326.¢ 370.¢ (11.9 7.9 (4.0 (4.9
Mall brands 1,835.( 1,809.¢ 14 14 2.8 (7.2)
Jarec 722.F 726. (0.5) (5.5 (6.0 (7.9 ®
US division 2,557t 2,536.. 0.8 (0.6) 0.2 (16.9)

(1) Excluding charm bracelet catego

In fiscal 2010, there was a decrease in averadesetting price of 16.8%, which was due to mix cyes reflecting customers’ buying patterns
rather than reduced prices. The decline in avenageselling price was balanced by an increaseainsaction volumes, which resulted in same
store sales being little different from the pri@ay. During the first nine months the decreasev@rage unit selling price was 13%, and in the
fourth quarter the decline was 19.6%. For Kay dredregional brands, the average unit selling pridescal 2010 fell by 7.4% and 4.8%
respectively. For Jared, the average unit sellmmzepexcluding the charm bracelet category, dem@dy 7.3% in fiscal 2010.

Charm bracelets are a successful initiative testsdme Jared stores beginning in October 2008 @het! out to nearly all Jared stores in
October 2009. The characteristics of the charmdbeacategory are very different from that of thgital Jared merchandise. For example, the
average unit selling price of a charm is only ati%tof the average selling price of other merchemih Jared; however charms have a much
greater frequency of purchase and a transactienm @ftvolves multiple units. If the charm bracelategory was included in the Jared average
unit selling price, the trend in customer transawdiin a significant majority of the business wondd be demonstrated.

UK sales

In fiscal 2010, UK same store sales decreased4®p 2nd total sales declined by 9.3% to $733.2 onil(fiscal 2009: $808.2 million), a fall of
0.1% at constant exchange rates; non-GAAP measeediem 6. In the first three quarters of fis€#l@ same store sales decreased by 3.0%.
The fourth quarter saw some improvement in trertti @ame store sales declining by 1.5%. The avarageselling price rose, reflecting price
increases implemented to offset a rise in the @bgbods sold. The impact of changes in net stpaee was a sales increase of 2.3% reflecting
a lower level of temporary store closures as ate$a reduced level of store refurbishments. Thange in the average US dollar to pound
sterling exchange rate from $1.75 in fiscal 200819 in fiscal 2010 reduced reported sales b%9Rales in pounds sterling declined in
H.Samuel by 1.0% to £247.8 million (fiscal 20095823 million) and in Ernest Jones rose by 0.7%209%8 million (fiscal 2009: £208.3
million).
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Change Change Same Change
Impact of at constant in average
exchange exchange in store store
Fiscal Fiscal rate rates (¢ selling
2010 2009 Change movemen (non-GAAP) space sales price
$million $million % % % % % %
H.Samue 394.(  438.  (10.0 (9.0 (1.0 0.9 (1.9 7.8
Ernest Jone 333.fF 364 (8.5 9.2) 0.7 39 (3.9 12.52)
Other 5.7 5.7 n/e n/e n/s n/e n/e n/e
UK division 733..  808. (9.2 (9.2) (0.1) (2.3 (24 5.

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
(2) Excluding charm bracelet catego

In fiscal 2010, the average unit selling price wps$.5%, which was primarily due to higher pricefiacting an increase in the cost of acqui
merchandise as a result of the weakness of thedpstenling against the US dollar, and higher comityarbsts. However, the increase in
average unit selling prices was balanced by a dseri transaction volumes resulting in same sales being little different from the prior
year. During the first three quarters the averageselling price increased by 6.6%, and in thetfoguarter it rose by 3.9%. The average
selling price in H.Samuel rose by 7.8% and in Erdeses, excluding the charm bracelet categor,205%. The Ernest Jones average unit
price excludes the charm bracelet category ahdsacteristics are very different from that of theical Ernest Jones merchandise. For
example, the average unit selling price of a chigromly about 10% of the average selling pricetbbo merchandise in Ernest Jones but
charms have a much greater frequency of purchabe &nansaction often involves multiple units.

Cost of sales

In fiscal 2010, cost of sales was $2,213.8 millifiscal 2009: $2,264.2 million), a decline of 2.2% reported and 0.1% at constant exchange
rates; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6. The decraasmest of sales reflected lower sales, a smalkese in gross merchandise margin rate,
lower operating costs of retail units and a higbeel of net bad debt provision on customer reddasin the US division.

Gross margin

In fiscal 2010, gross margin was $1,076.9 milliiscgl 2009: $1,080.1 million), down by 0.3% andhyp2.1% at constant exchange rates;
non-GAAP measure, see ltem 6.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

In fiscal 2010, selling, general and administraxpenses were $916.5 million (fiscal 2009: $968ilion), down by 5.4% on a reported basis
and by 3.4% at constant exchange rates; non-GAAdsumne, see Item 6. This decrease reflected savirggaployment costs and lower
marketing expenditure.

Other operating income

In fiscal 2010, other operating income, which isgrminantly interest income from heuse customer finance, was $115.4 million (fi209:
$119.2 million), down by 3.2%. This primarily refked lower sales in fiscal 2009. In fiscal 201@réhwas a lower monthly collection rate of
12.5% (fiscal 2009: 13.1%). Sales using in-houss#taruer finance were similar to the prior year ab%a of total sales (fiscal 2009: 53.2%)
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Operating income, net

In fiscal 2010, operating income was $275.8 mill{iscal 2009: loss $297.3 million), an underlyingrease of 14.0%. The underlying incre
at constant exchange rates was 16.7%; non-GAAPureasee Item 6. The factors influencing the ofeganargin are set out below.

Operating margin movement

_uUs UK Total
% % %

Fiscal 2009 operating margir (9.3 (4.6) (8.9 @
Goodwill impairment and relisting cos 16.1 134 15.€
Fiscal 2009 underlying operating margi® 6.8 8.8 6.€@
Gross merchandise marg 0.4 (0.2 0.2
Expenses leverage/(delevera 1.5 (0.9 0.
Fiscal 2010 underlying operating margi® 8.7 7.7 8.C@
Change in US vacation entitlement pol 05 = 04
Fiscal 2010 operating margir 2 7.7 8.4

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
(2) Includes unallocated costs, principally centrattsosee page 6

US division operating income

In fiscal 2010, the US division’s operating incomas $235.8 million (fiscal 2009: loss $236.4 mitljpan underlying increase of 29.6%; non-
GAAP measure, see Item 6. See table above for @gss of the movement in operating margin.

Gross merchandise margin rate was in-line with rgaments expectations at the start of fiscal 2010 anceimsed by 40 basis points compe
to fiscal 2009. There was a broadly neutral imfizh commaodity costs, with lower diamond pricessetting a higher cost of gold. The
growth in differentiated merchandise was balangetligher sales of value items. A lower averagdrsglbrice, the growth in sales by Kay and
price increases implemented in the first quartdisohl 2009 were beneficial. In the fourth quartedecline of 30 basis points in gross
merchandise margin reflected a planned increaseooé promotional value items in the sales mix.

A $100 million cost saving program was an imporiaittative in fiscal 2010. Prompt action was takadrthe start of the year to realign the cost
base to the lower level of sales, without weakeiregdivisions competitive position. Store staff hours and divial head office staffing leve
were both reduced. The $100 million target washsljgexceeded and some of the additional savinge weinvested in national television
advertising in the fourth quarter. The net chamggpace had little impact on expenses in fiscaD2The cost reduction program more than
offset the combined effect of cost inflation andaalverse net bad debt performance, delivering pastive impact of 150 basis points to US
operating margin from expenses.

As part of the cost reduction program, it was p&hthat the ratio of gross marketing spend to siesld be realigned to a range typical of the
period before fiscal 2008, that is 6.4% to 7.0%nfr7.4% in fiscal 2009. However, as a result oétids than anticipated performance in fourth
quarter sales, the ratio was 6.0%. Marketing exjperedwas concentrated on the most productive oélarand brands, that is national televit
advertising for Kay and Jared, and direct marketingall brands. Gross marketing expenditure wes3¥1 million (fiscal 2009: $188.4

million).

The largest element of the central cost reductietaded to the dismantling of the infrastructurevpously required to support annual space
growth of 8% to 10%.
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It is anticipated that future changes in store bhaue likely to be proportionate to changes inssaldnile the advertising to sales ratio is
expected to return over time to historic leveldyjsat to unexpected changes in fourth quarter g@e®rmance. The infrastructure to support
space growth will only begin to be reinstated whenUS division identifies new opportunities thatisfy the required investment returns.

The net bad debt charge at 5.6% of total US saléaglfiscal 2010 (fiscal 2009: 4.9%) continued heddove the 2.8% to 3.4% range of the ten
years prior to fiscal 2009. Some initial signs taftdlization in the ratio were seen in the fourtlager. Credit participation was little changet
53.5% during fiscal 2010 (fiscal 2009: 53.2%).

Change in US vacation entitlement policy

In fiscal 2010, there was a $13.4 million benafinfi a change in the US divisi@vacation entitlement policy that will not be rafesl in futurt
years. Previously employees became entitled to thikannual vacation allowance if they were eny@d on the first day of the ye:
Commencing in fiscal 2010, holiday entitlementésraied over the fiscal year broadly in line withmayment.

UK division operating income

In fiscal 2010, the UK division’s operating incomas $56.5 million (fiscal 2009: loss $37.4 millipan underlying decrease of 21.0%, and of
13.1% at constant exchange rates; non-GAAP measerdiem 6. See table above for an analysis ahthement in operating margin.

Gross merchandise margin percentage was a litttertihan management’s expectations at the stdigazl 2010 and decreased by 20 basis
points compared to fiscal 2009. Price increasegelgroffset the impact of higher gold costs andwieakness of pound sterling against the US
dollar.

Despite a broadly stable pound sterling cost ltheee was a negative impact of 90 basis pointhieroperating margin due to sales deleverage
as a result of the decline in same store salesco$iebase was a little higher than originally ¢egl, as additional property closure expenses
were incurred in the fourth quarter. While UK maeaampnt undertook a cost reduction exercise, thesel®gs opportunity to reduce costs than
in the US division as a similar review had alreadgurred in the UK in fiscal 2007. In addition,latfonary cost pressures were greater in the
UK than in the US from property rental expenses embkion costs. Gross marketing spend was redocktbt3 million in fiscal 2010 (fiscal
2009: $22.1 million), the decrease at constant @xgh rates was 19.1%. The marketing spend to isdlesleclined to 2.2% (fiscal 2009:

2.8%). H.Samuel continued to use television adsiagiin the fourth quarter, but at a reduced le@elstomer relationship marketing was
increased for both H.Samuel and Ernest Jones.

Unallocated costs

Unallocated costs principally relate to costs #ratnot allocated to the US and UK divisions inn®igs management accounts (“central costs”
and were $16.5 million in fiscal 2010 (fiscal 20823.5 million), the decrease due to the absen§a@5 million relisting costs. The
underlying increase mainly reflected higher costatmg to staff and advisors.

Interest income and expense

In fiscal 2010, interest income fell to $0.8 miki¢fiscal 2009: $3.6 million), as a result of loweterest rates. Interest expense rose to $34.8
million (fiscal 2009: $32.8 million). While thereaxe lower levels of variable debt and a $100 milllwepayment at par to note holders mac
March 2009, the rate of interest on the outstandivtgs increased by 200 basis points, and therawharge of $3.4 million in the first quarter
in respect of fees associated with the amendme®igofet's borrowing agreements. Further costs @ $iillion were capitalized and $0.9
million of the capitalized amount was amortizedigeal 2010.
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Income/(loss) before income taxes

In fiscal 2010, income before income taxes was #4fillion (fiscal 2009: loss $326.5 million), anderlying increase of 13.7%, and an
underlying increase at constant exchange rate6.684; non-GAAP measures, see Item 6.

Provision for income taxes

In fiscal 2010, the charge to income taxes was#iiillion (fiscal 2009: $67.2 million), an effecévax rate of 32.1% (fiscal 2009: (20.6%)).
The underlying effective tax rate in fiscal 201€c¢cleding the US vacation entitlement policy adjusimwas 31.8% (fiscal 2009: 33.5%
underlying effective tax rate excluding goodwillpairment and relisting costs). The decline of 1&8id points in the underlying effective tax
rate primarily related to the benefit of changemtira-group financing arrangements and the favorabldw#en of certain prior year tax issut
Subject to the geographic mix of taxable income tairrdoutcome of various uncertain tax positiong (dete 6 of ltem 8), the effective tax rate
in fiscal 2011 is expected to be approximately 33%.

Net income/(loss)

In fiscal 2010, net income was $164.1 million (§62009: net loss $393.7 million) reflecting an ariging increase of 16.5%, and an
underlying increase at constant exchange rate9.684; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6.

Earnings/(loss) per share

In fiscal 2010, basic and diluted earnings pereheare $1.92 and $1.91 respectively (fiscal 2008s ber share basic and diluted: $4.62), an
underlying increase in basic and diluted earnireysshare of 16.6% and 15.9%, and an underlyinggas® at constant exchange rates of 20.4%
and 19.7% respectively; non-GAAP measure, see ftem

COMPARISON OF FISCAL 2009 TO FISCAL 2008
Summary of fiscal 2009
» Same store sales: down by 8.
e Total sales: down by 8.8% to $3,344.3 mill
»  Operating margin (8.9)%; down 1880 basis pa
- Underlying operating margin 6.9%: down 290 basisifs®
* Net operating loss of $297.3 millic
— Underlying net operating profit: down by 35.9% ®3%.1 million®
* Net loss before income taxes: $326.5 mill
— Underlying net income before income taxes: dowd®y2% to $200.9 millioi®
e Loss per share: $4.¢
—  Underlying earnings per share: down 39.1% to $®
(1) Non-GAAP measures, see Item
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Sales

In fiscal 2009, total sales decreased to $3,34#&68a( 2008: $3,665.3 million), down by 8.8% oreported basis and 5.7% at constant exch
rates; non-GAAP measures, see Iltem 6. This refldoiger sales in both the US and UK divisions dughe factors discussed below.

Components of fiscal 2009 sales movement

us _UK Total

% % %
Same store sal (9.7 3.3 (8.2)
Change in net new store sp: 34 (0.5 2t
Sales at constant exchange r: (6.9 (3.9 (5.7
Exchange translatic — (12.9 (3.0
Total sales declin (6.9 (15.9 (8.9

US sales

In a very challenging retail environment, US satoeessales were down 9.7% and total sales were62,5nillion in fiscal 2009 (fiscal 2008:
$2,705.7 million). Sales performance was primadiliven by the difficult economic conditions withrsa store sales falling by 6.0% in the first
three quarters. Following the sharp deterioratioodnsumer sentiment in mid September 2008, andlzef decline in early December 2008,
same store sales in the fourth quarter were 160l8érthan the comparable quarter in fiscal 200@n8mg by higher income consumers was
particularly weak in the fourth quarter, and thiasweflected in the performance of Jared. The iriton from net new store space was 3.4%,
less than in recent years, reflecting a slower oatxpansion. Sales declined in Kay by 3.4% t@$3,1 million (fiscal 2008: $1,489.6 millior

in Jared by 4.0% to $726.2 million (fiscal 2008567 million) and in the regional brands by 19.3%$870.8 million (fiscal 2008: $459.7
million).

The average unit selling price increased by 0.3%seal 2009. During the first nine months the #ase was 7% (mall brands up by 7% and
Jared up by 5%), reflecting the price increasedampnted in the first quarter. However, in the fbuquarter the consumer traded down ant
average unit selling price decreased by 10% (mmahds down by 7% and Jared down by 4%). The Jarerd@e unit price excludes the impact
of the launch of a new charm bracelet range in sstm@s. The overall volume of transactions indi009 was significantly lower than in
fiscal 2008.

UK sales

In fiscal 2009, same store sales decreased by @43%amuel down 2.6% and Ernest Jones down 4.0%3l $ales decreased by 3.8% at
constant exchange rates and were $808.2 milliormarted (fiscal 2008: $959.6 million). In the firsne months of fiscal 2009, same store
sales increased 0.8% (H.Samuel up by 1.1% and Elaeses up by 0.5%). As in the US, the fourth qaragkperienced a sharp deterioration in
consumer sentiment with the upper end consumeglgrticularly weak. As a result, same store sa@dedined from the prior year by 9.2%
(H.Samuel down by 7.8% and Ernest Jones by 11.0P&) impact of changes in net new store space wdsdease sales by 0.5% and foreign
exchange movements reduced reported sales by 138#s in pounds sterling declined in H.Samuel .B962to £250.3 million (fiscal 2008:
£256.7 million) and in Ernest Jones by 5.1% to £208illion (fiscal 2008: £219.4 million).

The average unit selling price increased 9% irafi2009, reflecting price increases implementelatia fiscal 2008 and early fiscal 2009 and
merchandise mix changes. The consumer was mor@gsain the fourth quarter, with average unit sgjlprice in the first three quarters hay
been up 12% over the comparable period in fisc@B2ihd up by only 4% in the fourth quarter. Thechatategory performed better than
average, particularly the
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prestige ranges in Ernest Jones. The number of&lexe items were increased and performed well.vidheme of transactions in fiscal 2009
was significantly lower than in fiscal 2008.

Cost of sales

In fiscal 2009, cost of sales was $2,264.2 millfiscal 2008: $2,414.6 million), the decline of &2eflecting lower sales partly offset by
increases in expenses associated with new stodes higher cost of gold.

Gross margin
In fiscal 2009, gross margin was $1,080.1 milliiacal 2008: $1,250.7 million), down by 13.6%. Thiflected deleverage of the expense t

Selling, general and administrative expenses

In fiscal 2009, selling, general and administraxpenses were $969.2 million (fiscal 2008: $1,800illion), down by 3.2%. This decrease
reflected expense savings and the impact of thegehan the pound sterling to US dollar exchange oat selling, general and administrative
expenses in the UK division and central function.

Other operating income

In fiscal 2009, other operating income was $119ilRan (fiscal 2008: $108.8 million), up by 9.6%hiB primarily reflected the decline in US
sales being more than offset by the growth of saleded by the in-house customer finance which to8.2% of total sales (fiscal 2008:
52.6%) and a lower monthly collection rate of 13.(fgcal 2008: 13.9%).

Operating loss, net

On a reported basis there was a net operatingfdg297.3 million (fiscal 2008: $358.7 million). derlying net operating income was $230.1
million; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6. The factoflsiencing the operating margin are set out below.

Operating margin movement

Total

us UK @)

% % %
Fiscal 2008 operating margir 9.8 11.4 9.8
Gross merchandise marg 1.2 — 0.¢
Expenses deleveray (4.2 (2.6) (3.9)
Underlying fiscal 2009 margir® 6.8 8.8 6.S
Goodwill impairment and relisting cos (16.1) (13.9) (15.9)
Fiscal 2009 operating margir (9.3 (4.€) (8.9

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
(2) Includes unallocated costs, principally centralts«

US division operating loss

In fiscal 2009, the US division’s operating losssvi#236.4 million (fiscal 2008: income $265.2 mifljo The underlying operating income was
$171.6 million; non-GAAP measure, see ltem 6. &bfetabove for an analysis of the year to year ghém operating margin. Gross
merchandise margin rate was ahead of expectatmmh@areased by 120 basis points compared to &t with a particularly strong
performance in
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the fourth quarter. This reflected price incredasggdemented during the first quarter of fiscal 2@G0fI favorable changes in mix resulting from

management initiatives, including the planned esgamof exclusive merchandise, which more thanedff®emmodity cost increases. There

a negative impact of 380 basis points in fiscal@flecting the deleverage of the underlying dste due to the decline in same store sales,

which included the impact of the adverse move ifigpenance of the receivables portfolio, and of 48ib points due to the impact of new store
space.

In fiscal 2009, the net bad debt charge, at 4.9%taf sales (fiscal 2008: 3.4%), was well abowe2t8% to 3.4% range of the past ten years.
This reflected the challenging economic environm&he increase in bad debt was partially offsehigyher income from the receivables
portfolio. Credit participation increased somewtwe53.2% (fiscal 2008: 52.6%) reflecting a highardl of applications offset by a significant
increase in the level of credit applications regelcfThe fall in credit acceptance rate reflectedagament action to reduce exposure to
particular types of customer and a lower proportboustomers satisfying the US division’s crediuirements.

Overall the expense base in fiscal 2009 was sirtoléiscal 2008, excluding the impact of new spdaght control of costs offset the increas
net bad debt charge and inflationary cost increasescupancy, utilities, freight and staff wagéesa Actions taken included reductions in s
staff hours partly to reflect lower transactionwokes, significantly lower levels of radio adverigiand savings in central costs.

UK division operating loss

In fiscal 2009, the UK division’s net operatingdosas $37.4 million (fiscal 2008: income $109.3limil). The underlying operating income
was $71.5 million; non-GAAP measure, see Item & {&ble above for an analysis of the movement érating margin. The gross
merchandise margin rate was unchanged with primeases offsetting adverse mix changes, greatergiironal activity and higher commod
costs. There was a negative impact of 260 basiggwi fiscal 2009 reflecting the deleverage ofuhderlying cost base due to the decline in
same store sales.

Overall, a tight control of expenses resulted minderlying cost base in fiscal 2009 being broadhilar to that in fiscal 2008. Actions taken
included reductions in staff costs and changekeémtarketing strategy for Ernest Jones.

Unallocated costs

Unallocated cost principally related to centralts@nd in fiscal 2009 were $13.0 million (fiscabDB80 $15.8 million). This reflected the
movement in the pound sterling to US dollar exclearsde, as well as a foreign exchange gain moredffaetting an underlying increase in
costs.

Goodwill impairment

Historically management undertook an annual goddmpairment test at its year end or when there avagygering event. In fiscal 2009, in
addition to the annual impairment review, thereenenumber of triggering events in the fourth qeradiue to a significant decline in
profitability reflecting the impact of the econondownturn on operations, and the even greaterrdeaiiits share price resulting in a
substantial discount of the market capitalizatimmét tangible asset value (that is, shareholdensls excluding intangible assets). An
evaluation of the recorded goodwill was underta&ed it was determined that it was impaired. Acaagtyi, to reflect the impairment, Signet
recorded a non-cash charge of $516.9 million, wikighinated the value of goodwill on its balanceeth See “Critical accounting policies”
starting on page 84 for further details. The godidwiite off had no impact on borrowing agreememtshe net tangible assets of Signet.
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Relisting costs

On September 11, 2008, the primary listing of Signeved to the NYSE from the LSE and the parentgamy became Signet Jewelers
Limited, a Bermuda domiciled company. The non-rengrcosts associated with these changes amoumt&tt5 million.

Interest income and expenses
In fiscal 2009, net financial costs rose to $29iltion (fiscal 2008: $22.5 million). The increasew/primarily due to higher levels of net debt.

(Loss)/income before income taxes

In fiscal 2009, loss before income taxes was $3@6llEon (fiscal 2008: income of $336.2 million)xEluding goodwill impairment and
relisting costs, income before income tax was $2@dillion, down by 40.2% on a reported basis an®@®y0% on a constant exchange rate
basis; non-GAAP measure, see ltem 6.

Provision for income taxes

The charge to income taxes was $67.2 million ioafi2009 (fiscal 2008: $116.4 million), an effeetitax rate of (20.6)% (fiscal 2008: 34.6%).
The underlying effective tax rate in fiscal 2002 kexling goodwill impairment and relisting costs vaa5% (fiscal 2008: underlying effective
tax rate 34.6%). The decline of 110 basis pointhéunderlying effective rate reflected a lowesgmrtion of profits from the US division an
reduced level of expenditure disallowable for taart in fiscal 2008.

Net (loss)/income

The net loss for fiscal 2009 was $393.7 millios¢hl 2008: $219.8 million net income). Underlyiref mcome for fiscal 2009 was $133.7
million (fiscal 2008: $219.8 million); non-GAAP meare, see ltem 6.

(Loss)/earnings per share

On a reported basis, basic and diluted loss peeshere $4.62 (fiscal 2008 earnings per sharecl#sb8 and diluted $2.55). Underlying basic
and diluted earnings per share in fiscal 2009 weth $1.57; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Summary cash flow
The following table provides a summary of Signetish flows for fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 and fis2@08:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Net income/(loss 164.1 (393.9) 219.¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to rethcprovided by

operating activitie: 129.¢ 653.t 113.¢
Net income adjusted for n-cash item«® 293.¢ 259.¢ 333.¢
Changes in operating assets and liabili 221k (95.9 (192.9)
Net cash provided by operating activit 515. 164.4 140.¢
Net cash flows used in investing activit (43.5) (113.9) (139.9
Free cash flov 471.¢ 51.1 14
Dividends paic — (123.9 (123.9
Net change in common shai 1.C 0.1 (23.0
472.¢ (72.6) (145.5)

(Repayment)/proceeds of debt during y® (243.9) 160.¢ 31.1

Facility amendment fees pz (9.3 — —
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 220.2 88.(C (114.9

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
(2) Proceeds from issuance of Common Shares less marcfigreasury share
(3) Proceeds from short term borrowings less repaywieiong term debt

Reconciliation of changes in net deb®
The following table provides a reconciliation ofjBet’s changes in net debt for fiscal 2010, fi9 and fiscal 2008:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Repayment/(proceeds) of debt during y® 243.¢ (160.6) (31.))
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 220.2 88.( (114.9)
Change in net debt during the y(@ 463.¢ (72.€) (145.5)
Net debt at start of peric@ (470.%) (374.6 (233.79)
Net debt at end of period before effect of exchaafe change® (7.2) (447.2) (378.7)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts (0.9 (32.9 3.8

Effect of exchange rate changes on short term tdmgs and long

term debi — 9.4 0.2
Net debt at end of peric (7.9 (470.%) (374.6)

(1) Proceeds from short term borrowings less repaywieiong term debt
(2) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
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OVERVIEW

Managements’s objective is to maintain a strongiee sheet, as it regards financial stability esmpetitive advantage. Another important
factor in determining financial stability is liquig, or access to cash. In the current challengitgnhomic environment these two factors take on
additional importance.

Operating activities provide the primary sourceash and are influenced by a number of factord) asc
* netincome, which is primarily influenced by sadesl operating income margir
» changes in the level of inventol

» proportion of US sales made using in-house custdima&ncing programs and the average monthly catiaatate of the credit
balances

» seasonal pattern of trading; a
» working capital movements associated with changesdre space

Other sources of cash are increased borrowindseassuance of Common Shares for cash.

Impact of new store openings on cash flow

When analyzing cash flow, management believesimrtant to distinguish between cash flows ofékisting business and discretionary
expenditures related to new store space. As tkerery limited potential to open new stores inlthg this relates to new store space in the US.
Therefore working capital investment and capitgdenditure related to new US store space is sepaidéantified in the following discussion.

In fiscal 2010, one of Signet’s financial objecBugas to achieve positive free cash flow of betwkEr6.0 million and $225.0 million; non-
GAAP measure, see ltem 6. During the year, casttasil equivalents increased by $220.2 million @i@009: $88.0 million) and debt
decreased by $243.4 million (fiscal 2009: increbB80.6 million). The achieved decrease in net dets therefore $463.6 million (fiscal 2009:
$72.6 million). Net debt at January 30, 2010 wa® $illion (January 31, 2009: $470.7 million); nGAAP measure, see Item 6. Gearing at
January 30, 2010 was 0.4% (January 31, 2009: 29/280}GAAP measure, see Item 6. The peak leveebtlabt in fiscal 2010 was about
$480 million (fiscal 2009: about $670 million).

Cash flow from operating activities

As a retail business, Signet receives cash whaakies a sale to a customer or when the paymeitdsasprocessed by the relevant bank if the
payment is made by credit or debit card. In thedidsion, where the customer makes use of finanpimuyided by Signet, the cash is received
over a period of time. In fiscal 2010, 53.5% (fis2@09: 53.2%) of the US division’s sales were masi@g finance provided by Signet. The
average monthly collection rate from the credittfodio was 12.5% (fiscal 2009: 13.1%).

Signet typically pays for merchandise about 30 ddier receipt. Due to the nature of specialtyir@avelry, it is usual for inventory to be held
on average for approximately 12 months beforesbigl. In addition, Signet, holds consignment ineeyy nearly all of which is in the US,
which at January 30, 2010 amounted to $134.6 milimnuary 31, 2009: $202.1 million). The princifgans of the consignment agreement,
which can generally be terminated by either paatg,such that Signet can return any or all of tiveritory to the relevant supplier without
financial or commercial penalties. When Signetssetinsignment inventory, it becomes liable to thygpsier for the cost of the item. The sale
any such inventory is accounted for on a grosssl{asie principal accounting policies, Item 8).

Signet’s largest class of operating expense retatstaff costs. These are typically paid on a Weedko weekly or monthly basis, with annual
bonus payments also being made. Operating leasequdy in respect of stores occupied are normaltly @aa monthly basis by the US
division and on a quarterly basis by the UK divisio
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Payment for advertising on television, radio on@wspapers is usually made between 30 and 60 ftayshe advertisement appears. Other
expenses have various payment terms, none of velnecmaterial.

Adjustments to reconcile net income/loss to cagiwfiprovided by operations

The major adjustment to reconcile net income/lossash flow provided by operations is normally éefation of property, plant and
equipment. There can also be significant, unuse@irmn-recurring items, such as the $516.9 miliopairment of goodwill in fiscal 2009.

In fiscal 2010, net income adjusted for non-castg increased to $293.9 million (fiscal 2009: $854illion); nonGAAP measure, see ltem
The adjustments for non-cash items were $129.8omi(fiscal 2009: $653.5 million), with depreciatiand amortization being $108.9 million
(fiscal 2009: $114.5 million). The decrease in @efation reflected the planned reduction in spaogth and store refurbishment as well as
impact of foreign exchange movements on the regddigeire for the UK division.

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Signet’s working capital requirements fluctuateidgrhe year as a result of the seasonal natusale$ and movements in the pound sterling to
US dollar exchange rate. The working capital negdle business are normally relatively stable fidanuary to August. As inventory is
purchased for the fourth quarter, there is a waykiapital outflow which reaches its highest levelmid to late November. The peak level of
working capital can be accentuated by new storaiogs. The working capital position then reverseardahe key selling period of December.

The change in inventory and receivables in the WiSidn is primarily driven by the sales performaraf the existing stores and the net change
in store space. The value of inventory in the U¥sion is also impacted by movements in the pouadisg to US dollar exchange rate.

Growth or decline in same store sales will normedisult in a smaller proportionate movement in irteey than in same store sales. Changes in
the sourcing practices and merchandise mix of tiggnless can also result in changes in inventoryekample, the cessation of the initiative to
directly source rough diamonds in late fiscal 268@uced working capital requirements as did thevgran fiscal 2010 of differentiated
merchandise ranges, which have a faster averageharadise turn. In the US, a change in receivabtagddvproportionately reflect changes in
sales if credit participation levels remain the saand receivable collection rates were unalterédénGes in credit participation and the
collection rate also impact the level of receivabMovements in deferred revenue reflect the lef/&lS sales and the attachment rate of
warranty sales. Therefore if sales increase, wgrkapital would be expected to increase. Similalgiecrease in sales would be expected to
result in a reduction in working capital.

Investment in new space requires significant inwestt in working capital, as well as fixed capitaléstment, due to the slow inventory turn,
and the additional investment required to fundssalehe US utilizing in-house customer finance ti@f total investment required to open a

new store, between 60% and 70% is typically acamifar by working capital. New stores are usuafigmed in the third quarter or early in-
fourth quarter of the fiscal year. A reduction lire number of store openings results in the diffeedretween the level of net debt in the first

half of a fiscal year and the peak level being Igwshile an increase in the number of store openimguld have the opposite impact.

In line with Signet'’s financial objectives for fi@c2010, there was an inflow from operating asaatsliabilities of $221.5 million (fiscal 2009:
outflow of $95.4 million). Due to the seasonal trapattern, the cash inflow from operating assets liabilities was $4.9 million in the fourth
quarter (fourth quarter fiscal 2009: outflow of $@nillion). There was a decrease in inventory 22&5 million (fiscal 2009: $12.7 million),
following a realignment to a lower level of saleslahe much reduced space growth in the US dividibe level of accounts receivable rose
$32.4 million reflecting the increase in salesha fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 in the US division
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The adverse impact of exchange rate changes oenoyrswaps was $0.7 million (fiscal 2009: $49.6iom). Signet historically swapped
significant amounts of pound sterling deposits eer-company balances into US dollars on a skomtasis to reduce the level of US dollar
debt. These cash and inter-company balances,zé@&ivhich fluctuated during the year, reflectachéstoric restriction on dividend payments
by the UK division, which was lifted in the fourtjuarter of fiscal 2009, following a ruling by thegH Court of Justice of England and Wales.
As a result, Signet greatly increased its abilityeduce the size of its pounds sterling depositsigter-company balances on a permanent basi
by paying dividends up through the corporate stmactThis enabled Signet to meaningfully reduceatsh flow exposure to changes in the
pound sterling to US dollar exchange rate.

In fiscal 2010, investment in inventory and recbies associated with US space growth was reduc&38&yt million to $28.2 million (fiscal
2009: $66.6 million) reflecting only seven new nsitbres and seven new Jared locations (fiscal 2®#nall stores and 17 Jared locations)
the working capital investment of $28.2 millionriew US space in fiscal 2010, $12.0 was for invensord $16.2 million related to customer
financing (fiscal 2009: $39.6 million and $27.0 loih respectively). An inflow from inventory andpayment of customer financing arose fr
US store closures that occurred in calendar 2008hd UK division, the change in net store space me significant. The following tables
provide a summary of movement in inventory and antoeceivables as a result of new space growtherJS and the performance of the rest
of Signet’s operations for fiscal 2010, fiscal 2G0# fiscal 2008:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Increase in inventories due to new space ir 12.C 39.€ 78.t
Other (decrease)/increase in invento (238.5) (52.%) 18.:
Total (decrease)/increase in inventol (226.5) (12.7) 96.¢
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million

Increase in accounts receivable due to new spad& 16.Z 27.C 40.:
Other increase/(decrease) in accounts recei 16.2 (47.5) 15.¢
Total increase/(decrease) in accounts recei\ 32.4 (20.5) 56.2

Investing activities

Investment activities primarily reflect the purcha®of property, plant and equipment related to the:
» rate of space expansion in the |
* number of store refurbishment and relocation cdroiat, anc
» provision of divisional head offices, which include US and UK distribution facilitie:

In addition, purchases of intangible assets, piiignaf information technology for use in the busiseare also made.

When appraising a store investment, managementamsiesestment hurdle rate of a 20% internal ratetrn on a pre-tax basis over a five

year period assuming the release of working cagpitttie end of the five years. Capital expendiageounts for about 36% of the investmer

a new Jared store and for about 33% of the invagtmea mall store. The balance is accounted fonbgstment in inventory and the funding
of customer financing. Signet typically carries aunajor refurbishment of its stores every ten yéart does have some
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discretion as to the timing of such expendituren&jor store refurbishment is evaluated using tineesimvestment procedures and criteria a

a new store. Minor store redecorations are typiaakried out every five years. In addition to migjtore refurbishments, Signet carries out
minor store refurbishments where stores are ptiéthut do not satisfy the investment hurdle ratpuired for a full refurbishment; this is
usually associated with a short term lease rendiWhére possible, the investment appraisal apprizaalso used to evaluate other investment
opportunities.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $48illion (fiscal 2009: $113.3 million), as a retsaf reduced capital investment in the exis
businesses on both sides of the Atlantic and acestitate of US new space growth.

The following table provides a summary of capitgbenditure as a result of new space growth in t8eadther additions in the US, and of
capital additions in the UK and unallocated, fecél 2010, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Capital additions due to new US spi 10.1 39.C 60.1
Other capital additions in U 21.C 37.1 51.C
Capital additions in U: 31.1 76.7 111.1
Capital additions in UK and unallocat 12.5 38.2 29.2
Total purchases of property, plant, equipment ghérn
intangible assel 43.€ 114.¢ 140.¢
Ratio of capital additions to depreciation and aimation
in US 39.7% 91.2% 154.1%
Ratio of capital additions to depreciation and aimation
in UK 41.(% 124.% 68.4%
Ratio of capital additions to depreciation and aination
for Signet 40.(% 100.2% 123.%

In fiscal 2010, in both the US and UK divisionspital additions were less than depreciation andrération. This was a result of the use of
more cautious sales forecasts in the investmemaggap process reflecting the challenging econamidronment. As a result fewer new stores
were opened, fewer stores were refurbished and stores were closed rather than refurbished atrideof leases. Investment in information
technology was temporarily reduced.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is net cash provided by operatitiyities less net cash flow used in investing dtigg; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6.
Positive free cash flow in fiscal 2010 was $471iBion (fiscal 2009: $51.1 million; fiscal 2008: $#L.million), primarily as a result of a
significant realignment of working capital to reftdower sales in the existing business. This vwddexed even though net income adjusted for
non-cash items; non-GAAP measure, see Item 6;rdetlrom $333.6 million in fiscal 2008 to $293.9lian in fiscal 2010. In fiscal 2009, a
reduced level of cash being invested in workingte& the existing business and a lower levahekstment in new US space than in fiscal
2008 led to an increase in free cash flow. Managemelieves that there is limited scope for a fartteduction in working capital. Other
factors for the increase in free cash flow in fi2@10 were a higher net income adjusted for nasirégems, a reduction in investment in the
existing business and reduced investment in newstoi® space.
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To reflect the impact of investment in new US spaiceash flow, the following summary provides aalgsis of free cash flow before such
investment and the working capital and capital exjtere required by new US space.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million

Net incomeadjusted for nc-cash item«®) 293.¢ 259.¢ 333.¢

Change in operating assets & liabilities, excludmgact of new

US stores 249.% (28.¢) (74.0
Investing activities excluding new US sto (33.9 (74.9) (79.9)
Free cash flov® before investment in new US stol 510.2 156.7 180.:
Change in operating assets & liabilities due to hsvspact (28.2) (66.6) (118.9)
Investing activities related to new US spi (10.9) (39.0 (60.1)
Investment in new US stor (38.9 (105.6) (178.9)
Free cash flov 471.¢ 51.1 14

(1) nor-GAAP measures, see Iltem

In fiscal 2010, net income adjusted for neash items was $293.9 million, an increase of $84ltion on fiscal 2009 reflecting an improvem
in profitability. In fiscal 2010, a management dlijee was a reduction in working capital and $248illion was generated from changes in
operating assets and liabilities, excluding thedaotmf new US stores (fiscal 2009: use of $28.8ioni). The level of investment in the existing
business in fiscal 2010 was $33.4 million (fisc@02: $74.3 million). This level of investment wasnporarily below the current level of
maintenance capital expenditure of about $75 miltm$80 million. Free cash flow before investmiermew US stores increased to $510.2
million in fiscal 2010 from $156.7 million in fist&009.

Reflecting the change in strategy, with a focuswengthening the balance sheet by focusing ongasération rather than US space growth,
and the uncertain economic outlook which resultefié investment opportunities satisfying managetfaénvestment hurdle rate, investment
in new US space decreased to $38.3 million in FiR6A0 (fiscal 2009: $105.6 million).

Financing activities
The major items within financing activities arealissed below:

Dividends

In the light of economic prospects and financiatkeaconditions, as well as a focus on debt redactihe Board concluded in January 2009
that it was not appropriate to pay equity dividerdis equity dividends were paid in fiscal 2010¢#52009: $123.8 million).

Restrictions on dividend payments

Under the amended borrowing agreements, (see [afpe Betails) no “Shareholder Returns” (definedreduding dividends, share buybacks
or other similar payments) may be made in fiscal®0r fiscal 2011.

In fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013, Shareholder Retunag only be made to the extent that amounts ofrefyuary 2011 or 2012 prepayment ¢
to Note Holders are not accepted by the Note HeldEie minimum amount of
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each such offer being the Note Holders’ pro rataslof 60% of any reduction in net debt that ocediwver the preceding fiscal year. In
addition, such Shareholder Returns may only be rifade

» the fixed charge cover is above 1.7
» Signet is in compliance with the amended facikiyd
» Signet can demonstrate projected compliance wéHiked charge cover for the following 12 mont

Subsequent to January 2013, Shareholder Returndenag greater than the amount of an additiongdaymment offer rejected by the Note
Holders and may only be made if:

» previous offers have been made to prepay an aggreg&190 million of the Notes, inclusive of th&d® million March 18, 200
prepayment, an

« an additional prepayment offer at a 2% premiumatiohas been made, the size of which is at $'s discretion

In addition, under Bermuda law, a company may reafate or pay dividends if there are reasonablargte for believing that the company is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay ésilities as they become due or that the realizedliee of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued shaapital and its share premium accounts.

Proceeds from issues of Common Shares

In fiscal 2010, a sum of $1.0 million (fiscal 20@8.1 million) was received from the issuance ofr@wn Shares. Other than equity based
compensation awards granted to employees, Sigsetdtassued Common Shares as a financing acfositgver ten years.

Purchases of treasury shares

Signet may repurchase Common Shares in the opéreharrsuant to programs approved by the Boardsbeurrently restricted from doing
by its borrowing agreements (see page 80). No ofses of Common Shares took place in fiscal 201i8eal 2009. In fiscal 2008, $29.0
million was utilized for such repurchases.

Movement in cash and indebtedness

During fiscal 2010, Signet reduced short-term beings by $143.4 million (fiscal 2009: increase $B5Million) and repaid long-term
borrowings of $100.0 million. Cash and cash eqeirtd increased by $220.2 million (fiscal 2009: $88illion). The US dollar to pound
sterling exchange rate moved from $1.45 at JanBhr2009 to $1.60 at January 30, 2010, with theameeexchange rate used in the
preparation of Signet’s income statements being%dfiscal 2009: $1.75). Signet holds a fluctuatimgount of pounds sterling reflecting the
cash generative nature of the UK division. Moveraéntthe exchange rates prevailing at the timée$e¢ flows create exchange rate
movements on the cash balances with an adverseirnp$0.8 million on cash and cash equivalentd, &mil on debt (fiscal 2009, adverse
impact of $32.9 million and a gain $9.4 million pestively).

Net debt; no-GAAP measure, see Item 6; at January 30, 2010 w&srillion (January 31, 2009: $470.7 million), ecdease of $462.8 millic
(fiscal 2009: $141.4 million increase). Debt atulay 30, 2010 was $324.1 million (January 31, 28%7.5 million), with cash and cash
equivalents amounting to $316.2 million (JanuaryZ109: $96.8 million). Gearing, that is the radfmet debt to shareholders’ equity, was
0.4% (January 31, 2009: 29.2%); non-GAAP measae]tem 6. The peak level of net debt in fiscal®@h&s about $480 million (fiscal 2009:
about $670 million).
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Capital availability

Signet’s level of borrowings and cash balanceddiates during the year reflecting its cash flowf@anance, which depends on the factors
described above. Management believes that cashdesland the committed borrowing facilities (ddseali more fully below) currently
available to the business, are sufficient for bitstpresent and near term requirements. In fis8aD2the peak level of net debt was about $480
million (fiscal 2009: about $670 million). In fist2011, the peak net debt is expected to be lower.

The following table provides a summary of the Stggeorking capital position and capitalizationatslJanuary 30, 2010, January 31, 2009 and
February 2, 2008:

January 30 January 31 February 2,

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Working capital 1,814t 1,675.¢ 1,776.

Capitalization:

Net debi® 7.8 470.5 374.¢
Shareholder equity 1,797.¢ 1,609.° 2,321..
Total capitalizatior 1,805.! 2,080.¢ 2,695.¢
Additional amounts available under credit agreems 370.C 432.5 553.%

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item

The following table provides relevant measuresafitlity and capital resources as at January 300208anuary 31, 2009 and February 2, 2

January 30 January 31 February 2,
2010 2009 2008
Gearing® 0.4% 29.2% 21.2%
Net tangible asset val@ ($ million) 1,773. 1,585.¢ 1,743.:
Net debt to earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortizati(? 0.02» 1.4x 0.8x
Fixed charge cove? 2.0x 1.9x 2.4x

(1) Non-GAAP measure, see Item
(2) These no-GAAP measures are calculated in accordance withef's credit agreements detailed bel

In addition to cash generated from operating awij Signet also has funds available from varireslit agreements. The principle agreements
are outlined below.

Amended Revolving Credit Facility Agreement

The terms of the Amended Revolving Credit Faciligreement (the “Facility Agreement”) which runsrftdMarch 2009 until June 2013, inter
alia, include:

» the ability by Signet to draw in the form of m-currency cash advances and the issuance of leftersdit; anc

« amargin of 2.25% above LIBOR, subject to adjustingepending on the performance of Signet, withnirdmum being 1.75%
above LIBOR and the maximum being 2.75% above LIBO&nmitment fees are paid on the undrawn portidhie credit facility
at a rate of 40% of the applicable mar¢
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The continued availability of the Facility Agreenésconditional upon Signet achieving certain ficial performance criteria and abiding by
certain operating restrictions, including thoseasétbelow:

» the ratio of Consolidated Net Debt to Consolid&&ITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciataond Amortization) shall
not exceed 2:1 for each quarter, except the thiedtgr when it shall not exceed 2.£

» Consolidated Net Worth (total net tangible assghg)l not fall below $800 millior

» the ratio of EBITDAR (Earnings Before Interest, T®epreciation, Amortization, Rents and Operatiegée Expenditure) to Fixed
Charges (Consolidated Net Interest Expenditure Rirsts and Operating Lease Expenditure excludimgi&@eCharges and Rates)
shall be equal to or greater than 1.4:1 for théingal2 months at each quarter end to January 202 increasing to 1.55:1 until
January 2013 and then to 1.85:1 for subsequerdgse

* Dbeginning with fiscal 2011, the facility will bedaced, on a pro rata basis with the Notes outstagn@iee below), by 60% of any
reduction in net debt from the prior year e

* no “Shareholder Returns” (defined as including divids, share buybacks or other similar paymenéd) Is made during fiscal
2010 or fiscal 2011, and thereafter such returng omy be made if the amended fixed charge covab@ve 1.7:1, there are no
subsisting defaults and the directors confirm thay expect Signet to continue to comply with theenant in the following 12
months; anc

» capital expenditure shall not exceed $71 milliofiscal 2010, $93 million in fiscal 2011, $115 rwh in fiscal 2012 and $205
million in fiscal 2013.

The Facility Agreement retains certain provisiorfsah are customary for this type of agreement lidiclg standard “negative pledge” and
“pari passu” clauses. The facility was undrawnaaiuary 30, 2010 (January 31, 2009: $135 million).

A change was agreed with Signet's Revolving CrEditility banking group that the facility be redud¢eds300 million from $370 million on
March 19, 2010.

Amended note purchase agreement

The original Note Purchase Agreement took the foftiixed rate investor certificate notes (“NotesAY. January 31, 2009, the Notes
outstanding were Series (A) $100 million 5.95% &0&3; Series (B) $150 million 6.11% due 2016, aadeS (C) $130 million 6.26% due
2018.

The terms of the amended Note Purchase Agreemémtgfided Note Purchase Agreement”), where they iffiexeht to those in the Facility
Agreement disclosed above, are, inter alia:

» the coupon increased by an additional 2.0% (sulbgeatfurther 1.0% increase until fiscal 2013 & timended fixed charge cover
ratio is less than 1.6:1, and an additional 1.0étciase if Note Holders are subject to increasedataharges as a result of a
requirement to post additional reserves under ealplié insurance regulations, as determined bynh@ance regulator

» aprepayment of $100 million at par plus accru¢eragst on March 18, 2009. Subsequent prepaymesrisofit par, to be made in
February/March of each of the following calendaange—2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013. The minimum amdueach such offer
being the Note Holders’ pro rata share of 60% gfr@aduction in net debt that occurred over the g@détg fiscal year (theRequirec
Offers”). Any proportion of the 2011, 2012 or 20df8ers rejected by Note Holders may be appliedttar8holder Returns, as
defined in the Facility Agreemer
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* Subsequent to January 2013, Shareholder Returnbenag greater than the amount of an additiongdgymment offer rejected t
the Note Holders and may only be madt

—  previous offers have been made to prepay an aggre§&190 million of the Notes, inclusive of th&d® million March 18,
2009 prepaymen

— an additional prepayment offer at a 2% premiumaolas been made, the size of which is at S's discretion, an

» restrictions on capital expenditure similar to Baeility Agreement for fiscal 2010, fiscal 2011sdal 2012 and fiscal 2013, provic
that in fiscal 2012 and 2013 the Required Offerselaeen made, otherwise the restrictions on cagxjeénditure in fiscal 2012 will
be $85 million and in fiscal 2013 and thereaftel ¢ $100 million. No unspent capital expenditis@ble to be carried forwar

In accordance with its borrowing agreements, Sigmede a prepayment at par to its Note Holders orcivig, 2010 of $50.9 million. Followi
this repayment there were $229.1 million of Notatstanding, comprising: Series (A) $58.9 milliored2013; Series (B) $89.1 million due
2016, and Series (C) $81.1 million due 2018, witledghted average coupon of 8.12%.

Signet has the right to prepay the remaining onthtey notes at any time, with such prepayment beiadge at a premium to par as determined
by the provisions of the ‘Make Whole’ calculatioontained within the Amended Note Purchase Agreemyértations in the ‘Make Whole’
premium amount are largely determined by movemiaris 6 and 8 year US Treasury yields.

Asset backed variable funding note conduit seaatitbn facility

In October 2008, a 364 day $100m Series 2007 hssked variable funding note conduit securitizafemility for general corporate purposes
was entered into. Under this securitization, irdesén the US receivables portfolio are sold todyPark, a conduit administered by HSBC
Securities (USA) Inc. This facility was not utilidend was terminated in April 2009.

Other borrowing agreements
At January 30, 2010, Signet had borrowings of $4dillion (January 31, 2009: $52.5 million) underioas bank overdraft facilities.

Credit rating
Signet does not have a public credit rating.

KNOWN TRENDS AND UNCERTAINTIES
US division
The current economic environment remains challengimd the prospects for same store sales remaénrtairc For fiscal 2011, the gross

merchandise margin is expected to be at leasedetrel achieved in fiscal 2010, with a decreasdiamond costs and selective price increases
offsetting a rise in the cost of gold.

Controllable expenses are expected to be broaatiyWith some benefit from store closures largellabcing inflation. However, two factors

will have an adverse impact. First, the non-reagrbienefit recognized in fiscal 2010 of $13.4 railliarising from the change in vacation
entittlement policy; and second, an anticipateddimect adverse impact on operating income in tngeaof $15 million to $20 million in fiscal
2011 resulting from amendments to the Truth in lkegd\ct. There may be a further indirect impacsédes arising from these amendments as
a result of changes in consumer behavior. Expemikalso vary with sales to the extent they areabor below budgeted levels. In the US,
these variable expenses account for 12% to 15%le$sThe net bad debt charge is uncertain angrifmary driver of its performance is the
economic environment.
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A further slowing in the rate of new store openimgt take place in fiscal 2011, with the numberstére closures is anticipated to be a little
lower than in fiscal 2010. This will result in a alindecline in store space (see table below). Harethere will be an increased level of store
refurbishment and investment in information tecloggl Capital expenditure in fiscal 2011, is antitgd to be about $60 million (fiscal 2010:
$31.1 million).

Kay Net spact
Ka

Mall Off- rr>1/all Regionals Jared@)  Total change
January 200! 79t 131 304 171 1,401 4%
Openec 5@ 3 1 7 16
Closed _(6) (5) (45 @ — (56)
January 2010 794 12¢ 26( 17¢ 1,361 (1)%
Openings (plannec 4 2 — 2 8
Closures (approx (10 (4) (36) — (50
January 2011 (approx 78€ 127 224 18C 1,31¢ (2)%

(1) A Jared store is equivalent in size to just oveir fmall stores
(2) Includes two regional stores rebranded as |

UK division
Gross merchandise margin in fiscal 2011 is expetttdsk somewhat below that achieved in fiscal 2@ti@parily reflecting a higher cost of

gold and a rise in value added tax partly offsephge increases. Action has been taken to impsta# scheduling and to reduce property
costs, with the objective of slightly reducing pdwsterling costs compared with those of fiscal 2010

As part of the long term strategy of focusing orjanahopping centers, rather than traditional, [@sditable high street locations, a further
small reduction in net store space is expectedsaaf2011 (see table below). As a result of highgrenditure on store maintenance and
information technology, capital expenditure in 2011 is anticipated to be approximately $20iomill(fiscal 2010: $12.5 million).

Open store format

Ernest

H.Samue Jones® Total H.Samue Ernest Jone:

January 200! 352 20€ 55€ 71% 40%
Openec — 1 1

Closed @) (@) _ ™

January 2010 347 20t 552 73% 48%
Openings (plannec — — —

Closures (approx (10 ©) (15

January 2011 (approx 337 20C 537 75% 60%

(1) Includes stores trading as Leslie Da

Expected effective tax rate

It is expected that, subject to the geographic ahitaxable income and the outcome of various uagettx positions, Signet’effective tax rat
in fiscal 2011 will be approximately 33%.

Cash flow objectives

In fiscal 2011, it is management’s objective toiaeh a positive free cash flow of between $150iarilland $200 million, that is net cash
provided by operating activities less net cash §ased in investing activities. This
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is lower than achieved in fiscal 2010, as theteriged scope to further reduce working capitaleTimpact of the recently implemented
amendments to the Truth in Lending Act on cash flewncertain. Investing activities in fiscal 20dre budgeted to use about $80 million
(fiscal 2010: $43.5 million), broadly in line withaintenance capital expenditure. In accordance thélBoard's strategy and Signet’s
borrowing agreements, there is no intention togay dividends nor make any share repurchasescal 2911.

Trading in the first seven weeks of fiscal 2011

An encouraging start has been made to fiscal 20itth,same store sales in the first seven weeks 4 6In the US, same store sales were up
7.8%, with Jared especially strong, and the malhts achieving a solid increase. In the UK, saime Sales were down 0.1%, with Ernest
Jones driving the better performance.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Merchandise held by way of consignment

Signet held $134.6 million of consignment inventatydanuary 30, 2010 (January 31, 2009: $202.1omjlivhich is not recorded on the
balance sheet. The principal terms of the consignmgreements, which can generally be terminategithgr side, are such that Signet can
return any, or all of, the inventory to the relewvanpplier without financial or commercial penalty.

Contingent property liabilities

Approximately 124 UK property leases had been assidy Signet at January 30, 2010 (and remainexpineel and occupied by assignees at
that date) and approximately 27 additional propsnivere sub-let at that date. Should the assigwemsh-tenants fail to fulfill any obligations

in respect of those leases or any other leasedwilaice at any other time been assigned or suBilgnet or one of its UK subsidiaries may be
liable for those defaults. The number of such ctaarising to date has been small, and the liabiltyich is charged to the income statement as
it arises, has not been material.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of operating lease obligations is setb@lbw. These primarily relate to minimum paymefis under store lease arrangements
majority of the store operating leases providelfierpayment of base rentals plus real estate tax@gance, common area maintenance fees
and merchant association dues. Additional inforamategarding Signet’s operating leases is availableem 2, and Note 21, included in

Item 8.

Long term debt obligations comprise borrowings veithoriginal maturity of greater than one year.cRase obligations comprise contracts
entered into for the forward purchase of gold ai®lddllars with an original maturity of greater thame year. These contracts are taken out to
manage market risks. It is expected that operatimgmitments will be funded from future operatingltdlows and no additional facilities will
be required to meet these obligations.

Contractual obligations as at January 30, 2010

Less thar Between one an Between thre¢ More than

One year three years and five years five years Total

$million $million $million $million $million
Long term debt obligatior® — — 73.70 206.: 280.(
Operating lease obligatior? 287.¢ 513.c 430.: 1,081.( 2,312.(
Purchase obligatior 7.6 — — — 7.€
Fixed interest and commitment fee payms 25.2 50.€ 35.C 32.7 143.¢
Creditors falling due after one ye — — — 7.2 7.2
Current income ta 44.1 — — — 44.1
Total 364.£ 563.¢ 539.( 1,327.. 2,794
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(1) As at January 30, 2010, Signet had no -term floating rate indebtedness. On March 9, 2@l@net made a prepayment of $50.9 mill
in relation to the long-term debt obligations. Balling this prepayment, the revised contractualgatiion between three and five years is
$58.9 million and more than five years is $170.Riom and the total is $229.1 milliol

(2) Operating lease obligations relate to minimum payheue under store lease arrangements. Mostgterating leases require paym
of real estate taxes, insurance and common aregenance fees. Real estate taxes, insurance anmd@o@area maintenance fees were
approximately 35% of base rentals for fiscal 20li@ese are not included in the table above. Someabpg leases also require additional
payments based on a percentage of s

Not included in the table above are obligationsatremployment agreements (including pensions) adidary course purchase orders
merchandise.

PENSIONS

Signet has one defined benefit plan for UK baseaff &he “Group Scheme”), that was closed to neviriners in 2004. All other pension
arrangements consist of defined contribution pldihe net impact of foreign exchange movements erafisets and liabilities of the UK
scheme in fiscal 2010 was $1.2 million. There wasetuarial loss on the Group Scheme liabilitie$1#.2 million (fiscal 2009: $21.9 million
gain). The fair value of the Group Schemassets excluding the impact of foreign exchangeements increased by $32.7 million (fiscal 2!
$51.9 million decrease). There was a retiremenéfieteficit on the balance sheet of $4.8 millidaufuary 31, 2009: $12.9 million) before a
related deferred tax asset of $1.4 million (Jandry2009: $3.6 million). The last triennial actahwaluation was carried out as at April 5,
2009 and another will be carried out as at Apr2@12. The valuation is updated at each fiscal gedr

The cash contribution to the Group Scheme in fi2edl0 was $12.8 million (fiscal 2009: $6.0 millio®ignet has committed to contributing
$9.6 million each year for the next seven yeamddition to the ongoing service contributions. Agsult, Signet expects to contribute $15.2
million into the pension scheme in fiscal 2011thi deficit increases or decreases significartigntthis contribution might increase or decr:
accordingly.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

The impact of inflation on Signet's results for thast three years has not been significant apart the impact of the increased cost of gold,
and in the UK, the impact on merchandise coststaltiee weakness of pound sterling against the Ulardo

IMPACT OF CLIMATE CHANGE

Signet recognizes that climate change is a maj@rta society and therefore continues to take stepsduce Signet’s climate impact.
Management believes that climate change has ayarghrect influence on Signet’'s performance ahdittit is of limited significance to the
business.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies covering areas of ggeaomplexity or those patrticularly subject to ehesrcise of judgment are listed below. There
are no material off-balance sheet structures. Timeipal accounting policies are set out in thefinial statements in Iltem 8.

Foreign currency translation

The results of subsidiaries with functional curiesmther than US dollars are translated into Udoat the weighted average rates of
exchange during the period and their balance slagetsanslated at the rates at the
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balance sheet date. The average exchange rateusated using the weekly exchange rates weighyetthd level of sales within the relevant
period. The income statement for fiscal 2010 usedwerage exchange rate of $1.59 to £1 poundrageahd there is no significant exposure to
movements in exchange rates of other currenciemeicent increase in this rate would increase tegaret income by $0.2 million. Exchange
differences arising from the translation of the astets of these subsidiary undertakings are iadlidother comprehensive income. Other
exchange differences arising from foreign curretnapsactions are included in operating income. rEsalts for fiscal 2009 include the impact
from more significant movements between the USada@lhd pound sterling than other years, which eteltrger exchange rate translation
differences.

Revenue recognition

Where a contractual obligation is borne by Sigr@tenue from the sale of extended service agreenedeferred and recognized, net of
incremental costs arising from the initial salepiportion to anticipated claims arising. Thisiperis based on the historical claims experience
of the business, which has been consistent simse throducts were launched. Management reviewgsatitern of claims at the end of each y

to determine any significant trends that may rejalranges to revenue recognition rates.

When promotional vouchers providing an incentivemter into a future purchase are issued, the asihfair value of these vouchers is tre
as deferred revenue. The fair value of these vasdbealculated based on prior years’ experience.

The deferred revenue that represents income umdEmnaed warranty agreements and voucher promodbtie end of fiscal 2010 was $261.0
million (fiscal 2009: $262.6 million).

Provision is made for future returns expected withie stated return period, based on previous ptxge return rates experienced.

Depreciation and impairment

Depreciation is provided on freehold and long leate premises over a useful life not exceeding &ry. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is provided on other fixed assetatds between 10% and 333 %. Storefit depreciation rates have been set basdke refit
cycle for each store fascia and the useful livesawh individual element of the storefit. Cashstgs and other IT equipment have separately
determined depreciation rates.

In the UK, there are circumstances where refurbaftmare carried out close to the end of the lesasg such that the expected life of the
newly installed leasehold improvements will exctegllease term. Where the renewal of the leassasonably assured, such storefronts,
fixtures and fittings are depreciated over a peeqdal to the lesser of their economic useful biethe remaining lease term plus the period of
reasonably assured renewal. Reasonable assuragaieas! through evaluation of the right to enté¢o im new lease, the performance of the
store and potential availability of alternativeesit

Where appropriate, impairments are made on ads#thave a fair value less than net book value.dgament has identified potentially
impaired assets considering the cash flows of idd& stores where trading since the initial opgrofthe store has reached a mature stage.
Where such stores deliver negative cash flowstdlaed store assets have been considered forrimgyat by reference to estimated future «
flows for these stores. In fiscal 2010, the incastetement includes a charge of $2.9 million for&mnment of assets (fiscal 2009: $7.6 million).

Taxation

Accruals for income tax contingencies require managnt to make judgments and estimates in reladidaxt audit issues and exposures.
Amounts reserved are based on management’s intatipreof country-specific tax
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law and the likelihood of settlement. Tax benedits not recognized unless the tax positions are filaly than not to be sustained. Once
recognized, management reviews each material tagfivéaking account of potential settlement thdouggotiation and/or litigation. Any
established reserves are included in payables.réeyrded exposure to interest and penalties olidaikities is included in the income tax
charge.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of attipris over the fair value of the net assets atidte of acquisition. Goodwill is not amorti.
but reviewed for impairment. Management completeétailed review of the carrying value of goodwilffiscal 2009 and determined that
goodwill was fully impaired. The fiscal 2009 incorsatement reflected a $516.9 million impairmengoddwill accordingly.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of an allow&mcencollectible balances. This allowance is based®ignet’'s past experience and the
payment history of individual customers, which eeflthe prevailing economic environment. The alloeeat January 30, 2010 was $73.2
million against a gross accounts receivable balan@&®31.2 million. This compares to a valuatiolmabnce of $69.9 million against a gross
accounts receivable balance of $895.1 million atiday 31, 2009. Management regularly reviews iividual receivable balances and when it
assesses that a balance has become irrecoverabielliy written off. Signet provides credit faities to customers upon completing appropt
credit tests.

Interest receivable from the US in-house custonmante program is classified as other operatingrive:

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued on an average cost basis arlddes appropriate overheads. Overheads allocatedentory cost are only those directly
related to bringing inventory to its present looatand condition. These include relevant warehaysiistribution and certain buying, security
and data processing costs.

Where necessary, provision is made for obsoletey-sioving and damaged inventory. This provision repnésthe difference between the «

of the inventory and its estimated market valusghbaupon inventory turn rates, market conditiordstaends in consumer demand. The size of
this provision also reflects the timing of the picgs scrappage of aged, damaged or defective medide& The assessment of the provision has
taken into account the challenging market condgtiand recent trading activity. The total inventprgvision at January 30, 2010 was $32.5
million (fiscal 2009: $12.6 million). Total net ientory at January 30, 2010 was $1,173.1 millioteerease of $191.3 million on January 31,
2009.

In the US, inventory losses are recognized at tioeymar and fiscal year end based on complete palsiventories. In the UK, inventory
losses are recorded as identified on a perpetuahtory system and an estimate is made of lossébd@eriod from the last inventory count
date to the end of the fiscal year on a store dgediasis. These estimates are based on the adieisibnal inventory loss experience since the
last inventory count.

Hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of financial instrumehest are designated and effective as hedges akfeash flows are recognized directly in
equity through the statement of comprehensive ircolny ineffective portion of the gain or loss écognized immediately in the income
statement.

UK retirement benefits

The expected liabilities of the Group Scheme ateutated based primarily on assumptions regardatgrg and pension increases, inflation
rates, discount rates, projected life expectanciytha long term rate of return
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expected on the Group Scheme’s assets. A full Eatuealuation was completed as at April 5, 2008 #me Group Scheme valuation is updated
at each year end. The discount rate assumptior6$ &pplied for fiscal 2010 is based on the yie¢ltha balance sheet date of long dated AA
rated corporate bonds of equivalent currency amd te the Group Scheme’s liabilities. A 0.1% ingean this discount rate would decrease
the pension charge of $7.5 million in fiscal 2030#9.2 million. The value of the assets of the Gr&echeme is measured as at the balance
sheet date, which is particularly dependent orvitiee of equity investments held at that date. @verall impact on the consolidated balance
sheet is significantly mitigated as the memberthefGroup Scheme are only in the UK and accouraliout 9% of UK employees. The Group
Scheme ceased to admit new employees from Aprid 2@0addition, if net accumulated actuarial gainsl losses exceed 10% of the greater of
plan assets or plan liabilities, Signet amortizexsé gains or losses that exceed this 10% ovevitiage remaining service period of the
employees. The funded status of the Group Schedenatry 30, 2010 was a $4.8 million deficit (fls2@09: $12.9 million deficit).

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Signet is exposed to market risk arising from cleanig foreign currency exchange rates, certain codiy prices and interest rates.

Signet monitors and manages these market expoasir@$undamental part of its overall risk managdrmergram, which recognizes the
volatility of financial markets and seeks to redtive potentially adverse effects of this volatility Signet’s operating results.

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

A committee of the Board is responsible for the lenpentation of market risk management policies iwithe treasury policies and guidelines
framework, which are deemed to be appropriate byBibard for the management of market risk.

Signet’s exposure to market risk is managed bysijaet’s treasury department. Where deemed negetssachieve the objective of reducing
market risk volatility on Signet’s operating resyltertain derivative instruments are enteredtigtspecialist treasury personnel. Signet uses
derivative financial instruments for risk manageirrposes only.

A description of Signet’s accounting policies faridative instruments is included in Note 1 of It8uSignet’s current portfolio of derivative
financial instruments consists of forward foreigmrency exchange contracts, foreign currency optamtracts, foreign currency swaps,
forward contracts for the purchase of gold andayptiontracts for the purchase of gold. An analgsisntifying the fair value change in
derivative financial instruments held by Signetrtanage its exposure to foreign exchange rates, odlityrprices and interest rates is detailed
on page 88.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

Signet redenominated its share capital and chaitg@ahctional currency to US dollars with effeodin February 5, 2007 and since this date
has published its consolidated annual financidéstants in US dollars. Some 87% of total assets Weld in US dollars at January 30, 2010
and approximately 78% of its sales and 85% ofpsrating income were generated in US dollars &wali 2010. Nearly all the remainder of
Signet’s assets, sales and operating income greunds sterling.

In translating the results of its UK operationgyr&it’s results are subject to fluctuations in tkeh@nge rate between the pound sterling and the
US dollar. Any depreciation in the weighted averagkie of the US dollar against the pound stertiogld increase reported revenues and
operating profit and any appreciation in the wedghtiverage value of the US dollar against the paterting could decrease reported revenues
and operating profit. The Board has chosen noetigh the translation effect of exchange rate mowsien Signet's operating results.

87



Table of Contents

The UK division buys on international markets cerfaroducts and materials that are priced in USadsl and therefore has an exposure to
exchange rates on the cost of goods sold. Sigesteertain derivative financial instruments to hetlds exposure, within treasury guidelines
approved by the Board.

Signet holds a fluctuating amount of pounds stgrtiash reflecting the cash generative charactesisfithe UK division. Signet’s objective is
to minimize net foreign exchange exposure to tisernme statement on sterling denominated items througnaging this level of cash, sterling
denominated intercompany balances and US dollstetting swaps. In order to manage the foreign amgk exposure and minimize the level
of pounds sterling cash held by the company, thdirsy denominated subsidiaries pay dividends @dto their immediate holding
companies.

Commodity price risk
Commaodity price risk is the possibility of higharlower costs due to changes in the prices of codities.

Signet’s results are subject to fluctuations inuhderlying cost price of diamonds and certain jptes metals which are key raw material
components of the products sold by Signet.

It is Signet’s policy to minimize the impact of pieus metal commodity price volatility on operatirggults through the use of outright forward
purchases of, or by entering into options to puseharecious metals within treasury guidelines @ygul by the Board. In particular, Signet
undertakes some hedging of its requirement for golough the use of options, forward contracts @dmodity purchasing, while fluctuatio

in the cost of diamonds are not hedged.

Interest rate risk

Signets interest income or charge is exposed to volatitiinterest rates. This exposure is driven byhlihe currency denomination of the d
(US dollars or pounds sterling), the mix of fixawdloating rate debt used and the total amouash and debt outstanding.

Sensitivity analysis

Management has used a sensitivity analysis techriltat measures the change in the fair value aofe®igfinancial instruments from
hypothetical changes in market rates as showreitiahle below.

Fair value changes arising from:

10%

Fair Value 10% depreciation of Fair value
January 30 1% rise in depreciation of precious meta January 31
2010 interest rates $ against £ prices 2009
$million $million $million $million $million
Foreign exchange contrac 0.2 — (3.2 — 12.1
Commodity contract 0.8 — — (11.0) 12.C
Floating rate borrowing (44.1) (0.9 — — (187.5)
Fixed rate borrowing (327.0) 15.3 — — (293.0
Floating rate bank depos 315.1 3.2 4.t — 95.¢€

The amounts generated from the sensitivity anatysantify the impact of market risk assuming trexta@in adverse market conditions,
specified in the table above, occur. They are ootvérd-looking estimates of market risk. Actualuiesin the future are likely to differ
materially from those projected due to changesénportfolio of financial instruments held and attdevelopments in the global financial
markets.

Any changes in the portfolio of financial instrunteheld and developments in the global financialkeis may cause fluctuations in interest
rates, exchange rates and precious metal priceeceed the hypothetical amounts
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disclosed in the table above. The sensitivity sdeaare intended to allow an expected risk measube applied to the scenarios, as opposed

to the scenarios themselves being an indicatdreofrtaximum expected risk.

The example shown for changes in the fair valudsofowings and associated derivative financiarimaents at January 30, 2010 is set out in
the table above. The fair values of borrowings deidvative financial instruments are estimated isgalunting the future cash flows to net
present values using appropriate market rates ftireyat the period end.

The estimated changes in fair values for intergtst movements are based on an increase of 1% @M fwints) in the specific rate of interest
applicable to each class of financial instrumerdgsfthe levels effective at January 30, 2010 witlotaer variables remaining constant.

The estimated changes in the fair value for foreigchange rates are based on a 10% depreciattbe pbund sterling against US dollar from
the levels applicable at January 30, 2010 witlothler variables remaining constant.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Signet Jewelers Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Signet Jewelers Limited and subsédias$ of January 30, 2010 and
January 31, 2009, and the related consolidatedrircgiatements, and consolidated statements ofreiidees’ equity, accumulated other
comprehensive income, and cash flows for eacheobthweek periods ended January 30, 2010, Janta®089, and February 2, 2008. We
have also audited Signet Jewelers Limited’s intlecoatrol over financial reporting as of January 3010, based on criteria established in
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtee Treadway Commission (COSO). Signet
Jewelers Limited’s management is responsible feselconsolidated financial statements, for maimgiaffective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofeffectiveness of internal control over financigioeting, included in the accompanying
Managemer's annual report on internal control over financigdporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion ogsthconsolidated
financial statements and an opinion on the Compsimgernal control over financial reporting basedoar audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiolrf@asonable assurance about whether the finasteigdments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal corgvelr financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements included exanginim a test basis, evidence supporting the amaunstslisclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal admver financial reporting included obtaining amderstanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a neteeakness exists, and testing and evaluatieglésign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaalso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviceaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Signet
Jewelers Limited and subsidiaries as of Januarg@00 and January 31, 2009, and the results op#sations and its cash flows for each of
52 week periods ended January 30, 2010, JanuaB089, and February 2, 2008, in conformity with L8nerally accepted accounting
principles. Also in our opinion, Signet Jewelermited maintained, in all material respects, effectnternal control over financial reporting as
of January 30, 2010, based on criteria establighédernal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

KPMG Audit Plc

London, United Kingdom
March 25, 2010
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Consolidated income statements

Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009

$million $million
Sales 3,290.° 3,344.:
Cost of sale: (2,213.9 (2,264.9
Gross margit 1,076.¢ 1,080.:
Selling, general and administrative exper (916.5) (969.2)
Impairment of goodwil — (516.9
Relisting costt — (10.5
Other operating income, n 115.¢ 119.2
Operating income/(loss), n 275.¢ (297.9)
Interest incom 0.8 3.6
Interest expens (34.9 (32.9
Income/(loss) before income tax 241.¢ (326.5
Income taxe: (r7.9) (67.9)
Net income/(loss 164.1 (393.9)
Earnings/(loss) per sha- basic $ 1.9 $ (4.62)
—diluted $ 191 $ (4.62)

All of the above relate to continuing activitiesrétutable to equity shareholders.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal
2008 Notes
$million
3,665.!
(2,414.9
1,250.7
(1,000.9)

N

12

108.¢ 3
358.7 2

6.3

(28.5)

336.
(116.9) 6
219.¢
$ 2.5¢
$ 2.5¢
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Consolidated balance sheets

January 30 January 31
2010 2009 Notes
$million $million

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel 316.2 96.¢ 9
Accounts receivable, n 858.( 825.2 1C
Other receivable 27.€ 81.t
Other current asse 58.4 45.C
Deferred tax asse 2.2 — 6
Inventories 1,173.: 1,364.: 11
Total current asse 2,435.¢ 2,413..
Non-current asset:
Property, plant and equipment, | 396.¢ 452.1 13
Other intangible assets, r 242 23.¢ 12
Other asset 12.€ 9.¢
Deferred tax asse 54.7 54.¢ 6
Total asset 2,924.; 2,953.¢
Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Loans and overdraf 44.1 187.t 17
Accounts payabl 66.2 42.2
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 272.1 274.¢ 14
Deferred revenu 120.1 120.1 15
Deferred tax liabilitie: 747 56.€ 6
Income taxes payab 44.1 55.¢
Total current liabilities 621.% 737.%
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt 280.( 380.( 17
Other liabilities 79.€ 71t 16
Deferred revenu 140.¢ 142.% 15
Retirement benefit obligatic 4.8 12.€ 19
Total liabilities 1,126.¢ 1,344..
Commitments and contingenci 21
Shareholder equity:
Common shares of $0.18 par value: authorized 50@®mshares, 85.5 million shares issued

outstanding (2009: 85.3 million issued and outsitagic 15.4 15.2 20
Additional paic-in capital 169.¢ 164.t
Other reserve 235.2 235.2 20
Treasury shares: 0.03 million shares of $0.18 pare/(2009: 0.1 million share (1.7 (10.7) 20
Retained earning 1,556.¢ 1,400.¢ 20
Accumulated other comprehensive i (178.2) (195.5)
Total shareholde’ equity 1,797.¢ 1,609.°
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 2,924.. 2,953.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statements of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income/(loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to rmethcprovided by operating activitie

Depreciation of property, plant and equipm
Amortization of other intangible asst
Impairment of goodwil
Pensior
Shar-based compensatic
Deferred taxatiol
Facility amendment fees included in net incc
Other nor-cash movement
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant andiipgent
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receiv
Decrease/(increase) in other receival
(Increase)/decrease in other current as
Decrease/(increase) in inventor
Increase/(decrease) in accounts pay
(Decrease)/increase in accrued expenses and wthidities
(Decrease)/increase in deferred reve
Decrease in income taxes paya
Effect of exchange rate changes on currency s
Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipn
Purchase of other intangible ass
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equip!
Net cash flows used in investing activit
Financing activities
Dividends paic
Proceeds from issue of common sh
Purchase of treasury sha
Facility amendment fees pa
(Repayment of)/proceeds from st-term borrowings
Repayment of lor-term debt
Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing atigs
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equive
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casaénts
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental cash flow informatis
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
164.1 (3937  219.¢
101.C 108.1 109.2
7.9 6.4 4.7
— 516.¢ —
(5.9 0.2 (2.0
5.6 0.7 (3.4)
15. 24.7 6.S
4.3 — —
0.8 (2.9) (3.0
— (0.7) 1.4
(32.4) 20 (56.2)
51.4 (18.2) (5.2)
(27.7) 1.4 0.7
226.F 127 (96.9)
22.C (38.00  (31.9)
(5.5) 6.1 7.7
(2.9) (9.8) 9.6
(9.8 (205  (19.0
(0.7  (49.) (1.
515.Z 164.¢ 140.¢
(35.6 (105.) (129.))
(7.9) 9.9  (11.9
0.1 1.€ 1.C
(435 (113.9 (139.9)
— (1239 (1239
1.C 0.1 6.C
— — (29.0)
(9.9 — —
(143.9)  160.¢ 31.1
(100.0 — —
(251.7) 36.C  (115.9)
96.¢ 41.7 152.c
220.2 88.C (114.)
(0.8) (32.9 3.8
316.2 96.¢ 41.7
35.€ 32.5 29.¢
72.C 63.C 128.t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Balance at February 3, 20
Comprehensive incom
- Net income
- Foreign currency translation adjustme
- Changes in fair value of derivative instrumer
net of tax
- Actuarial gains and losses on pension scheme,
net of tax
- Prior service costs on pension scheme, net
Total comprehensive incon
Translation of common shares prior to cancella
Cancellation of pound par common shé
Issuance of dollar par common she
Issuance of deferred shal
Dividends
Share options exercist
Shar-based compensation expel
Purchase of own shar
Balance at February 2, 20
Comprehensive los
- Net loss
- Foreign currency translation adjustme
- Changes in fair value of derivative instrumer
net of tax
- Actuarial gains and losses on pension scheme,
net of tax
- Prior service costs on pension scheme, net (

Total comprehensive lo:

Exchange of 1,705.5m par common shares in Signet
Group Plc for 1,705.5m par common shares in Si
Jewelers Limited®)

Dividends

Share options exercist

Shar-based compensation expel

Balance at January 31, 20

Comprehensive incom

- Net income

- Foreign currency translation adjustme

- Changes in fair value of derivative instrumer
net of tax

- Actuarial gains and losses on pension scheme,
net of tax

- Prior service costs on pension scheme, net

Total comprehensive incon

Reclassification of loss on share options exercised
prior periods

Share options exercist

Shar-based compensation expel

Balance at January 30, 2010

Consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity

Common Deferred Accumulated
Additional other Total
shares a shares a Other Treasury Retainec comprehensivt shareholder
paid-in- reserves
par value par value capital (Note 20 shares earnings (loss)/income equity
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
14.C — 138.f 235.1 (13.3) 1,855.¢ (1.9 2,227.¢
— — — — — 219.¢ — 219.¢
— — — — — — (0.2) 0.2)
— — — — — — 11.2 11.2
— — — — — — (9.4) (9.4)
— — — — — — 0.8 0.8
222.:
14 — @4 — — — — —
(15.9 — 154 — — — — —
15.4 — (15.9 — — — — —
— 0.1 — — — — — 0.1
— — — — — (123.9) — (123.9)
— 6.9 — 2.t (4.0) — 5.4
— — 18.5 — — — — 18.5
(0.1 — — 0.1 — (29.0 — (29.0)
5.2 0.1 162.5 235.2 (10.€) 1,918. 0.£ 2,321.;
_ _ _ — — (393.)) — (393.)
— — — — — — (190.9) (190.9)
— — — — — — 1.8 1.8
— — — — — — (28.€) (28.€)
— — — — — — 214 214
(589.7)
— (0.3 — — — — — (0.3
— — — — (123.9) — (123.9)
— — — — 0.1 — — 0.1
— — 2.0 — — — — 2.C
15.2 — 164.F 235.2 (10.9) 1,400.¢ (195.5) 1,609.7
— — — — — 164.1 — 164.1
— — — — — — 214 214
— — — — — — (7. (7.0)
— — — — — — 3.€ 3.€
— — — — — — 0.7 0.7
181.¢
— — — — 7.7 (7.7) — —
— — — — 1.¢ (0.9 — 1.C
0.1 — 5.4 — — — — BE
154 — 169.¢ 235.2 (1.3 1,556.« (178.9) 1,797

(1) As part of the scheme of arrangement and imection with the change in primarily listing, tHeaseholders of the Predecessor Company exchang@#,341,827 shares of par value
$0.009 each in Signet Group Plc for 1,705,541,8%%mon shares of par value $0.009 each in Signetldes_imited. Signet Jewelers Limited does notehany deferred share

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statements of accumulated other comphensive income

Balance at February 3, 20

Other comprehensive inconr

Foreign currency translatic

Changes in fair value of derivative instrume
Actuarial loss

Prior service cos

Deferred tax on items recognized in eqt

Balance at February 2, 20

Other comprehensive los

Foreign currency translatic

Changes in fair value of derivative instrume
Actuarial loss

Prior service cos

Deferred tax on items recognized in eqt

Balance at January 31, 20

Other comprehensive inconr

Foreign currency translatic

Changes in fair value of derivative instrume
Actuarial gain

Prior service cos

Deferred tax on items recognized in eqt

Balance at January 30, 201!

Pension plans

Actuarial
Foreign Changes in
currency derivative (losses)/
translation instruments gains
$million $million $million
26.1 5.1 (26.6)
(0.2) — —
— 12.C —
— — (13.5)
- (0.9) 4.1
25.¢ 16.2 (36.0)
(190.9) = =
— 5.¢ —
— — (40.2)
— (4.2) 11.4
(164.5) 18.1 (64.€)
21.2 — _
— (8.€) —
— — 5.C
- 1€ (1.4)
(143.7) 11.1 (61.2)

Prior
service

(cost)/credi

$million

(6.5)

(1.0)
0.3

15.C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
other
comprehensivt

(loss)/income
$million

1.9

0.2)
12.C

(13.9)
1.2
2.9
2.4
0.5

(190.9)
5.

(40.2)

29.¢

(1.9

(196.0)
(195.5)

21.2
(8.6)

5.
(1.0

0.5

17.

(178.9)
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Principal accounting policies

Signet Jewelers Limited (the “Companyid its subsidiary undertakings is a leading retaf jewelry, watches and associated servicesef
manages its business as two geographical segnbeing, the United States of America (the “US”) ahd United Kingdom (the “UK”)The U<
division operates retail stores under brands inoy&ay Jewelers, Jared The Galleria Of Jewelry\aaribus regional brands while the UK
division’s retail stores operate under brands idiclg H.Samuel and Ernest Jones.

On September 11, 2008 the Company, which is doetiéit Bermuda, was introduced as the parent comipaagcordance with a Scheme of
Arrangement under the UK Companies Act 2006 (treh&ne”). On this date shareholders in Signet Gplagxchanged their outstanding
shares for Common Shares in the Company. Signatpg3ste, the previous parent company, that was sjlesely been renamed as Signet
Group Limited, became a wholly and directly ownabisdiary of the Company.

For the periods prior to September 11, 2008 thieseial statements represent the financial pasitiesults of operations and cash flows of
Signet Group plc and its subsidiaries and subseédaehis date represent the financial positiosutes of operations and cash flows of Signet
Jewelers Limited and its subsidiaries.

In relation to the financial statements of Sigtiet, following accounting policies have, unless othige stated, been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered materiallimeporting periods presented herein.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Signepaepared in accordance with US GAAP and inclugeréisults of the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings made up for the 52 weelogemded January 30, 2010 (“fiscal 2010"). The pamtive periods are for the 52 week
period ended January 31, 2009 (“fiscal 2009”) dred32 week period ended February 2, 2008 (“fisb6@82). Intercompany balances have b
eliminated on consolidation.

(b) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statementconformity with US GAAP and Security and Eaolge Commission (“SEC”)
regulations, requires management to make estiraattassumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efctnsolidated financial statements and reportealiais of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates. Estimates and assumptions arandyirmade in relation to the valuation of
receivables, the valuation of inventory, depreoiatind asset impairment, the valuation of empldpgresfits, income taxes and contingencies.

(c) Foreign currency translation

The results of subsidiary undertakings whose fomneti currency is not US dollars are translated ihodollars at the weighted average rate of
exchange during the period and their balance skeetsanslated at the rates ruling at the balaheet date. Exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net assets of overseasdiabgiundertakings into US dollars and matchedi¢preurrency borrowings are included in
accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated inifpreurrencies at the balance sheet date are a&tadshto the relevant functional currency at
the foreign exchange rate in effect at that datth gains and losses recorded in other operatiognre. Transaction gains and losses are also
recognized in arriving at operating income.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when:
» there is persuasive evidence of an agreementamgegment
» delivery of products has occurred or services lmaan renderec
» the selle’s price to the buyer is fixed and determinable;
» collectability is reasonably assurt

Signet’s revenue streams and their respective atiogutreatments are discussed below:

Merchandise sales

Store sales are recognized when the customer escaivd pays for the merchandise at the store \titbrecash or credit card. For online sales,
sales are recognized at the estimated time themesthas received the merchandise. Amounts retatskipping and handling that are billec
customers are reflected in sales and the relatetd eoe reflected in cost of sales.

Revenue on the sale of merchandise is reportedfretticipated returns and sales tax collectedufRstare based on previous return rates
experienced.

Any deposits received from a customer for merchemdre deferred and recognized when the custormeives the merchandise.

Certain of Signet’s merchandise sales are derik@d providing replacement merchandise on behalisirance organizations to their
customers who have experienced a loss of theirgotppn these cases, the sales price is estatlisheontract with the insurance organization
and revenue on the sale is recognized upon regkipe merchandise by the customer.

Merchandise repairs
Revenue on repair of merchandise is recognized wheeservice is complete and the customer coltbetsnerchandise at the store.

Extended service and lifetime warranty agreements

At the option of the customer and separately froengurchase of merchandise, Signet sells exteratgts and lifetime warranty agreements
on certain merchandise. The terms of the lifetina@ranty agreements obligate Signet, subject taiceconditions, to perform repair work
beyond normal wear and tear over the lifetime effhoduct. Revenue from the sale of extended seand lifetime warranty agreements is
recognized in proportion to the costs expectecetonburred in performing services under the agregsa&evenue recognized in a period is
based on the historical claims experience of trgnmss. Management reviews the pattern of clairtizeatnd of each period to determine any
significant trends that may require changes tomeeeecognition rates.

Where Signet sells extended service and lifetimeaméy agreements in the capacity as an agent loafbef a third party, commission revenue
is recognized at time of sale less an estimatawncellations based on historical experience.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Sale vouchers

When vouchers issued on a purchase give a disegamst a future purchase, the estimated fair vafitleose vouchers to the customer is
treated as deferred revenue. This revenue is #ewagnized as vouchers are redeemed over the peribdroucher expiry.

Sale of consignment inventory

Sales of consignment inventory are accounted fa gross sales basis. This reflects that the Coynigathe primary obligor providing
independent advice, guidance and after sales setwicustomers. The products sold from consigniameentory are indistinguishable to the
customer from other products that are sold frontipased inventory. They are sold on the same tenchsuge not separately identified as
consignment items in the stores. The Company setketproducts and suppliers at its own discredimhis responsible for the physical sect
of the products making it liable for any inventdogs. It also takes the credit risk of a sale todhstomer.

(e) Cost of sales and selling, general and admirasite expenses

Cost of sales includes all costs incurred in thelpase, processing and distribution of the merciserahd all costs directly incurred in the
operation and support of retail outlets. This ides inbound freight charges, purchasing and retgisdsts, inspection and internal transfer
costs. Cost of sales also includes the net pravigiouncollectible receivables for the US divisi@elling, general and administrative expenses
include all costs not directly incurred in the phase, processing and distribution of merchandiseipport of the retail outlets. This includes
selling, administration, finance and managementpsggps.

(f) Store opening costs
The opening costs of new locations are expenséttaged.

(g) Advertising and promotional costs

Advertising and promotional costs are expensedimvgklling, general and administrative expensesdistion costs are expensed at the first
communication of the advertisements, whilst commatidn expenses are incurred each time the adeentist is communicated. For
catalogues and circulars, costs are all expensin dirst date they can be viewed by the consuPeint of sale promotional material is
expensed when first displayed in the stores. Adsiag costs totalled $169.3 million in fiscal 20@&cal 2009: $210.6 million; fiscal 2008:
$233.2 million).

(h) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, which comprise computiwage purchased or developed for internal usestated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Costs are capitalized in accordanitle thie provisions of Accounting Standards Codiiima (“ASC”) 350-40. Signet’s policy
provides for the capitalization of external direosts of materials and services associated witeldping or obtaining internal use computer
software. In addition, Signet also capitalizesaiarpayroll and payroll-related costs for employe#® are directly associated with internal use
computer projects. Amortization is charged on aight-line basis over periods from three to fivange

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation and impairment lod4astenance and repair costs are expe
as incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Depreciation on freehold and leasehold retail psesnis calculated over the lesser of 50 yearseoletise term. Long leaseholds relate to leases
that have an original and unexpired lease ternreditgr than 25 years. Freehold land is not depesgtia

Depreciation on other fixed assets is provided straight-line basis over the estimated usefukligethe following annual rates:

Plant, machinery and vehicles — rates up td 38%/
Shopfronts, fixtures and fittings — rates up to133 %.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over theeshaf the term of the lease or the estimateduldiéé of the improvements. Where the
renewal of a lease is reasonably assured, the dapoa period for shopfronts, fixtures and fittsxmay exceed the remaining initial lease term,
if constructed significantly after, and not contéated at, the beginning of the lease term.

At the time property, plant and equipment is retioe otherwise disposed of, the cost and accundilZgpreciation are eliminated from the
asset and accumulated depreciation accounts.

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impaint whenever events or changes in circumstandésaie that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. Potentially impais=sets or asset groups are identified by reviethiegash flows of individual stores.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isured by a comparison of the carrying amount cisset to estimated undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by the a$sle¢ lindiscounted cash flow is less than the &ssetrying amount, the impairment charge
recognized is determined by estimating the faingaif the assets and recording a loss for the atibanthe carrying value exceeds the
estimated fair value. Property, plant and equipnag¢istores planned for closure are depreciatedavevised estimate of their useful lives.

() Inventories

Inventories represent raw materials and goodsfoeldsale and are valued at the lower of cost anket value. Cost is determined using
average cost and includes overheads directly cetatbringing inventory to its present location awehdition. These include relevant
warehousing, distribution and certain buying, sigw@nd data processing costs. Market value iéefias estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs to be iadun marketing, selling and distribution. Invemtevrite-downs are made for obsolete, slow
moving or defective items and shrinkage. The wdiben is equal to the difference between the costwvantory and its estimated market value
based upon assumptions of targeted inventory atesy future demand, management strategy and n@kditions. Shrinkage is estimated for
the period from the last inventory date to the ehthe fiscal year on a store by store basis. ®stimates are based on experience. Physical
inventories are taken at least once annually istate locations and for distribution centers.

(k) Vendor contributions

Contributions are received from vendors througliosr programs and arrangements including cooperativertising. Where vendor
contributions are received in respect of identiigtiromotional events, these are matched agaiestdsts of these promotions. Vendor
contributions which are received as general coutidins and not against specific promotional evangésrecognized when the inventory is sold.

() In-house customer finance programs

Signet operates an imsuse program in the US business to allow custotodirance merchandise purchases. The progranes\arious billing
and payment structures, including varying minimuagmpent levels and
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

finance charge rates and fees. Signet recognizasde charges in accordance with the contractuakagents. Gross interest earned is recc
as other operating income in the income statenssd.Note 3. Allowances for uncollectible amounésracorded as a charge to cost of sales in
the income statement.

(m) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable, stated at their nominal amguntiude amounts outstanding from Signet’s indeocustomer finance programs and third
party credit cards. Accounts receivable under tigtamner finance programs are shown net of an alloe/#or uncollectible amounts. The
allowance is an estimate of inherent losses assobalance sheet date, and is calculated usinglelrtiat analyzes factors such as delinquency
rates, recovery rates and other portfolio data. detleulation is reviewed by management to assessh@h based on economic events,
additional analyses are required to appropriatsfiyrate losses inherent in the portfolio.

(n) Leases

Assets held under capital leases relate to leabesvgubstantially all the risks and rewards ofabset have passed to Signet. All other leases
are defined as operating leases. Where operatisgdeinclude clauses in respect of predeterminmgdnereases, those rents are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis ovetethge term, including any construction period dieotrental holiday. Other rentals paid under
operating leases are charged to the income statexsémcurred. Premiums paid to acquire short lealgeproperties and inducements to enter
into a lease are recognized on a straight lineskiagr the lease term.

Certain leases provide for contingent rentals éinatnot measurable at inception. These contingewals are primarily based on a percentag
sales that is in excess of a predetermined levels@ amounts are excluded from minimum rent anéhaheded in the determination of rent
expense when it is probable that the expense tasibeurred and the amount is reasonably estimable.

(o) Taxation

Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtadnility method. Under this method, deferred inataxes arise from temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilitiestlagid reported amounts in the consolidated finanstatements. A valuation allowance is
established against deferred tax assets whemibie likely than not that some portion or all o heferred tax assets will not be realized.

On February 4, 2007 Signet adopted ASC 740-10 “Antiag for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. The stamdastablished a two-step approach
for recognizing and measuring tax benefits, withkdanefits arising from uncertain income tax posisi only being recognized when conside

to be more likely than not sustained upon exanmmaby the taxing authority. A recognized tax pasitis then measured at the largest amount
of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of beneglized upon settlement. ASC 740-10 also proviigdance on derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, disclosure and transigsnds. Signet recognizes interest and penalt@®deio unrecognized tax benefits in income tax
expense.

At any point in time, many tax years are subjecbtaare in the process of, audit by various taxdothorities. To the extent that management’s
estimates of settlements change, or the final tagame of these matters is different than the ansorgtorded, such differences will impact
income tax provision in the period in which sucledminations are made.

(p) Employee benefits

Signet operates a defined benefit pension scherteibK (the “Group Scheme”) which ceased to admit employees from April 2004. The
Group Scheme, covering one of the executive dire@nd participating eligible employees, providesdfits based on members’ salaries at
retirement. The Group Scheme’s assets are heldeb@toup Scheme trustees and are completely segerat those of Signet.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

The net periodic cost of the Group Scheme is medsoim an actuarial basis using the projected weditmethod and several actuarial
assumptions, the most significant of which arediseount rate and the expected long-term ratetafmeon plan assets. Other material
assumptions include rates of participant mortath, expected long-term rate of compensation andipe increases and rates of employee
termination. Gains and losses occur when actuarépce differs from actuarial assumptions. If sgams or losses exceed ten percent of the
greater of plan assets or plan liabilities, Sigarabrtizes those gains or losses over the averagaimang service period of the employees.

The net periodic pension cost is charged to selljiegeral and administrative expenses in the incatatement.

The funded status of the Group Scheme is recogmizetie balance sheet, and is the difference bettvexfair value of plan assets and the
benefit obligation measured at the balance sheet Aay gains or losses and prior service costgedits that arise during the period but are
not included as components of net periodic beweft are recognized, net of tax, in the period witther comprehensive (loss)/income.

Signet also operates a defined contribution pensitbeme in the UK and sponsors a defined contdbutD1(k) retirement savings plan in the
US. Contributions made by Signet to these pensi@ngements are charged to the income statemémtased.

(q) Derivative financial instruments and hedge aagtting
Signet uses derivative financial instruments féreothan trading purposes to alter the risk prafflan existing underlying exposure. Forward
foreign currency exchange contracts are used t@geaurrency and commodity exposures arising fuaoré purchases.

Derivative financial instruments are measured iatvi@ue and are recognized as assets or lialsildiethe balance sheet with changes in the fail
value of the derivatives being recognized immedjdtethe income statement or accumulated otherpretrensive (loss)/income, depending
the timing and designated purpose of the derivative

Changes in the fair value of derivative financigtruments that are designated and effective agelsenf future cash flows are recognized
directly in equity as a component of accumulatdgtotomprehensive (loss)/income. Changes in thevddile of derivatives that do not qualify
for hedge accounting, together with any hedge @utiffeness, is recognized immediately in other airey income, net. For the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, amounts previouslpgeized in equity are recognized in the incomeesgtaint in the same period in which the
hedged item affects net income or loss.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise money markesig@nd amounts placed with external fund marsagéh an original maturity of three
months or less, and are carried at cost which xjppedes to fair value.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowings comprise interest bearing bank loansape placement loan notes, and bank overdrafts-oBang costs are capitalized and
amortized into interest expense over the contratdua of the related loan.

(t) Share-based compensation

Signet measures share-based compensation costdodsiclassified as equity at the grant date, bardtie estimated fair value of the award,
and recognizes the cost as an expense on a stlaigtasis (net of estimated
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

forfeitures) over the requisite service period wipdoyees. Certain of Signet's share plans includeralition whereby vesting is contingent on
growth exceeding the scheme target adjusted by ments in the relevant UK or US Retail Price InddXR1”). The RPI condition is neither a
market nor a performance condition, and consequenty awards granted with this condition are cfaegbias liability awards.

Signet measures share-based compensation costdodsiclassified as liabilities at fair value, whis remeasured at the end of each repotr
period until the performance criteria have beersBatl and the amounts are reclassified to eq@hanges in the fair value that occur while the
award is liability classified are recognized aompensation cost over the requisite service period.

Signet estimates fair value using a Black-Schoddsation model for the Long Term Incentive PlanTIB”) options; all other share-based
awards are valued using a binomial valuation mddeferred tax assets for awards that result in cidahis on the income tax returns of
subsidiary undertakings are recorded by Signethasghe amount of compensation cost recognizedrandubsidiary undertaking’s statutory
tax rate in the jurisdiction in which it will recas a deduction. Differences between the deferreddaets recognized for financial reporting
purposes and the actual tax deduction reportetiesubsidiary undertaking’s income tax return asorded in additional paid-icapital (if the
tax deduction exceeds the deferred tax asset)tbeimcome statement (if the deferred tax asssterls the tax deduction and no additional
paid-in-capital exists from previous awards).

Share-based compensation is recorded in sellimgrgeand administrative expenses in the inconterstnt, along with the relevant salary
cost.

See Note 22 for a further description of Signelt'are option plans.

(u) Contingent liabilities
Provisions for contingent liabilities are recordedprobable losses when management is able tmatgtithe loss.

(v) Common shares
When new shares are issued, they are recordednmm@a Shares at their par value. The excess ofguiprice over the par value is recorded
in additional paid-in-capital.

The cost of own shares purchased to satisfy theciseeof employee share options is deducted fraed &muity and the proceeds of their
onward transfer are credited to total equity.

(w) Dividends
Dividends are provided for in the period in whitley are formally approved.

(x) Recently issued accounting pronouncements
Adopted during the period
Accounting standards codification

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 805-10 (form8RAS No. 168), “The FASB Accounting Standards Godtfon and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”. ASC 8B provides for the FASB Accounting Standards Godifon (the “Codification”) to
become the single official source of authoritatil® GAAP. The Codification does not change US GAAPreorganizes the literature. ASC
805-10 is effective for interim and annual periedsling after September 15, 2009 and only affestdakures by Signet.
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Disclosures about derivative instruments and heglgictivities

In March 2008, the FASB issued ASC 815-10 (form&MBAS No. 161), “Disclosures about Derivative lastents and Hedging Activities”.

The Statement requires companies with derivatisgruments to disclose information that should em&ibancial statement users to understand
how and why a company uses derivative instruméois, derivative instruments and related hedged iterasaccounted for and how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect a copipéinancial position, financial performance asakh flows. The required disclosures
include the fair value of derivative instrumentsldheir gains or losses in tabular format, inforimagbout credit risk related contingent
features in derivative agreements, counterpartgicrisk and a company’s strategies and objectigesising derivative instruments. ASC 815-
10 expands the current disclosure framework aefféstive prospectively for periods beginning orafter November 15, 2008. Adoption of
ASC 815-10 increased disclosure requirements bed dot affect Signet'’s financial position, opergtirsults or cash flows.

Postretirement benefit plan assets

In December 2008, the FASB issued ASC 715-20 (fognteSP FAS 132(R)-1) “Employers’ Disclosures abBostretirement Benefit Plan
Assets”. ASC 715-20 provides guidance on an empleyksclosures about plan assets of a definedftigremsion or postretirement plan
including more information about how investmenbeadltion decisions are made, more information abmjor categories of plan assets and the
fair-value techniques and inputs used to measwetasASC 715-20 is effective for annual perioddireg after December 15, 2009. Adoption
of ASC 715-20 increased disclosure requirementsibes not affect Signet'’s financial position, opi@gresults or cash flows.

Subsequent events

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC 855-10 (formefBAS No. 165) regarding the period after the balasimset date during which
management of a reporting entity shall evaluatesver transactions that may occur for potentiebgaition or disclosure in the financial
statements. Additionally, ASC 855-10 sets out redti@n and disclosure requirements for eventsamgactions that occur after the balance
sheet date, including a requirement to disclosel#tie through which subsequent events have beduma¢ed ASC 855-10 is effective
prospectively for periods ending after June 15R2@@loption of ASC 855-10 has increased disclosegeiirements but has not affected
Signet’s financial position, operating results asle flows.

To be adopted in future periods
Fair value measurements and disclosures

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-05, wlainfends ASC 820-10 “Fair Value Measurements andd@isces”. ASU 2009-05
provides guidance on the valuation techniques tsetkasure fair value in situations where a quptézk in an active market for the identical
liability is not available. ASU 20095 is effective for the first reporting period beging after issuance and the adoption of these dments i:
not expected to have a material effect on Signet.

Revenue recognition—multi-deliverable arrangements

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-13, whictends ASC 605-25 “Revenue Recognition—Multi-Derlable Arrangements”. ASU
2009-13 requires arrangement consideration tolbeatkd to all deliverables at inception usinglatiee selling price method and establishes a
selling price hierarchy for determining the sellpprice of a deliverable. The update also expanegigclosure requirements to include
additional detail
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regarding the deliverables, method of calculatibsalling price and the timing of revenue recogmitiASU 2009-13 is effective prospectively
for revenue arrangements entered into or matemadigified in fiscal years beginning on or after durb, 2010. The adoption of these

amendments is not expected to have a materialteffeSignet.

2. Segmental information

Signet’s sales are derived from the retailing afgky, watches, other products and services. Signaanaged as two geographical operating
segments, being the US and UK divisions. These eatgmepresent channels of distribution that cffierilar merchandise and service and
similar marketing and distribution strategies. Bdivisions are managed by executive committeesghvigport through a divisional Chief
Executive to Signet's Chief Executive who in tueports to the Board. Each divisional executive cdttem is responsible for operating
decisions within parameters set by the Board. ®réopnance of each division is regularly evaludiaded on sales and operating income. The
operating segments do not include certain centrstisowhich is consistent with the treatment in 8ignmanagement accounts. There are no

material transactions between operating segments.

Sales:
us
UK

Total sales

Operating income/(loss), n®:

us
UK
Unallocatec®

Total operating income/(los
Depreciation and amortizatio

us
UK

Total depreciation and amortizati

Capital additions
us

UK
Unallocatec®

Total capital addition

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
2,657.! 2,536.: 2,705.°

733.2 808.2 959.¢

3,290.° 3,344.; 3,665.!
235.6  (236.9)  265.
56. (37.9)  109.:
(16.5) (235  (15.9)
275.6  (297.9  358.7
78.2 84.C 72.1
30.5 30.5 41.¢
108.¢ 114.F 113.¢
31.1 76.7 111.1
12.5 38.1 28.€
— 0.1 0.7
43.€ 114.¢ 140.¢

(1) Infiscal 2009, operating loss, net included &3 million (US: $408.0 million; UK: $108.9 millig of goodwill impairment, and an

additional $10.5 million of costs were includedumallocated in respect of moving the primary ligtto the NYSE
(2) Unallocated principally relates to central co
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January 30. January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Total assets
us 2,280.7 2,287.(
UK 383.¢ 343.1
Unallocatec 259.¢ 323.¢
Total asset 2,924.; 2,953.¢
Total lon¢-lived assets
us 327.C 374.¢
UK 93.€ 100.t
Unallocatec 0.5 0.€
Total lon¢-lived asset: 421.] 476.(
Total liabilities:
us (697.0 (894.9)
UK (148.0 (112.%)
Unallocatec (281.6) (336.7)
Total liabilities (1,126.6) (1,344.9)
Sales by product
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Diamonds and diamond jewel 1,978t 1,898.¢ 2,068.!
Watches 385.¢ 391.¢ 444.¢
Gold, silver jewelry, other products and servi 926.€ 1,053.¢ 1,152.(
Total sales 3,290.° 3,344.: 3,665.:
Sales to any individual customer were not signiftda Signet's consolidated sales.
3. Other operating income, net
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Interest income from -house customer finance progra 115.( 114.¢ 108.¢
Other 0.4 4.8 0.4
Other operating income, n 115.¢ 119.2 108.¢
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4. Staff costs
Staff costs were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Wages and salari¢ 614.¢ 620.< 635.7
Social security cost 53.t 52.¢ 54.t
Pension cost 8.8 12.2 11.¢
Shar-based compensation expense/(inco 4.9 0.7 (3.9
Total staff cost: 681.¢ 686.2 698.2
5. Foreign currency translation
The exchange rates used for translation of UK pdtartbactions and balances in these accounts éo#aags:
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
Income statement (average re 1.5¢ 1.7¢ 2.0C
Balance sheet (period end ra 1.6C 1.4t 1.97
6. Taxation
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Income/(loss) before income taxi
-Us 154.2 (309.9) 203.5
— Foreign 87.€ (16.7) 132.5
Total income/(loss) before income ta 241.¢ (326.5) 336.2
Current taxation
-Us 42.F 10.€ 67.t
— Foreign 19.7 31.¢ 42.C
Deferred taxation
-Us 18.1 26.5 9.t
- Foreign (2.6) (1.8) (2.€)
Total income taxe 77.7 67.2 116.¢
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Sources of deferred taxation are as follo
US property, plant and equipme 1.¢ 14.: (2.6)
Foreign property, plant and equipm 1.3 (2.0 (2.5)
Inventory valuatior 16.£ 7.1 21.c
Allowances for doubtful debi (0.6) (2.6) (3.2
Revenue deferral (extended service agreem 2.3 (1.9 (5.5
Straight line lease paymer (2.7 (2.9) (2.2)
Deferred compensatic (0.6) 12.2 1.7
Retirement benefit obligatior — — (1.2
Other temporary differenct (0.9) (1.7) 4.5
5.z 24.0 6.8
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As the statutory rate of corporation tax in Bermigl@%, the differences between the federal inctareate in the US and the effective tax
rates for Signet have been presented below:

Fiscal Fiscal
Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
% % %
US federal income tax rat 35.C (35.0 35.C
US state income taxt 2.1 0.9 1.7
Differences between US federal and foreign stajutozome tax rate (2.5) (2.2) (2.2
Goodwill impairment not tax deductib — 55.4 —
Expenditure permanently disallowable for tax pugspset of permanent underchar 2.4 2.C 1.C
Benefit of intre-group financing arrangemer (1.8) — —
QOver provision in respect of previous peric (3.1 (0.6) (1.0
Effective tax rate 32.1 20.€ 34.¢

Signet’s effective tax rate is lower than the U8efi@l income tax rate because a proportion of Sigteisiness is conducted outside the US
is subject to tax at lower rates. The reductioBignet’s effective tax rate due to lower ratesavéifgn tax is offset by the impact of US state tax
rates on US taxable income.

Signet’s future effective tax rate is dependentioanges in the geographic mix of incomes and theement in foreign exchange translation
rates. It is likely that there will be greater willty in Signet’s effective tax rate going forwaadving to changes in the tax environment in both
the US and foreign jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) consisted offdiwing:

January 30, 2010 January 31, 2009
Assets (Liabilities) Total Assets (Liabilities) Total
$million $million $million $million $million $million

US property, plant and equipme — (32.0) (32.0) — (30.1) (30.1)
Foreign property, plant and equipm 4.1 — 41 2.t — 2.8
Inventory valuatior — (200.9 (100.9 — (84.5) (84.5)
Allowances for doubtful debt 25.c — 25.5 247 — 24
Revenue deferral (extended service agreem 45.¢ — 45.¢ 48.1 — 48.1
Straight line lease paymer 21.¢ — 21.4 19.7 — 19.7
Deferred compensatic 2.7 — 2.7 1.C — 1.C
Retirement benefit obligatior 1.4 — 1.4 3.€ — 3.€
Other temporary differenct 14.¢ — 14.¢ 13.1 — 13.1
Value of foreign capital losse 23.¢ — 23.C 20.2 — 20.2
Total deferred tax asset/(liabilit 139.¢ (132.9) 6.5 132.¢ (114.¢) 18.c
Valuation allowanct (24.%) — (24.%) (20.4) — (20.9)
Deferred tax asset/(liability 115.1 (132.9) (17.€) 112.f (114.6) (2.7)
Current assel 2.2 —

Current liabilities (74.7) (56.9)
Non-current assel 54.7 54.¢
Deferred tax liability (17.9) (2.7)

As of January 30, 2010 Signet had foreign gros#aldpss carry forwards of $85.4 million (fiscad@9: $72.1 million) which are only availal
to offset future capital gains, if any, over anefidite period.
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The increase in the total valuation allowance $edl 2010 was $3.9 million (fiscal 2009: $7.6 mitlinet decrease; fiscal 2008: $1.6 million net
decrease). The valuation allowance primarily relateforeign capital loss carry forwards that,Ha judgment of management, are not more
likely than not to be realized.

The difference on foreign currency translationgspect of deferred tax posted directly to otherp@ensive income in fiscal 2010 was $1.0
million credit (fiscal 2009: $3.0 million charges€al 2008: $0.1 million charge). Signet believest it is more likely than not that deferred tax
assets as of January 30, 2010 will be offset whermissible by deferred tax liabilities or realizedfuture tax returns, primarily from the
generation of future taxable income.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedinrecognized tax benefits:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Balance at beginning of peri 18.¢ 19.2 18.2
Increases related to current year tax posit 1.C 2.1 3.4
Prior year tax position
Increase: — — 2.3
Decrease (1.5 (0.6) (2.9)
Cash settlemen (4.0 — (1.9
Difference on foreign currency translati 0.€ (1.9 —
Balance at end of peric 14.€ 18.¢ 19.2

Signet has business activity in all states withim /S and files income tax returns for the US falj@risdiction and all applicable states. Sic
also files income tax returns in the UK and certaimer foreign jurisdictions. Signet is subjectd federal and state examinations by tax
authorities for tax years after October 29, 200% iarsubject to examination by the UK tax authofitlytax years after January 31, 2005.

As of January 30, 2010 Signet had approximately®llion (fiscal 2009: $18.8 million; fiscal 200819.2 million) of unrecognized tax
benefits in respect of uncertain tax positionspaivhich would favorably affect the effective imne tax rate if resolved in its favor. These
unrecognized tax benefits relate to financing ayesments and intraempany charges which are subject to differentarzhging interpretatiol
of tax law.

During fiscal 2010, agreement was reached witHrternal Revenue Service in the US in respect etitbatment of certain financing
arrangements and a cash settlement was paid ahapately $4.0 million, excluding interest theredypart from this settlement, there has
been no material change in the amount of unrecedrtax benefits in respect of uncertain tax pos#tiduring fiscal 2010.

Signet recognizes accrued interest and, where ppate, penalties related to unrecognized tax hisnefthin income tax expense. In fiscal
2010 the total amount of interest and penaltiesgrized in income tax expense in the consolidatedme statement was $0.3 million, net
credit (fiscal 2009: $nil, net; fiscal 2008: $1.1llimn, net charge). As of January 30, 2010 Sidmed accrued interest of $2.2 million (fiscal
2009: $3.8 million; fiscal 2008: $3.8 million).

Over the next twelve months management believésttisareasonably possible that there could bedaction of substantially all of the
unrecognized tax benefits as of January 30, 201® ta settlement of the uncertain tax positionf e tax authorities.
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7. Earnings/(loss) per share

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008
Net income/(loss) ($ million 164.1 (393.9) 219.¢
Basic weighted average number of shares in issilkkofm 85.2 85.2 85.2
Dilutive effect of share options (millior 0.4 — 0.¢
Diluted weighted average number of shares in i¢suilion) 85.7 85.2 86.1
Earnings/(loss) per she—basic $ 1.92 $ (4.62) $ 2.5¢
Earnings/(loss) per she—diluted $ 1.91 $ (4.62) $ 2.5t

Basic and diluted earnings per share in fiscal 208 been recalculated following the 1-for-20 st@msolidation discussed in Note 20. The
basic weighted average number of shares excludeesheld by the Employee Share Ownership TruSQF’) as such shares are not
considered outstanding and do not qualify for dévids. The effect of excluding the ESOT shares isdace the average number of shares in
fiscal 2010 by 64,085 (fiscal 2009: 81,951, fis2@08 (recalculated): 107,337). The calculationutif/fdiluted EPS for the fiscal 2010 excluc
options to purchase 2,333,995 shares (fiscal 28@%6,839 share options; fiscal 2008 (recalculate®89,675 share options) on the basis that

their effect on EPS was anti-dilutive.

8. Dividends
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008
$million $million $million
Final dividend paid of $nil per share (fiscal 2068B17c; fiscal 2008: 6.317 — 107.¢ 107.€
Interim dividend paid of $nil per share (fiscal 200.96c; fiscal 2008: 0.96 — 16.4 16.3
Total dividends — 123.¢ 123.¢
9. Cash and cash equivalents
January 30 January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Bank deposit: 315.1 95.¢
Cash on han 1.1 1.2
Total cash and cash equivale 316.2 96.¢
10. Accounts receivable, net
January 30 January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Accounts receivable by geographic locat
-Us 921 886.1
— Other 9.7 9.C
931.c 895.1
Less: valuation allowanct (73.2) (69.9)
Total accounts receivab- net 858.( 825.2
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The aging of trade receivables at the reporting data recency of payment basis was:

January 30, 201C January 31, 200¢
Valuation Valuation
Gross allowance Gross allowance
$million $million $million $million

Not past du 729.¢ (21.7) 693.1 (20.5)
Past due - 90 days 154.7 (4.9 157.% 4.9
More than 90 day 46.€ (46.7) 44.: (44.9)
931. (73.2) 895.1 (69.9)

Valuation allowances:
Balance at Balance a
beginning of Bad

debt end of

period expenst Utilized ) period

$million $million $million $million
Fiscal 200¢ 52.2 93.€ (83.¢) 62.2
Fiscal 200¢ 62.2 124.7 (117.0 69.¢
Fiscal 2010 69.€ 144.C (140.7) 73.2

(1) Including the impact of foreign exchange transkati@tween opening and closing balance sheet ¢

Bad debt expense is net of recoveries of $11.8amjl17.1 million and $16.7 million in fiscal 201fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008, respectively.

11. Inventories

January 30, January 31,

2010 2009

$million $million
Raw materials 9.5 25.5
Finished good 1,163.¢ 1,338.¢
Total inventory 1,173.. 1,364.

Signet held $134.6 million of consignment inventatydanuary 30, 2010 (January 31, 2009: $202.1omjlivhich is not recorded on the
balance sheet. The principal terms of the consignagreements, which can generally be terminategither side, are such that Signet can
return any or all of the inventory to the relevauappliers without financial or commercial penaltésl the supplier can vary the inventory
prices.

Inventory provisions

Balance at Balance a
beginning of Charged

end of

period to profit Utilized (1) period

$million $million $million $million
Fiscal 200¢ 14.7 39.€ (36.6) 17.5
Fiscal 200¢ 17.t 35.¢ (40.7) 12.€
Fiscal 2010 12.€ 47.: (27.4) 32.f

(1) Including the impact of foreign exchange transkati@tween opening and closing balance sheet ¢
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12. Goodwill and other intangible assets, net

Computer Purchased goodwill
Total

software us UK gooduwill

$million $million $million $million
Cost:
At February 2, 200 33.2 674.1 238.2 912.%
Additions 9.8 — — —
Transfers (2.0 — — —
Translation difference (3.7 — 62.9) (62.9)
At January 31, 200 38.¢ 674.1 175.3 849.¢
Additions 7.8 — — —
Disposals (0.7 — — —
Translation difference 0.¢ — 18.1 18.1
At January 30, 201 47.F 674.1 193. 867.t
Amortization:
At February 2, 200 11.2 266.1 90.z 356.%
Charged in perio 6.4 — — —
Impairment charg — 408.( 108.¢ 516.¢
Transfers (2.0 — — —
Translation difference (1.€) — 23.¢ (23.9)
At January 31, 200 15.C 674.] 175.2 849.¢
Charged in perios 7. — — —
Disposals (0.2 — — —
Translation difference 0.t — 18.1 18.1
At January 30, 201 23.Z 674.] 193.¢ 867.t
Net book value
At January 30, 2010 24.2 — — —
At January 31, 200 23.€ — — —

Computer software is stated at cost less accumidatertization. Amortization charges are recordeskiling, general and administrative
expenses in the income statement. The weightedgeemortization period for additions in the pei®tive years.

The reporting units for the purpose of goodwill eimpnent testing are the US and UK operating segséitJanuary 31, 2009 Signet
performed an impairment test of goodwill and defesd that it was fully impaired. This resulted iretrecognition in fiscal 2009 of a loss on
impairment of goodwill of $516.9 million. The praewhich led to the decision that goodwill wasyfuthpaired was as follows:

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, Signepesienced a significant decline in its operatingqenance reflecting the weakness in the
macroeconomic environment. Management performefirdtestep of the impairment assessment for edt¢heoreporting units by comparing
the fair value of the two reporting units with thearrying amounts, including goodwill. It was deténed there was a potential impairment of
goodwill in both reporting units.

In order to measure the amount of goodwill impaimmenanagement performed the second step of tlesseent in which the implied fair
value of the goodwill of the two reporting unitssweompared to the book value of that goodwill. Tdievalue of each of the reporting units
was measured considering the present value ofefutiscounted cash flows that each reporting ungt @aected to generate in the future. The
significant
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estimates used in this calculation included: thgtted average costs of capital of the US and Uioreng units; long-term growth rates;
expected changes to selling prices, direct costganfitability of the businesses; and working tapiequirements. These projections were
based on detailed budgets that are prepared onramakbasis and took into account the weakenirgpefating results. Management used
discount rates that reflect assessments of theuvihe of money and the risks specific to Signetvalidate the reasonableness of the reporting
unit fair values that had been calculated, the eggpe fair values were rationalized to the entsepmarket capitalization of Signet at that time.
In addition to traditional control premiums the Kagtor contributing to the difference between ¢benbined fair value of the reporting units
and the total market capitalization was the Compsirare price, which was adversely impacted by gdiséock market conditions and the
significantly depressed economic outlook.

Based on the analysis completed, it was establigtedhe carrying amount of each reporting smitbodwill exceeded the implied fair value
that unit's goodwill. This resulted in a full impaient of the carrying value of goodwill and theaguition in fiscal 2009 of a loss on
impairment of goodwill of $516.9 million.

Management estimates that the annual amortizatiarge in respect of computer software held at Jgr2@ 2010 for each of the next five
fiscal years will be as follows:

$million

Fiscal 2011 7.7

Fiscal 201z 6.3

Fiscal 2012 5.2

Fiscal 201¢ 3.7

Fiscal 201¢ 1.3
Estimated amortization expense can be affectedhbipus factors including future acquisitions ansbdisals.
13. Property, plant and equipment, net

Land and buildings Shopfronts,
Plant,
Long Short machinery fixtures
Freehold leaseholc leaseholc and vehicle! and fittings Total
$million $million $million $million $million $million

Cost:
At February 2, 200 16.€ 1.6 34.: 129.C 950.2 1,132.(
Additions — — 5.C 8.8 91.: 105.1
Disposals (0.9 — (0.6) (54.0 (78.5) (133.9
Transfers — — 2.1 — (2.3 —
Translation difference (3.0 (0.49) (3.9) (9.9 (62.9) (78.5)
At January 31, 200 13.1 1.2 37.4 74.2 898.¢ 1,024."
Additions — — 1.€ 3.6 30.2 35.¢
Disposals — — (0.9 (2.0 (119.¢ (221.0
Translation difference 0.9 0.1 1.C 2.8 18.¢€ 23.2
At January 30, 201 14.C 1.3 39.€ 80.1 827.¢ 962.¢
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Land and buildings Shopfronts.
Plant,
Long Short machinery fixtures

Freehold leaseholc leaseholc and vehicle: and fittings Total

$million $million $million $million $million $million
Depreciation
At February 2, 200 6.2 0.8 16.¢ 101.t 517.t 642.¢
Charged in perio 0.3 0.1 3.1 12.€ 92.C 108.1
Disposals (0.3 — (0.9) (54.0 (78.5) (133.0
Transfers — — 0.4 — (0.9 —
Translation difference (1.8) (0.49) (2.€) (6.0 (34.5) (45.9)
At January 31, 200 4.€ 0.5 17.5 54.1 496.1 572.¢
Charged in perio 0.3 0.€ 3.1 9.5 87.t 101.(
Disposals — — (0.9 (0.9 (119.6¢) (120.9)
Translation difference 0.4 0.1 0.9 1.9 10.C 13.c
At January 30, 201 5.3 1.2 20.€ 64.€ 474.( 566.(
Net book value
At January 30, 2010 8.7 0.1 18.7 15.£ 353.¢ 396.¢
At January 31, 200 8.C 0.7 20.1 20.8 402.5 452.1

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cos¢held properties on the consolidated balancet éhelade $6.5 million of depreciable assets
(January 31, 2009: $6.1 million). The charge fer pleriod includes $2.9 million (fiscal 2009: $7.8lion, fiscal 2008: $10.5 million) for
impairment of assets.

14. Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

January 30 January 31
2010 2009

$million $million
Social security and payroll tax 5.€ 10.¢
Other taxe: 24.17 24.7
Other liabilities 45 53.
Accrued compensatic 67.¢ 54.C
Accrued expense 128.¢ 131.¢
Total accrued expenses and other current lialsl 272.1 274.¢

Sales returns reserve included in accrued expenses:
Balance at Balance a
beginning of

end of

period Adjustment (1) period

$million $million $million
Fiscal 200¢ 9.€ (1.2 8.4
Fiscal 200¢ 8.4 (0.6 7.8
Fiscal 2010 7.8 0.3 8.1

(1) Adjustment relates to sales returns previously idiexy for and changes in estimate and the impaftirefgn exchange translation betwe
opening and closing balance sheet d:
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15. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents income under exterateits warranty agreements and voucher promotions.

January 30 January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Warranty deferred revent 243.¢ 243.1
Other 17.£ 19.5
Total deferred revent 261.( 262.¢
Current liabilities 120.1 120.1
Non-current liabilities 140.¢ 142t
Total deferred revent 261.( 262.¢
Warranty reserve
Balance at Balance a
beginning of Warranties
Revenue end of
period sold recognizec period
$million $million $million $million
Fiscal 200¢ 232.7 166.t (152.¢) 246.€
Fiscal 200¢ 246.¢€ 149.¢ (153.)) 243.1
Fiscal 2010 243.1 159.2 (158.7%) 243.¢
16. Other liabilities—non-current
January 30 January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Accrued expense 60.2 54.7
Lease loss resen 12.C 10.1
Other liabilities 7.4 6.7
Total other liabilities 79.€ 71.5

A lease loss reserve is recorded for the net ptesdue of the difference between the contracteat obligations and the rate at which income
is received or expected to be received from sublgabke properties.

January 30, January 31

2010 2009

$million $million
At beginning of perioc 10.1 9.€
Adjustments, ne 1.8 4.€
Utilization @ 0.1 (4.7
At end of perioc 12.C 10.1

(1) Including the impact of foreign exchange transkati@tween opening and closing balance sheet ¢
The cash expenditures on the remaining lease ésgswe are expected to be paid over the variougingmy lease terms through 2017.
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17. Loans, overdrafts and long-term debt

January 30 January 31
2010 2009
$million $million
Current liabilitie—loans and overdraf
Revolving credit facility — 135.(
Bank overdraf 441 52.5
44.1 187.%
Non-current liabilitie—Long-term debt
US private placemel 280.( 380.(
Total loans, overdrafts and lc-term debt 324.1 567.5

Loans and overdrafts
Revolving Credit Facility

On June 26, 2008, Signet entered into an unse@&2@ million multicurrency Revolving Credit Facility with a syndicatebanks for a perio
of five years at a variable interest rate andmaaimum margin of 1.75% above LIBOR. On March 1302 Signet amended this agreement
(“Facility Agreement”), under which the revolvingedit agreement was reduced in size to $370 mijlllee maximum margin was increased to
2.75% above LIBOR and the covenants were amendetelperiod from March 2009, the applicable mafgis been both 2.25% and 1.75%
above LIBOR. Commitment fees are paid on the undraertion of this credit facility at a rate of 4000of the applicable margin.

At January 30, 2010 the amount outstanding undeffakility was $nil (January 31, 2009: $135.0 roitl).

The principal financial covenants on this facilitse as follows:

» the ratio of Consolidated Net Debt (cash and caslivalents less borrowings falling due within oreayand borrowings falling dt
in more than one year) to Consolidated EBITDA (kzge Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortiea) shall not exceed 2:1
for each quarter, except in the third quarter wihshall not exceed 2.5:.

» Consolidated Tangible Net Worth (total tangible astets) must not fall below $800 millic

» the ratio of Consolidated EBITDAR (Earnings Beftméerest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortization, Rentd @perating Lease
Expenditure) to Fixed Charges (Consolidated Netredt Expenditure plus Rents and Operating Leaperigiture excluding
Service Charges and Rates) shall be equal to atggrthan 1.4:1 for the trailing 12 months at equarter end to January 2012,
increasing to 1.55:1 until January 2013 and theh&5:1 for subsequent periot

* beginning with fiscal 2011, the facility will bedaced, on a pro rata basis with the Notes outstgndly 60% of any reduction in
net debt from the prior year er

* no “Shareholder Returns” (defined as including diévids, share buybacks or other similar paymeng) Isé made during fiscal
2010 or fiscal 2011, and thereafter such returng omdy be made if the amended fixed charge covab@e 1.7:1, there are no
subsisting defaults and the directors confirm thay expect Signet to continue to comply with tbheamant in the following 12
months; anc

» capital expenditure shall not exceed $71 milliofiscal 2010, $93 million in fiscal 2011, $115 righ in fiscal 2012 and $205
million in fiscal 2013,
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Conduit securitization facility (“Conduit”)

On October 24, 2008 Signet entered into a 364 d@Y $nillion Conduit. Under this securitization,en¢sts in the US private label credit card
receivables portfolio held by a trust would be sold@ryant Park, a Conduit administered by HSBCusiges (USA) Inc., in the form of a
secured revolving variable rate certificate. Thendldt bore interest at a margin of 0.85% abovecthst of funds paid by Bryant Park and
commitment fees were paid on the undrawn porticarate of 0.30%. At January 31, 2009 no receivitégests had been placed in trust for
sale. Accordingly, the amount outstanding undeiGbaduit was $nil. On April 9, 2009 the $100 mifli€onduit was terminated by Signet.

Long-term debt
US Private Placement

On March 30, 2006 Signet entered into a US PriRéeement Note Term Series Purchase Agreement, RPid@te Placement”) which was
funded largely from US insurance institutional istas in the form of fixed rate investor certifieatotes (“Notes”). These Notes represented 7,
10 or 12 year maturities. Interest on the Notgsmigable semi-annually with the face value payabtere of maturity. The Series A Notes were
$100.0 million at face value, bore interest at %%nd are due in May 2013; Series B Notes were $IBdlion at face value, bore interest at
6.11% and are due in May 2016 and Series C Notes $4&30.0 million at face value, bore interest.2666 and are due in May 2018. The
aggregate issuance was at face value for $380li@midind the funding date was May 23, 2006. Thegeds from this debt issuance were used
to refinance the receivable securitization progthat was due to mature in November 2006, and foegd corporate purposes. The notes rank
pari passu with Signet’s other senior unsecured. @ March 13, 2009 Signet entered into an amentlagreement. Under this agreement
$100 million of the notes was prepaid at par pk@ed interest to and including March 18, 2009 @wedcovenants were amended. The
principal financial covenants under the amendedement are in line with the Facility Agreement asatlibed above.

Signet has the right to prepay the remaining onthtey notes at any time, with such prepayment beiage at a premium to par as determined
by the provisions of the ‘Make Whole’ calculatioontained within the Amended Note Purchase Agreenmv&anrtations in the ‘Make Whole’
premium amount are largely determined by movemiaris 6 and 8 year US Treasury yields.

Additional amendments to the terms of the Note Rage agreement are:

* A 2.0% increase in the coupon (subject to a furth@% increase until fiscal 2013 if the amendeddixharge coverage ratio is I
than 1.6:1, and an additional 1.0% increase if Nii&glers are subject to increased capital chargesrasult of a requirement to
post additional reserves under applicable insuraggelations, as determined by the insurance regiji

» Subsequent prepayment offers, at par, are to be inaeebruary or March of each of the following sa2010, 2011, 2012 and
2013—the minimum amount of each such offer beingcipally the Note Holders’ pro rata share of 60#&ny reduction in net
debt that occurred over the preceding fiscal y&ay. proportion of the 2011, 2012 or 2013 offereotgd by Note Holders may be
applied to Shareholder Returns, as defined in tmerded Facility Agreemer

* Subsequent to January 2013, Shareholder Returnbenag greater than the amount of an additiongdgyment offer rejected by
the Note Holders and may only be madt

- previous offers have been made to prepay an aggreg&190 million of the Notes, inclusive of th&d® million March 18
2009 prepaymen

- an additional prepayment offer at a 2% premiumaohas been made, the size of which is at S's discretion, an
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» Restrictions on capital expenditure similar to Araended Facility Agreement for fiscal 2010, fis28tl 1, fiscal 2012 and fiscal
2013, provided that in fiscal 2012 and 2013 theuReg Offers have been made, otherwise the resingion capital expenditure in
fiscal 2012 will be $85 million and in fiscal 20%8Il be $100 million.

Amendment fees and other related costs for the IRiegpCredit Facility and the US Private Placemen$5.9 million were capitalized, with a
further $3.4 million charged to the income statetieriiscal 2010. $0.9 million of the capitalizedlance was amortized in fiscal 2010.

No other interest bearing material loans or ovdtsingere entered into during the year. The weiglaesrage interest rate on other loans
overdrafts was 3.1% in fiscal 2009 and 5.3% indiD08.

18. Financial instruments and fair value

Signet’s principal financial instruments are corapd of cash, cash deposits/investments and ovexdaatounts receivable and payable,
derivatives, a revolving credit facility and fixeate notes. Signet does not enter into derivatamestactions for trading purposes. Derivative
transactions are used by Signet for risk managemepbses to address risks inherent in Signet'sbss operations and sources of finance.
The main risks arising from Signet’'s operationsiaterest rate risk, liquidity risk, and marketkiscluding foreign currency risk and
commodity risk. Signet uses derivative financiatioments to manage and mitigate these risks (palieies reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Interest rate risk

Signet’s operations are financed principally by G2&llion fixed rate notes under the US PrivatecBlaent. Signet may enter into various
interest rate protection agreements in order td tine impact of movements in interest rates oté@sowings. There were no interest rate
protection agreements outstanding at January 3@ @fanuary 31, 2009: $nil).

Liquidity risk
Signet’s objective is to ensure that it has actessr the ability to generate sufficient cash freitiher internal or external sources in a timely
and cost-effective manner to meet its commitmesthay become due and payable. Signet manageditigtisks as part of the overall risk
management policy. Management produces forecaatiddudgeting information that is reviewed and rtaved by the Board. Retained funds
and external financing are the main source of fagdiupplementing Signet’s resources in meetindditjurequirements. The main external
sources of funding include the Amended US Privddediment, consisting of Series A Notes of $73.7ioni) Series B Notes of $110.5 million,
and Series C Notes of $95.8 million, which fall da013, 2016 and 2018 respectively, and an umedaevolving credit facility of $370
million, against which $nil was drawn as of Janugdy 2010 (January 31, 2009: $135.0 million).

Market risk

Signet generates revenues and expenses in poenkitsgsand US dollars. As a portion of Signet’s dKision purchases are denominated in
US dollars, Signet enters into foreign currencyviend exchange contracts, foreign currency optiartreats and foreign currency swaps to
manage this exposure to the US dollar. The fauevalf these contracts is recorded in other assetsther liabilities.

For currency and commodity contracts that are fuagi cash flow hedges, changes in fair value aperded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income/(loss). Amounts aressdied from other
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comprehensive income/(loss) into earnings wheréuged exposure affects earnings. For contradtsithaot meet the strict hedge accoun
requirements, changes in fair value are recordedhier operating expenses.

Signet holds a fluctuating amount of pounds stgriiash reflecting the cash generative charactsisfithe UK division. Signet’s objective is
to minimize net foreign exchange exposure to tleerime statement on sterling denominated items througnaging this level of cash, sterling
denominated intercompany balances and US dollstetting swaps. In order to manage the foreign argk exposure and minimize the level
of pounds sterling cash held by the company, theisy denominated subsidiaries pay dividends m@dyuto their immediate holding
companies.

Credit risk and concentrations of credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be reizegl at the reporting date if counterparties htle perform as contracted. Signet does not
anticipate non-performance by counterparties dintncial instruments. Signet does not requiréatetal or other security to support financial
instruments with credit risk; however it is Sigrsgpolicy to only hold cash and cash equivalentstwents and to transact financial instrumi
with financial institutions with a certain minimuenedit rating. Management does not believe Sighekposed to any significant concentrat
of credit risk that arise from derivatives or acetsureceivable.

Derivatives

Signet is exposed to foreign currency exchangeanising from various currency exposures. Sign&grsrinto forward foreign currency
exchange contracts and foreign currency optionrectd, principally in US dollars, in order to lintite impact of movements in foreign
exchange rates on its forecast foreign currencghases. The total notional amount of these foreigrency contracts outstanding as at
January 30, 2010 was $37.2 million. These contizate been designated as cash flow hedges anbdendibttled over the next 17 months.

Signet enters into forward purchase contracts g@tidm purchase contracts for commodities in ordeetluce its exposure to significant
movements in the price of the underlying preciogtatraw material. The total notional amount of condity contracts outstanding as at
January 30, 2010 was $100 million. These conttaate been designated as cash flow hedges andensittied over the next 12 months.

For derivatives that are designated and qualify eash flow hedge, the effective portion of thengailoss on the derivative is reported as a
component of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) esalassified into earnings in the same periodliicty the hedged item affects net
income or loss. Gains and losses on derivativagihhvaot qualify for hedge accounting, togethehvehy hedge ineffectiveness, are recognized
immediately in other operating income, net. Sigieds not hold derivative contracts for trading jpses.

Foreign currency contracts not designated as dashhiedges are used to hedge currency flows thr&igihet’'s bank accounts to ensure that
Signet is not exposed to foreign currency exchaisen its cash and borrowings.
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The following table summarizes the fair value anespntation of derivative instruments in the coidlsdéd balance sheets:

Derivatives designated as hedging instrume
Foreign currency contrac
Commodity contract

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrums
Foreign currency contrac

Total derivative asse

Derivatives designated as hedging instrume
Foreign currency contrac
Commodity contract

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrums
Foreign currency contrac

Total derivative liabilities

Derivative assets

January 30, 2010

January 31, 2009

Balance sheet

Balance sheet

The following tables summarize the effect of detiiv@instruments on the consolidated income statesne

Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationshi
Foreign currency contrac

Commodity contract

Total

location Fair value location Fair value
$million $million
Other current asset: 0.6 Other current asst 12.C
Other current asset: 2.4 Other current asst 12.C
3.C 24.C
Other current asset: — Other current asst 0.1
— 0.1
3.C 24.1
Derivative liabilities
January 30, 2010 January 31, 2009
Balance sheet Balance sheet
location Fair value location Fair value
$million $million
Other current liabilities (0.9 Other current liabilitie: —
Other current liabilities (1.6) Other current liabilitie: —
(2.0) —
Other current liabilities — Other current liabilitie: —
(2.0 —
Amount of gain/(loss) Lgo;ﬁ}i(?glsg)f Amount of gain/(loss)

recognized in OCI on
derivatives
(Effective portion)

reclassified from
accumulated OCI

reclassified from accumulated
OCl into income
(Effective portion)

into income
Fiscal Fiscal (Effective Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 portion) 2010 2009
$million $million $million $million
(3.0 16.5 Cost of sale 7.8 (1.2)
7.3 2.8 Cost of sale 5.1 14.¢
4.3 19.Z 12.€ 13.4
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Amount of gain/
(loss) recognized in

Location of gain/(loss) income on derivatives
recognized in income on (Ineffective portion)
derivatives Fiscal Fiscal
(Ineffective portion) 2010 2009
$million $million
Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationshi
Foreign currency contrac Other operating income, t — 2.C
Commodity contract Other operating income, t — (0.5
Total — 1.t
Amount of gain/(loss) recognizec
Location of gain/(loss) in income on derivatives
recognized in income on Fiscal Fiscal
derivatives 2010 2009
$million $million
Derivatives not designated as hedging instrums
Foreign currency contrac Other operating income, 1 (0.7) (49.9)
Total (0.7 (49.6)

Fair value

The estimated fair value of Signet’s financial rngtents held or issued to finance Signet's opeanatie summarized below. Certain estimates
and judgments were required to develop the fainezamounts. The fair value amounts shown belomatr@ecessarily indicative of the
amounts that Signet would realize upon dispositiondo they indicate Signet’s intent or abilitydispose of the financial instrument. Assets
and liabilities that are carried at fair value erquired to be classified and disclosed in ondeffollowing three categories:

Level 1—quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets and liabilities
Level 2—observable market based inputs or unobbévaputs that are corroborated by market data
Level 3—unobservable inputs that are not corrolearély market data
Signet determines fair value based upon quote@égriden available or through the use of alternapoaches, such as discounting the

expected cash flows using market interest ratesreamsurate with the credit quality and durationhef investment. The methods Signet uses to
determine fair value on an instrument-specific ase detailed below.

January 30, 2010 January 31, 2009
Significant other Significant other
Carrying observable Carrying observable
inputs inputs
amount (Level 2) amount (Level 2)
$million $million
Assets:
Forward foreign currency contracts and sw 0.€ 0.6 12.1 12.1
Forward commodity contrac 2.4 2.4 12.C 12.C
Liabilities:
Borrowings (324.)) (371.9) (567.5) (480.5)
Forward foreign currency contracts and sw (0.4) (0.9 — —
Forward commodity contrac (1.6 (1.6 — —
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The fair value of derivative financial instrumehiss been determined based on market value equisatthe balance sheet date, taking into
account the current interest rate environmenteeuifioreign currency forward rates or current cordityoforward rates. These are held as
assets and liabilities within other receivables atigbr payables, and all contracts have a matafityss than eighteen months. The fair valu
Signets Private Placement Note debt is determined bydisting to present value the known future coupahfaral Note redemption amour
at market yields as of the balance sheet datecairging amounts of cash and cash equivalents uatsoeceivable, other receivables, accc
payable and accrued liabilities approximate falug@ecause of the short term maturity of theseuantso

19. Pension schemes

The Group Scheme, which ceased to admit new emgdolyem April 2004, is a funded scheme with asdedkl in a separate trustee
administered fund which is independently managadudry 30, 2010 and January 31, 2009 measuremiest\dare used in determining the
Group Scheme’s benefit obligation and fair valuplah assets. Contributions to the Group Scheme agsessed as at April 5, 2009.

The following schedules provide information condegnthe Group Scheme as of and for the fiscal yeaded January 30, 2010 and
January 31, 20009:

Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009
$million $million
Change in Group Scheme ass
Fair value at beginning of ye 139. 248.1
Actual return on Group Scheme as: 28.7 (48.1)
Employer contribution 12.¢ 6.C
Member’ contributions 0.€ 0.8
Benefits paic (9.9 (10.¢)
Foreign currency chang 14.¢ (56.7)
Fair value of Group Scheme assets at end of 187.( 139.
Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009
$million $million
Change in benefit obligatiol
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye 152.¢ 253.7
Service cos 4.3 6.1
Past service co — (28.¢)
Interest cos 10.7 13.C
Member’ contributions 0.€ 0.8
Actuarial loss/(gain 17.2 (21.9
Benefits paic (9.9 (10.¢)
Foreign currency chang 16.C (59.9)
Benefit obligation at end of ye 191.¢ 152./
Funded status at end of year: Group Scheme assstbénefit obligatio (4.9 (12.9)
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Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009

$million $million

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consi
Non current liabilities (4.9 (12.9)
Net liability recognizec (4.9 12.€
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekienscome/(loss) consists of:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Net actuarial los (61.2) (64.€) (36.0)
Net prior service cred 15.C 15.7 (5.7

The estimated actuarial loss and prior serviceitfedthe Group Scheme that will be amortized fraotumulated other comprehensive
income/(loss) into net periodic benefit cost over hext fiscal year are $4.9 million and $(1.0)lionl, respectively.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Groupe®oe was $183.4 million and $144.8 million at Jan®®, 2010 and January 31, 2009,
respectively.

The projected benefit obligation and fair valuglain assets for the Group Scheme at January 30,@6de $191.8 million and $187.0 million,
respectively. At January 31, 2009 the projectecebeabligation and fair value of plan assets toe Group Scheme were $152.4 million and
$139.5 million, respectively.

The components of net periodic pension cost aner@mounts recognized in other comprehensive ingtwss) for the Group Scheme are as
follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million
Components of net periodic benefit cc
Service cos 4.3 6.1 8.C
Interest cos 10.7 13.C 13.4
Expected return on Group Scheme as (11.2) (15.9) (19.1)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service (crefdibst (2.0 1.1 1.2
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic 4.7 1.8 0.¢
Net periodic benefit cot 7.5 6.2 4.4
Other changes in scheme assets and benefit obligatecognized in other comprehensive (income) (4.0 10.2 12.2
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atitepcomprehensive loss/(incon 3.5 16.5 16.7

January 30, January 31,

2010 2009
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligatiashe end of the yeal
Discount rate 5.6(% 6.6(%
Salary increase 5.0(% 5.0(%
Assumptions used to determine net periodic pensists (at the start of the yee
Discount rate 6.6(% 5.9(%
Expected return on Group Scheme as 7.25% 7.2(%
Salary increase 5.0(% 5.0(%
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The discount rate is based upon published ratasigb-quality fixedincome investments that produce expected cash floatsapproximate tt
timing and amount of expected future benefit paythien

The expected return on the Group Scheme assetsptisn is based upon the historical return andréuxpected returns for each asset class,
as well as the target asset allocation of the pliwtbf Group Scheme assets.

Signet’s overall investment strategy is guided byhjective of achieving a return on the investragwhich is consistent with the long-term
return assumptions to ensure the Group Schemeatiblitg are met. The long term target allocatiortlierGroup Scheme’s assets is equities
68%, bonds 27% and property 5%. The investmentydito carry a balance of funds to achieve tlaéses. These funds carry investments in
UK and overseas equities, UK corporate bonds, Uks@nd property. The Group Scheme invests in Utroercial property through a Pool
Pensions Property Fund, giving exposure to a diiedsportfolio of assets.

The fair. value of the assets in the Group Schendaratary 30, 2010 are required to be classifieddisalosed in one of the following three
categories:

Level 1—quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets and liabilities

Level 2—observable market based inputs or unobbérmaputs that are corroborated by market data

Level 3—unobservable inputs that are not corrolearély market data

The value and classification of these assets wédllag/s:

Fair value measurements at
January 30, 2010

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for Unobservable
identical assets inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 3)
$million $million $million
Asset category
Diversified equity securitie 118.¢ 118.¢ —
Bonds 57.2 57.2 —
Property 9.1 — 9.1
Cash 1.8 1.8 —
Total 187.( 177.¢ 9.1

The Group Scheme does not hold any investmentgnebishares or in property occupied by or otheztasssed by Signet.

Signet expects to contribute a minimum of $15.3iamlto the Group Scheme in fiscal 2011. The exgg@icrease in contributions, in
accordance with a deficit recovery plan, arisea eessult of the increased funding deficit indicatgdhe results of the actuarial valuation as at
April 5, 2009.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are estimatée paid by the Group Scheme:

$million
Fiscal 2011 10.C
Fiscal 2012 10.1
Fiscal 201z 10.2
Fiscal 201¢ 10.z
Fiscal 201¢ 10.2
Fiscal 2016 to fiscal 202 52.¢
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In June 2004, Signet introduced a defined contidouydlan which replaced the Group Scheme for newddiployees. The contributions to this
scheme in the period were $0.3 million (fiscal 2080.3 million; fiscal 2008: $0.2 million).

In the US, Signet sponsors a defined contributi@h(K) retirement savings plan for all eligible eoy#es who meet minimum age and service
requirements. The assets of this plan are heldsgparate trust and Signet matches 25% of up tof@@ployee elective salary deferrals. Si
December 2008, Signet's matching element has hegreaded. Signet’contributions to this plan in fiscal 2010 werel$illion (fiscal 2009
$6.6 million; fiscal 2008: $4.8 million). The USuiBion has also established two unfunded, non-fiedldeferred compensation plans, one of
which permits certain management and highly comgtexdsemployees or directors to elect annually ferdsl or a portion of their
remuneration and earn interest on the deferred atagtDCP”) and the other of which is frozen asiew participants and new deferrals. Until
December 2008, the DCP also provided for a matcbamgribution based on each participant’s annualurgeration deferral. The plan permits
such contributions on a discretionary basis. Imeation with these plans, Signet has investedust4nwned life insurance policies. The cost
recognized in connection with the DCP in fiscal @@dere $0.5 million (fiscal 2009: $1.5 million; ¢al 2008: $1.7 million). During the year, a
distribution of $38.1 million was made to certaiamagement employees from the plans.

20. Common shares, deferred shares, treasury sharasd reserves
Common Shares

On February 5, 2007, the Company redenominategatsmon Shares from pounds sterling into US doll@ings was accomplished by a
cancellation of the outstanding pound sterling eband issuance of an equal amount of US dollavrderated shares. The par value of each
US dollar Common Share was 0.9 cents and eachtsiides received one dollar Common Share in exchémgene pound sterling Common
Share. The US dollar Common Shares have the sgmis and restrictions as the previous pound ste@iommon Shares.

On September 11, 2008, as part of the Scheme ahgement, the Company’s shares were consolidagea 14for-20 share consolidation. The
par value of each new Common Share is 18 centscdihgideration received in respect of Common Shiased during the year in respect of
share options was $1.0 million (fiscal 2009: $0illiom; fiscal 2008: $6.0 million). The Company diwt purchase any treasury shares in fiscal
2010 (fiscal 2009: nil).

Deferred shares

To satisfy UK listing requirements, £50,000 of heapital was held by the Group Company SecreftattyeoPredecessor Company and
denominated in pounds sterling until SeptembeR008. Since that date, Signet has not had anyreefshares.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of shares Ddimpany purchased in the market and held by thel@me Stock Ownership Trust
(“ESOT") to satisfy options under Signet’s sharéi@pschemes. In fiscal 2010 the trustee transfeb@425 shares to the holders of executive
share and LTIP options granted to UK employeesagigregate the subscription monies amounted tor#illion. The trustee held 29,526 she

at January 30, 2010, 29,526 shares at March 31 20d 81,951 shares at January 31, 2009.

In fiscal 2010 the trustee of the ESOT subscrilmechish for a total of 1,978 shares in order to ideghares to satisfy the exercise of executive
share options granted to US employees. In aggréigateubscription monies amounted to $0.03 milliboption exercise prices between
$17.42 and $21.56. The subscription prices werdtY\8E market prices on the last business days befar dates on which the respective
terms of issue were fixed, and varied between &4ar@l $27.81 per share.
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On various dates during fiscal 2010 a total of 86&res were subscribed for in cash by holders tidrg In aggregate the option proceeds
amounted to $0.01 million at option exercise prisesveen $13.13 and $32.66 per share. The optmsepds were the market prices at the
various times at which the options were grantea NIl SE market prices on the dates of issue vamtaden $26.10 and $27.12 per share.
Details of options in respect of shares are showdte 22.

Other reserves
Other reserves consist of special reserves angditakeedemption reserve established in accordariitethe Laws of England and Wales.
The Predecessor Company established a speciavegagor to 1997 in connection with reductions ddgional paid-in capital which can only

be used to write off existing goodwill resultingfin acquisitions and otherwise only for purposesnitiéed for share premium accounts under
the laws of England and Wales.

The capital redemption reserve has arisen on theetlation of previously issued Common Shares apdesents the nominal value of those
shares cancelled.

Retained earnings

Following a capital reduction in 1997, the Predeoe£ompany was permitted to make distributiontutiog dividends, share buy-backs and
other transactions classed as distributions, oantyobincome earned after August 2, 1997. Restmation distributions out of income earned
prior to August 2, 1997 were lifted following aing by the High Court of Justice in England and &gah fiscal 2009. None of the income
subject to these restrictions was earned by, ar paiby way of dividend to, the Company or to thed@cessor Company, prior to the lifting of
these restrictions in fiscal 2009.

21. Commitments and contingencies
Operating leases
Signet occupies certain properties and holds ptaathinery and vehicles under operating leaselges not have any capital leases.

Rental expense for operating leases are as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2010 2009 2008

$million $million $million

Minimum rentals 312.¢ 314.5 316.(
Contingent ren 5.€ 5.3 10.1
Sublease incom (5.9 (6.9 (7.0
Total 313.1 313.7 319.1

The future minimum operating lease payments foratpey leases having initial or non-cancelable gimexcess of one year as follows:

$million
Fiscal 2011 287.¢
Fiscal 201~ 266.¢
Fiscal 201z 246.¢
Fiscal 201¢ 226.¢
Fiscal 201¢ 203.7
Thereaftel 1,081.(
Total 2,312.(
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Signet has entered into certain sale and leasetmatsactions of freehold and long leasehold pragmertnder these transactions it continues to
occupy the space in the normal course of busi@sisis on the transactions are recognized as atiedud rent expense over the life of the
operating lease.

Contingent property liabilities

Approximately 124 UK property leases had been assidy Signet up to January 30, 2010 (and remainegpired and occupied by assignees
at that date) and approximately 27 additional prisge were sub-let at that date. Should the assgpe sub-tenants fail to fulfill any

obligations in respect of those leases or any ddases which have at any other time been assignsab-let, Signet or one of its UK
subsidiaries may be liable for those defaults. itmaber of such claims arising to date has beenl samal the liability, which is charged to the
income statement as it arises, has not been nlateria

Capital commitments

At January 30, 2010 Signet has committed to spdn@l iillion (January 31, 2009: $8.8 million) in pest of capital commitments. These
commitments relate to the expansion and renovatiGtores.

Legal proceedings

In March 2008, private plaintiffs filed a classiaatlawsuit for an unspecified amount against 8igrlewelers Inc. (“Sterling”), a subsidiary of
Signet, in the U.S. District Court for the South&istrict of New York federal court alleging thaSlstore-level employment practices are
discriminatory as to compensation and promotiontiVities. On September 23, 2008, the US Equal Bympknt opportunities Commission
(“EEOC”) filed a lawsuit against Sterling in theSJ District Court for the Western District of Newok. The EEOC'’s lawsuit alleges that
Sterling engaged in a pattern or practice of gedasrimination with respect to pay and promotiohéemale retail store employees from
January 1, 2003 to the present. The EEOC asseitscfor unspecified monetary relief and noonetary relief against the Company on be
of a class of female employees subjected to thiésged practices. Sterling denies the allegatioosfboth parties and intends to defend them
vigorously.

In the ordinary course of business, the company Ineagubject, from time to time, to various procegdj lawsuits, disputes or claims.

22. Share-based compensation

Signet operates several share based compensatimsyphich can be categorized as “Saving Share 'Rl&hecutive Plans”, “Long Term
Incentive Plans” and “Omnibus Plans”.

Saving Share Plans

Three all-employee share option schemes compréssgayings related share option scheme for UK enegloythe “Sharesave Scheme”), a
share savings plan intended to qualify under USi@ed23 of the US Internal Revenue Code (the “Eoypé Share Savings Plan”) and a
savings related share option scheme for Republicetzind employees (the “Irish Sharesave Schenre”jagether referred to as “Saving Share
Plans”. The Sharesave Scheme and Irish Sharesheen8allow eligible employees to purchase Commareédhat a discount of
approximately 20% below the average middle markieef the shares on the London Stock Exchangeitber the three dealing days prior to
the date that employees are invited to participathe middle market price on the date of grantictwver is the higher value. The Employee
Share Savings Plan allows employees to purchasar@on$hares at a discount of approximately 15%écatbsing price on the date of grant.
Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme amisth&haresave Scheme vest after 36 months argeaerally only exercisable between
36 and 42 months from commencement of the relaeihgs contract. Options granted under the Empl@leee Savings Plan vest after 24
months and are generally only exercisable betwdesm® 27 months of the grant date. The Saving SPlares are compensatory and
compensation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

expense is recognized over the requisite servidegdn any 10 year period not more than 10% efigsued Common Shares of the Company
from time to time may, in aggregate, be issuedeoisbuable pursuant to options granted under thim&&hare Plans or any other employees’
share plans adopted by Signet.

Executive Plans

Signet operates three 2003 executive share schginee®?003 Plans”), together referred to as theeixive Plans”. Option awards under the
Executive Plans are generally granted with an ésemrice equal to the market price of the Compssiares at the date of grant. Options
under the Executive Plans are subject to certa@mial performance criteria and cannot be exeraisdgss Signet achieves an annual rate of
compound growth in earnings per share, calculateulFRS, above the respective US and UK retaikgndices. The performance criteria is
measured over a three year period from the stdheofiscal year in which the award is grantedhé performance criteria is not achieved at the
end of the three years from date of grant, theoperdnce criteria extend annually and are retedtdéteaend of the fourth and fifth year before
expiring. Commencing January 29, 2006, awards gcanhder the 2003 Plans are no longer eligibledimsting if performance is not achieved
by the end of the third year. The remaining schetinasincluded retest provisions were tested ferfihal time at January 30, 2010 and no
awards vested. Grants awarded under the 2003 frtandiscal 2008 onwards, other than for executlirectors, are no longer subject to the
performance criteria. Signet’s Executive Plans,oivfdre shareholder approved, permit the grantaxiesbptions to employees for up to 10% of
the issued Common Shares over any 10 year penoldiding any other employees share plans adopt&ignet or a maximum of 5% over 10
years including discretionary option plans. A maximof 8,568,841 shares may be issued pursuantimnsmranted to US participants in
Executive Plans.

Long Term Incentive Plans

The Long Term Incentive Plan 2000 was replacechbyLbng Term Incentive Plan 2005. LTIPs are sulifecertain internal performance
criteria and cannot be exercised unless therehigaement of an annual rate of compound growtindoime before tax above the respective US
and UK retail price indices at constant exchangesraf Signet for Signet executives, or, growtldivisional operating income for divisional
executives, and, of ROCE of Signet or related divigs appropriate. To the extent that the perfogeariteria are satisfied, the participant

will receive a combination of share options anchdasequal value. Compensation expense is recogmizer the thregear performance peri

for all schemes and options granted have 10-yeadractual terms. The Company’s LTIPs, which areaahalder approved, permit the grant of
share options to employees for up to 10% of the @om's issued Common Shares over any 10 year pefitiohe, including any other
employees share plans adopted by Signet or a maxiofib% over 10 years including discretionary optsans.

Omnibus Plans

In fiscal 2010 Signet adopted the Omnibus Incerfilaa (the “Omnibus Plan”). Awards that may be tgdrunder the Omnibus Plan include
restricted stock units, stock options and stockegiption rights. The 2009 Awards granted undefQhaibus Plan have two elements, time-
based restricted stock and performance-basedatestistock units. The stock and stock units aratgtawith a $nil exercise price. The time-
based restricted stock is subject to continued eympént, has the same voting rights and dividenltsigs Common Shares (which are payable
once the shares have vested) and is measured tweeayear vesting period. Performance-basedatestrstock units vest based upon the
achievement of cumulative actual earnings befaer@st and taxes (“EBIT”) as a percentage of tady&BIT for the performance period.
Performance is measured over a three year vestirigdpfrom the start of the fiscal year in whicle thward is granted. The Omnibus Plan
permits the grant of awards to employees for up,®0,000 Common Shares.

Signet recognized a total share-based compensatfsense of $5.6 million in fiscal 2010 (fiscal 2089.7 million expense; fiscal 2008: $3.4
million credit). The related tax credit on the shtiased compensation expense was $1.6 million;r$illibn charge; and $1.5 million credit,
respectively. The total remaining
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unrecognized compensation cost related to non-¢esstare options under all plans amounted to $1@libm $3.1 million and $5.0 million
relating to fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 80@spectively, which will be amortized over theigited average periods of 1.8 years, 1.9
years and 2.0 years, respectivt

The Company either issues new shares or utilisastiry shares to satisfy share option exercisesr utsdolans. The Company does not expect
to repurchase any shares during fiscal 2011 tefgathare option exercises. Cash received fronextieecise of share options granted under
Signet’s plans during fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 &rdal 2008 was $1.0 million, $0.1 million and $é@llion respectively.

Share scheme status

Saving Share Plan: Omnibus Plans Executive Plans LTIPs
No. of No. of No. of No. of
shares WAEP (1) shares WAEP ) shares WAEP ) shares WAEP (1)
millions dollars millions dollars millions dollars millions dollars
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 0.5 20.2i — — 3.1 35.11 0.3 —
Movements in perios
Granted 0.1 21.9¢ 0.6 — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — (0.2) 17.8: — —
Lapsec (0.1) 2658 — — (0.5) 37.9¢  (0.1) —
Outstanding at January 30, 201( 0.5 18.61 0.6 — 2.5 34.8¢ 0.2 —
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 0.1 29.5¢ — — 1.C 33.2¢ — —
Exercisable at January 30, 201! — — — — 0.9 34.4¢ — —

1)

The weighted average share price at the date ofisegfor share options exercised during fiscal®@as $25.57 (fiscal 2009: $25.33; fiscal
2008 (recalculated for 1-for-20 consolidation): $%3.

Weighted Average Exercise Pri

The following tables summarize the information atshare awards outstanding and exercisable at 3a80a2010, and the inputs used in a
binomial model for Saving Share Plans and ExecWRiams, and in a Blacgeholes model for LTIP plans, for the calculatidihe fair value o
options granted in the fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 fischl 2008:

Saving Share Plans Omnibus Plans Executive Plans LTIPs
WACL WAEP WACL WAEP WACL WAEP WACL WAEP
Shares @ @) Shares @ @) Shares @ @) Shares @ @)
millions years dollars  millions years dollars  millions years dollars  millions years  dollars
Outstanding 0.t 1.2 18.61 0.6 2.1 — 2.5 5.8 34.8¢ 0.2 7.8 —
Exercisable — — — — — — 0.¢ 34 34.4¢ — — —
Omnibus
Saving Share Plans Plans Executive Plans LTIPs
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2009 2008
Share price® $ 26.17 $ 12.3¢ $ 37.4 $19.5¢ $ 2321 $ 48.71 $ 23.2¢ $ 48.71
Exercise priced $ 21.9 $ 13.41 $ 317 nil $ 24.2¢ $ 49.8] nil nil
Risk free interest
rate $ 1.71% 2.61% 4.4% n/e 2.4% 4.56% 2.31% 4.61%
Expected life of
options 2.6 year 2.7 year 2.8 year n/e 4.3 year 4.3 year 3.5 year 3.5 year
Expected volatility 47% 36% 26% n/e 30% 28% 3C% 28%
Dividend yield 1.9% 0.€% 3.3% 0.2% 4.2% 2.5% 4.2% 2.9%
Fair value® $ 7.3€ $ 1.87 $ 9.1¢ $19.4: $ 4,01 $ 10.77 $ 20.11 $ 44.0¢

(1) Weighted Average Exercise Pri
(2) Weighted Average Remaining Contractual L
(3) Weighted averag
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The expected volatility is determined by calculgtihe historical volatility of Signed’share price over the previous five years. Theebeul life
used in the model is based on the historical egergehavior of the main categories of option recifs.

The total intrinsic value of awards outstanding ardrcisable as of January 30, 2010 was $30.0omiind $0.6 million, respectively, and the
aggregate intrinsic value for share options exettfuring fiscal 2010, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 20@&8& $0.4 million, $0.1 million and $6.6
million respectively.

23. Related party transactions
There are no related party transactions which reglisclosure in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

24. Subsequent events

In accordance with its borrowing agreements, Sigmede a prepayment to its Note Holders on Mar@0®p of $50.9 million. Following this
repayment there were $229.1 million of Notes ouditag. A change was agreed with Signet’s Revol@nedit Facility banking group that the
facility would be reduced to $300 million from $3#0llion on March 19, 2010.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION — UNAUDITED

The sum of the quarterly EPS amounts may not gfedull year amount as the computations of thegiveid average shares outstanding for
each quarter and the full year are calculated ieddently.

Fiscal 2010
Quarters ended
August 1 October 31 January 30
May 2,
2009 2009 2009 2010
$million $million $million $million
Sales 762.¢ 710.¢ 613.7 1,203.¢
Gross margit 255.5 221. 165.¢ 434.1
Net income/(loss 26.2 27.€ (7.0 117.2
Earnings/(loss) per she—basic (3$) 0.31 0.3z (0.0¢) 1.37
Earnings/(loss) per she—diluted ($) 0.31 0.32 (0.0¢) 1.3¢
Fiscal 2009
Quarters ended
August 2 November 1 January 31
May 3,
2008 2008 2008 2009
$million $million $million $million
Sales 822.t 768.¢ 629.3 1,123.¢
Gross margit 277. 249.1 174.¢ 378.t
Net income/(loss 25.7 19.7 (15.1) (424.0)
Earnings/(loss) per she—basic ($) 0.3C 0.2 (0.19) (4.97)
Earnings/(loss) per she—diluted (%) 0.3C 0.2 (0.1¢) (4.97)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
The directors review the effectiveness of Signgystem of internal controls in the following areas:
» Financial;
*  Operational
* Compliance; ani
* Risk managemen

Signet’s disclosure controls and procedures arigjded to help ensure that processes and procefiuriedormation management are in place
at all levels of the business. The disclosure ads@nd procedures aim to provide reasonable asseithat any information disclosed by Sic

in the reports that it files or submits under thetiange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegrudted within the time periods specified
in the SEC'’s rules and forms. The procedures a@dgsigned to ensure that information is accuradlabhd communicated to management,
including the Chief Executive and Group Financeebior, as appropriate to allow timely decisionbéomade regarding required disclosure.
Signet’s Disclosure Control Committee, which hagrdten Charter, consists of the Group Finance &og the Group Company Secretary, the
Investor Relations Director and the Group FinanCiahtroller, who consult with Signet’s external asdvs and auditor, as necessary. These
procedures are designed to enable Signet to nraledytiappropriate and accurate public disclosuras.activities and findings of the
Disclosure Control Committee are reported to theifGommittee.

Based on their evaluation of Signet's disclosunetimds and procedures, as of January 30, 2010raaddordance with the requirements of
Section 302 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002, the Chief Executive and Groupdfice Director have concluded that the disclosongrals ant
procedures are effective and provide reasonableasse that information regarding Signet is recdrgeocessed, summarized and reported
and that the information is accumulated and compaiad to management to allow timely decisions iggrrequired disclosure.

Management’s annual report on internal control ovdinancial reporting

Signet’s Board is responsible for establishing emadntaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act).

All internal control systems, no matter how welkidgmed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, etmse systems determined to be effective
can provide only reasonable assurance with respdictancial statement preparation and presentation

Management conducted an evaluation of internalroboter financial reporting based on the framewiorknternal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Basethis evaluation, managem
determined that Signet'’s internal control over ficial reporting was effective as of January 30,RKPMG Audit Plc, which has audited the
consolidated financial statements of Signet fadi®010, has also audited the effectiveness efriat control over financial reporting. An
unqualified opinion has been issued thereon, th&ildef which are included within this Annual Repon Form 10-K.
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors confirm that, to the best of theioktedge and belief:

» The financial statements, prepared in accordantteW® GAAP, give a true and fair view of the asskbilities, financial position
and profit for the Company and the undertakingtuhed in the consolidation taken as a whole;

» Pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Ruéeterander Chapter 4 of the UK Financial ServicesMarkets Act 2000, the
following sections of the Company’s Annual Repartform 10-K contain a fair review of the developinamd performance of the
business and the position of the Company, andrdertakings included in the consolidation takea afole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertaintieat they face

1.
2.
3.
4.

Item 1“Busines” on pages - 30

Item 1A“Risk factor” on pages 3— 38

Item 7“Managemer’'s discussion and analysis of financial conditiod eesults of operatio” on pages 5~ 87
ltem 7A“Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about retarislk” on pages 8— 89

On behalf of the board

Terry Burmar
Chief Executive

March 25, 2010

Walker Boyd
Group Finance Directc

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportmn

There were no changes in internal control ovemfiie reporting during the quarter ended Januar28@0 that have materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, internaht¢ml over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B.
None

OTHER INFORMATION
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Information concerning directors, executive off&cand corporate governance may be found undemiteons “Re-Election of Current
Directors,” “Nominees for Directors,” “Board of Rictors and Corporate Governance,” “Board Committéesecutive Officers of the
Company” and “Corporate Governance Guidelinas3ur definitive proxy statement for our 2010 AahGeneral Meeting of Shareholders (
“2010 Proxy Statement”), which will be filed withe SEC within 120 days after the close of our figear. Such information is incorporated
herein by reference. The information in the 201&xiP1Statement set forth under the caption “Sectiéf@) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information concerning executive compensation mayooind under the captions “Compensation DiscusaimhAnalysis,” “Report of the
Compensation Committee,” “Executive Compensatiard &irector Compensation (Non-Executive),” in @10 Proxy Statement. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the 2010 Proxy Statement sethfander the captions “Shareholders Who Benefici@livn At Least Five Percent of the
Common Shares” and “Ownership by Directors, Direbtominees and Executive Officers” is incorporatbedein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information in the 2010 Proxy Statement sahfander the captions “Board of Directors and CaamGovernance,” “Board Committees”
and “Transactions with Related Persons” is incaateat herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information in the 2010 Proxy Statement sehfander the caption “Appointment of IndependengiRered Public Accounting Firm” is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
PAGE

(1) The following consolidated financial statemeats included in Item ¢
Consolidated Income Statement for the fiscal yeaded January 30, 2010, January 31, 2009 and Fgl#u2008 91
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 30, &@d 0anuary 31, 20( 92
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended January 30, 2010, January 31, 20D8eaoruary 2, 200 93
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityHerfiscal years ended January 30, 2010, Jandarg@®9 and February 2,

2008 94
Consolidated Statements of Accumulated Other Cohgmrgive Income for the fiscal years ended Januar@10, January 3

2009 and February 2, 20 95
Notes to the Financial Stateme 96

(2) The following exhibits are filed as part ofgbAnnual Report on Form -K or are incorporated herein by reference. Wher
exhibit is incorporated by reference, the numbgrarenthesis indicates the document to which amefesence is made. See the
end of this exhibit index for a listing of cr-referenced document

Number

3.1

3.2
4.1
10.1

10.2*

10.3

10.4*
10.5

106 t

Description of Exhibits

Memorandum of Association of Signet Limited andtfieate of Incorporation on Change of Name to ®ighewelers Limite:
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to therany’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filegpt®mber 11, 2008
(“Form ¢&-A")).

Bye-laws of Signet Jewelers Limited (incorporated bigmence to Exhibit 3.2 to Form-A).

Form of common share certificate of Signet Jewdlarsted (incorporated by reference to Exhibit #o1Form &A).

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 30, af@hg Signet Group plc and the several purchagsrsare party theret
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to trmmpany's Annual Report on Form -F, filed May 4, 20062006 2(-F")).

First Supplemental Agreement amending the Notelase Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2008 amongS@roup plc and
the several purchasers who are party the

Second Supplemental Agreement amending the NotshBse Agreement, dated as of March 13, 2009 amigmgiSGroup plc
and the several purchasers who are party theratorfiorated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the Gany’s Annual Report on
Form 2(-F, filed April 1, 2009 “2009 2(-F")).

Depositary Agreement, dated as of September 3, B8@#een Signet Jewelers Limited and Capita IRG{Ees Limited

Amended and Restated Multicurrency Revolving FaediAgreement, dated as of March 6, 2009 amongeSigeweler
Limited, Signet Group plc, the borrowers, guarasittenders and arrangers named therein and HSBE [Baas agent of the
lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 48009 2-F).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedriiloer 12, 2008 between Sterling Jewelers Inc.Tamgy Burmar
(incorporated by reference to the Comf’s Report of Foreign Issuer on Fork-K, filed November 13, 2008
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Number

10.7 t

108 t

10.9* t
10.10 t

10.11 ¢

10.12t

10.13*1

10.14*1

10.15*1

10.16*1
10.17 1

10.18 t

10.19 t

10.20 t

10.21 ¢

10.22 t
10.23 1

Description of Exhibits

Executive Service Agreement, dated as of June99g between the Company and Walker Boyd, as amevidgdL5, 2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to ther(any’s Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed May 1@02 (File No. 033-
22663)).

Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated NovembgPQ08 between Signet Group plc and Walker Boyddiporated b
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to 2009-F).

Contract on early retirement for Walker Boyd, daSsptember 2, 2009 between Signet Jewelers Liraitedd/Valker Boyd

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiAasgust 6, 2004 between Sterling Jewelers Ind. Mark Light
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 442006 2-F).

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employwgrégement, dated as of January 12, 2006 betweelngtdeweler:
Inc. and Mark Light (incorporated by reference tdibit 4.15 to 2006 2-F).

Employment Agreement, dated March 1, 2003 betwégme$ Trading Limited and Robert Anderson (incogied by reference
to Exhibit 4.13 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -F, filed May 3, 2005)

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Employmgrégement, dated December 3, 2007 between Steltinglers Inc.
and William Montalto.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Employgrdement dated September 1, 2007 between Stdeiwglers Inc
and William Montalto.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Employgrdement dated September 1, 2006 between Stdeiwglers Inc
and William Montalto.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datedsh®g 2004 between Sterling Jewelers Inc. andidillMontalto

Signet Jewelers Limited Rules of the SharesaverSel{@corporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 ®@ompan’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Jewelers Limited Rules of the Irish Sharesdeheme (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 89the Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Jewelers Limited US Stock Option Plan 2008afporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to thenPany’s Registration
Statement on Form-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Jewelers Limited International Share OpEtan 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibi638.the Compar’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Jewelers Limited UK Approved Share OptioanF2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.the Compar’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Rules of the Signet Group 2005 L-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencexbilit 4.16 to 2006 2-F).

Rules of the Signet Group plc Sharesave Schemerfintated by reference to Exhibit 99.8 to the Comy’s Registratior
Statement on Form-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).
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Number

10.24 t

10.25 t

10.26 1

10.27 1

10.28 1

10.29 t

10.30 t

10.31
10.32 1
21.1*
23.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

32.2*

Description of Exhibits

Rules of the Signet Group plc Sharesave SchemeR€&peblic of Ireland) (incorporated by referenc&idibit 99.9 to the
Compan’s Registration Statement on Fori-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Group plc International Share Option Plad®0ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.10hte Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Group plc UK Inland Revenue Approved Shgpédd Plan 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exi9i8.10 to the
Compan'’s Registration Statement on Fori-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -153435)).

Signet Group plc Employee Stock Savings Plan (ipa@ted by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Com/s Pos-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fc-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -9634)).

Signet Group plc US Share Option Plan 2003 (incateal by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Com|'s Pos-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fc-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -134192)).

Signet Group plc 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the ComyfsmaPost-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fc-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -12304)).

Signet Group plc 1993 Executive Share Option Sch@neerporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to @wnpany’s Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration StatenemEorm $-8, filed September 11, 2008 (File No. -8964)).

Form of Letter of Appointment of Independent Digst

Form of Deed of Indemnity for Director

Subsidiaries of Signet Jewelers Limiti

Consent of independent registered public accouriting

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuado 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Seébénof the Sarban-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Seé@énof the Sarban-
Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewitt
T Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Date: March 30, 201(

Signet Jewelers Limited

By:

Name:
Title:

/s/ Walker Boyc

Walker Boyd
Group Finance Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf of |
registrant and in the capacities indicated, ordgiie set forth below.

Date

March 30, 201(

March 30, 2010

March 30, 201(

March 30, 2010

March 30, 2010

March 30, 201(

March 30, 2010

March 30, 201(

Signature

By: /s/ Terry Burmar

Terry Burman

By: /s/ Walker Boyd

Walker Boyd

By: /s/ Sir Malcolm Williamsor

Sir Malcolm Williamson

By: /s/ Robert Blanchard

Robert Blanchard

By: /s/ Dale W. Hilpert

Dale W. Hilpert

By: /s/ Marianne Miller Parr

Marianne Miller Parrs

By:/s/ Thomas G. Plaskett

Thomas G. Plaskett

By: /s/ Russell Wall

Russell Walls
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Title

Chief Executive (Principal Executive Officer andr&itor)

Group Finance Director (Principal Financial Offi@erd Director

Chairman of the Boar

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director



Exhibit 10.2

SIGNET GROUP plc

5.95% Senior Notes, Series A, due 2013
6.11% Senior Notes, Series B, due 2016
6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2018

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT
Dated as of May 16, 2008
amending the
NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Dated as of March 30, 2006




SIGNET GROUP plc
15 Golden Square
London W1F 9JG

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT
As of May 16, 2008

Re: 5.95% Senior Notes, Series A, due 2!
6.11% Senior Notes, Series B, due 2016
6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2

TO THE SEVERAL NOTEHOLDERS
WHOSE NAMES APPEAR IN THE ACCEPTANCE
FORM AT THE END HEREOF

Ladies and Gentlemen:

SIGNET GROUP plc, a public limited company incored under the laws of England and Wales (Regisfsoe 00477692) (the
“Company”) agrees with you as follows:

SECTION 1. Original Note Agreement and the Notesgiround: Proposed Amendments. Pursuant to the Riatchase Agreement
dated as of March 30, 2006 (the “Original Note Agnent”) entered into by the Company with the initihal investors named in Schedule A
thereto, the Company issued and sold $380,000,§0¢gate principal amount of senior notes in tlse@s, of which $100,000,000 aggregate
principal amount were its 5.95% Senior Notes, Sefiedue 2013 (the “Series A Notes”), $150,000,8668regate principal amount were its
6.11% Senior Notes, Series B, due 2016 (the “S&iNstes”), and $130,000,000 aggregate principawarhwere its 6.26% Senior Notes,
Series C, due 2018 (the “Series C Notes” and, tegetith the Series A Notes and the Series B Ntbes;Notes”), all of which Notes remain
outstanding on the date hereof. Unless the conthetrwise requires, capitalized terms used heréhowt definition have the respective
meanings ascribed thereto in the Original Note Agrent.

On January 10, 2008, the Company announced thatdpertion of its voting securities held by UnitSthtes residents had grown from
approximately 38% in October 2007 to just below 5@%ecember 2007 and that if the percentage veecentinue to rise over 50% the
Company would fail to qualify as a “foreign issuarid become a United States “domestic issuer” utiggerules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. For this and other reasons fbly described in its letter to holders of thetdk, dated March 18, 2007, attached
hereto as Exhibit A (the “Signet Letter”), the Ccany may become subject to the reporting, accoumtimjother requirements imposed on
domestic issuers by the Securities Act, the Sdearixchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the NaWw Stock Exchange i



applicable to the Company or any Subsidiary owvialate any provision of any statute or other rogegulation of any Governmental
Authority applicable to the Company or any Subsidia

Section 2.3. Governmental Authorizations, etc. Nosent, approval or authorization of, or registratifiling or declaration with, any
Governmental Authority is required for the validdfthe execution, delivery or performance by tloenpany of this Supplemental Agreement.
It is not necessary to ensure the legality, validinforceability or admissibility into evidenceEmgland of this Supplemental Agreement or the
Amended Note Agreement that either thereof or ahgrodocument be filed, recorded or enrolled witl &overnmental Authority, or that any
such agreement or document be stamped with anystagistration or similar transaction tax.

Section 2.4. No Default, etc. No Event of DefaulDefault has occurred and is continuing, and eeithe Company nor any of the
Company’s Subsidiaries is in default (whether arwaived) in the performance or observance of drth@terms, covenants or conditions
contained in any instrument evidencing any Findrinidebtedness and there is no pending requesidbZompany (except pursuant to this
Supplemental Agreement) or any of its Subsidigioesany amendment or waiver in respect of any coptated or possible default with resg
to such Financial Indebtedness and no event hasreccand is continuing which, with notice or lap$é¢ime or both, would become such a
default.

Section 2.5. No Undisclosed Fees. The Company diaslinectly or indirectly, paid or caused to bédpany consideration (as
supplemental or additional interest, a fee or otfiwg) to any holder of Notes or any holder (inciépacity as holder) of other Financial
Indebtedness in order to induce such holder tor émiie this Supplemental Agreement or take any o#ogion in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby, nor has the Coyrgigreed to make any such payment, except asmplated by Section 5.4 of this
Supplemental Agreement.

Section 2.6. Disclosure. Neither the financialestants and other certificates previously providethé holders of the Notes pursuant to
the provisions of the Original Note Agreement rog statements made in this Supplemental Agreenterany other written statements
furnished by or on behalf of the Company to thelbm of the Notes in connection with the transasticontemplated hereby and negotiatio
this Supplemental Agreement, taken as a whole agued at the date provided or, as applicable,atltie such information is or was dated to
apply, any untrue statement of a material factmitted a material fact necessary to make the seescontained therein and herein not
misleading. There is no fact relating to any ewmrtircumstance that has occurred or arisen siagaly 29, 2008 that has had or, so far as the
Company can now reasonably foresee, could reaspbat#xpected to have, a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3. Representation of the Noteholder. Yquresent to the Company that you are the benefigialer of Notes of the series and
in the aggregate unpaid principal amount or amosgtt$orth opposite your name in the acceptanaa fifrthis Supplemental Agreement.
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SECTION 4. Amendments of Original Note Agreemerg.dkthe Effective Date, hereafter defined,

(a) Section 7.1(c)(ii) of the Original Note Agreemhés hereby amended by inserting the text thatappbelow as bolded and underlined
and deleting the text that appears below as sthrckigh:

“(ii) each regular or periodic report, each regigtrastatement that shall have become effectiveh@ut exhibits except as expres
requested by such holder), and each final prospettd all amendments thereto fileddny Newcothe Company or any Subsidiary with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or any air@bvernmental Authority or securities exchange @frall press releases and other
statements made available generallyahy Newcothe Company or any Subsidiary to the public coriogrdevelopments that are
Material;”

(b) Section 8.4 of the Original Note Agreementeésdby amended by inserting the text that appedosvies bolded and underlined and
deleting the text that appears below as struclkugito

“8.4. Prepayment in Connection with a Change of Canol.

(a) Promptly upon becoming aware that a Change of @bh&s occurred, the Company shall give writtenceodf such fact to all
holders of the Notes. Promptly upon becoming awsasiea Change of Control Prepayment Event has cettuand in any event not later
than 21 days after the occurrence of such Chan@mofrol Prepayment Event, the Company shall gikitem notice (the ‘Change of
Control Event Notice ") of such fact to all holders of the Notes. Thea@be of Control Event Notice shall (i) describe fédets and
circumstances of such Change of Control in readerdsail, (i) refer to this Section 8.4 and tights of the holders hereunder and state
that a Change of Control Prepayment Event has cedufiii) contain an offer to prepay all Notegta price specified below on the date
therein specified (the Change of Control Prepayment Date’), which shall be a Business Day following the Passe Date referred to
below and in any event not more than 45 days #ieedate of such Change of Control Event NoticehHelder of a Note will notify the
Company of such holdex’acceptance or rejection of such offer by givindten notice of such acceptance or rejection &Gompany o
or before the date for such notice specified imdDbhange of Control Event Notice (th&&sponse Daté), which specified date shall be
not less than 30 days after the date of such Chaih@entrol Event Notice. The Company shall prepaythe Change of Control
Prepayment Date all of the Notes held by the healdsrto which such offer has been so acceptedifiglunderstood that the failure of
any holder to accept such offer on or before thgpRese Date shall be deemed to constitute rejebticuch holder), at the principal
amount of each such Note together with interestugetthereon to the Change of Control Prepaymet#,Dathout any
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premium. If any holder shall reject (or be deeneetave rejected) such offer with respect to anyeN@tid by such holder on or before
Response Date, such holder shall be deemed towsived its rights under this Section 8.4 to regpirepayment of such Note for which
such offer was rejected (or deemed rejected) ipeetsof such Change of Control Prepayment Evenhbuin respect of any subsequent
Change of Control Prepayment Event.

For purposes of this Section 8.4, any holder oferiban one Note may act separately with respesa¢b Note so held (with the
effect that a holder of more than one Note may ptcsgch offer with respect to one or more Notekedd and reject such offer with
respect to one or more other Notes so held).

As used herein aChange of Control” shall be deemed to occuxcept as otherwise provided in Section 8.4(b)f at any time
following the Closing any Person, or group of Passacting in concert, acquires (i) the power (whetty way of ownership of shares,
proxy, contract, agency or otherwise) to (x) castontrol the casting of, more than one-half @& thaximum number of votes that might
be cast at a general meeting of the Company, @afpdint or remove all, or the majority, of theeditors or other equivalent officers of
the Company, or (z) give directions with respedhoperating and financial policies of the Compwanhich the directors or other
equivalent officers of the Company are obligeddmply with or (ii) more than one-half of the issusithre capital of the Company
(excluding any part of that issued share capita tlarries no right to participate in a distribatif either profits or capital or whose right
to so participate is to participate only up to adfied amount); and for such purpose, two or niteesons shall be deemed to karting
in concert” if, pursuant to an agreement or understandingefivr formal or informal) between them, they adyivaoperate, in the
acquisition by any one or more of them, eitheratlyeor indirectly, of shares in the Company, othe doing, or in the procuring of the
doing, of any act that results in an increase énptoportion of such shares held by any one or mmbtieem. A “Change of Control
Prepayment Event” shall be deemed to occur if (i) on the date orclwta Change of Control occurs there are Ratedriesubelow
Investment Grade or the Company itself has a ctiregimg by an internationally recognized creditrrg agency that is below Investment
Grade or (ii) within 90 days after the date on vihseich Change of Control occurs, a Rating Downgoaters as a result of such Change
of Control or (iii) if at such time of such ChangeControl there are no Rated Securities and thag@2my itself has no such rating, the
Company fails within 90 days after the date on Wwigach Change of Control occurs to obtain (whellyefiailing to seek a rating or
otherwise) from an internationally recognized crediing agency a rating of at least Investment@&rar either the Company or the
Notes or any other unsecured and unsubordinatexh&i@ Indebtedness of the Company having an imitagturity of five years or more
or (iv) from and after the consummation of the Trarsaction or the Approved Alternative Transaction, tre Company ceases to be,
directly or indirectly, a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Parent



Newco. “ Rated Securities” means securities evidencing unsecured and undimated Financial Indebtedness of the Companyrigavi
an initial maturity of five years or more that aated by any internationally recognized creditmatagency; dRating Downgrade”

means a downgrade in the rating of the Companif ds@eny Rated Securities, as the case may b&hdwpplicable rating agency as a
result of which either such rating falls below Istraent Grade; andlfivestment Grade” means (i) if such rating agency is Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Group, a rating of at least “BBRii), if such rating agency is Moody'’s Investors Bee Inc., a rating of at least “Baa3”
and (iii) the equivalent of the ratings describedij and (ii) above for any other internationalgcognized rating agency.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fath herein, no Change of Control shall be deemed toccur for the
purposes of Section 8.4(a) upon the consummation @f the Transaction or (ii) any other transaction(“Approved Alternative
Transaction”) where one or more Newcos directly oindirectly gain control of the Company in connectim with, or as a result of, a
scheme of arrangement of, or other transaction inMaing, the Company where as a consequence of suatheme of arrangement ol
transaction the existing shareholders of the Companimmediately prior to such scheme of arrangementroother transaction being
effected become the sole shareholders in (or solelthers of the ownership interests in) a Newco whichecomes the Parent Newco
and, as a consequence of such scheme of arrangemeanother transaction, directly or indirectly controls the Company, provided
that, in the case of clause (ii) only, the MajorityHolders shall have approved such scheme of arrangent or other transaction
(such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or dlayed) prior to its consummation.

As used herein “Transaction” means the implementatin by the Company of a scheme of arrangement undéine Companies
Acts 1985 and 2006 or any other transaction (includg a takeover offer by a Newco under the Companie&cts 1985 and 2006, the
City Code on Takeovers and Mergers and other applable laws and regulations) pursuant to which (i) te shareholders of the
Company agree to the cancellation and/or, as the sa may be, sale or transfer of their shareholdinga the Company in exchange
for shares in a Newco, and (ii) such Newco, in tutras the Parent Newco subscribes for new sharestire Company and/or
acquires the existing shares in the Company from thCompany’s then current shareholders, provided thiamore than one Newco
may be interposed between the Company and its thewrrent shareholders under the foregoing scheme afrrangement or other
transaction described in this paragraph and providé further that the net effect of these steps shalie that the Company becomes
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of one or more Newcos busiindirectly owned by the same shareholders as th@svho owned it directly
prior to the transaction.”



With effect from the date on which the Transactionor any Approved Alternative Transaction is consummaéed, the provisions
of Section 8.4(a) shall be construed so as to apptythe Parent Newco.”

(c) Section 9 of the Original Note Agreement isdigramended by adding a Section 9.10 thereto rgadliits entirety as follows:

“9.10. Additional Newco Requirements.
If the Transaction or any Approved Alternative Tsaation shall be consummated at any time:

(a) promptly and in any event within 10 Businesy®after the date of consummation of the Transaaiathe Approved
Alternative Transaction, as the case may be, thmp@ay shall give written notice thereof to eachdeolof a Note, accompanied by a
copy of the Scheme Circular or other disclosureuduent delivered to the Company’s shareholders desgrthe Transaction or such
Approved Alternative Transaction;

(b) promptly and in any event within 20 Businesy®after the date of consummation of the Transaaiahe Approved
Alternative Transaction, as the case maybe, eagitdléhe “Newco Guarantors”) shall execute and deliver a guarantee substantie
the form of Exhibit 9.10(a) (individually aNewco Guarante€’ and collectively the ‘Newco Guarantees) and, in the case of the
Parent Newco, an accession (th&ctession Agreement) to this Agreement substantially in the form oftibit 9.10(b). Concurrently
therewith, the Company will furnish each holdethe# Notes (i) a counterpart of each such executtdd Guarantee and Accession
Agreement, (ii) the documents described in Ext9i0(c) and (iii) an opinion or opinions of counsshsonably satisfactory to the
Majority Holders (which opinion or opinions sha# beasonably satisfactory to the Majority Holderd enay be subject to customary
exceptions, qualifications and limitations under dircumstances none of which may relate to theratesof shareholder approval, to any
statutory borrowing limit binding on such Newcoriggiexceeded or to any limitation on the enforcéghilf the Newco Guarantee of the
Parent Newco), as to the due authorization, exacw@nd delivery and enforceability of such Newcafamtee and Accession Agreement
and the other applicable matters relating to SudnsidGuarantors and Subsidiary Guarantees cover@gpinions delivered pursuant to
Section 4.4; it being acknowledged and agreeddpitions substantially in the respective forms ghibits 9.10(d) and (e) are
satisfactory; and



(c) the following amendments to this AgreementIstiaiomatically (without any further action on tbart of the Company or any
holder of a Note) take effect from and after thestonmation of the Transaction or any Approved Alive Transaction:

(i) except as otherwise provided in this SectidiD9each:
(A) right, entitlement, permission, cure periodaoly other period of time in which to perform ary and
(B) each obligation or duty of or restriction,

as the case may be, of, on or applied to the Compamtained in Sections 7, 9, and 10 of this Agreenshall also be
available to or apply to (as the case may be) #rerR Newco and/or its Subsidiaries, it being aekadged and agre:
that from and after the consummation of the Tratsaor any Approved Alternative Transaction, tregdht Newco
and its Subsidiaries shall have the same right#tleaments, permissions, cure periods, or any opleeiods of time in
which to perform any act, as well as the same abibgs and duties and be subject to the sameatstis under said
Sections of this Agreement as the Company anduitsi8iaries had been prior to the Transaction grAgsproved
Alternative Transaction;

(ii) for the purposes of this Agreement:

(A) each Newco Guarantor that is a Subsidiary efRlarent Newco shall be entitled to do or be &sttifrom
doing all such things as a Subsidiary Guarantentgled to do or is restricted from doing in aatamce with the terms
of this Agreement and

(B) each Subsidiary of the Parent Newco shall hiles to do or be restricted from doing all submgs as a
Subsidiary of the Company is entitled to do oristricted from doing in accordance with the terithis Agreement,

including, without limitation, entering into sucgr@ements and incurring such Financial Indebtedaedther
liabilities and disposing of such assets and angagiich Liens as and to the extent the Compani, Subsidiary
Guarantor or any other Subsidiary member of theu@@s applicable) is so permitted to do and,Hesé purposes, a
Subsidiary of the Parent Newco shall be deemee t& tmember of the Group, and a Newco Guarantoigizat
Subsidiary of the Parent Newco (and any other Perdach guarantees the obligations of the Compardeuthis
Agreement) shall be deemed to be a Subsidiary @taral he rights and obligations of the partiesanttiis
Agreement shall be construed so as to give fudatffo this provision;
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(i) Section 9.5 of this Agreement shall be amehtg inserting the text that appears below as labédel underlined and
deleting the text that appears below as struclkutitro

“Subject to Section 10.5, tHearent Newcowill at all times preserve and keep in full foraedeeffect its corporate
existenceand the corporate existence of the CompanySubject to Sections 10.4 and 10.5, Baeent Newcowill at all
times preserve and keep in full force and effeetdbrporate existence of each ofdteer Subsidiaries (unless merged into
the Companythe Parent Newcoor another Wholly-Owned Subsidiary) and all rightsl franchises of thearent Newco
and its Subsidiaries unless, in the good faith oelgt of theParent Newco, the termination of or failure to preserve and
keep in full force and effect such corporate exiség right or franchise could not, individuallyiorthe aggregate, have a
Material Adverse Effect.”

(iv) The first paragraph of Section 9.6(d) of thigréement shall be amended by inserting the tex@ihears below as bold
and underlined and deleting the text that appeglsibas struck through:

“(d) Without limiting the requirements of Sectior6@a)or the right of the Parent Newco and the Company teause
any of their respective Subsidiaries to become Adtibnal Subsidiary Guarantors at any time at their dection , the
Parent Newco andthe Company will ensure thdte Parent Newco, the Company and all Subsidiary Guarantors atra#s
to account for (i) at least 75% of Consolidatedal dtssets as of the last day of the then most thcended half-year
accounting period and (ii) at least 75% of ConsikdEarnings Before Interest and Tax and consolidated turnowette
period of two half-year accounting periods then tmesently ended, in each case as adjusted as Ipetwided. Ifthe
Parent Newco, the Company and aluch Subsidiary Guarantors at any time account for tleas the foregoing required
percentage of Consolidated Total Assets, Consealitiearnings Before Interest and Tax or consolidated turnovesnt
within 30 days of becoming aware of this fdu Parent Newco andhe Company shall cause one or more Subsidiafies
the Parent Newcato become Additional Subsidiary Guarantors as afticeso that after giving effect thereto the Conypan
will be in compliance with the requirements of firet sentence of this paragraph (d). For purpa$ekis paragraph (d):”

(v) Section 9.6 of this Agreement shall be amenaethserting the text that appears below as bodetunderlined as
paragraph (e) thereto:

“(e) Without limiting the requirements of Section (@) the Parent Newco and the Company have thétoglause ar
of their



respective Subsidiaries to become Additional Suasidsuarantors at any time at their election, encompliance with the
requirements of this Section 9.6.”

(vi) Section 9.8 of this Agreement shall be amenlggéserting the text that appears below as boédetlunderlined:

“The Companyand the Parent Newcaowill ensure that the payment obligations of the @any under this Agreement
and the Noteghe payment obligations of each Newco under its New Guaranteeand the payment obligations of each
Subsidiary Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guaramtéeat all times rank at least pari passu withosher present and future
unsecured and unsubordinated Financial Indebtedriebe Companysuch Newcoand such Subsidiary, respectively, ex
for obligations mandatorily preferred by law applyito companies generally.”

(vii) Section 9.9 of this Agreement shall apply wéqual force and effect to the Parent Newco, dsas¢he Company, and
for the purposes of said Section 9.9 a Financiak@ant shall be deemed to be more restrictive tippiParent Newco, the
Company, their respective Subsidiaries or the Gragghe case may be, and incorporated by refeierthis Agreement in
accordance with the provisions of said Sectionf&t® frequency with which the applicable numekiceeasure of such Person’s
financial condition or results of operations isctdéted is more than every six months;

(viii) Section 10.5 of this Agreement shall applitwequal force and effect to the Parent Newcayalsas the Company, and
the covenants and conditions so assumed by thessmcformed by such consolidation or the survdf@uch merger or the Person
that acquires by conveyance, transfer or leasar alibstantially all of the assets of the Parent¢teas an entirety, as the case may
be, shall be those set forth in the Newco Guaraoitéiee Parent Newco and the covenants of the Phl@mco under this
Agreement;

(ix) with respect to Sections 11(f), (g), (h), (i) and (1) of this Agreement, each referencéaé“Company” shall also be
deemed to include each Newco; with respect to &edti (c) of this Agreement, each reference to @enipany” shall also be
deemed to include the Parent Newco; with respeSetdions 11(d) and (e) of this Agreement, eacéreeice to the “Company”
shall also be deemed to include the Parent Newoesipect of this Agreement and, in the case ofselda), the Accession
Agreement; and with respect to Sections 11(d)age) (j) of this Agreement, each reference to “Sdibsy Guarantee” or
“Subsidiary Guarantor” shall also be deemed toudeleach Newco Guarantee and each Newco, respgctive
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(x) in Sections 17, 18, 20 and 21 of this Agreement

(A) each reference to the “Company” shall be deetoedclude the Parent Newco and in Section 1/Pent Newco
in respect of its Newco Guarantee and this Agre¢naenl

(B) each reference to the “Company’s Subsidiar@ghe “Company’s Affiliates” shall be deemed aereihce to the
Parent Newco’s Subsidiaries and Affiliates, respebt, as the context requires;

(xi) the following definitions set forth in ScheduB to this Agreement shall be amended so that edielence to the
“Company” shall be deemed to be to the Parent Neamcbeach reference to the “Company and/or itsiBiabies” shall be deemed
to be to the Parent Newco and/or its Subsidiaresgectively, as the context requires:

Affiliate

ERISA Affiliate
Governmental Authority
Material Subsidiary
Non-US. Plan

Plan

(xii) Schedule B to this Agreement shall be amengledodifying the following definitions by insertirthe text that appears
below as bolded and underlined and deleting thietlex appears below, as struck through:

“ “ Bank Credit Facility ” means (a) the Existing Bank Credit Facility ab)l &ny other working capital credit, loan or
borrowing facility (including any renewal, extensjaeplacement or refinancing of a then existingkiy capital facility)
entered into on or after the date of the Closingusy member of the Groupin a principal amount equal to or greater than
$75,000,000 (or the equivalent in the relevantenoy of payment, determined as of the date ofitren€ial closing of such
working capital facility based on the exchange ddtsuch other currency for sterling).

“ Consolidated Tangible Net Worth” means, at any time, the aggregate of the amaqaitsup or credited as paid up
on the issued share capitaltbé Parent Newco(other than any Redeemable Shares) and the aggragatunt of the
reserves of the Group, including but not limited to

(a) any amount credited to the share premium ad¢goun
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(b) any capital redemption reserve fund; and

(c) any balance standing to the credit of the clidated profit and loss account of the Group,
but deducting:

(i) any debit balance on the consolidated profit brss account of the Group;

(ii) (to the extent included) any amount shownespect of goodwill (including goodwill arising onbyn
consolidation) or other intangible assets of theuprand interests of non Group members in Groupidiatvies;

(iii) (to the extent included) any amount set admtetaxation, deferred taxation or bad debts; and

(iv) (to the extent included) any amounts arisirgnf an upward revaluation of assets made at argy aifter
January 31, 2004,

and so that no amount shall be included or excludece than once.

“ Financial Covenant” means, in respect of a Bank Credit Facility asfiiect from time to time, any financial
covenant that relates specifically to one or mamaerical measures of the financial condition oultssof operations ahe
Parent Newco,the Companytheir respective Subsidiaries or the Group (however expressed amth&hstated as a ratio, a
fixed threshold, an event of default or otherwise).

“ Group " means at any timthe Parent Newco, the Company and itheir respective Subsidiaries at such time; an
“ member of the Group” meansthe Parent Newco, the Company or any such Subsidiary that at saoh is included in
the Group.

“ Majority Holders ” means, at any time, the holders of at least anitgjin principal amount of the Notes at the time
outstanding (exclusive of Notes then ownedhm Parent Newcothe Company or any dffieir respective Affiliates).

“ Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (a) the basjr@perations, affairs, property or
condition (financial or other) of the Group takenaawhole, or (b) the ability of the Company tofpen its obligations unde
this Agreement and the Notebe Parent Newco to perform its obligations underhis Agreement or
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its Newco Guaranteeor the other Newcos andhe Subsidiary Guarantoitsken as a wholeto perform their respective
payment obligations undéne Newco Guarantees anthe Subsidiary Guaranteesspectively, or (c) the validity or
enforceability of this Agreement, the Notasy Newco Guaranteeor any Subsidiary Guarantee.

“ Officer’s Certificate ” means a certificate of a Senior Financial Offioeof any other officer athe Parent Newco
or the Companyas the case may bewhose responsibilities extend to the subjectenatt such certificate.

“ Redeemable ShareSmeans any issued shares in the capitdhefParent Newco orthe Companyas the case may
be (other than any deferred shares which are redeenbgtthe Company for an amount not exceeding £1(00ids
equivalent in the currency of payment) for the entiass of deferred shares) which are redeemattier(than solely at the
option ofthe Parent Newco othe Companyas the case may beor for the purposes of conversion pursuant tcchviie
entire amount payable to the shareholder is pravalé of the proceeds of a fresh issue of shareth&b purpose) on or
before May 23, 2019.

“ Relevant Period” means each period of twelve months ending orasieday ofthe Parent Newco'sfinancial year
and each period of twelve months ending on thedagtof the first half othe Parent Newco'sfinancial year.

“ Responsible Officer” means any Senior Financial Officer and any otifécer of the Parent Newco orthe
Companyas the case may bewith responsibility for the administration of teabject matter of the relevant portion of this
Agreement.

“ Senior Financial Officer ” means the executive chairmajef executive officer, managing director, finance
director or chief accounting officeoy their equivalents, of the Parent Newco orthe Companyas the case may be

“ Subsidiary " means, as to any Person, any corporation or dithginess entity at least a majority of the comthine
voting power of all Voting Shares of which is owneédectly or indirectly, by such Person. Unless tontext otherwise
clearly requires, any reference to a “Subsidiasyd reference to a Subsidiarytbé Parent Newco.

“ Wholly-Owned Subsidiary ” means, at any time, any Subsidiary all of the borad voting power of all Voting
Shares of which is owned lbtlye Parent Newcoor by one or more Wholly-Owned Subsidiariesred Parent Newco.” ”

13



(d) Schedule B to the Original Note Agreement isehg amended by inserting in alphabetical ordefaHewing definitions, in each ca:
to read as follows:

“ Approved Alternative Transaction ” is defined in Section 8.4(b).

“ Newco” means a corporation, limited liability companyather entity incorporated, organized or domicited Permitted
Jurisdiction as a part of, and for the purposergflementing, either the Transaction or an Appro&kdrnative Transaction.

“ Newco Accession Agreemeritis defined in Section 9.10.
“ Newco Guarante€' is defined in Section 9.10.

“ Parent Newco” means the Newco that from and after and as aezprence of the consummation of the Transactioheor t
Approved Alternative Transaction, as the case negysbhall (a) be owned by the same shareholdef®as tvho owned the Company
directly prior to the Transaction or the Approvellefnative Transaction, as the case may be, anowh)either directly or indirectly all
the combined voting power of the Voting Shareshef Company.

“ Transaction” is defined in Section 8.4(b).”

(e) the definition of “GAAP” set forth in ScheduBeto the Original Note Agreement is hereby amenuethserting the text that appears
below as bolded and underlined:

“ GAAP " means generally accepted accounting principledding International Financial Reporting Standaiflapplicable) in
effect from time to time in the applicable juristitim. Unless the context otherwise requires, dnences to “"GAAP” shall be deemed to
mean GAAP in the United Kingdoprior to the date the Company or the Parent Newcosi required or elects to file its U.S. GAAP
accounts with the Securities and Exchange Commissipand GAAP in the United States on and after suctate .”

(f) the definition of “Permitted Jurisdiction” skdrth in Schedule B to the Original Note Agreemisrtiereby amended by inserting the
text that appears below as bolded and underlinddlaleting the text that appears below as strudutih:

“ * Permitted Jurisdiction ” means (a) the United States of America or anyeSteereof, (b) Canada or any Province thereof,

(c) Australia or any State thereof, (d) Switzerlafe) any country that on April 30, 2004 was a mentdf the European Union (other than
Greece, Italy, Portugal or Spaiad (f) Bermuda.”
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(g) the Original Note Agreement is hereby amendedttaching thereto, as Exhibits 9.10(a), (b), (@),and (e), the Form of Newco
Guarantee, the Form of Newco Accession AgreemieatDbcuments to be Delivered by each Newco andeygective forms of opinions of
counsel to the Newcos attached hereto as Exhibi, B, E and F, respectively.

SECTION 5. Effectiveness of this Supplemental Agrest. This Supplemental Agreement will become éffecon the date (the
“Effective Date”) on which all of the following calitions precedent shall have been satisfied angdhties hereto are so advised in writing by
your special counse

Section 5.1. Proceedings. All proceedings takethbyCompany in connection with this Supplementaleggnent and all documents and
papers incident thereto shall be satisfactory 1o gd your special counsel (acting reasonably),yaudand your special counsel shall have
received all such counterpart originals or cerdifte other copies of such documents and papers faltm and substance satisfactory to you
and your special counsel (acting reasonably), aoydhey may reasonably request in connectioretiign.

Section 5.2. Execution of this Supplemental Agregim@ounterparts of this Supplemental Agreemenit Baae been executed and
delivered to each other by the Company and alldrsldf the Notes.

Section 5.3. Representations and Warranties. Tgresentations and warranties of the Company caeddim Section 2 of this
Supplemental Agreement shall be true and correeinohas of the Effective Date; provided, howeveat the Effective Date shall be deemed to
have occurred notwithstanding any such representati warranty proving to have been false or inectrin any material respect on such da
in the case of any such representation or warriéatyis capable of being cured, the same shalubedadiligently and in good faith and in any
event within 30 days after the Company shall becamare of the falseness or incorrectness thereof.

Section 5.4. Payment of Fees. The Company shadl paid (a) to you and each other holder of a Nmteyire transfer as provided in
Schedule A to the Original Note Agreement (or ta yosuch other manner or to such other addregewashall have specified in writing to the
Company at least one Business Day before the BféeBtate) an amendment fee equal to 0.10% of theeggte unpaid principal amount of
Notes respectively held by you and such other h@deset forth opposite your and their names iratteeptance form of this Supplemer
Agreement, and (b) the fees and disbursementswfspecial counsel as contemplated by SectiontBi®Supplemental Agreement.

SECTION 6. Expenses. Without limiting the geneyatif Section 16.1 of the Amended Note Agreemer,Gompany agrees, whether or
not the transactions contemplated hereby are comsued, to pay the reasonable fees and disbursewi@nilkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, you
special counsel, for their services rendered imecotion with such transactions and with respethi®Supplemental Agreement and any other
document delivered pursuant to this Supplementatdment.
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In furtherance of the foregoing, on the Effectivat®the Company will pay or cause to be paid taeaeable fees and disbursements of
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP which are reflectedtine statement of such firm delivered to the Corgganor to the Effective Date. The
Company will also pay promptly upon receipt of sleppental statements therefor, reasonable additfeeal if any, and disbursements of such
firm in connection with the transactions contemgdialhereby (including disbursements unposted dseoEffective Date).

SECTION 7. Ratification. Except as amended hert#igyOriginal Note Agreement is in all respectsfiediand confirmed and the
provisions thereof shall remain in full force arfteet including, without limitation, the rights ¢fie Company thereunder.

SECTION 8. Counterparts. This Supplemental Agregmety be executed in two or more counterparts, e&ethich shall be deemed
original, but all of which together shall constéuine and the same instrument.

SECTION 9. Governing Law. This Supplemental Agreetighall be governed by and construed in accordaitbethe laws of the State
of New York, excluding choice-of-law principles thfe law of such State that would permit the apfibeaof the laws of a jurisdiction other
than such State.

SECTION 10. Subsidiary Guarantors. By signing anterpart of this Supplemental Agreement in the spmdow provided, each
Subsidiary Guarantor acknowledges the foregoingnaiments and confirms its Subsidiary Guaranteespeaet of the Amended Note
Agreement.

If you are in agreement with the foregoing, plesiga the form of acceptance in the space belowigeoly whereupon this Supplemental
Agreement shall become a binding agreement amoungtlye Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors, sutgidecoming effective as
hereinabove provided.

SIGNET GROUP PLC
By: /s/ Malcolm Williamson

Name: Sir Malcolm Williamsoil
Title: Chairmar

By: /s/ Walker Boyc
Name: Walker Boy(
Title: Group Finance Directc
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The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

The Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company

American General Life Insurance Company

AIG Life Insurance Company

American International Life Assurance Company of Nev York

The United States Life Insurance Company in the Cit of New York

By: AIG Global Investment Corp.,
investment advisor

By: /s/ Lorri J. White
Name: Lorri J. White
Title: Managing Directo

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

$
27,000,00
(Series C
$
15,000,00
(Series C
$
10,000,00
(Series C
$
5,000,001
(Series C
$
5,000,00!
(Serie<C)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

One Madison Investments (CAYCO) Limited

By: Metropolitan Life Insurance Company,
as investment manag

By: /s/ Judith A. Gulotta

Name: Judith A. Gulotta

Title: Managing Directo

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

$
14,000,00
(Series B}
$
26,000,00
(Serie<C)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Life Insurance Company

By: Principal Global Investors, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
its authorized signatot

By: /s/ Debra Svoboda EF

Name: DEBRA SVOBODA EPF

Title: COUNSEL

By: /s/ James C. Fifiel

Name: JAMES C. FIFIELD,

Title:  Assistant General Couns

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

14,000,00
(Series B}



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Symetra Life Insurance Company,
a Washington corporation

By: Principal Global Investors, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
its authorized signatot

By: /s/ Debra Svoboda EF

Name: DEBRA SVOBODA EPF

Title: COUNSEL

By: /s/ James C. Fifiel

Name: JAMES C. FIFIELD,

Title: Assistant General Couns

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

14,000,00
(Serie<B)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes
The Bank of New York,

as trustee for the Scottish Re (U.S.), Inc. andityclife of Denver Insurance Company Security Strhy $ 1,400,001
Agreement dated December 31, 2! (Series B}

By: Principal Global Investors, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
its authorized signatot

By: /s/ Debra Svoboda EF
Name: DEBRA SVOBODA EPP
Title: COUNSEL

By: /s/ James C. Fifield
Name: JAMES C. FIFIELD,
Title: Assistant General Counsel




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and
Series of Notes

$ 25,000,00
(Series A)

Midland National Life Insurance Company

By: Guggenheim Partners Advisory Company, its agent

By: /s/ Michael Damas
Name: Michael Damaso
Title: Senior Managing Directc




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

ING USA Annuity and Life Insurance Company

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company

Security Life of Denver Insurance Company

ING Life Insurance and Annuity Company

By: ING Investment Management LLC,
as Agent

By: /s/ James V. Wittich

Name: James V. Wittict
Title:  Senior Vice Presider

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

$
4,000,001
(Series A)
$
5,000,001
Series (C
$
11,000,00
(Series A)
$
7,000,001
(Series C
$
3,000,001
(Serie<C)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

Transamerica Occidental Life Insurance Company $
10,000,00
(Series B}
$
20,000,00
(Series C

By: /s/ Debra R. Thompson
Name: Debra R. Thompso
Title:  Vice - President




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and
Series of Notes
AXA Equitable Life Insurance Company $
17,000,00
(Series B}

By: /s/ Amy Judc
Name: Amy Judd
Title: Investment Office




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes
MONY Life Insurance Company $ 8,000,00!
(Series B}

By: /s/ Amy Judc
Name: Amy Judd
Title:  Investment Office




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Connecticut General Life Insurance Company

Life Insurance Company of North America

By: CIGNA Investments, Inc.
(authorized agen

By: /s/ Leonard Mazlish

Name: Leonard Mazlist
Title: Managing Directo

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

$
17,000,00
(Series A)
$
3,000,001
(SeriecA)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount

Series C Notes
The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America $

18,000,00
(Series B}

By: /s/ Ellen I. Whittake|
Name: Ellen I. Whittaker
Title:  Senior Director, Private Placeme




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

CUNA Mutual Life Insurance Company

CUNA Mutual Insurance Society

CUMIS Insurance Society

Members Life Insurance Company

By: Members Capital Advisors, Inc.,
acting as Investment Advisc

By: /s/ James E. McDonald Jr.

Name: James E. McDonald J

Title: Director, Private Placements

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

3,150,001
(Series A)

2,700,001
Series (B}

3,150,00!
Series (C

2,100,001
(Series A)

1,800,001
(Series B}

2,100,001
(Series C

1,050,00t
(Series A)

900,00(
(Series B}

1,050,001
(Series C

700,00(
(Series A)

600,00(
(Series B}

700,00(
(Series C).



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c.

By: /s/ Paul Whitehea

Name: Paul Whitehead

Title:  Senior Relationship Manag

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

13,000,00
(Series A)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

Genworth Life Insurance Company $ 8,000,00!
(Series A)

Genworth Life and Annuity Insurance Company $ 4,000,001
(Series B;

By: /s/ Annette M. Teders
Name: Annette M. Teder.
Title: Investment Office




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of Ameta

By: /s/ Brian Roelat:
Name: Brian Roelate
Title: Director

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

15,000,00
(Series B}



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America

By: Allianz of America, Inc.,
as Authorized Signatory and Investment Man:

By: /s/ Brian Landry

Name: Brian Landry

Title: Vice Presiden

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

12,000,00
(Series A)



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

American Equity Investment Life Insurance Company

By: /s/ Greg Carstensen
Name: Greg Carstense
Title:  VP-Investment

Principal Amount and

$

Series of Notes

9,000,001
(Series B;



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Aviva Life Insurance Company

By: Aviva Capital Management, Inc., its authorized
attornein-fact

By: /s/ Roger D. For

Name: Roger D. For:
Title: VP-Private Placemen

Principal Amount and

$

Series of Notes

5,600,00i
(Series B;



The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and

Series of Notes

Ohio National Life Assurance Corporation $ 3,000,00!
(Series B;

The Ohio National Life Insurance Company $ 1,000,001
(Series B;

By: /s/ Jed R. Martin
Name: Jed R. Martir
Title: Vice President Private Placeme




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of Americi

By: /s/ Annette M. Masterson

Name: Annette M. Masterso

Title: Vice President

Principal Amount and

$

Series of Notes

4,000,00t
(Series B;



Signet Group Plc
6.110% Guaranteed Senior Notes due May 23, 2016
First Supplemental Agreement dated May 16, 2008

The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008
Principal Amount and
Series of Notes
Sun Life and Health Insurance Company (U.S. $ 4,000,00!
(Series B;

By: /s/ Arthur N. Baril
Name: Arthur N. Baril
Title:  Senior Director, Private Fixed Incor

By: /s/ Deborah J. Fos
Name: Deborah J. Fos
Title: Managing Director, Head of Private De
Private Fixed Incom




The foregoing is hereby agreed and
accepted this 16th day of May, 2008

Principal Amount and
Series of Notes

Assurity Life Insurance Company (successor in interest to Security Financial Lifsurance Co.) $ 2,000,00!
(Series B;

By: /s/ Victor Weber
Name: Victor Weber
Title:  Senior Director Investment:




We acknowledge the foregoing and confirm our
respective Subsidiary Guarantees.

Checkbury Limited

By: /s/ Walker Boyc

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc

Ernest Jones Limited

By: /s/ Walker Boyd

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc

H. Samuel Limited

By: /s/ Walker Boyd

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc

Signet Holdings Limited

By: /s/ Walker Boyc

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc



Sterling Inc.

By: /s/ Terry Burmar

Name: Terry Burmar
Title:  Group Chief Executiv

Sterling Jewelers Inc.

By: /s/ Walker Boyd

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc



Sterling Inc.

By: /s/ Terry Burmar

Name: Terry Burmar
Title:  Group Chief Executiv

Sterling Jewelers Inc.

By: /s/ Walker Boyd

Name: Walker Boyd
Title:  Group Finance Directc



Exhibit A
Signet Lettel



SIGNET

To: The holders of the Notes described be

18t March, 200

Dear Sirs,

Note Purchase Agreement dated 30 March 2006 madetleen Signet Group plc (“Signet”) and the purchases named therein (the
“NPA”) and the 5.95% Series A Senior Notes due 201&e 6.11% Senior B Senior Notes due 2016 and t6e26% Series C Senior Notes
due 2018 issued pursuant to the NPA (the “Notes”)

Unless defined in this letter or the context ottisewequires, terms defined in the NPA have theesam@aning when used in this letter.

1.2

13

BACKGROUND

Signet currently has a primary listing on the Lon®tock Exchange and a secondary listing of Amarigapositary Shares on the N
York Stock Exchange (NYSE ”). As announced by Signet on 10 January 2008, rasut of recent changes in the beneficial owriprsh
of its shares it is possible that over 50% of litares will, in the future, become beneficially owr®y persons who are resident in the
United States of Americi

If this occurs Signet will los“foreign private issu” status in the US, meaning that Signet would thedldssed as a U*domestic
issuer” and would be subject to increased reporgggiirements under the rules of the SecuritiesEamthange Commission GEC ")
and relevant US legislation (including the SecesitAct of 1933, the Exchange Act of 1934 and thesraf the NYSE). In addition, as a
domestic issuer, Signet would be required to peepad file accounts under US GAAP on forms 10-K &0Q. Signet would remain a
UK incorporated company, with a primary Londonifigt and would therefore be subject to UK compalégsslation, regulation by the
Financial Services Authority, and compliance witk tequirements of the Listing, Prospectus, Disosind Transparency Rules (*
LPDT Rules”). Signet is (and would be) required to prepare aedaficounts under IFRS in the U

To reduce the complication and expense of havirgptoply with these parallel regimes, it is propotet Signet will consider cancellil
its listing on the London Stock Exchange and thideavco (as defined below) obtain a primary listonmgthe NYSE and potentially seek a
secondary listing on the London Stock Exchangepdss of that process it is proposed that Signetement a scheme of arrangement
under the English Companies Acts 1985 and 200@athar transaction is effected (including a takemfter by a Newco (as defined
below) under the English Companies Acts 1985 arib2the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers and aftyglicable laws and
regulations) pursuant to which the shareholdeiSigfiet would agree to the cancellation or, as #se enay be, sale or transfer of their
shareholdings in Signet in exchange for the is§ishares in a newly incorporated companiNéwco”) whose jurisdiction of
incorporation is yet to be determined. Newco woiridurn, subscribe for new shares in Signet andéojuire the existing shares in Sig
from its then current shareholders. It may be resmgsto interpose more than one Newco or otherialpgarpose vehicle between Signet
and its then current shareholders under the scloér@angement or other transactions descr
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1.6

1.7

above. The net effect of these steps would beSiugtet becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of a Nelmdds indirectly owned by the
same shareholders as those who owned it diredtly far the transactior

In view of the increase in the proportion of bheficial ownership Signet also considers that dlve longer term it would be more
appropriate for its shareholders that its priméstjrlg is ultimately maintained on the NYSE on basis that investors will develop a
better understanding of Signet’s business, be closthe economic environment and not have thadgarexchange risk which UK
investors have. A change in listing would therefpotentially encourage shareholder value. It waldd potentially facilitate Signet’s
access to US Capital Markets in the future, shthidheed arise

Execution of this strategy by way of a scheme cdragement requires a minimum of 75% shareholderoappby value and a majority
number which may or may not be forthcoming. Altéiweamethods of executing this strategy may alspiire shareholder approval. In
order to proceed with a recommendation to the Boarthis issue the Company seeks to ensure thaixdeution of the scheme of
arrangement or other transaction described abogg Kot present any issues for its lender grougifpaly lending banks and holders
the Notes). Upon review of the documentation bieieved that the scheme of arrangement would tealy constitute a Change of
Control as defined in both the NPA and Existing B&medit Facility as a Newco will become the 1008argholder of Signe

On 25 February 2008 Signet obtained the necessaigeats under the Existing Bank Credit Facilitynbplement the transactiol
described in paragraphs 1.3 and 1.4 above withiggfetring the change of control and other appliegiybvisions in that agreement.
Whilst not required under the terms of the Existdank Credit Facility, unanimous lender approvaswatained

Signet is now seeking the approval of the holdéth@ Notes and to implement the transactions ds=¢tin paragraphs 1.3 and 1.4 ab
and invites you to participate in a conference twable hosted by Walker Boyd, Group Finance Dineagshown below. The purpose of
the call will be to provide additional informatiam the approval request, with an opportunity for&:«

Date: Thursday March 2th, 2008
Time: 3.30pm UK /11.30am EST /10.30am C
Dial in numbers

Domestic toll free  88¢-603-6971

International: +1-21(-234-0022
Passcode Signet

Replay numbet +1 40z-22C-9757
Available until: Friday April 4th, 2008

Yours sincerely

/s/ Liam C' Sullivan

Liam C Sullivan
Group Treasure



Exhibit B
Exhibit 9.10(a
[Form of Newco Guarantee]

GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (this “Guarantee”) dated as of , 20 , by thedersigned guarantors (each a “
Guarantor " and collectively the ‘Guarantors "), in favor of the Purchasers referred to below #re holders from time to time (each a “
Holder " and collectively the ‘Holders ") of the 5.95% Senior Notes, Series A, due 20h8 (tSeries A Notes)), 6.11% Senior Notes, Series
B, due 2016 (the Series B Notes) and 6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2018“(Beries C Notes and, together with the Series A Notes
and the Series B Notes, th&lbtes”) of Signet Group plc, a public limited companygarporated under the laws of England and Wales
(Registered No. 00477692) (th&€€bmpany "), issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreeneietd as of March 30, 2006 entered into by the
Company with the institutional investors named éh&lule A thereto (thePurchasers” and, together with the Holders, sometimes
individually an “Obligee” and collectively the ‘Obligees”) (as amended by the First Supplemental Agreematdd as of May 16, 2008
entered into by the Company and the Holders andeasame may be supplemented or amended from ditirae, the “Agreement”; terms
defined therein and not otherwise defined heregnused herein as so defined).

WHEREAS, a Transaction or an Approved Alternativarnisaction has been consummated involving one oe Mewcos; and

WHEREAS, it is a requirement of Section 9.10(bjhef Agreement that each such Newco execute aneeddtiis Guarantee or a
separate Guarantee substantially in the form sf@iarantee; and

WHEREAS, the Company is also obligated under Sedi6 of the Agreement to cause certain Subsidiaf¢he Parent Newco to
execute and deliver a separate guarantee sub8taimithe form of this Guarantee (as to any Gu&raparty to this Guarantee, the other
Guarantors party to this Guarantee and any of etler guarantees are sometimes collectively @@¢her Guarantors ” and such other
guarantees are sometimes collectively titer Guarantees”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoitigg Guarantors hereby jointly and severally ageeliows:

1. GUARANTEE.
1.1 Obligations Guarantee

The Guarantors jointly and severally hereby abstfutnconditionally and irrevocably guaranteepamary obligors and not
merely as suretie:



(a) the punctual payment when due, whether atdstatgurity, by prepayment, by acceleration or otleg, of all obligations of the
Company arising under the Agreement and the Netiesther for principal, interest (including withdirhitation, to the extent permitted
by law, interest on any overdue principal, Make-\l'éhdmount, Modified Make-Whole Amount and interasthe rates specified in the
Notes and interest accruing or becoming owing Ipoibr to and subsequent to the commencement obankruptcy, insolvency,
examinership, reorganization, moratorium or similezceeding involving the Company), Make-Whole AmpWodified Make-Whole
Amount, fees, expenses, indemnification or othesyésd

(b) the due and punctual performance and obserdantge Company of all covenants, agreements anditions on its part to be
performed and observed under the Agreement and dles

(all such obligations are called th&tiaranteed Obligations”). [The aggregate liability of the Guarantors herder in respect of the
Guaranteed Obligations shall not exceed at any tiradesser of (1) the amount of the Guaranteed@idns and (2) the maximum amount
which the Guarantor is liable under this Guaraktgeeement without causing such liability to be deema fraudulent transfer under applicable
Debtor Relief Laws (as hereinafter defined), agaeined by a court of competent jurisdiction. Aediserein, the termDebtor Relief Laws

" means any applicable liquidation, conservatorshgnkruptcy, moratorium, rearrangement, insolvenggrganization or similar debtor relief
laws affecting the rights of creditors generaliyrrtime to time in effect.] *

Without limiting the generality of the foregoindji$ Guarantee guarantees, to the extent providegirhe¢he payment of all amour
which constitute part of the Guaranteed Obligatiand would be owed by any other Person to any @bltgut for the fact that they are
unenforceable or not allowable due to the existafigebankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, maigim or similar proceeding involving
such Person.

1.2 Character of Guarantt

This Guarantee constitutes a present and contirguiagantee of payment and not of collection anéh €agarantor guarantees that
the Guaranteed Obligations will be paid and perfmrstrictly in accordance with the terms of the @ament and the Notes, regardless of any
law, regulation or order now or hereafter in effiacany jurisdiction affecting any of such termstloe rights of the Company with respect
thereto. The obligations of each Guarantor undsr@uarantee are independent of the Guaranteedddiblns, and a separate action or actions
may be brought and prosecuted against each Guatargaforce this Guarantee, irrespective of whetimy action is brought against the
Company, any Other Guarantor or any other Persdtelifor the Guaranteed Obligations or whetheiQbmpany, any Other Guarantor or any
other such Person is joined in any such actiorctiorms. To the extent permitted by law, the lidpibf each Guarantor under this Guarantee
shall be primary, absolute, irrevocable, and unitanl irrespective of:

(a) any lack of validity or enforceability of anyu@anteed Obligation, the Agreement, the Notes,Gther Guarantee or any
agreement or instrument relating thereto;

* Here insert limiting language, if any, requiredder local law in order for this Guarantee to bfoereable to the maximum extent legally
possible; provided, however, the guarantee obbgatof the Parent Newco may not be subject to aoly Bmitations.
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(b) any change in the time, manner or place of gatrof, or in any other term of, all or any of tBearanteed Obligations, or any
other amendment or waiver of or any consent to degafrom the Agreement, the Notes or any Othear@utee;

(c) any taking, exchange, release or non-perfeatfamy collateral, or any taking, release or anmegwt or waiver of or consent to
departure by any other Person liable, or any ajnarantee, for all or any of the Guaranteed Ohitgat

(d) any manner of application of collateral, orgreds thereof, to all or any of the Guaranteeddgabitins, or any manner of sale or
other disposition of any collateral or any otheseds of the Company or any Other Guarantor;

(e) any change, restructuring or termination ofd¢bgporate structure or existence of the CompargngrOther Guarantor; or

(f any other circumstance (including without liatibn any statute of limitations) that might othemsvconstitute a defense, offset or
counterclaim available to, or a discharge of, then@any or any Other Guarantor.

If any event permitting the acceleration of the umiy of the principal amount of the Notes shalhay time have occurred and be
continuing and such acceleration (and the effestethf on the Guaranteed Obligations) shall at sinoh be prevented by reason of the
pendency against the Company or any other Persarca$e or proceeding under a bankruptcy or insolvaw, each Guarantor agrees that,
for purposes of this Guarantee and such Guarardbligations under this Guarantee, the maturitthefprincipal amount of the Notes shall be
deemed to have been accelerated (with a corresppedfiect on the Guaranteed Obligations) with e effect as if the Holders had
accelerated the Notes in accordance with the tefrttee Agreement, and such Guarantor shall fortinwéy such principal amount, any inter
thereon, any Make-Whole Amounts or Modified Make-M¢hAmounts and any other amounts guaranteed heeewithout further notice or
demand.

1.3 Waivers
Each Guarantor hereby irrevocably waives, to therexpermitted by applicable law:

(a) promptness, diligence, presentment, noticeoéptance and any other notice with respect tooéitye Guaranteed Obligations
and this Guarantee;



(b) any requirement that any Obligee or any otleséh protect, secure, perfect or insure any Lieang property subject thereto
exhaust any right or take any action against thegamy or any other Person or any collateral;

(c) any defense, offset or counterclaim arisingdgson of any claim or defense based upon anyrdgayi@any Obligee;

(d) any duty on the part of any Obligee to discltwsssuch Guarantor any matter, fact or thing retato the business, operation or
condition of any Person and its assets now knowrecgafter known by such Obligee; and

(e) any rights by which it might be entitled to vég suit on an accrued right of action in respgcny of the Guaranteed
Obligations or require suit against the Compangumh Guarantor or any other Person.

2. SUBROGATION, ETC
2.1 Subrogation and Contributic

No Guarantor shall assert, enforce, or otherwisgase (a) any right of subrogation to any of tights, remedies, powers,
privileges or Liens of any Obligee or any otherdfenary against the Company or any other Guaramhathe Guaranteed Obligations or any
collateral or other security, or (b) any right e€ourse, reimbursement, contribution, indemnifaratior similar right against the Company or
any other Guarantor in respect of the Guaranteddj@ions, and each Guarantor hereby waives anyalirad the foregoing rights, remedies,
powers, privileges and the benefit of, and anytrigtparticipate in, any collateral or other seyugiven to any Obligee or any other benefic
to secure payment of the Guaranteed Obligationsaah case, until such time as the Guaranteed &iolits have been indefeasibly paid in f

2.2 Reinstatemer

Each Guarantor agrees that its obligations undgiGhbarantee shall be automatically reinstateddf @ the extent that for any
reason any payment by or on behalf of the Compamyne or more Other Guarantors is rescinded or msitherwise restored by any Oblic
whether as a result of any proceedings in bankyupteceorganization or otherwise, all as thoughhsaimount had not been paid.

2.3 Separate Claims, et

Each default in the payment or performance of drth®Guaranteed Obligations shall give rise tepasate claim and cause of
action hereunder, and separate claims or suitshmagade and brought, as the case may be, hereasmdach such default occurs. Each
Guarantor will from time to time deliver, upon treasonable request of any Obligee, a satisfactdayaavledgment of such Guarantor's
continuing liability hereunder to the extent praaddherein.



REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
Each Guarantor represents and warrants as toasétfllows:

(a) such Guarantor is a company or other legatyedtily incorporated and validly existing under thers of the jurisdiction in
which it is organized and is duly qualified as eefgn corporation and, where legally applicableénigood standing and authorized to do
business in each jurisdiction in which such quedifion is required by law, other than those juddns as to which the failure to be so
qualified or in good standing could not, individyadr in the aggregate, reasonably be expectedve h Material Adverse Effect. Such
Guarantor has the corporate power and authoribyvo or hold under lease the properties it purportswvn or hold under lease, to
transact the business it transacts and proposesisact, to execute and deliver this Guarantedapdrform the provisions hereof and
thereof. For purposes of this Section a corpordatian“foreign corporation” in any jurisdiction Which it transacts business other than its
jurisdiction of incorporation;

(b) the Guarantee has been duly authorized byeakssary corporate action on the part of such @Gta@rand constitutes, subject to
any general principles of law referred to in anyaleopinions delivered to the Holders, a legalidvahd binding obligation of such
Guarantor, enforceable against such Guarantordordance with its terms, except as such enfordeahiby be limited by (a) applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratoriamnother similar laws affecting the enforcementditors’ rights generally,

(b) general principles of equity (regardless of thiee such enforceability is considered in a procegth equity or at law) and (c) the
time-barring of claims;

(c) the Scheme Circular and the other documenttficates or other writings, if any, deliveredeach Holder by or on behalf of 1
Company in connection with the Transaction andtified in Schedule 3(c) (collectively, theDisclosure Documents), taken as a
whole, do not contain any untrue statement of aratfact or omit to state any material fact neaeg to make the statements therein not
misleading in light of the circumstances under \ttltey were made. There is no fact known to sucér&htor that could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect thattmdeen set forth herein or in the Disclosure uboents;

(d) (i) Schedule 3(d) is (except as noted theraiopmplete and correct list of (x) the Parent Neésv&mbsidiaries, showing, as to
each such Subsidiary, the correct name thereofutfseliction of its organization, whether it iSviaterial Subsidiary and the percentage
of shares of each class of its share capital oitegimquity interests outstanding owned by the Rialkewco and each other Subsidiary,
(y) the Parent Newco’s Affiliates, other than Sdleiies, and (z) the Parent Newco’s directors amilos officers;

(i) all of the outstanding share capital or simiguity interests of each Subsidiary shown in Sake3(d) as being owned by
the Parent Newco and its Subsidiaries have bedflwasued, are fully paid and nonassessable emdwaned by the Parent Newco
or another Subsidiary free and clear of any Liewépt as otherwise disclosed in Schedule 3(d)); and
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(iii) each Subsidiary identified in Schedule 3(sl}i corporation or other legal entity duly orgadiaealidly existing and, whe
legally applicable, in good standing under the lafvs jurisdiction of organization, and is dulyalified as a foreign corporation or
other legal entity and, where legally applicabtegood standing in each jurisdiction in which sacfalification is required by law,
other than those jurisdictions as to which theufailto be so qualified or in good standing coult malividually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material AdveffeetEEach such Subsidiary so identified as a Blidry Guarantor or Newco
Guarantor has the corporate or other power and#tytio own or hold under lease the propertigsuitports to own or hold under
lease and to transact the business it transactprapdses to transact and to execute, deliver arfdnm its obligations under its
Subsidiary Guarantee or Newco Guarantee, as apfdiddo Subsidiary is a guarantor under the ExgsBank Credit Facility other
than Subsidiaries identified as Subsidiary Guararmo Newco Guarantors in Schedule 3(d);

(e) the execution, delivery and performance by saohrantor of this Guarantee do not and will nptdintravene, result in any
breach of, or constitute a default under, or resuhe creation of any Lien in respect of any @y of the Parent Newco or any
Subsidiary under, any indenture, mortgage, dedrust, loan, purchase or credit agreement, leasppcate charter, memorandum and
articles of association, regulations or by-lawsany other agreement or instrument to which themadewco or any Subsidiary is bound
or by which the Parent Newco or any Subsidiarynyr @f their respective properties may be boundfected, (ii) conflict with or result
in a breach of any of the terms, conditions or mions of any order, judgment, decree or rulinguy court, arbitrator or Governmental
Authority applicable to the Parent Newco or any $dilary or (i) violate any provision of any stééuor other rule or regulation of any
Governmental Authority applicable to the Parent Kewr any Subsidiary;

(f) no consent, approval or authorization of, @jis&ration, filing or declaration with, any Goveramal Authority is required in
connection with the execution, delivery or perfono@ by such Guarantor of this Guarantee (includiitgout limitation any thereof
required in connection with the obtaining of Dadldo make payments under this Guarantee and thegrayof such Dollars to Persons
resident in the United States of America);

(9) (i) there are no actions, suits, investigationproceedings pending or, to the knowledge ohsbuoarantor, threatened against or
affecting such Guarantor or any property of suclku@ntor in any court or before any arbitrator of &imd or before or by any
Governmental Authority that, individually or in tlaggregate, could reasonably be expected to hMedexial Adverse Effect; and

(i) such Guarantor is not in default under anyrt@f any agreement or instrument to which it iagtypor by which it is
bound, or any order,



judgment, decree or ruling of any court, arbitratoGovernmental Authority or is in violation ofyaapplicable law, ordinance, rule
or regulation (including without limitation Enviramental Laws or the USA Patriot Act) of any Govermtad Authority, which
default or violation, individually or in the aggratg, could reasonably be expected to have a Mbfatigerse Effect;

(h) no deduction or withholding in respect of Takaposed by or for the account of the Taxing Jucisoh of such Guarantor as of
the date of this Guarantee is required to be mime &ny payment by such Guarantor under this Gteeaaxcept for any such liability,
withholding or deduction imposed, assessed, lestembllected by or for the account of any such Goreental Authority arising out of
circumstances described in clause (a), (b) orf(8eation 4;

(i) (i) Schedule 3(i) sets forth a complete and-ecorlist of each item of its Financial Indebtednas of the date of consummation of
the Transaction or the Approved Alternative Tratisac as the case may be (including a descriptfdh@obligors and obligees, princi
amount outstanding and collateral therefor, if ang any Guaranty thereof), or providing for lemgdaommitments in a principal amount
in excess of $5,000,000 (or its equivalent in #levant currency of payment) as of such date. Shmetedate, there has been no material
change in monetary terms of any such item of Firzhedebtedness. Such Guarantor is not in defaali,no waiver of a continuing
default is currently being sought or in effectftie payment of any principal or interest on anjtofinancial Indebtedness and no event
or condition exists with respect to any such Fimanadebtedness that would permit (or that witl ¢iving of notice or the lapse of time,
or both, would permit) one or more Persons to causé Financial Indebtedness to become due andleayefore its stated maturity or
before its regularly scheduled dates of payment;

(i) except as disclosed in Schedule 3(i), suchr@uimr has not agreed or consented to cause oiitgertine future (upon the
happening of a contingency or otherwise) any opiitgperty, whether now owned or hereafter acqui@tie subject to a Lien not
permitted by Section 10.3 of the Agreement; and

(i) such Guarantor is not a party to, or otheewsibject to any provision contained in, any insgnt evidencing any of its
Financial Indebtedness, any agreement relatingther any other agreement (including, but nottkahito, its charter or other
organizational document) which limits the amountasfotherwise imposes restrictions on the incgrofy Financial Indebtedness,
except as specifically indicated in Schedule 3(i);

() such Guarantor (i) is not a Person describediesignated in the Specially Designated NationadsBlocked Persons List of the
Office of Foreign Assets Control or in Section ltloé Anti-Terrorism Order and (ii) does not knowingngage in any dealings or
transactions with any such Person. Such Guarasitordompliance, in all material respects, with tH&A Patriot Act;
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4.

(k) such Guarantor Is not subject to regulationasriie Investment Company Act of 1940, as amerttiedCC Termination Act of
1995, as amended, or the Federal Power Act, asdaden

(1) such Guarantor is executing and delivering @israntee and incurring its obligations hereufigieits own benefit and for the
purpose of its business and such Guarantor istalgay its debts and will not become unable toipaglebts as a consequence of
incurring such obligations;

(m) the payment obligations of such Guarantor utitisrGuarantee will rangari passuin right of payment with all other unsecu
and unsubordinated Financial Indebtedness of suenaator, except for obligations mandatorily prefdrby law applying to companies
generally;

(n) under the law of such Guarantor’s jurisdictadrincorporation it is not necessary that this Guiéee be filed, recorded or
enrolled with any court or other authority in thatisdiction or that any stamp, registration or #dmtax be paid on or in relation to this
Guarantee or the transactions contemplated byGhéantee; and

(o) such Guarantor has received evidence of thepaance by CT Corporation System of the appointrardtdesignation provided
for by such Guarantor in Section 5.5(e) of this Anéee for the period from the date hereof to May2D19 and the payment in full of
fees in respect thereof.

TAX INDEMNIFICATION.
All payments whatsoever under this Guarantee iliiade by each Guarantor in lawful currency ofuhéed States of America

free and clear of, and without liability for withlding or deduction for or on account of, any preéserfuture Taxes of whatever nature imposed
or levied by or on behalf of any jurisdiction othiean the United States (or any political subdoisor taxing authority of or in such
jurisdiction) (hereinafter “ Taxing Jurisdiction "), unless the withholding or deduction of such Texxompelled by law.

If any deduction or withholding for any Tax of axiiag Jurisdiction shall at any time be requiredespect of any amounts to be

paid by any Guarantor under this Guarantee, sucabtor will pay to the relevant Taxing Jurisdiatitie full amount required to be withheld,
deducted or otherwise paid before penalties attaateto or interest accrues thereon and pay to ®@atigee such additional amounts as ma
necessary in order that the net amounts paid o ®@ltigee pursuant to the terms of this Guaranftee such deduction, withholding or
payment (including without limitation any requirddduction or withholding of Tax on or with respezsuch additional amount), shall be not
less than the amounts then due and payable toQbigfpee under the terms of this Guarantee bef@asisessment of such Tax, provided that
no payment of any additional amounts shall be regluio be made for or on account of:

(a) any Tax that would not have been imposed buti® existence of any present or former connedigtween such Obligee (or a
fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, member of, shadeleo of, or possessor of a power over, such Oblifesich Obligee is
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an estate, trust, partnership or corporation orRengon other than the Obligee to whom the Guagdr@bligations or any amount
payable thereon is attributable for the purposesioh Tax) and the Taxing Jurisdiction, other ttrenmere holding of the relevant
Guaranteed Obligations or the receipt of paymentespect thereof, including without limitation sudbligee (or such other Person
described in the above parenthetical) being orritalseen a citizen or resident thereof, or beinlgaming been present or engaged in a
trade or business therein or having or having medstablishment, office, fixed base or branch theggovided that this exclusion shall
not apply with respect to a Tax that would not hbgen imposed but for such Guarantor, after the ofathis Guarantee, opening an
office in, or moving an office to, reincorporatiilg or changing the Taxing Jurisdiction from orathgh which payments on account of
this Guarantee or the Notes are made to, the Takirigdiction imposing the relevant Tax; or

(b) any Tax that would not have been imposed huthfe delay or failure by such Obligee (followingvétten request by the
Company or any Guarantor) in the filing with théekant Taxing Jurisdiction of Forms (as definedobglthat are required to be filed by
such holder to avoid or reduce such Taxes, prouidatithe filing of such Forms would not (in suchli@ee’s reasonable judgment) res
in any confidential or proprietary income tax retimformation being revealed, either directly adinectly, to any Person and such delay
or failure could have been lawfully avoided by s@ibligee, and provided further that such Obligeaidfe deemed to have satisfied the
requirements of this clause (b) upon the good fadtinpletion and submission of such Forms as maspbeified in a written request of
the Company or any Guarantor no later than 60 dégs receipt by such Obligee of such written resfjiiaccompanied by copies of such
Forms and related instructions, if any, all in Ereglish language or with an English translatiorreoé); or

(c) any combination of clauses (a) and (b) above;

and provided further that in no event shall any i@ntor be obligated to pay such additional amotmemy Obligee (i) not resident in the
United States of America [or any other jurisdictiarwhich an original Purchaser is resident forpaxposes on the date of the Closing] in
excess of the amounts that such Guarantor woutibligated to pay if such Obligee had been a residetihe United States of America or st
other jurisdiction, as applicable, for purposesaoid eligible for the benefits of, any double téotreaty from time to time in effect between
the United States of America or such other jurisdicand the relevant Taxing Jurisdiction, (ii) istgred in the name of a nominee if under the
law of the relevant Taxing Jurisdiction (or theremt regulatory interpretation of such law) sedesitheld in the name of a nominee do not
qualify for an exemption from the relevant Tax dhe Company or such Guarantor shall have givenlyimetice of such law or interpretation
to such Obligee, (jii) resident in the United Ssaté America or such other jurisdiction in whickchwriginal Purchaser is resident for tax
purposes on the date of the Closing but not ekgfibt the benefits of such applicable double taxatieaty on such date or (iv) which is a Non-
Exempt UK Lender.

By acceptance of any Note, an Obligee agrees, auioj¢he limitations of clause (b) above, thatiit from time to time with
reasonable promptness (x) duly complete and



deliver to or as reasonably directed by the Compmargny Guarantor all such forms, certificates,uonents and returns provided to such
Obligee by the Company or such Guarantor (colletfivogether with instructions for completing t@me, “Forms”) required to be filed by or
on behalf of such Obligee in order to avoid or @any such Tax pursuant to the provisions of gticgble statute, regulation or
administrative practice of the relevant Taxing gddiGtion or of a tax treaty between the United &tand such Taxing Jurisdiction and

(y) provide any Guarantor with such informationtwiespect to such Obligee as the Company or suehaBtor may reasonably request in
order to complete any such Forms or in the cass@bligee which is resident in the United Kingdonestablished or constituted under the
laws of the United Kingdom, provide the Guarantithwguch information as it may reasonably requestrder to be able to pay interest to such
a holder without any deduction or account of any€Ea provided that nothing in this Section 4 shedjuire any Obligee to provide information
with respect to any such Form or otherwise if ia food faith opinion of such Obligee such Formiscldsure of information would involve
the disclosure of tax return or other informatibattis confidential or proprietary to Such Obligaed provided further that each such Obligee
shall be deemed to have complied with its obligatiader this paragraph with respect to any Forsudh Form shall have been duly comple
and delivered by such Obligee to the Company on §ugarantor or mailed to the appropriate taxingpauity (which in the case of a United
Kingdom Inland Revenue Form FD13 or any similarmfr@hall be deemed to occur when such Form is stduhtid the United States Internal
Revenue Service in accordance with instructiongatned in such Form), Whichever is applicable, with0 days following a written request
the Company or such Guarantor (which request Sleadiccompanied by copies of such Form and Engbstshations of any such Form not in
the English language) and, in the case of a tran$f@ny Note, at least 90 days prior to the rehewaterest payment date.

Concurrently with the delivery of this Guaranteele&uarantor will furnish each Obligee with copidéshe appropriate Form
currently required to be filed in the relevant TrexiJurisdiction of such Guarantor as of the datdisfAgreement pursuant to clause (b) of the
first paragraph of this Section 4, if any, and @amgection with the transfer of any Note the Companguch Guarantor will furnish the
transferee of such Note with copies of any Form&nglish translation then required.

If any payment is made by a Guarantor to or forabeount of any Obligee after deduction for or oocant of any Tax, and
increased payments are made by such Guarantorgmitguthis Section 4, then, if such Obligee irsiite discretion determines that it has
received or been granted a refund of such Taxeb, ®bligee shall, to the extent that it can do #haut prejudice to the retention of the
amount of such refund, reimburse to such Guaranutoh amount as such Obligee shall, in its solaelign, determine to be attributable to the
relevant Tax or deduction or withholding. Nothingréin contained shall interfere with the right nf@bligee to arrange its tax affairs in
whatever manner it thinks fit and, in particulap, @bligee shall be under any obligation to claitieférom its corporate profits or similar tax
liability in respect of such Tax in priority to amyher claims, reliefs, credits or deductions alaé to it or (other than as set forth in clause
(b) above) oblige any Obligee to disclose any imi@tion relating to its tax affairs or any compugas in respect thereof.

Each Guarantor will furnish the Obligees, prompthd in any event within 60 days after the datengfgayment by such Guarantor
of any Tax in respect of any amounts paid
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under this Guarantee, the original tax receiptddsoy the relevant taxation or other authoritie®ived for all amounts paid as aforesaid (or if
such original tax receipt is not available or maggally be kept in the possession of such Guaraatduly certified copy of the original tax
receipt or any other reasonably satisfactory evadest payment), together with such other documgragidence with respect to such payments
as may be reasonably requested from time to timenlyObligee.

If any Guarantor is required by any applicable laazmodified by the practice of the taxation oreotauthority of any relevant
Taxing Jurisdiction, to make any deduction or witliling of any Tax in respect of which such Guaramtould be required to pay any
additional amount under this Section 4, but for egson does not make such deduction or withholdittgthe result that a liability in respect
of such Tax is assessed directly against an Ohlgyaksuch Obligee pays such liability, then thai@ntors jointly and severally agree to
promptly reimburse such Obligee for such paymerdi{iding any related interest or penalties to tkterg such interest or penalties arise by
virtue of a default or delay by any Guarantor) ugemand by such Obligee accompanied by an offie@ipt (or a duly certified copy there
issued by the taxation or other authority of tHevant Taxing Jurisdiction.

If any Guarantor makes payment to or for the actofiany Obligee and such Obligee is entitled tefand of the Tax to which
such payment is attributable upon the making dlfregf(other than a Form described above), themsbbligee shall, as soon as practicable
after receiving written request from the Companguwech Guarantor (which shall specify in reasondelail and supply the refund forms to be
filed) use reasonable efforts to complete and delbuch refund forms to or as directed by the Compa such Guarantor, subject, however, to
the same limitations with respect to Forms as ardéosth above.

The obligations of the Guarantors under this Sactishall survive the payment or transfer of anyeNind the provisions of this
Section 4 shall also apply to successive trans$eséthe Notes.

5. MISCELLANEOUS.
5.1 Amendments

No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Guméee and no consent to any departure by the Gloasaherefrom shall in
any event be effective unless the same shall beitimg and signed by the Majority Holders, andrttseich waiver or consent shall be effective
only in the specific instance and for the spegficpose for which given; provided that no amendimeatver or consent shall, unless in writ
and signed by all Obligees, or as contemplateddnji@ 9.6 of the Agreement with respect to SubsydGuarantors (which term for the
avoidance of doubt shall include all Newcos othantthe Parent Newco), (a) limit the liability ofrelease any Guarantor hereunder,
(b) postpone any date fixed for, or change the arhof) any payment hereunder or (c) change theepéaige of the unpaid principal amount of
the Notes the holders of which are required to tkeaction hereunder.
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5.2 Notices

All notices and other communications provided ferdunder shall be in writing, shall be hand debdesent by confirmed
facsimile transmission (hard copy to be providedtgrnight courier on the date of such transmigsimrsent by an overnight courier of
international standing and shall be addressed:

(a) if to a Guarantor, at the address set fortisémh Guarantor in Annex 1 hereto, or at such afdress as such Guarantor
may hereafter designate by notice to each Obligee,

(b) if to a Purchaser, at such Purchaser’s add®sst forth in Schedule A to the Agreement oueh ®ther address as such
Purchaser may hereafter designate by notice tGtleantors, or

(c) if to any other Holder, at the address of sHolder as it appears on the register maintaineth®yCompany pursuant to t
Agreement.

Any notice or other communication herein providede given to all Holders shall be deemed to haenluly given if sent as
aforesaid to each of the registered holders oNthtes at the time outstanding at the address fdr purpose of such registered holder as it
appears on such register.

5.3 Governing Law

This Guarantee shall be governed by, and consanddnforced in accordance with, the law of theeSthNew York, United
States of America, excluding choice-of-law prinegpbf the laws of such State that would requireatiy@ication of the laws of a jurisdiction
other than such State.

5.4 No Waiver

No failure on the part of any Obligee to exercésg] no delay in exercising, any right hereundell sip@rate as a waiver thereof;
nor shall any single or partial exercise of anytigereunder preclude any other or further exettiseeof or the exercise of any other right.
remedies herein provided are cumulative and ndusix@ of any remedies provided by law.

5.5 Jurisdiction; Service Of Process; Waiver of Juriall|

(a) Each Guarantor irrevocably submits to the nariusive jurisdiction of any New York State or fedecourt sitting in the
Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, oveyasuit, action or proceeding arising out of or tiglg to this Guarantee and, in the case of
the Parent Newco, the Agreement. To the fullestrebit may effectively do so under applicable la@ach Guarantor irrevocably waives and
agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a defenstherwise, any claim that it is not subjedtt® in personam jurisdiction of any such cc
any objection that it may now or hereafter havthtolaying of the venue of any such suit, actiopraceeding brought in any such court and
any claim that any such suit, action or proceedtirggight in any such court has been brought in ennvenient forum.
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(b) Each Guarantor agrees, to the fullest extemaiy effectively do so under applicable law, th&ibal judgment in any suit, action
or proceeding of the nature referred to in pardgi@p of this Section 5.5 brought in any such catell be conclusive and binding upon it,
subject to rights of appeal and may be enforcelercourts of the United States of America or tteteSof New York (or any other courts to
jurisdiction of which it or any of its assets ismoay be subject) by a suit upon such judgm

(c) Each Guarantor consents to process being sénaed/ suit, action or proceeding of the natufemred to in paragraph (a) of this
Section 5.5 by mailing a copy thereof by registevedertified or priority mail, postage prepaidium receipt requested, or delivering a copy
thereof in the manner for delivery of notices sfiediin Section 5.2, to CT Corporation System, Elghth Avenue, New York, NY 10011, as
such Guarantor’s agent for the purpose of accepgtingice of any process in the United States. Eadrantor agrees that such service upon
receipt (i) shall be deemed in every respect dffectervice of process upon it in any such suiipacr proceeding and (ii) shall, to the full
extent permitted by law, be taken and held to biel yeersonal service upon and personal deliveiiy. fdotices hereunder shall be conclusively
presumed received as evidenced by a delivery reftgifished by the United States Postal Servicangrovernight courier of international
standing.

(d) Nothing in this Section 5.5 shall affect thghti of any Obligee to serve process in any manesnitted by law, or limit any
right that the Obligees may have to bring procegslegainst any Guarantor in the courts of any gpjate jurisdiction or to enforce in any
lawful manner a judgment obtained in one jurisdictin any other jurisdiction.

(e) Each Guarantor hereby irrevocably appoints @fpGration System, 111 Eighth Avenue, New York, N)011, to receive for |
and on its behalf, service of process in the Un8tates.

() EACH GUARANTOR WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT ON OR WITH RESPECT TO THIS
GUARANTEE OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNEGDN HEREWITH.

5.6 Judgment Currenc

Any payment on account of an amount that is payaéieunder by a Guarantor in Dollars which is mader for the account of al
Obligee in any other currency, whether as a redudny judgment or order or the enforcement thecedhe realization of any security or the
liquidation of such Guarantor, shall constitutescidarge of such Guarantor’s obligation under @israntee only to the extent of the amount
of Dollars which such Obligee could purchase inftreign exchange markets in London, England withamount of such other currency in
accordance with normal banking procedures at ttgeafaexchange prevailing on the London Banking Bxpwing receipt of the payment fil
referred to above. If the amount of Dollars thailddbe so purchased is less than the amount o&Badiriginally due to such Obligee, the
Guarantors jointly and severally agree, to thedutent permitted by law, to
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indemnify and save harmless such Obligee from gadhat all loss or damage arising out of or assalte@f such deficiency. This indemnity
shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, ditoge an obligation separate and independent fi@other obligations contained in this
Guarantee, shall give rise to a separate and imdigpe cause of action, shall apply irrespectivargf indulgence granted by such Obligee from
time to time and shall continue in full force arfteet notwithstanding any judgment or order forcquidated sum in respect of an amount due
hereunder or under any judgment or order.

5.7 Severability

In case any one or more of the provisions containg¢kis Guarantee, or any application thereof|ldfainvalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legaditd enforceability of the remaining provisionsitzened herein, and any other application
thereof, shall not in any way be affected or imgdithereby.

5.8 Counterpart:

This Guarantee may be executed in any number oftequarts, each of which shall be an original blubfawhich together shall
constitute one instrument. Each counterpart magisonf a number of copies hereof, each signeesy than all, but together signed by all, of
the Guarantors.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF each Guarantor has [executeslitfstrument as its deed the date and year/cahise@tiarantee to be
executed on its behalf as of the date]** first abaewritten.

[GUARANTOR]

(Registered No.

By:

By:

Title:

By:

By:

Title:

[GUARANTOR]
(Registered No.

By:

**  This clause may vary as appropriate to accommddatealities of execution in any jurisdictio

[GUARANTOR]
(Registered No.

By:

By:

Title:

By:

By:

Title:

[GUARANTOR]
(Registered No.

By:

By:

Title:

By:

By:

Title:
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Exhibit C
Exhibit 9.10(b
[Form of Newco Accession Agreement]

ACCESSION AGREEMENT, dated as of , 20made by the company signatory hereto (tRarent”), in favor of the
holders from time to time (each af®bligee” and collectively the ‘Obligees”) of the 5.95% Senior Notes, Series A, due 2008 (tSeries A
Notes”), 6.11% Senior Notes, Series B, due 2016 (ti$efies B Notes) and 6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2018“(tBeries C Notes
and, together with the Series A Notes and the S&iNotes, the Notes”) of Signet Group plc, a public limited companyarporated under
the laws of England and Wales (Registered No. 0642) (the “Company”), issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreenteed as of
March 30, 2006 entered into by the Company withitisétutional investors named in Schedule A thefes amended by the First
Supplemental Agreement dated as of May 16, 200&eamtnto by the Company and the Holders and asafree may be supplemented or
amended from time to time, theNbote Purchase Agreement; terms defined therein and not otherwise defihetkin are used herein as so
defined).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Section 9.10 of the Note Purchase Agre¢msgpires that upon and within 20 Business Daier éfie consummation
of the Transaction or any Approved Alternative Baation any Newco that is the Parent Newco in tfamJaction shall execute and deliver
Accession Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parent is the Parent Newco in the Saetion or such Approved Alternative Transactiaat thas consummated
on , 20

ACCORDINGLY, the Parent hereby agrees as follows:

1. Accession.

(@) The Parent hereby unconditionally and expresslga@es to the obligations of the Parent Newco sét farthe Note
Purchase Agreement and agrees to perform and @each and every one of the covenants, rights, ipesnand
agreements, terms, conditions, obligations, d#iekliabilities of the Parent Newco under and spezt of the Note
Purchase Agreement and the Notes, and under anyrdmds, instruments or agreements executed anceckdi or
furnished, or to be executed and delivered or filmadl, in connection therewil



(b) All references to the Parent Newco or a Guaraoit Guarantors in the Note Purchase Agreemeahpidocument,
instrument or agreement executed and deliveredraished, or to be executed and delivered or fhadsin connection
therewith shall be deemed to include the Paremssrthe context otherwise clearly requi

2. Representations and Warranties

(@) The Parent further represents and warrantset@bligees that each of such representations an@émties contained in
Sections 5.2, 5.6, the first sentence of 5.7 armi®e5.19 of the Note Purchase Agreement (in easke with respect to the
Parent and this Accession Agreement rather tharotirer Person or the Note Purchase Agreement oottyey document) is
true and correct. Each such representation andamtgris incorporated by reference hert

(b) It is not necessary to ensure the legalityiditsl enforceability or admissibility into evidea®f this Accession Agreement in
[insert jurisdiction of organizati] that it or any other document be filed, recdrde enrolled with any
Governmental Authority, or that this Accession Agrent be stamped with any stamp, registrationrolagi transaction tay

(c) Immediately before and immediately after givingeetfto the Transaction or the Approved Alternafivansaction, as tr
case may be, no Default or Event of Default shalehoccurred and be continuir

3. Amendment, etc.

No amendment or waiver of any provision of this égsion Agreement shall be effective, unless theessrall be in writing and
executed by the Majority Holders.

4. Binding Effect.

This Accession Agreement shall be binding uponRtheent, and shall inure to the benefit of the Gldggand their respective
successors and assigns.

5. Governing Law.
This Accession Agreement shall be governed by andtcued in accordance with the laws of the Sthiéesv York.
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6.

Jurisdiction and Process; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

The Parent irrevocably submits to the mawtusive jurisdiction of any New York State or éedl court sitting in the Borouy
of Manhattan, The City of New York, over any saittion or proceeding arising out of or relatinghis Accession
Agreement, the Note Purchase Agreement or the Notethe fullest extent permitted by applicable léhe Parent
irrevocably waives and agrees not to assert, byafiayotion, as a defense or otherwise, any claeithis not subject to the
jurisdiction of any such court, any objection tliahay now or hereafter have to the laying of teawe of any such su
action or proceeding brought in any such courtamgclaim that any such suit, action or proceetirmyght in any such
court has been brought in an inconvenient for

The Parent agrees, to the fullest extent péethity applicable law, that a final judgment in a&yt, action or proceeding of
the nature referred to in Section 6(a) broughtniy such court shall be conclusive and binding uipsnbject to rights of
appeal, as the case may be, and may be enfortled aourts of the United States of America or tteteSof New York (or
any other courts to the jurisdiction of which itawy of its assets is or may be subject) by augpgh such judgmen

The Parent consents to process being served &y behalf of any holder of a Note in any suitj@an or proceeding of the
nature referred to in Section 6(a) by mailing ayctiyereof by registered or certified or priority inpostage prepaid, return
receipt requested, or delivering a copy theredh@nmanner for delivery of notices specified int®er5.2 of the Guarantee
Agreement dated as of even date herewith issugvar of the Obligees, to CT Corporation Systend, Eighth Avenue,
New York, NY 10011, as its agent for the purposaafepting service of any process in the UniteteSta'he Parent agre
that such service upon receipt (i) shall be deeimedery respect effective service of process upomany such suit, action
or proceeding and (ii) shall, to the fullest extpatmitted by applicable law, be taken and heldgwalid personal service
upon and personal delivery to it. Notices hereustiatl be conclusively presumed received as evilthy a delivery
receipt furnished by the United States Postal $ergi any reputable commercial delivery serv

Nothing in this Section 6 shall affect the rightawfy holder of a Note to serve process in any mapeenitted by law, o
limit any right that the holders of any of the Neteay have to bring proceedings against the Pare¢hé courts of any
appropriate jurisdiction or to enforce in any lalfuanner a judgment obtained in one jurisdictioarry other jurisdictior
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The Parent hereby irrevocably appoints CT Catfan System, 111 Eighth Avenue, New York, NY 100tb receive for it,

and on its behalf, service of process in the Un8tates
U] THE PARENT HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION BROUGHT ON OR WITH RESPECT TO THIS
ACCESSION AGREEMENT, THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENTHE NOTES OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT

EXECUTED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THEREWITF

(€)

7. Waiver of Acceptance
Acceptance of this Accession Agreement by the Company Subsidiary Guarantor or any Obligee frametito time is hereby

waived.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has causeditigssion Agreement to be duly executed and deli/by its duly
authorized officer on the date first above written.

By:

Name

Title:

[SEAL]



Exhibit D
Exhibit 9.10(c
Documents to Be Delivered by each Newco
(@) A copy of the memorandum and articles of asgimei and certificate of incorporation of the Newco

(b) A copy of a resolution of the board of direstof the Newco:

(i) approving the terms of, and the transactiongemplated by, the Newco Guarantee and, in theafabe Parent Newco, the
Accession Agreement and resolving that it exedueeNlewco Guarantee and, in the case of the Paemtd\ the Accession Agreement;

(i) authorizing a specified person or personsxecaite and deliver the Newco Guarantee and, icdke of the Parent Newco, the
Accession Agreement; and

(i) authorizing a specified person or personstsibehalf, to sign and/or dispatch all documeatse signed and/or dispatched by it
under or in connection with this Agreement, the Mewsuarantee and, in the case of the Parent Nelhedccession Agreement.

(c) A certificate of a director or officer of theeMco certifying that execution and delivery of tewco Guarantee would not cause any
borrowing limit binding on it to be exceeded.

(d) A specimen of the signature of each personaaizibd by the resolutions referred to in paragréphabove.

(e) A certificate of an authorized signatory of tewco certifying that each document specifiechis Exhibit is correct, complete and in
full force and effect.

(f) Any other document not listed in (a) through &bove that is required to be delivered pursuatiié Existing Bank Credit Facility or
any other Bank Credit Facility in respect of thadsaction or the Approved Alternative Transactind the Newcos



Exhibit E
Exhibit 9.10(d

Form of Opinion of Counsel to Parent New



— 2008
To: The Note Holders whose names appear in thedstdéo DIRECT LINE: +44 20 7374 244

this letter E-MAIL: Anthony.smith@conyersdillandpearman.c
(together the “Note Holders” and each a “Note Holgde OUR REF: AHS/892017/24674.

YOUR REF:
Dear Sirs

[Name of Bermuda Holdco] (the “Company”)

We have acted as special legal counsel in BernutteetCompany in connection with its accessioréortote purchase agreement dated as of
March 30, 2006 between Signet Group plc (“Signet)Had the several purchasers named therein d.8&2 Senior Notes, Series A, due
2013, the 6.11% Senior Notes, Series B, due 20d6ren6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2018 (tegéthe “Notes”) of Signet UK.

For the purposes of giving this opinion, we havareied copies of the following documents:

(i) an accession agreement dated e— , 2008 and made by the Company in favour of the hislttem time to time of Notes; at

(i) aguarantee agreement dated e— , 2008 and made by the Company in favour of the Matielers and holders of the Notes from ti
to time.

The documents listed in items (i) to (ii) above heeein sometimes collectively referred to as thecuments” (which term does not include
any other instrument or agreement whether or netifipally referred to therein or attached as ahilgik or schedule thereto).

We have also reviewed the memorandum of associatidrthe bye-laws of the Company, each certifietheySecretary of the Company on —
2008, minutes of a meeting of its directors held-er2008 (the “Minutes”), and such other documemid made such enquiries as to questions
of law as we have deemed necessary in order tereéhd opinion set forth below.

We have assumed (a) the genuineness and authenfiall signatures and the conformity to the aras of all copies (whether or not certifis
examined by us and the authenticity and compleseoithe originals from which such copies were taKb) the capacity, power and authority
of each of the parties to the Documents, other tharCompany, to enter into a



CDh&pP

perform its respective obligations under the Docatsig(c) the due execution and delivery of the Doents by each of the parties thereto, ¢
than the Company, and the physical delivery thebgahe Company with an intention to be bound theréd) the accuracy and completeness
of all factual representations made in the Docusiant other documents reviewed by us; (e) thateth@lutions contained in the Minutes were
passed at one or more duly convened, constitutedjaorate meetings or by unanimous written resmhsti remain in full force and effect and
have not been rescinded or amended; (f) that ikere provision of the law of any jurisdiction, etithan Bermuda, which would have any
implication in relation to the opinions expresseddin; (g) the validity and binding effect undee taws of the State of New York (thEdreign
Laws”) of the Documents in accordance with their respedivms; (h) the validity and binding effect unttex Foreign Laws of the submiss
by the Company pursuant to the Documents to theexatusive jurisdiction of any New York State odéal court sitting in the Borough of
Manhattan, The City of New York (the “Foreign Cali)t (i) that each of the parties to the Documéntler than the Company) either (1) does
not carry on investment business (as defined inrthestment Business Act 2003 (the “IBA”)) in oofn Bermuda, or (ll) is licensed under the
IBA, or (lll) is exempt from being licensed undéetIBA; (j) that on the date of entering into thedDments the Company is and after entering
into the Documents will be able to pay its liallg as they become due.

The obligations of the Company under the Docum@jtsvill be subject to the laws from time to tinmedffect relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, liquidation, possessory liens, rightset off, reorganisation, amalgamation, moratoramany other laws or legal procedures,
whether of a similar nature or otherwise, generaffgcting the rights of creditors; (b) will be geitt to statutory limitation of the time within
which proceedings may be brought; (c) will be sabje general principles of equity and, as suckcsj performance and injunctive relief,
being equitable remedies, may not be availablem@y not be given effect to by a Bermuda court, tivieor not it was applying the Foreign
Laws, if and to the extent they constitute the payhof an amount which is in the nature of a pgreatid not in the nature of liquidated
damages; (e) may not be given effect by a Bermodét ¢to the extent that they are to be performealjurisdiction outside Bermuda and such
performance would be illegal under the laws of fbesdiction. Notwithstanding any contractual sugsion to the jurisdiction of specific
courts, a Bermuda court has inherent discreticstayp or allow proceedings in the Bermuda courts.

We express no opinion as to the enforceabilityryf grovision of the Documents which provides foae layment of a specified rate of interest
on the amount of a judgment after the date of juelygnor which purports to fetter the statutory panairthe Company.

We have made no investigation of and express naapin relation to the laws of any jurisdictiorhet than Bermuda. This opinion is to be
governed by and construed in accordance with tlie & Bermuda and is limited to and is given onhliksis of the current law and practice in
Bermuda

This opinion is issued solely for the benefit of thoteholders and any person who subsequently becarholder of Notes and is not to be
relied upon by any other person nor quoted or regeto in any public document or filed with any gavmental agency, without our prior
written consent
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The Noteholders may disclose this opinion (with@liance): (a) where disclosure is required by tavn respect of legal proceedings in
connection with this opinion; (b) to their respeetagents or advisers, or any of them; (c) to prope purchasers of Notes and (d) to the
National Association of Insurance Commission

On the basis of and subject to the foregoing, weolthe opinion that:

1. The Company is duly incorporated and existing urtidedaws of Bermuda in good standing (meaninglgdtet it has not failed to mal
any filing with any Bermuda governmental authoriyto pay any Bermuda government fee or tax, whiohld make it liable to be
struck off the Register of Companies and therelagedo exist under the laws of Bermu

2.  The Company has the necessary corporate powetahority to enter into and perform its obligasainder the Documents. The
execution and delivery of the Documents by the Camyand the performance by the Company of its abibgs thereunder will not
violate the memorandum of association or-laws of the Company nor any applicable law, regomgtorder or decree in Bermuc

3. The Company has taken all corporate action redud authorise its execution, delivery and penfance of the Documents. The
Documents have been duly executed and deliverexd by behalf of the Company, and constitute thehatd binding obligations of the
Company in accordance with the terms ther

4.  No order, consent, approval, licence, authorisadiovalidation of or exemption by any governmenpoblic body or authority ¢
Bermuda or any sub-division thereof is requireduthorise or is required in connection with thecexion, delivery, performance and
enforcement of the Documen

5. Itis not necessary or desirable to ensure nifiereeability in Bermuda of the Documents that theyregistered in any register kept by, or
filed with, any governmental authority or regulatody in Bermuda. However, to the extent that aithe Documents creates a charge
over assets of the Company, it may be desirabdasare the priority in Bermuda of the charge thheiregistered in the Register of
Charges in accordance with Section 55 of the Coiepaikct 1981

While there is no exhaustive definition of a chaumgeler Bermuda law, a charge includes any interestted in property by way of
security (including any mortgage, assignment, péedign or hypothecation). As the Documents areegued by the Foreign Laws, the
guestion of whether they create such an intergstdperty would be determined under the Foreignd.i



10.

11.

12.

CDh&pP

There is no income or other tax of Bermuda impdsedithholding or otherwise on any payment to belentb or by the Compar
pursuant to the Documents. The Documents will mosibject to ad valorem stamp duty in Bermuda atigir than as stated in paragr
5 hereof, no registration, documentary, recordiransfer or other similar tax, fee or charge isgtdg in Bermuda in connection with the
execution, delivery, filing, registration or penfioance of the Document

The choice of the Foreign Laws as the governingdatihe Documents is a valid choice of law and widog recognised and given effi

to in any action brought before a court of compejerisdiction in Bermuda, except for those lawswhich such court considers to be
procedural in nature, (ii) which are revenue orgbdaws or (iii) the application of which would brconsistent with public policy, as such
term is interpreted under the laws of Bermuda. Jitamission in the Documents to the non-exclusiviediction of the Foreign Courts is
valid and binding upon the Compat

The courts of Bermuda would recognise as a vatidiipent, a final and conclusive judgment in persooatained in the Foreign Coul
against the Company based upon the Documents wideh a sum of money is payable (other than a sumamey payable in respect of
multiple damages, taxes or other charges of anléitare or in respect of a fine or other penalty) aould give a judgment based thereon
without a substantive re-examination of the meaitsuch judgment provided that (a) such courtsgrager jurisdiction over the parties
subject to such judgment; (b) such courts did notravene the rules of natural justice of Bermydpasuch judgment was not obtainec
fraud; (d) the enforcement of the judgment woultlve contrary to the public policy of Bermuda; @) new admissible evidence relev
to the action is submitted prior to the renderifithe judgment by the courts of Bermuda; and (€réhis due compliance with the correct
procedures under the laws of Bermu

The appointment by the Company of CT CorporaBgstem as service of process agent in the Docunieralid and binding on the
Company.

The obligations of the Company under the Documeriltsank at least pari passu in priority of payrevith all other unsecure
unsubordinated indebtedness of the Company, dtherindebtedness which is preferred by virtue gf@ovision of the laws of
Bermuda of general applicatic

The Note Holders will not be deemed to be ediddomiciled or carrying on business in Bermugadason only of the execution,
performance and/or enforcement of the Documenthi&y¥ompany

We are not aware of any decision of the Bermudatamder which a guarantee of the nature contemglay the Documents entered i
for bona fide and legitimate commercial purposestgxempted company incorporated with limitediligbhas been overturned on
public policy grounds
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13. The Noteholders have standing to bring an actigoroceedings before the appropriate courts in Bdenfar the enforcement of tl
Documents. It is not necessary or advisable inrdiatethe Noteholders to enforce their rights unither Documents, including the exerc
of remedies thereunder, that they be licensedjfeathbr otherwise entitled to carry on busines8armuda

14. The Company has been designated as non-residBatmuda for the purposes of the Exchange CbAtt 1972 and, as such, is free to
acquire, hold and sell foreign currency and sei@sritvithout restriction

Yours faithfully

Conyers Dill & Pearman
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Schedule
The Note Holders
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Exhibit 9.10(e
Form of Opinion of Special United States Counséll¢éavcos
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To the holders of the Notes listed in Schedule lswe Exchange House
Primrose Street
London EC2A 2HS
T +44 (0)20 7374 8000
F +44 (0)20 7374 0888
DX 28

www.herbertsmith.cor

Date
[—12008

Dear Sirs,
Re: Signet Group Plc—Amendment to $380,000,000 NoReirchase Agreement

We acted as special United States counsel to S@rtp plc, a company organized under the lawsngfldhd and Wales (theCompany ™) in
connection with its offering (the Offering ) of $380,000,000 aggregate principal amount ofigenotes in three series, of which
$100,000,000 aggregate principal amount were @#5%.Senior Notes, Series A, due 2013 (tigeties A Notes), $150,000,000 aggregate
principal amount were its 6.11% Senior Notes, SdBiedue 2016 (the Series B Notes) and $130,000,000 aggregate principal amount were
its 6.26% Senior Notes, Series C, due 2018 (tBerfes C Notes and, together with the Series A Notes and théeSd&8 Notes, the Notes”)
pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, dated&30HVR006 (the Purchase Agreement), between the Company and the several
Purchasers named in Schedule A of the PurchaseeAgma (the ‘Purchasers”). The Company’s obligations under the Notes wgraranteed
pursuant to the guarantees dated 23 May 2006 EubSidiary Guarantees’) made by Sterling Jewelers Inc., Sterling Inche€kbury
Limited, Ernest Jones Limited, H. Samuel Limitedd &ignet Holdings Limited (theSubsidiary Guarantors ). Pursuant to Section 18.1 of
the Purchase Agreement, the Company received tieenbof the Purchasers to amend the Purchasemgntén the First Supplemental
Agreement dated 16 May 2008 between the Companyhenldolders of the Notes party thereto (ttf®upplemental Agreement’ and, taken
together with the Purchase Agreement, tiherfended Purchase Agreemernit) and an Accession Agreement dated [ — ] 200&ef t
[PARENT NEWCO] (the “Accession Agreement). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise deffimerein shall have the meanings given
such terms in the Purchase Agreement or, as thexdaequires, the Amended Purchase Agreement.

We have examined originals or copies, certifiedtberwise identified to our satisfaction, of thepBlemental Agreement, the Accession
Agreement, the guarantee[s] dated [ — ] 2008 (tNewco Guarantee[s]) made by (PARENT NEWCO] (theParent”) and [[OTHER
NEWCOS] (the" Other Newcos” and, together with the Parent,] thiéléwco Guarantor[s]”) in favor of the Purchasers and have relied as to
certain factual matters on the representationsaarcanties in the Supplemental Agreement, certiéis®af officers and directors of the
Company and the Newco Guarantor[s] and have exahsineh certificates and other documents and ingnisras we have deemed necessary
or advisable for the purposes of this opinion.Uaorsexamination, we have assumed the genuinenedissignatures, the legal capacity of all
natural persons, the authenticity of all documsntsmitted to us as originals, the conformity t@ovil documents of all documents submitted
to us as certified or photostatic copies and thbkeaicity of the originals of such latter docungrassumptions that we have not independently
verified.



Based upon the foregoing, pursuant to Section B)1df(the Amended Purchase Agreement, and sulgjghetlimitations and qualifications
stated herein, we are of the opinion that:

1. The Supplemental Agreement constitutes a legal] wald binding agreement of the Company, enforeeagainst the Company in
accordance with its terms, subject to bankrupttgolivency, fraudulent transfer, reorganisation,atmium or similar laws of general
applicability relating to or affecting creditc rights and to general equity principl

2. The Accession Agreement constitutes a legal, \aid binding agreement of the [PARENT NEWCO], endatde against the [PARENT
NEWCO] in accordance with its terms, subject toksaptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorgati@n, moratorium or similar law
of general applicability relating to or affectingeditors’ rights and to general equity principli

3. Each Newco Guarantee constitutes a legal, validbamding agreement of such Guarantor, enforceaggéat such Guarantor
accordance with its terms, subject to bankrupttgolivency, fraudulent transfer, reorganisation,atmium or similar laws of general
applicability relating to or affecting creditc rights and to general equity principl

4. The payment obligations of each Newco Guarantoeuitsl respective Newco Guarantee rpaki passun right of payment with all of
such Newco Guarantor’s other unsecured and unsimaded Financial Indebtedness, except for obligatimandatorily preferred by law
applying to companies general

5.  With the exception of the Company’s or the Parep¢sodic reporting requirements under the SeagiExchange Act of 1934, as
amended, no consent, approval or authorizationrakgistration, filing or declaration with, any @nmental Authority within the
United States is required by the Company or any dde@uarantor in connection with the execution\agli or performance by the
Company of the Supplemental Agreement, by the Pafehe Accession Agreement or by any Newco Guaraof its respective Newco
Guarantee. We express no opinion as to any reqaitenunder state securities la

6. The execution, delivery and performance by the makthe Accession Agreement or by the Newco Gutara of their respective New
Guarantees does not and will not (a) contraverseltran any breach of, or constitute a default underesult in the creation of any Lien
in respect of any property under any corporatetehamemorandum and articles of association, réiguis.or by-laws or other
constitutive document, or any indenture, mortgaged of trust, loan, purchase or credit agreenteade, other agreement or instrument
known to us, to which the Newco Guarantors or dthe Subsidiary Guarantors are bound or by whiehNewco Guarantors or any of
the Subsidiary Guarantors or any of their respeqgtioperties may be bound or affected, (b) conflith or result in a breach of any of
the terms, conditions or provisions of any ordedgment, decree or ruling of any court, arbitraioGGovernmental Authority within the
United States applicable to the Newco Guarantar&;)oviolate any applicable law or regulation ofjgGovernmental Authority within
the United States applicable to the Newco Guarar

7. No actions, suits or proceedings are pending, outknowledge threatened, against or affectingPweent or any Other Newco or ¢
property of the Parent or any Other Newco in anyricor before any arbitrator of any kind or beforeby any Governmental Authority
within the United States, except actions, suitgroceedings which (a) individually do not in anynmar draw into question the validity
the Amended Purchase Agreement, the Accession Agnete or any Newco Guarantee and (b)in the aggeegatld not be reasonably
expected to have a Material Adverse Effi

8.  The choice of law of the State of New York as tbgagning law of the Supplemental Agreement, theesston Agreement, and t
Newco Guarantee[s] is a valid choice of law. Iniidd, the submission to the jurisdiction of anyucoof the State of New York or at
federal court in the United States of America ledaih the Borough of Manhattan, The City of N
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York, by the Parent and the Newco Guarantor[shenAccession Agreement and the Newco Guaranteeysilid and binding on the
Parent and the Newco Guarantor([s], respectivel\ivBry of a notice of service to the agent for dety of service of process as set forth
in the Accession Agreement and the Newco Guarasjted] constitute valid personal service on thedPd or a Newco Guarantor, as
applicable. Notwithstanding this section 8, we esgrno opinion as to (a) Section 6 of the AccesAgmeement and Section 5.5 of the
Guarantee insofar as they relate to (i) the sulbjedter jurisdiction of a United States Federaltiis Court sitting in the Borough of
Manhattan, The City of New York to adjudicate ampttoversy relating to the Accession AgreementNke/co Guarantee or any other
document related thereto, (ii) the waiver of incemient forum with respect to proceedings in anyhdunited States Federal District
Court or (iii) the waiver of the right to jury ttiar (b) Section 5.6 of the Guarant

We are members of the Bar of the State of New Yakl the foregoing opinion is limited to the lawgh®e State of New York, the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and tliefal laws of the United States of America. Weeagressing no opinion as to the effect of
the laws of any other State of the United Stateengrother jurisdiction.

This letter is rendered to you solely for your lférie connection with the above-referenced madted may not be relied upon by, or furnished
to, any other person, or filed with any authontythout our prior written consent in each instardetwithstanding the foregoing, this opinion
may be furnished to but not relied upon by the dt&tl Association of Insurance Commissioners andfeggral or state regulatory authority
having jurisdiction over you and as otherwise reggiby law; provided, further, that this opinionyrze furnished to but not relied upon by
potential transferees who accept that this opisjperaks only as of the date hereof and to its aseessand that we have no responsibility or
obligation to update or supplement such opinioreftect any fact or circumstance that may hereaftene to our attention or any change in
that may hereafter occur or hereafter become éffact

This opinion is given by Herbert Smith LLP whictsames liability for and is responsible for it. Nwlividual owes or shall owe any duty of
care to you, or for or in relation to this letter.

Yours faithfully,
Herbert Smith LLP
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THIS DEED is made on 3> SEPTEMBER 2008

BETWEEN:

SIGNET JEWELERS LIMITED (Registered No. 42069) a company incorporated agistered in Bermuda, whose registered office is at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM1IpRela (thé’‘Company” ); and

CAPITA IRG TRUSTEES LIMITED (Registered No. 2729260) whose registered offieg iBhe Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Becken
Kent, BR3 4TU (theDepository” ).

RECITALS

(A)

(B)
(©)

The Company wishes to appoint the Depositorgdostitute and issue from time to time, upon gret of the Deed Poll (as defined
below) executed or to be executed by the Deposdargr about the date of this Agreement, seriamoértificated depository interests,
each such series representing a particular classoofrities issued by the Company, with a viewatlitating the indirect holding of, ai
settlement of transactions in, such securitiesacheclass concerned by participants in CREST amd#pository wishes to accept such
appointment

The Deed Poll sets out, among other things, thegempon which such depository interests will beéss

The Depository has agreed, among other thingsjttehtll comply and shall procure that certaineothersons comply, with the terms
the Deed Poll and to provide certain other senvieeonnection with such depository intere:

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.
11

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
The following words and expressions shall, unlégsscontext otherwise requires, have the followirgamngs
“Agreement” means this Depository Agreement as amended froe tiinime;

“Business Day”means a day (excluding Saturdays) on which banksrgly are open in London for the transactionafmal banking
business;

“Bye-laws” means the bye-laws of the Company to be adoptexnt about the Effective Date, as annexed to thissagrent.
“ Corporate Action ” has the meaning given to it in the Crest Manualipbied by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited,;

“Deed Poll” the trust deed poll (substantially in the formtoé draft appended to this Agreement) executed éy#pository on or
about the date of this Agreement, as amended @eaugnted from time to time in accordance withetsns;

“Effective Date” means the date upon which the Scheme of Arrangebeeoimes effective in accordance with its terms;
“Event of Default” means, in relation to any party:-

(&) that party being unable or admitting its inabiliéypay its debts as they fall due, suspending ngagayments on any class of
debts or, by reason of actual or anticipated firernttifficulties, commencing negotiations with ooemore of its creditors with a
view to rescheduling any of its indebtedne
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(b)  a moratorium being declared in respect of any itetiess of it
(c) any corporate action or legal proceedings beingrtak relation tc-

0] the suspension of payments, a moratorium ofiadgbtedness, winding-up, dissolution, adminigirgtbankruptcy or
reorganisation (by way of voluntary arrangemertiesee of arrangement or otherwise) by or of thatyp

(i) a composition, assignment or arrangement with #agsof creditor of that part

(iii) the appointment of a liquidator, receivernaidistrator, administrative receiver, compulsorynager or other similar
officer in respect of that party or any of its dss

or any analogous procedure or step is taken irjuaigdiction; or
(d) that party ceasing to carry on its business forraagon
“ Fees "means the fees and charges set out in Schedule 1;

“Group” means, in relation to any party, that party togethieh all of its holding companies from time toné and all subsidiaries and
subsidiary undertakings from time to time of thattp or any holding company of it from time to tinadl of them and each of them as
the context admits;

“Index Figure” means the monthly figure given by the Retail Pricekex;

“Registrar Agreement” means the registrar agreement between Capita Regigiersey) Limited and the Company dated orbbouta
the date of this Agreement.

“Relevant Date” means in the case of the first review referredhtdause 4.4 the date of this Agreement and fon sabsequent revie
the date of the most recent previous review;

“Retail Prices Index” means the General Index of Retail Prices for eth# which is published in the United Kingdom in enthly
Digest of Statistics by the Office for National Hcs or any replacement of it;

“Scheme of Arrangement” means the Scheme of Arrangement proposed to be nmaide Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006 whereby
the Company shall acquire the entire issued shepitat of Signet Group plc; and

“Shares” means the common shares in the Company of $0.18 eac
1.2 Inthis Agreement unless otherwise specified, eafee to:

(@ a"holding company” or “subsidiary” shall be construed in accordance with sectionsar@6736A of the Companies Act 19
and a“subsidiary undertaking” shall be construed in accordance with section 258eoCompanies Act 198

(b) a person includes any person, individual, comypfirm, corporation, government, state or ageoifcy state or any undertaking or
organisation (whether or not having separate Ipgedonality and irrespective of the jurisdictioroinunder the law of which it
was incorporated or exists

(c) apartyisto a party to this Agreement and inciuitle successors in title and permitted assigr
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13
14

3.2

(d) a“ statute” or “statutory instrument” or any of their provisions is to be construed asfarence to that statute or statutory
instrument or such provision as the same may haea bmended or-enacted before the date of this Agreem

(e) recitals, clauses, paragraphs or schedules aegitals, clauses of and paragraphs of and sté®tb this Agreement. The
schedules form part of the operative provisionthisf Agreement and references to this Agreemeril, shidess the context
otherwise requires, include references to the sdhey

® “writing ” includes any methods or representing words in iblledorm (other than writing on an electronic éswal display
screen) or other writing in n-transitory form;

() words denoting the singular shall include the plarad vice versa and words denoting any gendel sttdlide all genders

(h)  “pound<” , “pounds sterlin¢” , “sterling” and“£” are to the lawful currency of the United Kingdomg:

0] “US dollars” and“$" are to the lawful currency of the United Stateswoferica.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words apdessiondefined in the Deed Poll shall have the same meanirhen used herei
The index to and the headings in this Agreementarimformation only and are to be ignored for theposes of construing the sar

APPOINTMENT

The Company hereby appoints the Depository withaffrom the Effective Date to constitute and isgam time to time, upon the
terms of the Deed Poll, Depository Interests, eaath Depository Interest representing a ShareaiCdmpany, and to provide certain
other services in connection with the Depositotgiests on the terms of, and subject to the camditset out in, this Agreement.

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND UNDERTAKI NGS OF THE PARTIES

The Depository hereby agrees and undertakie tGompany that, insofar as the following persaresmembers of the Depository’s
Group, it shall comply and shall procure that agpBsitory Interest Registrar, Custodian, Agenttbeoperson appointed pursuant t
who otherwise performs any duties, responsibilitiesbligations under or in connection with the B&®ll shall comply with the terms
of the Deed Poll. The Depository shall, and shedl teasonable endeavours to procure that suchngeshall, perform all such duties,
responsibilities and obligations and shall exeraieghts in good faith and with all reasonabtdlsdiligence and care

Without prejudice to clause 3.1, the Depositorylisinad, insofar as the following persons are memloéthe Deposito’'s Group, shal
use reasonable endeavours to procure that any Daydsterest Registrar, Custodian, Agent or otherson appointed pursuant to or
who otherwise performs any duties, responsibilitiesbligations under or in connection with the B&w®ll shall-

(@) onlyissue, transfer and cancel Depository Intergsaccordance with the Deed P
(b)  arrange for all Depository Interests to be admitte@REST as participating securiti
(c) maintain records of all Depository Interests caleckbr surrendered and Deposited Property withdramder the Deed Pol
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

(d)  provide such copies of and access to the Depoditteyest Register and the records maintained urldese 3.2(c) above in e
case at such times and in such form (includingtedaic form) as the Company may require from timéire;

(e) comply with written instructions of the Compamyt to accept for deposit any Shares identifiestich instructions at such times
and under such circumstances as may be speciftthinstructions in order to facilitate the Comga compliance with or to
avoid any breach of the securities and other lawvany jurisdiction

® make any request for any information, evideaceéeclaration as the Company may require the Depgdo make under clause
19.1 of the Deed Poll and shall promptly provid¢hte Company all information, evidence and decdlanatit receives as a result
of making such reques

(o) forward to all relevant Holders all of the Comp’s instructions referred to in clause 19.2 of thedEoll and, at the Compé's
cost and request, enforce the provisions of clddse of the Deed Poll; ar

(h) perform all of its duties, obligations and resgibilities under the Deed Poll in accordance wltlapplicable laws and
regulations

Notwithstanding clause 15 of the Deed Poll, the ®&pry shall not amend or supplement the DeedWwithlout the prior writter
consent of the Company (which consent shall natriveasonably withheld or delayed) provided thatdbeository shall be entitled to
amend the Deed Poll without seeking the consetitoCompany if that amendment is necessary or neddpdesirable as a result of
any change in any statute, law, regulation or othler applicable to the arrangements contemplayeitido Deed Poll or this Agreeme

The Depository warrants to the Company thiatain authorised person under the Financial Ses\dod Markets Act 2000'ESMA” )
and is duly authorised to carry out the custodia ether activities required of it by the Deed Rolaccordance with the FSMA and
undertakes that, if and so long as the Deed Pwolaies in force, it shall, at its own burden andemge, maintain that status and
authorisation or any corresponding status undedegiglation or regulatory requirement in Englanidetr may from time to time apply
to the carrying on of such activities in additionar in substitution for the requirements of theVi2S The Depository further warrants
the Company that it shall and shall procure thargDepository Interest Registrar, Custodian, Agerdther person appointed by the
Depository pursuant to the Deed Poll who is a membthe Depository’s Group shall at all times améhll respects comply in full with
and maintain in place all necessary registratiaiications and procedures to comply with, thedRBtotection Act 199¢

For the avoidance of doubt and subject to the terintisis Agreement, in acting under the Deed Rl Depository shall have only thc
duties, obligations and responsibilities expressigiertaken by it in the Deed Poll and, except ¢éoetktent expressly provided by the
Deed Poll, shall not assume any relationship afttfor or with the Holders or any other pers

The Depository shall not appoint any succeBsgository pursuant to clause 13 of the Deed Pbitkwhas not been approved by the
Company (such approval not to be unreasonably eithbr delayed) unless such successor Deposit@yriesmber of the Depository’s
Group. No appointment shall become effective undesbuntil the successor Depository has enteredaind become bound by an
agreement to be executed as a deed with the Comipangh form as the Company may reasonably regoivenanting with the
Company, inter alia, to observe, perform and benbdday all of the terms of this Agreement as if éne the Depository named here

The Company hereby undertakes to the Depositotyiftttee Company, or any of its subsidiaries, madespplication to the FSA to |
authorised under FSMA then the Company shall nthtiéyDepository of this at the same time as thdiegijon is made, or as soon as
reasonably practicable thereaft
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

In the event that the Company, or any of itssgliaries, becomes authorised by the FSA underA8M parties hereby agree to revise
the Fees and the fees, charges and expensesoas sethe Registrar Agreement and/or this Agreeneneflect any additional services
which the Depository will need to provide to then@many or any additional notification requiremertts Depository will need to
provide to any regulatory authorit

In the event that the Company, or any of itssgliaries, becomes authorised by the FSA underA 8l the FSA refuse to approve the
Depository’s notification to the FSA (under Pari XControl Over Authorised Persons” - sections 178-191 FSMA) of the Depository
holding 10% or more of the shares in the Compaaybpository is hereby entitled to cancel the Digpnsinterests in such number
and manner as is appropriate in the circumstaneésd first consulted the Company and Euroclear8JKeland Limited.

The Company warrants to the Depository that aBeatlate of this Agreemer

3.10.1  the Depository does not require any perarissiuthorisation or licence from any authorityity country (other than the
United Kingdom) in which the Company carries onibess in order to hold Shares in the Compi

3.10.2  no deductions or withholdings will be dueamy payment of income or capital relating to thar@s to any Holder (including
the Depository and/or any Custodian);

3.10.3 save as set out in the E-laws, there are no special arrangements, exclusiesiictions, national declarations or sim
matters which attach to or apply in connection vitrares and which would restrict the transfer afr&& by any Holder
(including the Depository and/or any Custodie

The Company undertakes to notify the Depositothout delay in the event that the conditionsaé in clause 3.10 above no longer
apply.

Notwithstanding the Depositc’s general willingness to accept transfers of Déppsinterests the Depository will not be obligeddo
so under the Deed Poll or this Agreement if thadfar would place the Depository in breach of avwy br regulation. As at the date of

this Agreement, the Company warrants it is not avedirany such breach. If such circumstances weoedar the Depository hereby
agrees to discuss this with the Company as so@nraasonably practicable in order to review howrtaceed

The Company agrees that any changes to the prosigiealing with disclosure of interests in shanethé Company in th

Constitutional Documents of the Company which affee Depository will contain provisions to theesff that any restrictions shall not
apply to the Depository. The Company further agteasno change will be made to the provisionqign€onstitutional Documents
dealing with transfer of shares in the Company aitithe prior approval of the Deposito

The Company undertakes to indemnify the Depositorgspect of any losses, damages, claims, codts)xgenses or other liabiliti
incurred by the Depository by reason of breachngfwearranty or undertaking in clauses 3.7 and 81813.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Défmog shall not be obliged to accept the issuaamgfer to it of Shares if such issue
transfer would likely result in the Depository hagito make a mandatory offer for other Shareshénetvent that the Depository is
required to make a mandatory offer to purchaser@hares under applicable law, the Company shapeate with the Depository in
seeking an exemption or waiver of such requireraedtthe Company shall bear all reasonable costeddepository in connection
with seeking such exemption or waiv

The Company agrees that it shall not, wittbetprior written agreement of the Depository, dismake application to list its Shares on
any stock exchange. The Depository hereby conseigplication being made to list and the listirighe Shares on the London Stock
Exchange and the New York Stock Exchar
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3.17

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.2

The Depository shall provide the Company wittopy of any notice to be given to the Holdersanrudiauses 13.1, 13.2 and 14.1 of the
Deed Poll at the same time that such notice isideavto the Holders

FEES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

In consideration of the performance of its dut@sjgations and responsibilities under this Agreatrand the Deed Poll, and subjec
clause 4.4, the Company shall pay to the Depos{targs the Depository shall direct) the Fees,extlip and in accordance with the
terms of Schedule :

The Company shall pay to the Depository (ahasDepository shall direct) such fees that magdreed from time to time in respect of
any actions that the Company requests the Depgpdidake and the Depository agrees to take ine@tspf any Corporate Actions as
referred to in clause 5.

The Depository shall be entitled to recover anpoeable out of pocket expenses which it incursngdutiie proper performance of
duties, obligations and responsibilities undereed Poll and this Agreement (including, withouatitation, CREST message and
network charges). The Depository shall submit awice to the Company on a monthly basis detailirggadmounts claimed
accompanied by reasonable supporting document:

The Fees will be reviewed on the first anniversarihe date of this Agreement and each subsequeitexsary and if, upon any su
review, the Index Figure last published beforedhte of such review shows and increase over thexIfijure last published before the
Relevant Date the Fees shall be increased in the paoportion

The Company shall pay to the Depository interestvof per cent (2%) above the base interest rata fime to time of Barclays Bar
PLC on all amounts due and payable under this Agege¢ and not paid within 45 days of the date ofréhevant invoice for such
amount from the date of the relevant invoice uh#é date of full paymen

ASSISTANCE BY THE COMPANY

The Company shall provide such assistancesnrdtion and documentation in English to the Depogias may be reasonably required
by the Depository for the purposes of the perforoesof its duties, responsibilities and obligatiomsler the Deed Poll and this
Agreement. In particular the Company will supplg tbepository with enough copies of each documeattttte Company intends to
send to its shareholders in advance of sending @amiment to its shareholders for the Depositomistribute to all Holders

If the Company proposes any Corporate ActienGbmpany agrees to give the Depository as mudbenas reasonably practicable,
subject to considerations of insider dealing, miakeise and any other applicable law or regulatibith may restrict the Company
from giving such notice. All such information shb# deemed Confidential Information (as definedlause 11.3). The Company furt
agrees that it will provide the Depository withiedst 60 days prior written notice of any matectsnge to its jurisdiction, group
structure or regulatory status if doing so woulghiree any new legal or regulatory obligations onRkeository or require the
Depository to perform its obligations or servicesler the Deed Poll or this Agreement in a differgay.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

If a dividend or other distribution is to be paidrade by the Company, the Company will notify Bepository of the class or classe
shareholders entitled to it, the currency of paynfemich shall only be Sterling and US dollars,asd the parties separately agree in
writing a different currency of payment) and thecamt to be paid per share. The Comp
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6.2

6.3

6.4

7.2

7.3

will notify the Depository of the total amount te paid in respect of Deposited Company Securitietess and to the extent the
Company makes arrangements for any such dividedistitbution to be paid or made directly to Hoklghe Company will transfer
this total amount into the Depository’s bank acdaamthe Business Day before the dividend or diistion is to be paid or made or at
such later time as shall nevertheless enable tipediery to make the payment on the due date. TémoBitory will notify the Compan
not less than two business days in advance ofdtesttle dividend or other distribution is to bedpaii the details of its bank accou

The Depository will arrange for its bank to makgagment of the dividend or distribution to each dolentitled to it on the day it is ¢
for payment. The Depository may, with the priorttem consent of the Company, pay or make the saeeiéit has not received
sufficient funds from the Company. In such circuanses, the Company will reimburse the Depositorg@mand for any bank charges
and interest it may incur as a result, and wilnteiirse the Depository in respect of all sums piggeid by it in respect of such
dividend or distribution. Notwithstanding the fooegg, the Depository reserves the right not to gagnake any dividend or distribution
unless and until the Company has put it in suffitfends for such purpose

Subiject to clause 6.4, all distributions oreotpayments to Holders made by the Depository &igathade net of the maximum rate of
withholding or other taxation applicable to suclympants in the relevant jurisdiction(s) and the Holghall be responsible for
reclaiming any tax that may be reclaimed from #levant local taxation authoritie

The Depository may, at its sole discretion, wahe provisions of clause 6.3 where the Company hadded it with a local law lege
opinion addressed to the Depository which satigfiesDepository that such distribution may be maide reduced rate of tax and that
local taxation authorities will have no recoursehte Depository in respect of tax due but not fgidny Holder

INDEMNITY IN RESPECT OF THIRD PARTY CLAIMS

The Depository shall indemnify the Company on aarafx basis against each loss, liability, cost expense reasonably incuri
(including reasonable legal fees) which the Compauffers or incurs as a result of any claim madsresg the Company by any Holder,
or any person having any direct or indirect intenesny Depository Interests held by any Holdethar Deposited Company Securities
represented thereby, which arises out of any breftie terms of the Deed Poll or any trust declarearising thereunder save where
such loss, liability, cost or expense arises asalt of the fraud, negligence or wilful defaulttbé Company. The aggregate liability of
the Depository arising out of or in connection witis Agreement (however arising) shall be limitedhe lesser of (a) £1,000,000 (one
million pounds sterling) and (b) an amount equdkto(10) times the total annual fee payable tdxapository under this Agreeme

The Company shall indemnify the Depository on aarahx basis against each loss, liability, cost @xpense reasonably incur
(including reasonable legal fees) which the Depogisuffers or incurs as a result of any claim magainst the Depository by any
Holder, or any person having any direct or indiiatérest in any Depository Interests held by amyddr or the Deposited Company
Securities represented thereby, which arises otlteoperformance by the Depository of the obligatiaduties and responsibilities
imposed upon the Depository under this Agreemedttae Deed Poll save in respect of any loss, lighitost and expense (including
legal fees) resulting from the negligence, wilfefallt or fraud of the Depositor

This clause shall survive termination of this Agremt.
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8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.2

10.
10.1

COMMENCEMENT, TERM AND TERMINATION OF APPOINTMENT

This Agreement shall come into force on thes&tif/e Date and, subject to the following partshi§ clause, shall remain in force if and
for so long as the Deed Poll shall remain in fo

The Company shall be entitled to serve a writteticeamn the Depository to terminate the Depos’s appointment and this Agreeme

(@ immediately if an Event of Default occurs in retattito the Depository or the Depository commitsraenmediable material brea
of this Agreement or the Deed Poll;

(b) if the Depository commits a material breach of thigeement or the Deed Poll and fails to remedydwreach within 30 days «
being required to do so by written notice givertiiy Company; o

(c) at any time by giving not less than 45 ¢’ written notice to the Depaositor
The Depository shall be entitled to serve a writtetice to terminate the Deposit’'s appointment and this Agreeme

(@ immediately if an Event of Default occurs in refatito the Company or if the Company commits ammediable material breac
of this Agreement; @

(b) if the Company commits a material breach of thise®gnent and fails to remedy such breach within8& af being required 1
do so by written notice given by the Depository

(c) atanytime by giving not less than 45 ¢’ written notice to the Compan

Within 14 days of the service of a notice toni@ate the appointment of the Depository undeus#s8.2 or 8.3 above the Depository
shall be required to serve notices on the HoldeBepository Interests of its intention to termiadhe Deed Poll. On the termination of
the Deed Poll, the appointment of the Depository this Agreement shall automatically termini

On termination of the Deed Poll, the Company stalbr procure the doing of all such acts and thargs$ will execute or procure tl
execution of all such documents as may be reqyinetuding on or after the termination of this Agreent) to give effect to the
provisions of clause 14.4 of the Deed Poll. Th&usk 8.5 shall survive the termination of this Agnent.

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

Termination of this Agreement for whatever readoallsbe without prejudice to any and all accrueghts, obligations and liabilities «
any party as at the date of termination and stalbffect the coming into force or the continuatioriorce of any provision of this
Agreement which is expressly or by implication imded to come into or continue in force at or atiéemination.

Upon termination of the Deed Poll, the Depagighall provide to the Company a fully up to dedpy of the Depository Interest
Register and the records maintained under claige)3n hard copy form and, at the Company’s casth other form as the Company
may require

FORCE MAJEURE

“Event of Force Majeure” means, in relation to any party, an event or cirstamce beyond the reasonable control of that (gt
“Claiming Party” ) including, without limitation, (whether or not ltlge Claiming Party) strikes, lock-outs and otmetustrial disputes
(in each case, whether or not relating to the AtegnParty's workforce).
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10.2

10.3

11.
111

11.2

11.3

12.
12.1

12.2

The Claiming Party shall not be deemed tonbd@éach of this Agreement or otherwise liablertg ather party (thé Non-claiming
Party” ) for any delay in performance or any non-perforogaaf any obligations under this Agreement (andithe for performance
shall be extended accordingly) if and to the extkat the delay or non-performance is due to amEekForce Majeure provided that
(a) the Claiming Party could not have avoided tifiece of the Event of Force Majeure by taking prgi@ns which, having regard to all
matters known to it before the occurrence of therfwf Force Majeure and all relevant factorspigtat reasonably to have taken but
not take and (b) the Claiming Party has used redderendeavours to mitigate the effect of the Eeéifforce Majeure and to carry out
its obligations under this Agreement in any othaywhat is reasonably practicak

The Claiming Party shall promptly notify themclaiming Party of the nature and extent of theuwsinstances giving rise to the Event
Force Majeure. If the Event of Force Majeure ingtiom prevails for a continuous period in exces8®tlays after the date on which it
began, the Non-claiming Party may terminate thed3#pry’s appointment hereunder immediately by gmivritten notice to that effect
to the Claiming Party

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Each party undertakes that it shall not dutliegterm of this Agreement or at any time theerafse, divulge or communicate to any
person, except its professional representativesivisers or as may be required by law or any legadgulatory authority, any
Confidential Information concerning another partyieth may have or may in future come to its knowkedgd each of the parties shall
use its reasonable endeavours to prevent the gtiblicor disclosure of any such Confidential Infation.

Each party shall, immediately upon terminatibthis Agreement for any reason or upon the pdgy it of written demand from the
other, return all written Confidential Informati@novided to it and shall either return or destrbynates, memoranda and other stored
information (including information stored in anymputer system or other device capable of contaimfigmation whether in readable
form or otherwise) prepared by it which relate ny £onfidential Information, whether or not anytké same are then in its possession
and it will, upon receipt of written demand fronetanother, confirm in writing that all Confidentlaformation has been returned or
destroyed

For the purposes of this clause (and clage & onfidential Information ” means, in relation to each party, all informatiefating to
the business, customers, financial or other aff#ithat party or of any member of its Group whigimot in the public domait

DELEGATION

The Depository shall not, without the prior conseithe Company (which consent is not to be unnealsly withheld or delayed
assign, transfer or declare a trust of the beoéfite performance of all or any of its obligatiansder this Agreement or the Deed Poll,
except as permitted under the terms of the Deeldirwlany benefit arising under or out of this Agment. Any such delegation shall
not affect the obligations of the Depository untter terms of this Agreement or the Deed Poll aeddbpository shall be responsible
for any acts or omissions of such delegate or Agsrit they were the actions of the Depositoryifit

Notwithstanding clause 12.1, the Depository maycsubract or delegate the performance of all or@friys duties, obligations ¢
responsibilities under this Agreement or the DeellitB any person which is (and for so long agihains) a member of its Group,
provided that such arrangements shall not affextigtbility of the Depository to the Company untigis Agreement
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13.  WAIVER

13.1 A waiver of any term, provision or condition of shhgreement shall be effective only if given in timg and signed by the waiving pa
and then only in the instance and for the purposhich it is given

13.2 No failure or delay on the part of any party inEx&@ing any right, power or privilege under thisrAgment shall operate as a wai
thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercisary such right, power or privilege preclude atiyeo or further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right, power or privile

13.3 No breach of any provision of this Agreement sbhallwaived or discharged except with the expresgemrconsent of each of tl
parties.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

14.1 Except as may be applicable under the Deed PdlAtireement constitutes the entire and only agesgibetween the parties relating
the subject matter of this Agreement and supersadg®xtinguishes any prior drafts, agreementsertakings, representations,
warranties and arrangements of any nature whatsosfether or not in writing, relating to or in awection with this Agreemen

14.2 Each party acknowledges that it has not beduncied to enter into this Agreement in reliancenymor has it been given, any warranty,
representation, statement, assurance, covenaegragnt, undertaking, indemnity or commitment of aature whatsoever other thar
expressly set out in this Agreement and, to theraxt has been, it unconditionally and irrevocalbjives any claims, rights and
remedies which it might otherwise have had in retethereto

14.3 The provisions of this clause shall not exelady liability which either of the parties woultherwise have to the other or any right
which either of them may have to rescind this Agreet in respect of any statements made fraudulegtihe other prior to the
execution of this Agreement or any rights which ahyhem may have in respect of fraudulent conceatrby the othel

15. COSTS

15.1 Save as expressly otherwise provided in this Agergrar expressly otherwise agreed between theepagach of the parties shall b
its own legal, accountancy and other costs, chaagdsxpenses connected with the negotiation, pagpa and implementation of this
Agreement and any other agreement incidental teferred to in this Agreement. It is expressly adréhat the Company shall bear all
of its own costs and expenses and the costs amhsap of the Depository associated with the negmtigpreparation and execution of
the Deed Poll and this Agreeme

16. NO PARTNERSHIP

Nothing in this Agreement and no action taken leyghrties pursuant to this Agreement shall constitor be deemed to constitute, a
partnership, association, joint venture or othepperative entity.

© Capita IRG Trustees Ltd 2008. All rights reserved 12



17. NOTICES

17.1 Any notice, demand or other communication giwemade under or in connection with the matterdemplated by this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be delivered pershnat sent by fax or prepaid first class post (adil if posted to or from a place outside
the United Kingdom)

In the case of the Depository to:

Capita IRG Trustees Limited
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Fax: + 44 (0)20 8639 2267
Attention: Company Secretary

In the case of the Company to:

Signet Jewelers Limited

15 Golden Square

London W1F 9JG

Fax: +44 (0)20 7734 1452
Attention: Company Secretary

and shall be deemed to have been duly given or msdalows:

(@) if personally delivered, upon delivery at the addref the relevant part
(b) if sent by first class post, two Business Daysrdfie date of posting

(c) if sent by air mail, five Business Days after tlaedof posting; an

(d) if sent by fax, when despatche

provided that if, in accordance with the above giowv, any notice, demand or other communicatiothenmparagraphs (a) or (d) would
otherwise be deemed to be given or made afterghr@0on a Business Day or at any time on a daywisionot a Business Day such
notice, demand or other communication shall be @éekto be given or made at 9.00 a.m. on the nexinBss Day.

17.2 A party may notify the other parties to this Agresrnof a change to its name, relevant addressdegsglor fax number for the purpao
of clause 17.1 provided that such notification kbaly be effective on

(@) the date specified in the notification as the detevhich the change is to take place

(b) if no date is specified or the date specified $s lhan five Business Days after the date on wiitice is given, the date fallir
five Business Days after notice of any such chdragebeen giver

18. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

18.1 This Agreement (and any dispute, controvgreyceedings or claim of whatever nature arisingadutr in any way relating to this
Agreement or its formation) shall be governed bg eonstrued in accordance with English i

18.2 Each of the parties to this Agreement irrevocalieas that the courts of England shall have exasirisdiction to hear and deci
any suit, action or proceedings, and/or to settiedisputes, which may arise out of or in connectigth this Agreement and, for these
purposes, each party irrevocably submits to thisdigtion of the courts of Englan

© Capita IRG Trustees Ltd 2008. All rights reserved 13



19. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1998lkshot apply to this Agreement and no person othan the parties to this Agreem
shall have any rights under it, nor shall it beceoéable under that Act by any person other tharpétties to it.

20. COUNTERPARTS

20.1 This Agreement may be executed in any numbeounterparts and each of which when so executall Ise an original, but all
counterparts shall together constitute one andahge instrumen

20.2 Delivery of an executed signature page ofumt@rpart by facsimile transmission shall take efées delivery of an executed counterpart
of this Agreement. Without prejudice to the valjdif such facsimile delivery, each party shall pdevthe other party with the original
of such page as soon as reasonably practicablesther.

IN WITNESS of which this Agreement has been duly executeddeed on the date written at the top of page 1.
© Capita IRG Trustees Ltd 2008. All rights reserved 14



Schedule 1

Set Up Fet £ 5,00(
Annual Depository Interest and custodian Global £30,00(

© Capita IRG Trustees Ltd 2008. All rights reserved 15



Executed as deed ISIGNET JEWELERS LIMITED )
acting by two directors

Executed as a deed BAPITA IRG TRUSTEES )
LIMITED acting by a director and its secretary/two )
directors )

Director /s/ Terry Burmar

Director /s/ Mark Light

Director /sl

Director/Secretar /s/
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SIGNET

] EWELETRS

Strictly private and confidential
Addressee only

Mr Walker Boyd

Ivy Close Cottage
Wolverton
Stratford-upon-Avon
CV37 OHH

By hand

Dear Walkel 2 September 20!

Early Retirement

| write further to our discussions regarding yoarlg retirement from Signet Group Limited (th€bmpany ") with effect from June 2010.
You have confirmed that it is your intention topstiown as a director of Signet Jewelers Limitedl(alh other Signet group companies) with
effect from the conclusion of the 2010 Annual Gahé&feeting and to retire from your employment vilte Company at the end of June 2010.

The Company’s Compensation Committee has consideesdrrangements to be put in place at the tim@of early retirement and has
decided that, provided your early retirement tadf#sct in June 2010 as intended, it will exerctsadiscretion with regard to your pension,
bonus and incentive plan arrangements as set dhiitetter. The Company is proceeding on thessit you are retiring entirely from full
time employment and, other than possibly undertakinited part-time non-executive roles, you hae¢ obtained nor are you seeking or
intending to seek an alternative full time execaifposition.

1. Termination date — Your employment with the Company will terminateferiday 25 June 2010 (tt* Termination Date ").

2.  Pension- The relevant rules of the Signet Group Pensidre®e provide that early retirement attracts anaa@ureduction, which
should be applied to reduce the pension payabady retirement. In this instance, the Companydexided to waive this actuar
reduction.

3. Short term bonus— Any short term bonus due in respect of the findnear 201+2011 shall be paid p-rata for the period up
the Termination Date. This bonus payment shalldbeutated in accordance with the Company’s bonbeme and shall be paid at
the same time as any other payments pursuant kolsuws scheme following the end of the financedry201-2011.

1



Incentive plans— As you have chosen to retire earlier than youtremtual retirement age, the retirement provisfithe rules
governing the Company’s Share Option, Sharesaveg O@rm Incentive Plan and Omnibus Plans (togetief Incentive Plans”)
will not apply. However, the Compensation Committas considered the terms of the Incentive Platiseircurrent circumstances
and has decided, where it has a discretion to gr@ntadditional rights pursuant to the Incentivaril to exercise that discretion in
the following ways

(@  Share Option Plar

The Compensation Committee has decided to exdtsidéscretion to allow the options that have alyesested to continue to
subsist following the cessation of your employmémtespect of those options granted pursuanted 893 Share Option Scheme,
the options may be exercised during the 12 momtming the Termination Date. In respect of thop¢ions granted pursuant to
the 2003 Share Option Schemes the options mayéreisad up to their normal lapse dates. Any optiehish have not, by the
Termination Date, vested will lapse.

(b)  Share Save Ple

You currently participate in the 2009 Sharesave Rlzd you have been savingab per month. In circumstances of your resigni
(including in cases of early retirement) the opgignanted under the Sharesave Plan will lapsetensgavings returned to you.
Alternatively, you may arrange to continue savimgider to receive the tax-free bonus on matuffityhe savings contract. The
legislation governing such sharesave plans doesenognise a right of exercise for early retiremaniess the options have been
held for three years by the Termination Date. Ttoees the Compensation Committee does not haveaedion to allow the
exercise of these options.

(c) Long Term Incentive Pla

Any award of options or cash pursuant to the LoagiIncentive Plan will vest in accordance with thkes of the LTIP. In the
event that the performance criteria pursuant td_ffi® are not met then such awards will not vesie Tompensation Committee
has no discretion to change this position.

(d)  Omnibus Plar

The Compensation Committee has a discretion umgeruies of the Omnibus Plan regarding the vesifrigpth performance relat
and time based restricted stock. The Compensationniittee has decided to exercise its discretiorg pro-rata basis, in line with
the short term bonus, to allow vesting of both pemfance and time restricted stock pro-rata frondtite of the grant to the
Termination Date. In the case of the time basetlicésd stock this will be approximately 12 monthad the performance based
stock for the entire first year of the three yearfprmance cycle plus approximately 5 months ofstheond year. No awards will be
made to you pursuant to the Omnibus Plan for $mafiyear 2010-2011.
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Please sign and return to me a copy of this létteonfirm your agreement to its terms. Any subsafjwariation to the terms on which your
early retirement will take effect will be agreedween the parties and documented in writing. Thaseof this letter shall prevail over the
terms of your employment contract where such temysur employment contract conflict with the terofghis letter in any way. All other
terms and conditions in your employment contradt eaintinue in full force and effect up to the Temation Date.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank yar all your hard work with the Company over theggeand wish you all the best for your
retirement.

Yours faithfully,

/s/ Terry Burmat
Terry Burmar
For and on behalf of Signet Group Limited

| confirm my agreement to the terms of my earlyreabent from Signet Group Limited as set out irs tleiter.

/s/ Walker Boyd
Walker Boyd

2/9/09
Date




Exhibit 10.13
AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

ThisAMENDMENT (this “ Amendment”) is entered into as of December 3, 2007 by andragrSterling Jewelers Inc., a
Delaware corporation (theCompany”) and William Montalto (the ‘Executive”). Any capitalized term used but not defined herelldiave
the meaning ascribed thereto in the Employment &gent (as hereinafter defined), except as othempvizaded.

WHEREAS , the Company and the Executive entered into anntleé and Restated Employment Agreement, dated Aasgufst 9
2004, and amended on January 12, 2006 (as amenmtieal date hereof, theEmployment Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the parties hereby desire to make certain additiamendments to the Employment Agreement toatetites issuance
of final regulations under Section 409A of the intd Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (thede”);

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the premises and the mutaaénants contained herein, the parties hereto agee
follows:

Amendment Fixing Annual Bonus Payment

1.  Sections 1(b)(ii), 1(b)(iii), 1(c)(ii), 3(a)(iiy(a)(ii), 4(a)(iii), 4(b)(ii), and 4(b)(iii) ofhe Employment Agreement are hereby amended to
provide for the payment of the Annual Bonus or prgrrata portion thereof during the period commegan the 15th of April and
ending on the 31st of May following the end of #pplicable fiscal year of Signet Group plc, andétete references to such payments
being paid on the 30th of April following the preiinary announcement by Signet Group plc of itsltedar the related fiscal yee

Amendments Designating Separation PaymentSaparate Paymetfits

2. Section 1(b)(v) of the Employment Agreement is bgramended to add the phréwith each such payment hereby designated a sej
paymen” as the last phrase there

3. Section 1(c)(i) of the Employment Agreementasaiy amended to add the phrase “with each suaherayhereby designated a separate
paymen” immediately prior to Section 1(c)(ii

This assumes that there was no prior 409A amendfoeMr. Montalto.



Amendment Fixing the Period for Remitting Gross Rgyments

4.

The last paragraph of Section 3 of the Employmemeement is hereby amended to add the phi@se Shall be paid no later than the
of the Executive’s taxable year next following theecutive’s taxable year in which he remits thated taxes” as the last clause of the
sentence

Amendment Adding Fringe Benefit Ardibuse Boilerplate Language

5.

Section 3 of the Employment Agreement is herebyrated to add a new last paragraph as follc

No payments or benefits provided under this Se@ianrespect of one taxable year shall affectatim@unts payable in any other taxable
year. No benefit or payment due to the Executivdeurthis Section 3 shall be subject to liqguidatorexchange for another benefit. Any
reimbursements made to the Executive pursuanigdtireement or otherwise shall be paid no latantthe last day of the year
following the year in which the expense was incdirre

Amendment Regarding 409A Compliance

6.

A new Section 14 of the Employment Agreement i€hgradded to the Employment Agreement with eacbemding section renumbe
accordingly, which shall read in its entirety aldas:

Compliance with Code Section 409A 0 the extent applicable, this Agreement shalhberpreted in accordance with Section 409A of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended@bde”), and Department of Treasury regulations aier interpretive guidance
issued thereunder, including without limitation auch regulations or other guidance that may hetsfter the Execution Date.
Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreementtte tontrary, (i) if at the time of the Executivéssmination of employment with the
Company the Executive is a “specified employeedefined in Section 409A Code and related DepartroEfiteasury guidance and the
deferral of the commencement of any payments oefiisrotherwise payable hereunder as a resultdf sermination of employment is
necessary in order to prevent any acceleratedditi@uhl tax under Section 409A of the Code, then €ompany may defer the
commencement of any such payments or benefits heeewithout any reduction in such payments orfienultimately paid or
provided to the Executive) until the date thatixsrsonths following the Executive’'termination of employment with the Company (&
earliest date as is permitted under Section 409%efCode) and (ii) if any other payments of moaegther benefits due to the Execu
hereunder could cause the application of an actelgior additional tax under Section 409A of thel€dhe Company may (a) adopt s
amendments to the Agreement, including amendmeithsretroactive effect, that the Company determimesessary or appropriate to
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preserve the intended tax treatment of the benafiteided by the Agreement and/or (b) take suckeragistions as the Company
determines necessary or appropriate to comply thvétrequirements of Section 409A of the Code alataé Department of Treasury
guidance. The Company shall consult with the Exeeuh good faith regarding the implementationkistSection 14; providetthat
neither the Company nor any of its employees oresgntatives shall have any liability to the Exeutvith respect thereto.

Miscellaneous
7.

Entire Agreemen. The Employment Agreement, as amended by this Amemt, constitutes the complete and exclusive whaieding o
the parties with respect to the Executive’s emplegthand supersedes any other prior oral or wrdtgeements, arrangements or
understandings between the Executive and the Com

Full Force. Except as set forth in this Amendment, the Emipleyt Agreement remains in full force and effi

Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in one or morateoparts, each of which shall be deemed to beigmal, but all of
which taken together shall constitute one and #imesinstrumen

[The balance of this page was intentionally le#rik.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Amendment ¢xdsuted as of the date first above written.
STERLING JEWELERS INC

By: /s/ Mark S. Light

Name: Mark S. Ligh
Title: President and CE

/s WILLIAM MONTALTO

WILLIAM MONTALTO
Title:
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STERLING JEWELERS INC.
375 Ghent Road
Akron, Ohio 44333

September 1, 2007

Mr. William Montalto
Sterling Jewelers Inc.
375 Ghent Road
Akron, Ohio 44333

Dear Bill:

Reference is made to your amended and restatedogmeht Agreement with Sterling Jewelers Inc datedfaAugust 9, 2004 and amended
January 25, 2006 (as amended, the “Employment Agga#’). Any capitalized term not defined hereinlshave the meaning set forth in the
Employment Agreement.

In accordance with Section 3(a) of the Employmegte&ment, as of May 1, 2007, the Base Salary has ibereased, so that the reference in
Section 3(a)(i) of the Employment Agreement to “$8®0 per annum” shall be deleted and replaced 865,000 per annum”. In addition,
beginning with the performance period commencindrebruary 4, 2007 the Employment Agreement shadirbended so that the “Annual
Bonus” has been increased so that the referen8edtion 3 (a)(i) of the Employment Agreement to tay0% of Base Salary” shall be deleted
and replaced with “up to 100% of Base Salary”.

Except as modified by this letter, the Employmegt&@ement shall remain in full force and effect @c@dance with its terms.

If you agree to the foregoing, please counterdigneinclosed counterpart of this letter in the appate space below and return the signed copy
to the undersigned.

STERLING JEWELERS INC

By: /s/ Mark S. Light
Name: Mark S. Light
Title: President and CE

Accepted and agreed as of the first date writtevel

By: /s/ William Montalto
Name: William Montalto
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STERLING JEWELERS INC.
375 Ghent Road
Akron, Ohio 44333

September 1, 20!

Mr. William Montalto
Sterling Jewelers Inc.
375 Ghent Road
Akron, Ohio 44333

Dear Bill:

Reference is made to your Amended and Restateddympht Agreement with Sterling Jewelers Inc. daedf August 9, 2004 (as amended
January 25, 2006, the “Employment Agreement”). Aapitalized term not defined herein shall haventteaning set forth in the Employment
Agreement.

In accordance with Section 3(a) of the Employmegte&ment, for the performance period commencingalg®29, 2006 and thereafter,
Section 3(a)(iii) of the Employment Agreement sim&lamended so that the long term incentive boppertunity of “up to 45%” shall be
deleted and replaced with “up to 70%".

Further, a new Section 14 shall be added as folland the existing Sections 14 and 15 shall berndsewed accordingly:

14. * Compliance with Code Section 40940 the extent applicable, this Agreement shaihberpreted in accordance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended (the “Code”), and Department of Treamgylations and other
interpretive guidance issued thereunder, inclugiitgout limitation any such regulations or otheidance that may be issued after the
Execution Date. Notwithstanding any provision af #hgreement to the contrary, (i) if at the timettod Executive’s termination of
employment with the Company the Executive is a ¢Hjp employee” as defined in Section 409A Codé eelated Department of
Treasury guidance and the deferral of the commeanenf any payments or benefits otherwise payabdteunder as a result of such
termination of employment is necessary in ordggrevent any accelerated or additional tax undeti®ed09A of the Code, then the
Company may defer the commencement of any such @atgnor benefits hereunder (without any reductiosuich payments or benefits
ultimately paid or provided to the Executive) utié date that is six months following the Execelvtermination of employment with
the Company (or the earliest date as is permitteftuSection 409A of th




Code) and (ii) if any other payments of money dreotbenefits due to the Executive hereunder coalde the application of an
accelerated or additional tax under Section 409thefCode, the Company may (a) adopt such amendretite Agreement, including
amendments with retroactive effect, that the Corpltermines necessary or appropriate to presbevintended tax treatment of the
benefits provided by the Agreement and/or (b) wlkeh other actions as the Company determines reggassappropriate to comply wi
the requirements of Section 409A of the Code aftadae Department of Treasury guidance. The Comghall consult with the
Executive in good faith regarding the implementatd this Section14; providetiat neither the Company nor any of its employees o
representatives shall have any liability to the d&tive with respect thereto.

Except as modified by this letter, the Employmegtéement shall remain in full force and effect aic@dance with its terms.

If you agree to the foregoing, please counterdigneinclosed counterpart of this letter in the appate space below and return the signed copy
to the undersigned.

STERLING JEWELERS INC

By: /s/ Mark S. Light
Name: Mark S. Light
Title: President and CE!

Accepted and agreed as of the first date writtesval

/s/ William Montalto
William Montalto
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AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Ageement”), dated as of August 9, 2004 (the “Exexuti
Date”), is made between STERLING JEWELERS INC. edalare corporation (the “Company”), and WILLIAM NNJALTO (the
“Executive”).

WHEREAS, the Company is engaged in the businesp@fating a chain of retail jewelry stores in thatedd States (the “Businessgnd

WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive enteredantemployment Agreement, dated as of May 10, E8@bas amended, to the
date hereof (the “Original Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the parties hereby desire to make ceddditional amendments to the Original Agreement andonnection therewith, to
amend and restate the Original Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl @f the mutual covenants and obligations her&nakt forth, the parties
hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby age®llows:

1. Employment and Term

(a) The Company hereby employs the Executive, Badkecutive hereby accepts employment by the Compa the capacities and on
the terms and subject to the conditions set foetiein from the Execution Date until the date thgge®ement is terminated by the Company or
by the Executive pursuant to the terms of this &gvent (the* Term of Employmer”).



(b) The Company may terminate this Agreement attemng by notifying the Executive in writing. In tleent the Company terminates
this Agreement pursuant to this Section 1(b), tben@any shall be obligated to (i) pay the ExecutiiseBase Salary (as defined in Section 3
below) in effect at the effective date of termipatprorated to such date of termination, (ii) pag Executive for any Annual Bonus (as defined
in Section 3 below) ( which amount shall be paithwi 30 days following the preliminary announcemieyntSignet Group plc (“Signet”) of its
results for the related fiscal year) and /or Lomgrit Bonus (as defined below in Section 3 below)i¢tvlamount shall be paid in accordance
with the long term incentive plan for executiveiogfs then in effect, as approved by the Signet lReration Committee) earned by Executive
for a completed fiscal year (or, in the case ofltheg Term Bonus, a completed three-year fiscabpgprior to the effective date of such
termination but which remain unpaid as of the dditeermination, (iii) pay the Executive the proaatortion of the Annual Bonus for which he
was then eligible as of the date of terminationtfier then current fiscal year (which amount shalphid within 30 days following the
preliminary announcement by Signet of its resuitssiuch fiscal year), (iv) pay the Executive foy aacation days for the current year earned
but not used by the Executive and (v) continueap tp the Executive his Base Salary in effect @nléist date of Executive’s employment for
twelve (12) months following such last date of eoyphent, in accordance with the Company’s standayaqil practices for executive officers.
The Executive shall continue to have the obligatiprovided for in Sections 6 and 7 hereof.

(c) The Term of Employment may also be terminatgthle Executive at any time upon three hundred/ gB®0) days’ prior written
notice to the Company.



Upon such termination, the Company shall have nibvéu obligations hereunder except to (i) pay tRedative his Base Salary in effect
at the effective date of such termination proratesluch date of termination, (ii) pay the Execufieeany Annual Bonus (as defined in Section
3 below) (which amount shall be paid within 30 déglfowing the preliminary announcement by Signeb@ plc (“Signet”) of its results for
the related fiscal year) and/or Long Term Bonugd@fted below in Section 3 below) (which amourdlshe paid in accordance with the long
term incentive plan for executive officers thereffect, as approved by the Signet Remuneration Gtee) earned by the Executive for a
completed fiscal year (or, in the case of the Ldrgm Bonus, a completed three-year fiscal perioy po the effective date of such
termination but which remain unpaid as of the dditeermination, and (iii) pay the Executive for avgcation days for the current year earned
but not used by the Executive. The Executive gtaitinue to have the obligations provided in Sexi6 and 7 hereof.

2. Duties. During the Term of Employment, the Executive kbatve as Executive Vice President and Chief Adstviative Officer of the
Company. The Executive shall report to the Chiefdtrive Officer of the Company. The Executive skalive the Company faithfully and to
the best of his ability in such capacities, as meitged by the Chief Executive Officer of the Compatievoting substantially all of his business
time, attention, knowledge, energy and skills tohsemployment. In addition, if elected, the Exeeaishall also serve during any part of the
Term of Employment as any other officer or a divecif the Company or any subsidiary corporatiopanent corporation of the Company,
without any compensation therefor other than asiipd in this Agreement.
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3. Compensation and Benefitds full and complete compensation to the Exeeutor his execution and delivery of this Agreemamd
performance of the services required hereundeiCtrepany shall pay, grant or provide to the Exeeytind the Executive agrees to accept:

(a) (i) a base salary, payable in accordance \weghtompany’s standard payroll practices for exeeutificers, of $430,000 per annum
(“Base Salary”); (ii) an annual bonus (the “AnnBalnus”) of up to 65% of Base Salary, in accordanitk the bonus plan then in effect for
executive officers of the Company, as approvedieySignet Remuneration Committee, which Annual Boshall be paid within 30 days
following the preliminary announcement by Signetitsfresults for the related fiscal year, (iii)ag term incentive bonus of up to 35% of Base
salary, payable in accordance with the long tercemtive plan for executive officers then in effastapproved by the Signet Remuneration
Committee (the “Long Term Bonus”) and (iv) optionaads, as determined in the sole discretion ofSligaet Remuneration Committee, in
accordance with the option plan then in effect@zaved by the Signet Remuneration Committee; jiextj however, that notwithstanding
that (x) this Agreement is dated as of the Execuilate, (y) the Term of Employment hereunder contasion the Execution Date and (z) for
the period from May 10, 1996 to the Execution Db Executive was employed by the Company unde®tiginal Agreement that was
terminated by the Executive and the Company akeoEecution Date, the Executive shall be paidBlaise Salary effective as of May 1, 2004
and his




Annual Bonus and Long Term Bonus effective as difriary 2, 2004 (and in lieu of any other base gadaannual bonus payable under the
Original Agreement for the period from May 1, 20@4 from February 1, 2004 in the case of the AnfBius and Long Term Bonus) to the
Execution Date); and, providddrther, that on or prior to each May 1 of each year (beigig on May 1, 2005), the Board of Directors af th
Company or the Signet Remuneration Committee sbeitw the amount of the Executive’s Base Salaentin effect and, in the absolute
discretion of the Board or such committee, the B2alary may be increased, but not decreased, fooim@mount, based upon the performance
of the Executive and other factors as may be censitby the Board or such committee to be relefrant time to time;

(b) medical/dental, long term disability and lifesurance benefits made available generally frore tirtime by the Company to
executive officers that are comparable with, butess favorable to the Executive than, those btniefieffect as of the date of this Agreement
with respect to the Executive;

(c) such deferred compensation benefits as mayauke ravailable generally from time to time by therany to executive officers of the
Company upon the authorization and approval oSigaet Remuneration Committee;

(d) A lease by the Company of an automobile hawaathly lease payments not to exceed $800.00 pathnio addition to: (i) the
payment or reimbursement by the Company of alhefEExecutives costs for gas, repairs, maintenance and insugzecgiums relating to suc
automobile; (ii) an additional amount (the “Grosp-Bayment”) such that, after reduction for all fedlestate and local income taxes, if any,
payable by the Executive in respect of the reimément or



payment by the Company to the Executive of an expelescribed in this subsection (e) (a “CovereceBsp”) and the Gross-Up Payment, the
Executive shall retain an after-tax amount equathéoamount of such Covered Expense; and (iii)raual adjustment equal to the percentage
change in the Consumer Price Index, All Urban Caoress, published by the Bureau of Labor Statistfdbh® U.S. Department of Labor during
the preceding twelve (12) months, or any succdssiex published by the U.S. Government (reasonatijysted from time to time using
suitable conversion factors in the event of anyngean the base year used to calculate the index);

(e) such other perquisites and benefits as maydukeravailable generally from time to time by therpany to executive officers of the
Company.

For purposes of subsection (d) of this Sectiom@ féderal, state and local income taxes payabthdixecutive in respect of a
reimbursement or payment by the Company to the lixexof a Covered Expense or Gross-Up Payment Baaletermined by taking into
account all deductions allowable to the Executoweféderal, state or local income tax purposeggpect of the payment of a Covered Expense
and any tax payable on a reimbursement or paymademnder this subsection to the maximum extemne¢ttfie

4. Termination

(a) Disability. In the event of any physical or mental disabititying the Term of Employment which renders thedtiive incapable of
performing the services required of him for anyi@eior periods aggregating six months during angive-month period, the Company shall
have the right, upon written notice to the Exeaitito terminate the Executive’s employment hereyreféective upon the giving of such
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notice (or such later date as shall be specifiesigh notice). Upon such termination, the Compduajl fave no further obligations hereunder,
except to (i) pay the Executive his Base Salahéoeffective date of termination, (ii) pay the Exgive for any Annual Bonus (which amount
shall be paid within 30 days following the preliraig announcement by Signet of its results for tated fiscal year) and/or Long Term Bol
(which amount shall be paid in accordance withldimg term incentive plan for executive officersntia effect, as approved by the Signet
Remuneration Committee) earned by Executive farapieted fiscal year (or, in the case of the LoegnT Bonus, a completed three-year
fiscal period) prior to the effective date of suetmination but which remain unpaid as of the aditeermination, (iii) pay the Executive the
pro-rata portion of the Annual Bonus for which hasthen eligible through the date of terminationtfie then current fiscal year (which
amount shall be paid within 30 days following thelpninary announcement by Signet of its resultssfach fiscal year) and (iv) provide the
Executive any other benefits to which the Executhay otherwise have been entitled. For purpos#isi®fSection 4(a), the Executive’s
physical or mental disability shall be determinedccordance with any disability plan of applicaioié¢he Company that is then in effect. The
Executive shall continue to have the obligatiorsvjafed for in Sections 6 and 7 hereof.

(b) Death. In the event of the death of the Executive duthrgTerm of Employment, this Agreement shall awttioally terminate and
the Company shall have no further obligations hedeu, except to (i) pay the Executive’s estateBthse Salary in effect at the time of the
Executive’s death through the date of death angifo(6) months following such date, (ii) pay theeEutive’s estate for any Annual Bonus
(which



amount shall be paid within 30 days following threlpninary announcement by Signet of its resultstii@ related fiscal year) and/or Long
Term Bonus (which amount shall be paid in accordamith the long term incentive plan for executiféoers then in effect, as approved by
Signet Remuneration Committee) earned by Exectitiva completed fiscal year (or, in the case ofltheg Term Bonus, a completed three-
year fiscal period) prior to the date of deathWwhich remain unpaid as of the date of death aijdo@ly the Executiv's estate the pro rata
portion of the Annual Bonus for which he was thégilele through the date of death for the then entifiscal year (which amount shall be paid
within 30 days following the preliminary announcerhby Signet of its results for such fiscal year).

(c) Cause The Company shall have the right, upon writteticeoto the Executive, to terminate the Executiaigployment under this
Agreement for Cause (as hereinafter defined), gffecipon the giving of such notice (or such latate as shall be specified in such notice),
and the Company shall have no further obligaticerebnder, except to pay the Executive his Base\Sptarated to the effective date of
termination, and the Executive shall continue teehthhe obligations provided in Sections 6 and 2bkr

For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means:

(i) fraud, embezzlement, gross insubordinationtengart of the Executive or any act of moral twrgé or misconduct (which
misconduct adversely affects the business or répataf the Company) by the Executive;

(i) conviction of or the entry of a plea of natontenderdy the Executive for any felony; or
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(i) a material breach of, or the willful failurer refusal by the Executive to perform and disckalgs duties, responsibilities or
obligations under this Agreement.

5. Resignation upon TerminatiotJpon the termination of the Executive’s employmieereunder for any reason, the Executive shall
immediately be deemed to resign, and shall resigm all offices and directorships held by him lretCompany or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates and shall execute any and all documesdsonably necessary to effect such resignatioreqagsted by the Company.

6. Confidentiality; Ownership of Development&) During the Term of Employment and for anyeithereafter, the Executive shall keep
secret and retain in strictest confidence and ialige, disclose, discuss, copy or otherwise ussuéfer to be used in any manner, except in
connection with the Business of the Company arehgfof the subsidiaries or affiliates of the Compaany trade secrets, confidential or
proprietary information and documents or materaisied, developed or possessed by the Company afahg subsidiaries or affiliates of t
Company pertaining to the Business of the Comparang of the subsidiaries or affiliates of the Camy; provided however, that such
information referred to in this Section 6(a) shmdt include information that is or has become galheknown to the public or the jewelry trade
without violation of this Section 6.

(b) The Executive acknowledges that all developsdantluding, without limitation, inventions (patable or otherwise), discoveries,
improvements, patents, trade secrets, designsitsepomputer software, flow charts and diagramaga,ddocumentation, writings and
applications thereof relating to the Business anpkd



business of the Company or any of the subsidiaresdfiliates of the Company that, alone or jointlith others, the Executive may create,
make, develop or acquire during the Term of Emplegti{collectively, the “Developments”) are worksdaéor hire and shall remain the sole
and exclusive property of the Company and the Bxezhereby assigns to the Company all of his rigtie and interest in and to all such
Developments.

(c) The provisions of this Section 6 shall, withanly limitation as to time, survive the expirationtermination of the Executive’s
employment hereunder, irrespective of the reasparfg termination.

7. Covenants Not to Solicit and Not to Competde Executive agrees that during the Term of EByrpent and for a period of one year
commencing upon the last date of Executive’s entplayt (the “Non-Competition Period”), the Executsiall not, directly or indirectly,
without the prior written consent of the Company;

(a) solicit, entice, persuade or induce any emmopgensultant, agent or independent contractdiefCtompany or of any of the
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company to teraténhis or her employment or engagement with thegamy or such subsidiary or affiliate, to
become employed by any person, firm or corporatitwer than the Company or such subsidiary or aféilor approach any such employee,
consultant, agent or independent contractor foradriie foregoing purposes; or

(b) directly or indirectly own, manage, controly@st or participate in any way in, consult withrender services to or for any person or
entity (other than for the Company or any of thiessdiaries or affiliates of the Company) which igaged in the retail jewelry business;
provided, however, that the restrictions of this Section 7(b) shalt extend to the ownership, management or coafralretail jewelry
business by
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the Executive following the termination of his emmyrinent with the Company provided that such actiigtgio less than sixty (60) miles distant
from any retail jewelry store of the Company attihge of such termination of employment and prodidéurther, however, that the
restrictions of this Section 7(b) shall not extéadhe ownership of publicly traded securities icompany engaged in the retail jewelry
business, provided that such ownership does netegkit% of the outstanding voting securities of stahpany.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, in the event Executive terminates his egmpknt upon less than three hundred s
(360) days notice to the Company as required byi@et(c), the Noncompetition Period shall be extended by an amotititn@ equal to thre
hundred sixty (360) days less the amount of natateally given by the Executive to the Companyypted, however, if such termination by
Executive upon less than three hundred sixty (8&9¥% notice is within sixty (60) days following &&hge in Control (as defined below),
Executive’s obligations pursuant to clause (b) &sivall continue for the NoB@empetition Period without giving effect to the emsion of tim
provided for herein. For purposes of this AgreemariChange in Controlshall mean: (i) the consummation of a merger osobtidation of th
Company with or into another entity or any othemaowate reorganization (other than the Signet Grdag“Signet”) or an affiliate of Signet or
the Company), if persons who were not shareholofetfse Company immediately prior to such mergensadidation or other reorganization
own immediately after such merger, consolidationtber reorganization more than fifty percent (5086 the voting power of the outstanding
securities of each of (A) the continuing or surmiyientity and (B) any direct or indirect
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parent corporation of such continuing or survivamdity or (ii) any person or group of related pes¢other than Signet or an affiliate of Signet
or the Company) shall acquire beneficial ownerstiimore than fifty percent (50%) of the voting poveé all classes of stock of the Company.
A transaction shall not constitute a “Change in @ahif its sole purpose is to change the stat¢hef Company’s incorporation or to create a
holding company that will be owned in substantisiig same proportions by the persons who held tmepganys securities immediately befc
such transaction.

8. Specific PerformanceThe Executive acknowledges that the servicegteehdered by the Executive are of a special, enémnad
extraordinary character and, in connection witthsservices, the Executive will have access to demtiial information vital to the Company’s
Business and the subsidiaries and affiliates ofxbmpany. By reason of this, the Executive consandsagrees that if the Executive violates
any of the provisions of Sections 6 or 7 hered, @ompany and the subsidiaries and affiliates @Gbmpany would sustain irreparable injury
and that monetary damages will not provide adeguatedy to the Company and that the Company shahtitled to have Sections 6 or 7
specifically enforced by any court having equitsigdiction. Nothing contained herein shall be comnstl as prohibiting the Company or any of
the subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company frpansuing any other remedies available to it fohshbieach or threatened breach, including the
recovery of damages from the Executive.

9. Entire AgreementThis Agreement embodies the entire agreemeriteopéarties with respect to the Executive’s emplaynaad
supersedes any other prior oral or written agre¢snarrangements or understandings between thaifxeand
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the Company. This Agreement may not be changeerotimated orally but only by an agreement in wgtsigned by the parties herein.

10. Governing Law: Jurisdiction(a) This Agreement shall be subject to, and goegiby, the laws of the State of Ohio applicable to
contracts made and to be performed therein.

(b) Any action to enforce any of the provisionglié Agreement shall be brought in a court of ttegeSof Ohio located in Summit
County or in a Federal court located in Clevelddhio. The parties consent to the jurisdiction aftsaourts and to the service of process in
manner provided by Ohio law. Each party irrevocakjves any objection which it may now or hereaftave to the venue of any such suit,
action or proceeding brought in such court.

(c) The prevailing party in any action to enforegy @f the provisions of this Agreement shall betkat to reimbursement from the other
party for its or his costs and expenses (includittigrneys fees and expenses) incurred in connesfithrsuch action.

11. Assignability. The obligations of the Executive may not be dated and the Executive may not, without the Com[sanyitten
consent thereto, assign, transfer, convey, pleslyggymber, hypothecate or otherwise dispose ofifiisement or any interest herein. Any such
attempted delegation or disposition shall be nudl @oid and without effect. This Company and thedinive agree that this Agreement and all
of the Company’s rights and obligations hereunday fve assigned or transferred by the Company tsaocgessor to the Company.
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12. Severability If any provision of this Agreement or any parbof, including, without limitation, Sections 6dan, as applied to eith
party or to any circumstances shall be adjudged bgurt of competent jurisdiction to be void or nfegceable, the same shall in no way affect
any other provision of this Agreement or remainiragt thereof, which shall be given full effect watlt regard to the invalid or unenforceable
part thereof, or the validity or enforceabilitytbfs Agreement.

If any court construes any of the provisions ofti&&ct or 7, or any part thereof, to be unreasanabltause of the duration of such
provision or the geographic scope thereof, suchteoay reduce the duration or restrict or redefieegeographic scope of such provision and
enforce such provision as so reduced, restricteddafined.

13. Notices All notices to the Company or the Executive pétaoli or required hereunder shall be in writing ahdll be delivered
personally, by telecopier or by courier serviceving for next-day delivery or sent by registemccertified mail, return receipt requested, to
the following addresses:

The Company:

Sterling Jewelers Inc.

375 Ghent Road

Akron, Ohio 44313

Fax: (330) 668-5191

Attn: Chief Financial Officer

with a copy to:

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
767 Fifth Avenue

New York, NY 10153

Fax: (212) 310-8007

Attn: Michael Kam

The Executive:

William Montalto
Sterling Jewelers Inc.
375 Ghent Road
Akron, Ohio 44313
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Either party may change the address to which nosball be sent by sending written notice of su@nge of address to the other party.
Any such notice shall be deemed given, if delivgretsonally, upon receipt; if telecopied, whendefged, if sent by courier service providing
for next-day delivery, the next business day follgywdeposit with such courier service, and if d@ntertified or registered mail, three days
after deposit (postage prepaid) with the U. S. maiVice.

14. Paragraph Heading3he paragraph headings contained in this Agreearerfor reference purposes only and shall netcaih any
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement

15. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in one or morateoparts, each of which shall be deemed to beigmal, but all o
which taken together shall constitute one and #émeesinstrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgceed this Agreement as of the date first writtbave.
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STERLING INC.

By: /s/ Terry Burmar

Name: Terry Burmar
Title: Chairmar

/s/ William Montalto

WILLIAM MONTALTO



Exhibit 10.31

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL
ADDRESSEE ONLY

9 December 2008

NAME

ADDRESS

Dear

| write to confirm your appointment as an indepertdbrector ofSignet Jewelers Limited(the“Company” ), with effect from 27 October
2008. | set out below the terms of your appointment

1.

11
1.2

13
14
15
1.6
1.7
1.8

Definitions
In this letter:
“Board” means the board of directors of the Company frome tio time;

“Combined Cod¢” means the principles of good governance and cobesifpractice published and maintained by therf€iah
Reporting Council of the United Kingdot

“Bye-laws” means the by-laws of the Company from time to tinr

“Companies Ac” means the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amg

“Group” means the Company and any subsidiary or subsidizagrtaking of the Company from time to tin
“LPDT Rules” means the Listing, Prospectus, Disclosure and peaescy Rules made by the UK Listing Author
“NYSE" means the New York Stock Exchange; .

“SEC” means the US Securities and Exchange Commis

Term of Appointment

Your appointment is subject to the provisiohthe Bye-laws regarding appointment, fees, expgnstirement, (including the rotation
system whereby one-third of the Board shall retiven office at every Annual General Meeting), dialification and removal of
directors and will terminate forthwith without aentitlement to compensation (save for any arrebeempensation which may be due
under the terms of this letter)

211 you are not r-elected at an Annual General Meeting of the Comiairwhich you retire and offer yourself for re-etlen in
accordance with the B-laws; or

212 you are required to vacate office for any reasasymnt to any of the provisions of the I-laws; or
2.1.3 you are removed as a director or otherwise requoe@cate office under any applicable i



2.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

Subject to clause 2.1, to satisfactory perforeeeby you, and to the results of the annual redswet out in clause 9, it is anticipated
that your initial appointment as an independergdaar will be until the Annual General Meeting i60® and then for a term of three
years, unless otherwise terminated earlier by yowar discretion or by the Board at its discretigpgon one mon’s written notice.
Independent directors are normally expected toesemms of appointment of 3 years. However, ther@ozay, subject to the Bye-laws,
agree with you in writing that you will serve adieector until a later dat:

Duties

You will be expected to devote such time as is ss&ey for the proper performance of your dutiedchvis likely to be at least 20 da
per year. You will have all the usual duties ofiaslependent director under Bermuda law and apgidadiing standards of the NYSE,
including attendance at board meetings, execu#ssisns, the annual general meeting, meetinggdependent directors, meetings with
investors and shareholders and other Board eveaksas site visits, together with such additiondles as may be agreed with the
Board, and which may relate to the business oCthipany or any other member of the Group. You bélrequired to serve on such
committees as the Board may request, includingibutimited to Audit, and/or Compensation and/omNioation and Corporate
Governance Committees. In addition, you will beentpd to devote appropriate preparation and ttiwel ahead of each meeting. In
carrying out your duties, you shall have regarth®Bye-laws, Bermuda law, applicable SEC rulesMW&E listing standards, and
such principles of the Combined Code as the Boandiders appropriate for the Company from timereet

By accepting this appointment you undertake tta&ing into account all other commitments you mayehgou are able to devc
sufficient time to properly discharge your dutissam independent director of the Company and meuofitée Audit, and/or
Compensation, and/or Nomination and Corporate Gmarere Committee:

If you are required to spend substantially Ertfan the likely time commitment set out in cka3sl on your duties, the Company may
at its sole and absolute discretion make one oerspecific payments to you (subject to any limisdorectors’ fees contained in the
Bye-laws) in addition to the fees set out in clatigd this letter, which will be subject to any detions which the Company may be
required to make (including in respect of tax atiteo contributions (including national insurancafibutions)).

You will be expected to faithfully, efficientlgompetently and diligently perform your dutieslaxercise your powers in good faith and
in the best interests of the Company in your relamindependent director having regard in padicid the Companies Act, the SEC
rules and NYSE listing standards and such prinsipfehe Combined Code that the Board deems apiptegrom time to time



3.5

During the continuance of your appointment you sl

351

3.5.2

3.5.3

354

3.55

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8
3.5.9

3.5.10

to the best of your ability, attend all meg$ of the Board and of committees of the Board'luth you are a member, and
annual general meetings of the Compe

use your reasonable endeavours to promotexdedd the interests and reputation of the Grimghyding assisting the
Chairman and the Board in relation to public angoeate affairs and promotion of the success ofbmpany in general
through application of your particular knowledgkillsand experience

accurately complete questionnaires as and wdguested by the Company, and promptly notifyfGhenpany of any
subsequent changes which may have occurred inorekat the responses provided in such questiommdineparticular, where
such changes may impact your independence as degettoy the Board under NYSE listing rule

promptly declare, so far as you are aware, thereatiiany interest, whether direct or indirectaimy contract or propose
contract entered into by any member of the Gr

acquire and then maintain a minimum holding of camrshares of the Company equal to a total stoakevaf US $150,00
whilst in office as a director of the Company, siciiding to be reached within five years of appwmiaht. Once the minimum
stock holding requirement has been achieved agawn stock price, the requirement would be considéo have been met
notwithstanding a subsequent change in stock pegalting in a reduction in the value of the stbeld;

comply where relevant with any applicable law, suleegulations and stock exchange listing standards policies and cod:
of the Company, including the Compi’s Code of Conduct applicable to directors, officard employee:

comply where relevant with any rule of lawregulation of any competent authority or of then@@any, from time to time in
force in relation to dealing in shares, debentarebother securities of the Company and unpublighiee sensitive
information affecting the shares, debentures oceraslecurities of the Compar

observe the LPDT, SEC rules and the NYSE listiagdards, as applicabl

comply with all reasonable requests, instructiams egulations made or given by the Board (or byauly authorisec
committee thereof) and give to the Board such awgilans, information and assistance as the Boasdressonably require;
and

in the event that you have concerns whidmagbe resolved (i) about the way in which the @any is being run or (ii) about
a course of action being proposed by the Boardudsthese concerns with another member of thedBoaraise these
concerns at a meeting of the Boz



4.2

4.3

Provision of Information

Following your appointment, the Board will pide& an induction programme. This will include threyasion of certain information. The
Company will also arrange meetings with senior ieudidle management and site visits as well as mgetirith major shareholders in
the Company within 12 months of your appointm

In the event that you require further informatioradvice in relation to the Company, including étation to compliance with applicak
rules and regulations, during the course of yoyoagment, you should contact the Group Companye$axy.

During the course of your appointment, you W#llexpected, if necessary, to update your skidskanowledge for the purposes of
fulfilling your role as an independent directortbé Company and as a chairman or member of any dbeenof the Board to which you
may be appointed. The Company will explore, malalalle and design and provide continuing educatjgportunities for directors,
from time to time. You should contact the Group @amy Secretary if you have any queries in relatioprofessional developmel

Confidential Information

You agree that both during and after your tame director of the Company, you will not useyfour own or another’s benefit or
disclose or permit the disclosure of any confidartiformation about the Company, its supplierstomers or other constituents or any
member of the Group, other than as appropriatefmmection with the proper performance of your dutis a director or otherwise in
accordance with prior authorization provided by @@mpany. Confidential information shall includetheut limitation, all and any
information, whether or not recorded, of the Comypanof any members of the Group which you haveioied by virtue of your
appointment and which (i) the Company or any menolb¢éne Group regards as confidential, (ii) is apdy confidential by reason of
its nature or the circumstances in which it coneegour knowledge, and/or (iii) in respect of whitle Company or any member of the
Group is bound by any obligation of confidence thied party. Confidential information may includeithout limitation:

511 all and any information relating to results of a@rns, financial condition, plans and prospeadtsitess methods, corpor:i
plans, future business strategy, management sysbemrswing activities, possible transactions wather parties, possible
restructuring, liquidity issues, litigation (pendior threatened), senior management changes, seswfferings, dividend
policy, and maturing new business opportunit

5.1.2 all and any information relating to research and@relopment project:



5.2

5.3

5.1.3 all and any information concerning the cwidtio vitae, compensation details, work-related eigpee and other personal
information concerning those employed or engagetheyCompany or by any member of the Grc

5.1.4 all and any information relating to marketorgsales of any past, present or future produstorice of the Company or any
member of the Group including sales targets artés8ts, market share and pricing statistics, miankesurveys and strategi
marketing research reports, sales techniques, istsemark-ups, discounts, rebates, tenders,réidivey and promotional
material, credit and payment policies and procexjuard lists and details of customers, prospectigtomers, suppliers,
prospective suppliers, joint venture partners anndpective joint venture partners, including theééntities, business
requirements and contractual negotiations and geraents with the Company or any member of the Gr

5.1.5 all and any trade secrets, secret formul@egegses, inventions, design, know-how, reseamgjegis, technical specifications
and other technical information in relation to tireation, production or supply of any past, presettiture product or service
of the Company or any member of the Group, inclgdith and any information relating to the workinigamy product, proces
invention, improvement or development carried onsed by the Company or any member of the Grouprdathmation
concerning the intellectual property portfolio astchtegy of the Company or of any member of theugrand

5.1.6 any other information that a reasonable investanld/consider important in making a decision to buyld or sell the
Compan'’s securities

The restrictions contained in this clause 5 shedise to apply to any confidential information wh
5.2.1 may (other than by reason of your breach of theses) become available to the public generally

5.2.2 you are required to disclose by law, governmenti@ or regulation (in which event you shall prorgpibtify the Company
reasonable period in advance of such disclos

You also agree during your appointment that yoli magt, other than for the benefit of the Compangkmany notes (which shall inclt
any notes you make on Board, or Board committeeyutas or papers, or at or for the purpose of Bozedtings, in each case, for the
benefit of the Company), memoranda, electronicn@s;dape records, films, photographs, plans, drgsvor any form of record relating
to any matter within the scope of the businesacerning the dealings or affairs of the Group wiibireturn any such items at any
time at the request of the Boa

Other Directorships, Appointments and Interests

You confirm that you have notified the Boardiriting of all your other directorships, appointni (including employment
relationships) and interests, including any direstigp, appointment or interest in a compe



6.2

7.2

7.3

7.4

business or undertaking which competes or is likelgompete with the Company or any other membéhefSroup or which is a
customer or supplier of any such company or whalkiat otherwise potentially give rise to a confligth your duties with the Company
(a“competing intere”).

You undertake that during the term of your appogiryou will:

6.2.1 disclose any proposed new directorship or appointieethe Chairman before accepting it and follayvatceptance, promp
disclose it to the Boart

6.2.2 promptly notify in writing, in the first in@hce to the Chairman and subsequently to the Baagdsubsequent changes to any
such directorship or appointment or competing gggranc

6.2.3 not acquire any new competing interest (etxaghe holder for investment of less than 3 pet.of any class of securities
listed on a recognised stock exchange) withouptiw consent of the Board in writing. If you angiate any possible conflict
might arise you should discuss the matter withGhairman in advanc:

Fees

You will be entitled to an annual fee at thie @ US$180,000 per annum which total shall bé splas US $90,000 is paid in cash, and
US $90,000 is paid in restricted stock to be dedideannually at the time of the annual general mgeThe fee will be paid less any
deductions which the Company may be required toenradluding in respect of tax and other contribagidincluding national insurance
contributions).

The fee in clause 7.1 will be paid by the Conypia respect of your services as a director of@Gbenpany, and does not include
additional remuneration paid to you in respecttbeo duties which you may perform for the Compangl(ding, but not limited to,
special remuneration pursuant to Flaw 46 of the By-laws).

All fees will be payable in arrears by equal qudytestalments in US dollars. You will not be abge for the grant of options or oth
incentives under any of the Comp’s share option schemes as part of your remunereti@r than as set out here

Whilst a restricted stock plan is not curremtiplace it is the Company'current intention that such a plan be introdused shareholdt
approval sought at the annual general meeting teelskin 2009. The specific details of the planyetto be established. However the
restricted stock award relating to the remaindehefyear 2008/09 will be delivered, subject torehalder approval of a restricted stock
plan, at the time of the next annual general mgetrbe held in 2009. In the event a restrictedlsfilan is not established, at the annual
general meeting to be held in 2009 the entire drfeesof US $180,000 will be paid in cash until testricted stock plan is

implemented



8.2

8.3

10

10.1

10.2

Expenses, Indemnity and Insuranct

The Company shall reimburse to you all expensasonably incurred by you in the proper perforoeant your obligations under this
letter provided that you supply receipts or othedence of expenditurt

Subject to the Bye-laws, your expenses mayidecprofessional fees if it is necessary in théhkrance of your duties for you to seek
independent professional advice, subject to younlgafirst consulted the Chairman or the Group Conyp&ecretary as appropriate. £
such payment by the Company would, of course, bgsuto (i) any applicable restriction under apalble company law and the Bye-
laws, and (ii) the terms of the Deed of Indemnitgyided by the Company dated 12 November 2008“Deed of Indemnity” ).

The Company currently has directors’ and offitkability insurance for which the current indaity limit is £100 million plus

£50 million “Side A Difference in Conditions” coveh summary of the current policy document has h@ewnided to you. The
Company will provide and maintain directors’ anéiadrs’ liability insurance coverage for you in respectha# period for which you a

a director of the Company at such levels, for siglts and subject to such terms, and for such iaghafter you cease to be a director of
the Company, as the Company provides and mainsaicts cover for its directors generally for eachrybareafter, including such self
insurance coverage as the Company makes availablatains on behalf of itself or its directo

Review

The performance of individual directors, and of Beard as a whole, will be evaluated annuallyinithe interim, there are any matters
which cause you concern in relation to your rotey ghould raise them with the Chairman as soorossilpe.

Termination of Appointment
On the termination of your appointment:

you will at the request of the Company (where rafgyresign (in writing) from the office of directand you irrevocably authorise t
Company as your attorney in your name and on yehalf to sign all documents and do all things neagsto give effect to this

you will surrender to an authorised representatiiie Company all correspondence, documents (@eduwithout limitation Boarc
minutes and Board papers (save for Board minutésBaard papers upon which you have made notesgedvthat they remain subject
to the confidentiality obligations set out in claus of this letter)), and copies thereof or othepprty of the Group made or received by
you in the course of your directorship (whethembefor after the date of this letter) provided $at shall be permitted access to s
relevant documentation previously under your cdranal which you returned pursuant to this clausetfe limited purpose of defendi
any legal proceedings to which you are a parthmugh which you are seeking relief by a court;
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without prejudice to any right which you mawh to recover any fee owing to you pursuant tasda/ of this letter, you hereby agree
that you shall not be entitled to and shall nosperany action or claim for compensation from tben@any whether such termination
occurs before or after the date of expiry of thequeset out in clause 2.

Miscellaneous
Nothing in this letter shall create the relatiopsbf employee and employer between you and the @agn
The agreement constituted by this appointmentristiell be governed by, and construed in accordaitte Bermuda law

Both you and the Company irrevocably agree thaCiherts of Bermuda shall have exclusive jurisdittio relation to any clairr
dispute or difference concerning this appointmetiel and any matter arising therefrc

Both you and the Company irrevocably waive iégiyt that you or the Company may have to objectrt action being brought in those
Courts, to claim that the action has been broughniinconvenient forum, or to claim that those @do not have jurisdictiol

Entire Agreement and Severability

This appointment letter together with the Detbhdemnity represents the entire understanding, constitutes the whole agreement, in
relation to your appointment and supersedes anyque agreement between yourself and the Compattyrespect thereto and,
without prejudice to the generality of the foregpiexcludes any warranty, condition or other uradéng implied at law or by custor

You confirm that;

12.2.1 in entering into the agreement constitutethis appointment letter you have not relied oy sepresentation, warranty,
assurance, covenant, indemnity, undertaking or ciommemt which is not contained in this appointmesitdr; anc

12.2.2  in any event, without prejudice to any ligypfor fraudulent misrepresentation or fraudulemsstatement, the only rights or
remedies in relation to any representation, wayragsurance, covenant, indemnity, undertakingorroitment given or
action taken in connection with this appointmet @nder this appointment letter and, for the avwiéaof doubt and without
limitation, neither party has any right or remedshéther by way of a claim for contribution or otivése) in tort (including
negligence) or for misrepresentation (whether igegli or otherwise, and whether made prior to, arid/dhis appointment
letter).

In the event that any part (including any slause or part thereof) of this appointment ledteall be void or unenforceable by reason of
any applicable law, it shall be deleted and theaieing parts of this appointment letter shall cond in full force and effect and, if
necessary, both parties shall use their best endesito agree any amendments to the appointméei fetcessary to give effect to the
spirit of this appointment lette
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Counterparts

This appointment letter may be executed by facsimuild in counterparts, all of which taken toge#tell constitute one and the same
instrument.

Waiver

The failure of either party to insist upon strierfprmance of any of the terms in this appointnietter shall not constitute a waiver of
any of its rights hereunder. Further, the waiveelilger party of the breach of any provision othppointment letter shall not operat
be construed as a waiver of any subsequent braaokof.

Assignment

The rights and benefits of the Company under thpatment letter shall be transferable and shailte to the benefit of its successors
and assigns. Your duties and obligations underapintment letter are personal and thereforenyay not assign any right or duty
under this appointment letter without the priorttem consent of the Company.

Notices

Any notice to be given under the terms of thisslegthall, in the case of notice to the Companyddmmed to be given if left at or sent by
first class post or facsimile transmission to tbgistered office for the time being of the Compargrked for the attention of the Group
Company Secretary and, in the case of notice to iftianded to you personally or left at or senfibst class post or facsimile
transmission to your last-known address. Any suatite shall be deemed to be given at the timesaddivery or despatch by facsimile
transmission or on the next following weekday (peing a public holiday) after it was posted.

Kindly confirm your agreement to the terms setaluve by signing the endorsement on the enclogeg afcthis letter in the presence of an
independent adult witness who should also signaatudhis or her full name, address and occupati@ase return the copy to me at the above
address. In returning this letter duly signed, ggree that the Company may make this letter pyhdichilable.

Yours sincerely

Sir Malcolm Williamson
Chairman
for and on behalf of Signet Jewelers Limi



EXECUTED as aDEED
by

Signed

Date

in the presence (

Witness Namk
Witness Signatur
Full Name

Address

Occupatior



DATED NOVEMBER 2008

DEED POLL

Indemnity by
Signet Jewelers Limited

Signet Jewelers Limited
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

1

Exhibit 10.32



THIS DEED POLL is made the  day of November 200833¢NET JEWELERS LIMITED (registered number 42069) whose registered
office is atClarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Brmuda (the“Company” ).

WHEREAS the Company has agreed to provide the Indemnitdééined below) to the persons named in the scleeduthis Deed (the
“Indemnified Persons” and each afindemnified Person”)

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS
In this Deed:
(@) the following words have the following meanini
“Applicable Law” any legal or regulatory restriction in any jurigtha which directly or indirectly limits or

defines the scope of an indemnity which may berglwethe Company in respect of the
matters contained in this Dee¢

“Bye-Laws “ the bye«laws of the Company as amended from time to t
“Indemnity” the indemnity contained in Clause 2 belc
“Signet Groug” the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries fromettmtime and, for the purposes of t

definition, “subsidiary” shall have the same meaning as in Section 86 dtimepanies
Act 1981 (as amended from time to time);

“Relevant Company” means the Company or any other member of the S@retp or any company to which &
member of the Signet Group has nominated or apgaidirectors or officers (as
applicable);

(b) references to “directors” include referencealternate directors, and references to “officémsiude any persons who are regarded
or deemed to be officers, whether under Bermudaola@therwise, and any person against whom legalgadings are brought on
the basis that he is or may be an offic

(c) references t“companie” include all bodies corporate, wherever incorpora

(d) references to any statute or statutory provisiatuite a reference to that statute or provisiorr@® time to time modified, extend
or re-enacted; an



2.2

2.3

25

3.2

(e) words in the masculine include the femini

INDEMNITY

Subiject to the requirements and limitationarof Applicable Law, the Bye-Laws and the termshig Deed, the Company agrees to fully
indemnify and keep indemnified each of the InderedifPersons on demand against all actions, cldiatsljities, charges, demands,
proceedings, investigations and judgementsdbilities ” and each a Liability ") which may be made against him or which he may
suffer or incur as a consequence of, or which edlar arise, directly or indirectly, from his pess, duties or responsibilities as a dire
or officer of the Company or any Relevant Compargether with all reasonable costs and expensesiding legal and professional
fees) and any tax incurred in relation ther

Without prejudice to the generality of the imdety set out in clause 2.1, and subject to cléjsbe Company shall, subject to Applicable
Law and the Bye-Laws, pay the reasonable legab#mer expenses incurred by the Indemnified Pensalefending any proceedings
(whether civil or criminal) on an “as incurred” limen reasonable notice and on provision of sudtfeexce of the same as the Company
may reasonably reque:

For the avoidance of doubt, the Indemnity in theeD shall continue after the date on which thermmidied Person ceases to be a dire
of the Company or any Relevant Compe

To the extent that any of the Indemnified Pessare officers (including for the avoidance of bipthe Group Company Secretary) rather
than directors, such persons shall not be indesthifs any greater extent than if they were direcémd any indemnities granted to them
shall be subject to the restriction placed upoadar¢ indemnities by Applicable Law as if they were dims.

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS
The Indemnity shall be subject to the following les@ons and limitations. It will no

(2) apply in relation to a Liability to the extent treaty recovery is made by the Indemnified Persoh vaspect to that Liability und
any applicable policy of insurance or under anyeotights which entitle him to make recove

(b) modify or waive any of the duties which the énthified Person owes as an employee (if he is giome of any Relevant
Company), officer or director (as the case mayungler law, under the rules of any relevant stoaherge or other regulatory bc
or by reason of the terms of his engagemer

(c) extend to any Liability arising from fraud or digtesty on the part of the Indemnified Person seepaygnent

If the board of directors resolves, on reviewinigeaidence then available to it, that a Liabilityed not fall within clause 3.1 (c), it m
make payment under this Deed provided that if ghtter, a court finds that the Relevant Liabilityréspect of which the Indemnified
Person has been indemnified did arise from theersateferred to i

2



5.2

clause 3.1 (c), the Company may by notice to tldenmified Person recover all sums so indemnified @y payment pursuant to clal
7) and the Indemnified Person shall repay such amsdwithout interest) within 14 days of receiptsoich notice

DIRECTOR’S OBLIGATIONS
An Indemnified Person wishing to claim under thidémnity shall:

() first take all reasonable steps and carry batcions within his control and required to obtagcovery and shall use all reasonable
endeavours to recover under any applicable pofidggsurance or under any other rights which entitha to make recovery and, if
applicable, assist the Relevant Company in takihsteps and carrying out all actions required dtatn such recovery on the
Indemnified Persc’s behalf;

(b) give notice to the Company as soon as posaftée becoming aware of any claim or any circumsggior which there may be
liability under this Deed, and provide the Compauith an address for the service of notices undaug® 9 (if not already
provided);

(c) exceptwhere the Liability is owed to a Relevantrpany, forward every letter, claim, or other docutria any way relevant t
such a claim, to the Company immediately on re¢

(d) except where the Liability is owed to a Relev@ompany, not make, or permit to be made on hislheany admission,
compromise, release, waiver, offer or paymentiraab the claim, or take any other action reasgnkikely to prejudice the
Compan'’s ability to defend such a claim, in each caseauittthe prior written consent of the Company;

(e) exceptwhere the Liability is owed to a Relevantrpany, give full c-operation and provide such information as the Compaay
reasonably require (for itself and on behalf oftreather Relevant Company), and do everything t@Qompany may request (for
itself and on behalf of each other Relevant Compé&mgnable the Company to exercise its rights u@d@uses 5.1 or 5.2 or be
subrogated to the extent of any payment undeibed.

CONDUCT OF CLAIMS

Except where the Liability is owed to a Relevantipany, the Company will be entitled in its absoldieretion to take over and cond
in the name of the Indemnified Person(s) the defemsettiement of any claim or to prosecute imlisie for its own benefit any claim
proceedings

Except where the Liability is owed to a Relév@dompany, the Company shall have full discretiothie conduct or settlement of any
claim or proceedings taking account of the reaslendibections of the Indemnified Persc

3



7.2

ABILITY TO RECOVER

The Company shall, in the event a payment is madeet Indemnified Person under clause 2 in resgfegtparticular Liability, be entitle
to recover from the Indemnified Person an amountktp any payment received by the Indemnified @ersder any policy of insuran
or under any other right under which the IndemdifRerson is entitled to make recovery to the extaitsuch payment relates to the
Liability, and any such payment to the Indemnifiggrson shall be made on that basis PROVIDED THATItdemnified Person will not
be required to make payment to the Company of amyuat in excess of the amount paid or requirecetpdid by the Company to all the
Indemnified Persons under this Deed. The Indenthifierson will pay over such sum immediately upen@ompany’s request free of
any deduction or withholding (other than any deituncor withholding required by law and any reasdealosts of recovery incurred by
the Indemnified Person).

GROSSING UP

Subject to clauses 2.2 and 7.2, the Company saglspch amount to the Indemnified Persons as aftall the payment of any tax ther:
leave the Indemnified Person with sufficient futalsneet any liability to which the Indemnity apglid-or the avoidance of doubt, when
calculating the amount of any such tax the amofiahg tax deductions which are or will be availainleespect of the relevant Indemnity
payment will be taken into accou

In the event that any amounts are paid torttlerhnified Person under clause 7.1 but a tax dixfuist or becomes available in respect of
the relevant Indemnity payment received by the tmoi§ied Person, the Indemnified Person shall repash amounts forthwith to the
Company.

ASSIGNMENT AND CHOICE OF LAW
This Deed shall:
(&) not be assignable; al

(b) be governed and interpreted in accordance Béttmuda law and the Company and the Indemnifiedd®asrsubmit to the non-
exclusive jurisdiction of the Bermuda courts comireg any matter arising out of this Det

NOTICES
Notices must be in writing:
(a) tothe Company at its registered office for theribn of the Group Company Secretary;
(b) to an Indemnified Person at the address abovetbetaddress
0] he has given under Section 92A of the Companiesl881 to the Company; «

4



(i) in the Signet Grol’s records; o
(i)  notified under Clause 4(k
The notice will be deemed to have been deliverég ietter 48 hours after posting, and if by fadmupon receipt.

10. VARIATION

10.1 With the exception of By-Law 56 of the By-laws and any indemnity in favour of the Indemniffeersons contained in the E-Laws (or
equivalent) of any Relevant Company, this Deed titoihss the entirety of any indemnity given by thempany to the Indemnified
Persons. It supersedes all prior arrangements batthe Company and the Indemnified Persons whettitten or oral which in any way
indemnify the Indemnified Persons in their capaaiysuch

10.2 The Company may amend the terms of the Indemnitigdrevent, and to the extent, of any amendmewagation to the terms of B-
Law 56 of the Bye-Laws provided that any such ameemt is without prejudice to any act or omissioiopto the date of such
amendment or to any indemnity in favour of suctspes in any other document or agreement. A coplgeoDeed as varied will be
available for inspection in the office of the Compé&ecretary on reasonable noti

11. CONFLICTS AND SEVERANCE

11.1 In so far as the provisions of this Deed conflighwvthe provisions of any Applicable Law or the I-Laws, the provisions of tF
Applicable Law and the B»-Laws shall take precedenc

11.2 In the event of any provision of this Deedhpedetermined to be unenforceable in whole or i fea any reason, such unenforceability
shall not affect or impair the enforceability o&thther provisions or, in the case of provisionsniarceable only in part, shall not affect
or impair the remainder of the relevant provisiBach other provisions or parts thereof, as appatmrshall continue to bind the parti

5



IN WITNESS whereof this Deed Poll has been executed on theddyear first above written.

EXECUTED AS A DEED by
SIGNET JEWELERS LIMITED
acting by

two directors / a directc

and the Group Company Secret

— N N N

Director

Director / Group Company Secretz



SCHEDULE
(Indemnified Persons)

Sir Malcolm Williamson
Robert Anderson
Robert Blanchard

Walker Boyd
Terry Burman
Dale Hilpert
Mark Jenkins
Lesley Knox

Mark Light
Marianne Parrs
Thomas Plaskett
Russell Walls
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Coamy as of January 30, 2010 omitting subsidiarieghyfconsidered in the aggregate, would
constitute a significant subsidiary.

NAME WHERE INCORPORATED
Sterling Inc. United State:
Sterling Jewelers Int United State:
Sterling Jewelers LL( United State:
Sterling Jewelers Reinsurance | United State:
Signet UK Holdings Inc United State:
Checkbury Limitec England
Ernest Jones Limite England

H. Samuel Limitec England
Leslie Davis Limitec England
Signet Group Limitec England
Signet Group Services Limite England
Signet Holdings Limitec England
Signet Trading Limitec England
Signet Bermuda Finance Limitt Bermuda
Signet Malta Finance Limite Malta
Signet Luxembourg Holdings S: Luxembourg
Signet Luxembourg Finance S Luxembourg

Signet Luxembourg Sa Luxembourg



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Signet Jewelers Limited:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements (Nos. 333-153435, 333-09833-134192, 333-12304, 333-153422,
333-159987 and 333-08964) on Form S-8 of Signeelw Limited of our report dated March 25, 201@hwespect to the consolidated
balance sheets of Signet Jewelers Limited and dialigis as of January 30, 2010 and January 31, 20@Bthe related consolidated income
statements, and consolidated statements of shdersbequity, accumulated other comprehensive irg@nd cash flows for each of the 52
week periods ended January 30, 2010, January 89, 20d February 2, 2008 and the effectivenesstefrial control over financial reporting
as of January 30, 2010, which report appears iddaheary 30, 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K oh8iglewelers Limited.

KPMG Audit Plc

London, United Kingdon
March 30, 201(



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Terry Burman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fISignet Jewelers Limited;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financegdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiaflgcéd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfdbe company’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlihmittee of the company’s board of directors @nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refigancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2010

By: /s/ Terry Burman
Name: Terry Burmar
Title: Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Walker Boyd, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fISignet Jewelers Limited;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financegdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiaflgcéd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfdbe company’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlihmittee of the company’s board of directors @nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refigancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: 25 March, 2010

By: /s/ Walker Boyd
Name: Walker Boyd,
Title: Group Finance Directc




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Terry Burman, as Chief Executive Officer of Sagidewelers Limited (the “Company”), hereby certgursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as
adopted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2D6R, that to my knowledge:

(1) the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfier period ending January 30, 2010, as filed tiehU.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended,;
and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplgesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date March 25, 2010

By: /s/ Terry Burman
Name: Terry Burmar
Title: Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED BY SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Walker Boyd,, as Group Finance Director of Sigi®welers Limited (the “Company”), hereby certiiyirsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as
adopted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2D6OR, that to my knowledge:

(1) the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfier period ending January 30, 2010, as filed tiehU.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended,;
and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplgesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date 25 March 2010

By: /s/ Walker Boyd
Name: Walker Boyd,
Title: Group Finance Directc




